
 

 
 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some 
business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 
 

 

 

AGENDA 
AUDIT PANEL 

 
 

Date: TUESDAY, 20 SEPTEMBER 2011 at 6.00 pm 

 
Committee Room 4 
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
Enquiries to:    Olga Cole 
Telephone:       0208 314 8577 (direct line) 
 
COUNCILLORS 
 

 Independent Members 

 
Councillor Michael Harris - Chair 
Councillor Philip Peake - Vice Chair 
Councillor Jenni Clutten 
Councillor Suzannah Clarke 
Councillor Jim Mallory 
Councillor Alan Till 
 

  Richard King 
 David Webb 
 

 
Members are summoned to attend this meeting 

 
Barry Quirk 
Chief Executive 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: 12 September 2011 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1. Minutes of the last meeting 
 

1 - 8 

2. Declarations of Interests 
 

9 - 11 

3. External Auditor's Report on the 2010/11 Accounts 
 

12 - 259 

4. Internal Audit Update Report 
 

260 - 273 

5. Anti Fraud and Corruption Team Update 
 

274 - 277 

   



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\2\1\ai00002122\$axdlboda.doc 

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM 

 

Minutes 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the AUDIT PANEL, which was open to the press and public, 
held on WEDNESDAY 22 JUNE 2011 at LEWISHAM TOWN HALL, CATFORD, SE6 
4RU at 7p.m. 
 

Present 

 
Councillor Harris (Chair) Councillor Peake (Vice Chair) Councillors Clarke, Clutten, 
Mallory and Till.  
 
Independent Member 
 
Mr Webb  
 
Audit Commission 
 
Sue Exton     - District Auditor  
     
Geoffrey Banister                - Audit Manager 
 
RSM Tenon Ltd 
 
Chris Harris   -  Director of Internal Audit 
 
Officers 
 
Janet Senior                       -          Executive Director for Resources 
David Austin    - Interim Head of Audit & Risk  
Richard Lambeth  - Group Manager - Accounting 
Andreas Ghosh                  -          Head of Personnel & Development 
 
Observers 
 
Paul Dale  
Mike Robinson  
 

Minute No.  Action 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 
 

 

 RESOLVED that  
 

i. Councillor Michael Harris be appointed 
as Chair of the Audit Panel for 2011/12 

ii. Councillor Philip Peake be appointed as 
Vice Chair of the Audit Panel for 
2011/12 

 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\2\1\ai00002122\$axdlboda.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

 
2. MINUTES (page 

 
 

 RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held 
on 23 March 2011, which was open to the press 
and public, be confirmed and signed. 
 
 

 

3. 
 

3.1 

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS (page 
 
The Chair declared a personal non prejudicial interest as a 
member on the Board of Lewisham Park Housing Association. 
 

 

4. AUDIT COMMISSION PROGRESS REPORT 
 

 

4.1 Geoffrey Banister, Audit Manager, Audit Commission introduced 
the report. He highlighted that the Council’s overall performance 
on grant claims during 2009/10 had improved, but stressed that 
the Council should aim to reduce errors and try to keep within its 
deadlines.  
 

 
 
ED 
Resources 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 

5. LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM DRAFT AUDIT OPINION 
PLAN 
 

 

5.1 The Chair said at the Panel’s March meeting he had asked the 
Group Accountant if the 27 May deadline would be met, and 
assurances were given to Panel members that the deadline 
would be met. The Chair said he was concerned that this had 
turned out not to be the case, and added that the same thing 
had happened the previous year. The Group Manager, 
Accounting said that there were separate people working on the 
pension funds and the main accounts. He added that there had 
been substantial findings on the main accounts but he was 
confident that they would be delivered on time. The Group 
Manager, Accounting said that for the pension funds, officers 
were working to rectify the position. He added that an interim 
officer had been given the responsibility and Management would 
like to finish the audit activity to facilitate termination of the 
contract of the interim staff. 
 

 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

6. LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM PENSION FUND DRAFT 
AUDIT OPINION PLAN 
 

 

6.1 The Chair asked whether Councils were making the right  

Page 2



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\2\1\ai00002122\$axdlboda.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

judgment in actuarial assumptions and asset values. He added 
that officers need to examine the skills and experience of the 
Council’s IFRS experts they were relying on to make these 
assumptions. Geoffrey Banister stated that if the expertise was 
available to do the work, then more effort should be made to 
complete the work on time. He added that since the Panel’s last 
meeting in March 2011, he had not received any reports from 
the Council. He also said that the Pension fund report was 
delayed, and the Audit Commission received just 20% of the 
papers. He said that this was an improvement from the same 
time last year, when the Audit Commission had not received 
anything from the Council. 
   

6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.4 

The Group Manager, Accounting informed members that the 
Council was slightly earlier with their papers than the previous 
year. He added that officers hoped to sign off by the end of the 
week and the papers would then be with the Audit Commission 
by 1st July. He stated that discussions had already taken place 
on a lot of the papers. The Chair asked how much the Council 
had to pay for late fees, and was told that last year the late fee 
was £15k.  
 
Sue Exton, District Auditor, from the Audit Commission stated it 
was about the same time last year when the Panel had received 
information on assets. She said that the Audit Commission 
would need to see what the issues were and how best they 
could be addressed, especially with investments and 
reconciliations. The Chair asked if these were new, and what 
they were. Geoffrey Bannister  informed members that there 
were some unquoted policy that the Council were involved with 
that were not listed on the stock market. These include private 
equity investment, overseas investments, or building sharing. He 
highlighted that special audit would need to be put in place to 
address this. 
 
Geoffrey Bannister said that it was part of the service they had 
provided, and they were not new, but the Audit Commission had 
noticed that the reconciliations had not been done since October 
2010. Councillor Mallory said that he was concerned that there 
were different processes for some of the Council’s investments, 
he added that he was particularly concerned that the Council 
was investing in private equity. The Chair said that these 
concerns could be raised at the Pension Investment Committee. 
Sue Exton from the Audit Commission said that because of the 
complexity of the investments an audit fee had to be charged. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Interim 
Head of 
Audit & 
Risk 
 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

Page 3



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\2\1\ai00002122\$axdlboda.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

 
 

7. 
 

7.1 
 
 
 
 

7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.3 

DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11 
 
The Group Manager, Accounting introduced the report and 
informed members that the Executive Director would be signing 
the accounts off at the end of the week with the aim to send it to 
the Audit Commission to ensure it was received by 30 June. 
 
The Chair asked what the effect of IRFS was, and the Group 
Manager, Accounting said that it had not affected the Council’s 
pension, but there was a major effect on the full stock valuation 
of housing. It was noted that it was down from 37% in 2008/9 to 
25% in 2009/10 i.e. from £900m to £600m.This meant a 
reduction in social housing. It was also noted that the 
government had also reduced CAF from £650m to £350m. The 
Chair asked if officers had checked to ensure that Lewisham 
was in line with other local authorities. Members were informed 
that a London Forum had been set up over the last 18 months, 
where issues were usually raised and discussed. Lewisham had 
always been represented in that forum. The Chair asked if the 
reduction in social housing would affect Lewisham’s ability to 
borrow. The Group Manager, Accounting said that it would not 
affect the Council’s borrowing threshold. Members were 
informed that the Council’s borrowing was regulated, and in a 
crisis they would examine the Council’s overall debt, before a 
decision was made, as the Council has a limit to the amount it 
could borrow. 
 
The Chair said that the report showed that the pension fund was 
still unsatisfactory. It was noted that liabilities in the pension 
funds are down by £30m, and the pension fund is up £45m. It 
was noted that the figures that came though were extremely low, 
last year they were £20m, now they are down to £1.5m. Geoffrey 
Bannister from Audit Commission said that the figures were very 
volatile and might go up again. The Executive Director for 
Resources said that officers had pursued this over the years, but 
they have not yet reached a satisfactory agreement with the 
Audit Commission. She added that the Council still find it 
unsatisfactory because of the variable. Geoffrey Bannister said 
the Audit Commission, does not agree with the Council on this 
issue. The Executive Director for Resources said that the 
Council would continue to pursue this to reach an amicable 
agreement. The Chair asked if other authorities have been 
contacted to discuss this issue. The Executive Director for 
Resources said that some local authorities were in a similar 
position whilst some were not, as their contract had been 
worded differently. She added that they hope to get some 

 

Page 4



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\2\1\ai00002122\$axdlboda.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

accounting practices in place to reflect this situation. The 
Executive Director for Resources said that they await the 
outcome of the Hatton report which would include some 
recommendations that might be helpful.  
 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted 
 

 

8. HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2010/11 
 

 

8.1 
 
 
 
 
 

8.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.3 

The Interim Head of Audit & Risk introduced the report. He 
apologised for its late circulation. He added that there had been 
a slight change in the reporting format this year and that the 
overall opinion on satisfactory assurance was positive. He said 
that that working with Chris Harris, RSM had been very positive. 
 
The Chair asked for confirmation that the number of checks on 
potential recruits had reduced from 443 to 279. This was 
confirmed and reflected a drop in level of recruitment over the 
past year. The Chair said that it had not been made clear what 
level of fraud staff who had resigned had committed, he also 
asked if allegations were being pursued effectively by Human 
Resources. The Chair then asked for the process of pursing an 
individual suspected of fraud. The Head of Audit & Risk and the 
Executive Director for Resources explained the process, which 
included Management and Human Resources involvement. 
 
Members asked whether officers were aware of the Council’s 
policy on fraud. The Head of Audit & Risk highlighted that 
induction was mandatory for new staff members wherein they 
were made aware of the Council’s policy and procedures, and 
employees code of conduct. The induction would also refer to 
the Council’s counter fraud policy. It was noted that the Council 
practices a zero tolerance on fraud. 
 

 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

9. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 2011/12 
 

 

9.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Chair noted the reported increase in the amount of benefit 
fraud within the Council, and asked whether there had been an 
increase in the value of fraud. The Head of Audit & Risk said that 
the value was approximately the same. The Executive Director 
stressed that the issue was not the value of the fraud committed, 
but the action in itself, with other issues coming to play to 
determine the outcome. David Webb asked what the Council’s 
success rate was in pursuing cases. It was noted that this was 
not recorded by the antifraud team, as some people might agree 
to pay back monies due over a period of time. It was noted that 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\2\1\ai00002122\$axdlboda.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

 
 
 

9.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.3 

success was not solely on what the Council recoup, but the 
deterrent message as well.  
 
The Chair asked what procedures the Council has in place to 
support the new academies. The Head of Audit & Risk said that 
if the academies decide to purchase the Council’s services, the 
contract between Lewisham and the Academies would contain 
insurance arrangements for indemnity. The Executive Director 
for Resources said that Audit would have been conducted with 
Management and the Auditor working together, and agreed 
recommendations would be set out following Management’s 
feedback. Chris Harris, Internal Audit Contractor added that 
RSM Tenon would ensure that they deliver what had been 
promised to the Council. 
 
The Chair asked what risks officers envisage when working with 
the third sector. The Head of Audit & Risk said that they would 
look at a number of contracts that had gone out in the past, both 
big and small, and a project would be set up to ensure officers 
were getting the right expertise and level of support they need 
for the future. The Executive Director for Resources said that 
contracts for planning were currently going well, there were 
some difficulties for voluntary and community organisations 
because of their specifications and how they were monitored. 
She added that the Council would need to concentrate on these. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Interim 
Head of 
Audit & 
Risk 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

10. 
 

10.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANTI FRAUD & CORRUPTION TEAM OVERVIEW 
 
The Head of Audit & Risk informed members that although the 
report does not fully reflect what had been requested, it was an 
overview of what had been done to join up arrangements across 
the Council. Councillor Mallory said that he could understand 
why the report was slightly different from what was expected, but 
would be happy if it meant the work was being done effectively 
and cases were being pursued successfully.  
 
The Head of Audit & Risk said that officers had pursued volume 
rather that quality, but now they hade decided that it would be 
beneficial to focus on the impact and identify fewer quality 
cases. He added that the team would be engaging more with the 
organisation to decide which cases should be pursued. The 
Team would now be profiling the number of cases received and 
how soon they were dealt with. He emphasised that they were 
operating a small Housing Benefit team which was scheduled to 
be transferred to the Department for Works and Pension (DWP) 
from April 2013. Councillor Mallory commented that if the Team 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\2\1\ai00002122\$axdlboda.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

 
 
 
 

10.3 

was transferred to DWP, then the Council may have to deal with 
the immediate problems of transition. He asked whether there 
were transitional arrangements in place to monitor progress.  
 
The Chair requested that this item be brought back to the next 
Audit Panel for noting. The report should include information and 
figures of benefit fraud in Bromley, Greenwich and Southwark. 
 

 
 
 
 
Interim 
Head of 
Audit & 
Risk 

 RESOLVED i. that the report be noted. 
ii. that an update be brought to the 

next Audit Panel meeting for 
noting. 

 

 

11. ANTI FRAUD & CORRUPTION TEAM UPDATE  
 

11.1 
 
The Interim Head of Audit & Risk introduced the report, and 
following discussions it was agreed that an update should be 
brought back to the September meeting of the Panel. 
 

 
Interim 
Head of 
Audit & 
Risk 
 

 RESOLVED i. that the report be noted. 
ii. that an update be brought back 

to the next Audit Panel. 
 
 

 

12. 
 

12.1 
 
 
 
 
 

12.2 
 

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2010/11 
 
The Interim Head of Audit & Risk introduced the report. 
Councillor Peake raised a question on the wording of part of 
paragraph 6 of the report. The Executive Director for Resources 
said that officers would check the wording and amend 
accordingly.  
 
The Chair commented that families in temporary accommodation 
seemed to be an ongoing issue. He said that this had been 
discussed at the Housing Select Committee, and asked if the 
situation would have been exacerbated because of the cuts in 
housing benefits. The Chair asked if this issue would remain on 
Lewisham’s agenda. The Executive Director for Resources said 
that although the Council had made significant progress with this 
issue, it would still be kept on the agenda.  
 

 
 
 
 
ED 
Resources 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

13. THE COST AND USE OF CONSULTANTS AND SENIOR 
MANAGERS AT LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM 

 

 
13.1 

 
The Head of Personnel & Development introduced the report. 

 

Page 7



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\2\2\1\ai00002122\$axdlboda.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

He informed members that Lewisham has got one of the lowest 
numbers of senior managers in the South East, and also in 
comparison to Bromley, Greenwich and Southwark. Councillor 
Till asked how many of the Senior Interim Managers in Social 
Care were long term engagements. The Head of Personnel & 
Development said that most of these appointments were for 
under 1 year, but some were longer, and they were all being 
reviewed. Councillor Till also asked if it cost the Council more to 
appoint staff on a temporary basis. The Head of Personnel & 
Development said that it was cheaper to appoint staff on a 
temporary basis because of additional cost incurred in keeping 
with employment practices.  
 

13.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13.3 

The Chair said that he had noted that the number of Consultants 
were on the decline, but would like to know if others could be 
appointed in the foreseeable future as this would take the figures 
up again. The Executive Director for Resources informed Panel 
Members that presently all appointments have to go through the 
Directors’ Management Team for approval. She added that the 
Team vigorously challenge all requests, as this process have 
now been tightened.  
 
The Chair said that the report was excellent but it would be 
useful if the report could include the average hourly rate for a 
particular band. The Head of Personnel & Development said that 
they have written to the employment agencies to obtain their 
permission to add these figures to the report. He added that the 
update report would have specific figures. The Chair said that 
this update would be ongoing because of its importance, and if 
at any time the number of consultants go up the Panel would 
have to review the situation again. 
 

 

 RESOLVED i. that the report be noted. 
ii. that an update to be brought back to 

the Panel in November.  

 

 The meeting ended at  9.43p.m.  
                                                                                  Chair  
   

 

Page 8



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\2\1\ai00002123\$ulkqcd02.doc 

 

AUDIT PANEL 

Report Title 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

Key Decision 
 

  Item No. 2 
 

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: 20 September 2011 

 
Declaration of interests 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 
 
Personal interests 
There are two types of personal interest :-  

(a) an interest which you must enter in the Register of Members’ Interests* 
(b) an interest where the wellbeing or financial position of you, (or a “relevant 

person”) is likely to be affected by a matter more than it would affect the 
majority of in habitants of the ward or electoral division affected by the 
decision. 

 
*Full details of registerable interests appear on the Council’s website. 
 
(“Relevant” person includes you, a member of your family, a close associate, and  
their employer, a firm in which they are a partner, a company where they are a 
director, any body in which they have securities with a nominal value of £25,000 and 
(i) any body of which they are a member, or in a position of general control or 
management  to which they were appointed or nominated by the Council, and  
(ii) any body exercising functions of a public nature, or directed to charitable 
purposes or one of whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion 
or policy, including any trade union or political party) where they hold a position of 
general management or control,  
 
If you have a personal interest you must declare the nature and extent of it before 
the matter is discussed or as soon as it becomes apparent, except in limited 
circumstances.  Even if the interest is in the Register of Interests, you must declare it 
in meetings where matters relating to it are under discussion, unless an exemption 
applies. 
 
Exemptions to the need to declare personal interest to the meeting  
You do not need to  declare a personal interest  where it arises solely from 
membership of, or position of control or management on: 
 

(a) any other body to which your were appointed or nominated by the Council 
(b) any other body exercising functions of a public nature. 

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 9



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\2\1\ai00002123\$ulkqcd02.doc 

 

In these exceptional cases, unless your interest is also prejudicial,  you only need to 
declare your interest if and when you speak on the matter .   
 
Sensitive information  
If the entry of a personal interest in the Register of Interests would lead to the 
disclosure of information whose availability for inspection creates or is likely to create  
a serious risk of violence to you or a person living with you, the interest need not be 
entered in the Register of Interests, provided the Monitoring Officer accepts that the 
information is sensitive.  Where this is the case, if such an interest arises at a 
meeting, it must be declared but you need not disclose the sensitive information.  
 
Prejudicial interests 
Your personal interest will also be prejudicial if all of the following conditions are met: 
 

(a) it does not fall into an exempt category (see below) 
(b) the matter affects either your financial interests or relates to regulatory 

matters -  the determining of any consent, approval, licence, permission or 
registration 

(c) a member of the public who knows the relevant facts would reasonably 
think your personal interest so significant that it is likely to prejudice your 
judgement of the public interest. 

 
Categories exempt from being prejudicial interest 
 

(a)Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter 
relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 

(b) School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent 
or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless 
the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which 
you are a governor;  

(c) Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d) Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e)Ceremonial honours for members 
(f)  Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 
Effect of having a prejudicial interest 
If your personal interest is also prejudicial, you must not speak on the matter.  
Subject to the exception below, you must leave the room when it is being discussed  
and not seek to influence the decision improperly in any way. 
 
Exception 
The exception to this general rule applies to allow a member to act as a community 
advocate notwithstanding the existence of a prejudicial interest.  It only applies 
where members of the public also have a right to attend to make representation, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter. Where this is the case, the member 
with a prejudicial interest may also attend the meeting for that purpose.  However the 
member must still declare the prejudicial interest, and must leave the room once they 
have finished making representations, or when the meeting decides they have 
finished, if that is earlier.  The member cannot vote on the matter, nor remain in the 
public gallery to observe the vote. 

Page 10



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\3\2\1\ai00002123\$ulkqcd02.doc 

 

 
Prejudicial interests and overview and scrutiny   
 
In addition, members also have a prejudicial interest in any matter before an 
Overview and Scrutiny body where the business relates to a decision  by the 
Executive or by a committee or sub committee of the Council if at the time the 
decision was made the member was on  the Executive/Council committee or sub-
committee and was present when the decision was taken. In short, members are not 
allowed to scrutinise decisions to which they were party.  

Page 11



   

  

 

 

1 PURPOSE 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to the Audit Panel the external auditor’s 
report (The Annual Governance Report or AGR) on the audit of the council’s 
2010/11 accounts.  The AGR is attached to this report, and sets out: 

“…the findings from the 2010/11 audit…the messages arising from my audit of 
your financial statements and the results of the work I have undertaken to assess 
your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of resources.” 

1.2 In other words, the AGR sets out the matters arising from the audit that, in the 
opinion of the external auditor, are of sufficient significance to warrant discussion 
with Members. 

1.3 This covering report also sets out officers’ views on the matters raised by the 
external auditor. 

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 The audit is not complete as at the date of despatch.  However, at that date the 
external auditor anticipates that: 

“…subject to completion of outstanding audit areas…I plan to issue an unqualified 
opinion on the financial statements…”  and that 
 
“I plan to issue a conclusion that the council’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources are adequate.” 

2.2 The external auditor raises a number of matters for Members to consider.  In some 
cases officers accept that errors were made in the draft statements, although it is 
important to note that these principally relate to detailed disclosure requirements.  
In other cases officers disagree with the emphasis of the auditor’s report.  
Discussions between officers and the auditors on earlier drafts of the report have 
resolved some issues, but on others it has not been possible to reach agreement.  
The reasons for these disagreements are set out in this covering report. 

 

 

AUDIT PANEL 

 
 

Report Title 
 

External Auditor’s report on the 2010/11 accounts 

 

Key Decision 
 

 

No 
 

Item No. 
 

3 

 

Ward 
 

 

ALL 
 

Contributors 
 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR of RESOURCES 
 

Class 
 

 
 

Date:  20 September 2011 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 12



   

  

2.3 The District Auditor and appropriate members of her team, and senior council 
officers, will attend the meeting to answer questions as appropriate. 

2.4 The external auditor recommends that Members: 

• “Take note of the adjustments to the financial statements which are set out in 
this report (i.e. the AGR) 

• Review unadjusted misstatements to the financial statements and if you 
decide not to amend please tell me why in the representation letter 

• Approve the letter of representation, provided alongside this report, on behalf 
of the council before I issue my opinion and conclusion 

• Agree your response to the proposed action plan.” 

2.5 Under the council’s constitution these matters will be for council to determine.  At 
the council meeting Members will be recommended to note the AGR and to 
delegate authority to the Executive Director of Resources and the Chair of the 
Audit Panel to complete these actions as appropriate.  The comments of the Audit 
Panel arising from this meeting will be communicated to council on 21 September 
2011. 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 The Audit Panel are recommended to note the AGR and the covering officer 
report, to ask questions as appropriate and to agree the comments that they wish 
to be relayed to Council. 

 
4. POLICY CONTEXT 
 
4.1 Completing the audit of the council’s accounts and receiving the auditor’s report 

thereon contributes directly to the council’s tenth corporate priority: 
 

• Inspiring efficiency, effectiveness and equity: ensuring efficiency and equity 
in the delivery of excellent services to meet the needs of the community. 

 
 

5. DETAIL 

5.1 The audit is not complete at the point of despatch of this report.  However, it is well 
advanced and the external auditor plans “to issue an unqualified opinion on the 
financial statements” subject of course to no other issues arising that cannot be 
resolved.  Good working relationships between officers and the audit staff have 
been developed through regular meetings and remain strong.  In some cases 
officers disagree with the auditor’s findings or interpretations, but because of the 
good working relationships in place these disagreements have not impeded the 
progress of the audit. 

5.2 This section of the report details those parts of the AGR where officers disagree 
with the emphasis in the auditor’s comments, and sets out officers’ reasons for 
this.  Absence of comment means that the findings reported by the external auditor 
are accepted.  In some cases the external auditor’s findings are accepted, but 
additional contextual information is provided for the benefit of Members.  
References are given by the page numbers of the external auditor’s report, rather 

Page 13



   

  

than the pagination of the agenda papers, as the latter are, naturally, not available 
at the time of despatch. 

5.3 Before detailing the points on which officers disagree with the external auditor it is 
important to note that the audit has identified errors in the draft statements of 
account.  Officers regret these and will consider whether any year-end processes 
should be amended for next year.  However, it is important to note that there are 
no findings from the external auditor that would, if amended, cause the resources 
available to the council as at 31 March 2011 to change, and hence that there are 
no findings that would cause any different decisions to have been made.  Similarly, 
there are no findings that, if amended for, would cause reported performance for 
the 2010/11 year to change in any way relevant for decision making.  Where errors 
have been identified they are generally concerned with detailed disclosure of 
technical matters, or in the technical accounting treatment of items that, under 
statutory requirements for local government accounting, have no impact on any 
‘bottom line’ figure relevant for decision making. 

Matters on which officers dispute aspects of the external auditor’s findings 

5.4 On page 11 of the AGR the external auditor states that: 

“My audit identified a number of typographical errors, rounding and casting 
errors…trivial inconsistencies between notes to the financial statements, which 
management have chosen not to amend.” 

5.5 Officers disagree with this finding.  Even if it were factually correct (which is not 
agreed) officers disagree that it is a matter of sufficient significance to report 
publicly in this way, especially given that the auditor acknowledges that the 
number of errors is not significant.  The detailed review of the draft statements 
carried out by the external auditor, with their annotations, is attached as Appendix 
One to this report. 

5.6 The external auditor contends that in a number of places the financial statements 
do not cast correctly, due to rounding errors.  Different professionally qualified 
accountants might have different professional views as to whether figures in the 
accounts should be disclosed to the correct nearest £’000 or amended fractionally 
in order that the face of the statements arithmetically cast correctly.   Officers are 
of the opinion that this is an entirely trivial matter. 

5.7 However in constructing the statements one view or the other needs to be 
adopted, and officers chose the former, partly as a professional judgement but 
also because it is simpler.  The external auditor takes the view, in effect, that if 
they were preparing the statements themselves, they would have taken the 
alternative approach, which would be to amend one of the constituent figures by 
£1,000 in order that the particular element of the statements appeared to cast 
correctly.  This would then create other cross-referencing or similar errors, and so 
take considerable officer time to amend for. 

5.8 The accounts disclose that the council spent around £1.2bn in 2010/11, and had 
gross assets of approximately £1.75bn as at 31 March 2011.  Officers consider 
that rounding differences of £1,000 within an organisation this size are not 
important. 

Page 14



   

  

5.9 Officers accept that in some isolated cases this review by the external auditor has 
identified trivial errors in cross-referencing in the accounts and other similar 
matters.  These will be corrected in the final statements.  However, the external 
auditor recommends that: 

“The council should include appropriate quality control procedures in the final 
accounts closedown process.” 

5.10 Officers believe that the quality control checks already operating are appropriate.  
If more officer time were diverted to these it would take focus away from 
controlling and reducing costs.  Officers believe that their current assessment of 
the relative importance of these competing priorities is correct, and so recommend 
that Members do not accept this recommendation. 

5.11 The external auditor identifies in Appendix 3 of the AGR (pages 23 and 24) 
“unadjusted misstatements to the financial statements”.  The external auditor 
recommends that Members “Consider whether the financial statements should be 
amended to reflect the unadjusted errors…” 

5.12 Officers recommend that these errors are not adjusted.  It is common ground 
between officers and the external auditors that these are errors.  However, they 
are not material to the financial statements.  Adjusting for them would have no 
impact on the resources available to the council, as the correct figures were 
brought into all relevant reports to Members on resource allocation where 
appropriate.  Adjusting for them would not impact on any relevant performance 
figure for the 2010/11 accounts. 

5.13 In understanding this point Members should note that the balance sheet reflects a 
precise point in time, i.e. 31 March 2011.  Around this date there will, almost 
inevitably in any large and complex organisation such as Lewisham, be 
transactions that are treated one way for pragmatic reasons.  These errors have 
already been adjusted for in 2011/12 as part of normal business. 

5.14 Accordingly, Members are recommended to: 

“Agree not to amend the misstatement identified in Appendix 3 to the AGR, and to 
authorise the Executive Director of Resources and the Chair of the Audit Panel to 
sign a letter of representation to the external auditors accordingly.” 

 Matters where officers agree with the external auditor’s findings, but consider it 

appropriate to provide further contextual or other information 

5.15 The external auditor identifies (page 6 of the AGR) an error of £41.5m in respect of 
capital grants and contributions.   The error is acknowledged and regretted.  
However, it is important that Members understand that this was in respect of a 
technical accounting entry the effect of which is automatically reversed elsewhere 
in the statements, as the external auditor acknowledges. 

5.16 It arose because a system report was misunderstood to exclude certain technical 
transactions, when in fact it included them.  This should not have happened.  
However, the quality control checks on the accounts were designed to focus on 
those areas where errors would impact materially on the reported performance for 
2010/11 or on the resources available for future expenditure.  These quality control 

Page 15



   

  

checks were successful, as no issues relating to these figures have been reported 
by the external auditor.  These quality checks were, intentionally given resource 
constraints, ‘light touch’ on technical entries that are automatically reversed 
elsewhere in the statements. 

5.17 This does not excuse a substantial error, which officers regret.  Nonetheless, the 
context behind it is, in officers’ view, important for Members’ understanding of the 
accounts and the auditor’s report thereon. 

5.18 On page 9 of the AGR (and repeated elsewhere in the document) the external 
auditor comments on the implementation of the new asset register as regards the 
asset class of ‘property, plant and equipment’.  Officers do not dispute that the 
implementation of this system was problematic and delayed.  However, the system 
has now been implemented, and works in accordance with requirements.  Officers 
accept that early in the audit process they could and should have communicated 
more clearly to the auditors, but it is important that Members understand that there 
is no fundamental weakness in the system. 

5.19 The external auditor also identifies an error of £11.9m in respect of the 
consolidation of the loan between itself and Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd 
(CRPL).  This error is in the comparative figures for 2009/10, rather than 2010/11, 
and therefore reflects a previously unidentified error in last year’s audited 
accounts, which, having now identified it, the auditor wishes to be corrected. 

5.20 For clarity, the council’s accounts are correct; the auditor does not dispute this.  
Subject to their separate audit the accounts of CRPL are also correct.  In 
producing the group accounts, for the council and all its legal subsidiaries, 
including CRPL, this transaction should have been eliminated, as the loan to 
CRPL is necessarily matched by CRPL’s debt to the council.  This consolidation 
was overlooked in 2009/10, in error, but has no impact relevant performance 
figures reported to Members, or on the resources available to the council. 

5.21 On page 8 of the AGR the external auditor correctly states that the disclosure of 
the financial close reached in respect of SPV4 of the Building Schools for the 
Future Programme was not made in note 38 to the accounts.  The correct 
disclosure was made in notes 28 and 35.  Officers do not dispute that it was an 
error that the additional disclosure required by The Code was not made in note 38, 
but consider it important to stress that this was an oversight only of detailed 
disclosure requirements; in other words that the substance of the transaction was 
understood,  and that appropriate disclosures were included elsewhere in the 
statements. 

 
6 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1 There are no direct financial implications in agreeing the recommendations in this 
report. 

6.2 The cost of external audit services in respect of 2010/11 was £559,000, including 
the cost of the audit of the accounts, the certification of grant claims and returns 
and other external audit services. 

Page 16



   

  

 
7 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1 Regulation 8 of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires 
authorities to publish its Statement of Accounts after the external audit is 
concluded no later than 30 September.  The approval of the audited Statement of 
Accounts by Council on 21 September 2011 will satisfy this statutory requirement. 

7.2 It is the role of the Audit Panel to receive, review and where appropriate advise 
and make recommendations to the Council in relation to the external auditor’s 
opinion and report to Members, and to monitor management action in response to 
issues raised by external audit. 

 
 
8 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS  
 

8.1 There are no equalities implications in this report. 

 

9 Consultation 

9.1 The draft accounts have been published, and local electors have been able to 
exercise their rights to ask questions of the auditor in respect of them, and to 
inspect accounting records. 

 

 

 
10 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no environmental implications in this report. 
 
 
11 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 

 

12 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None 

 
Appendices 

 
1 Annotated version of draft accounts (by the external auditor) 
2 Annual Governance Report by the external auditor 
 
For further information on this report please contact: 
 

 

Conrad Hall, Head of Business Management and Service Support 

 

Page 17



Key:

^ Casting checked and agreed

cc Cross casting checked and agreed

! Internal cross-referencing checked and agreed

! Calculations/extraction of cash flow checked and agreed

! Agreed to prior year signed statutory financial statements

" Agreed to Companies House website records

# Page/note number checked as sequential

Page 18



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Contents

1

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM

2010/11 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

CONTENTS
PAGE

NUMBER

FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR RESOURCES…………………...3

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS ...…11

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF THE LONDON
BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM (TO FOLLOW AFTER COMPLETION OF AUDIT) …. 12

SECTION 1 – CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a) MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT……… ……………………………..….. 14
b) COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT…… ….…..……16
c) BALANCE SHEET……………………… …………………………….………..…….17
d) CASH FLOW STATEMENT………………………………………………………..……..18

SECTION 2 – STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICES
LEWISHAM ACCOUNTING POLICIES……………………………….…….……………...19

SECTION 3 – NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LEWISHAM CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS …………….……………….….………..33

SECTION 4 – SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS
a) HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT……………………………………….……..…..……87
b) COLLECTION FUND………………………………………………………...……………97

SECTION 5 – PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS
LEWISHAM PENSION FUND…………………………………………………….………...103

SECTION 6 – GROUP ACCOUNTS
LEWISHAM GROUP ACCOUNTS………………………………………...……………….115

SECTION 7 – ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (AGS)……..…………………125

ANNEXE 1 – AGS ACTION PLAN…………………………………………………….…..137

ANNEXE 2 – GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ACRONYMS........................….………..147

ANNEXE 3 – CAPITAL EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS.…………………………………...151

Page 19



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

2

Page 20



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Foreword

3

FOREWORD

TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

2010/11

Page 21



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Foreword

4

FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR RESOURCES

1. INTRODUCTION

The Statement of Accounts brings together the financial results of all the Council's operations for the
financial year 2010/11 and shows the financial position as at 31 March 2011.

The Accounts have been compiled in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2010/11 (the COP), and the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice (BVACOP)
2010/11, jointly developed by CIPFA and the Accounting Standards Board. The Code constitutes 'proper
accounting practice' with which local authorities must by statute comply.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) have been implemented throughout the Council’s
accounts. This fundamental change to the Statement of Accounts was started last year with the adoption
of the new accounting treatment for Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes and similar contracts.

The major areas where the accounting treatment has changed are as set out below:

$ Fixed assets have been re-titled ‘non current assets’ and the definitions of these changed. As a
result different methods of valuation are required, and sometimes different rates of depreciation
have had to be charged. This change is retrospective, and so the re-stated valuations for
property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2010 have been reduced by £18.8m, In addition,
non-current assets have had to be analysed into ‘components’ (for example, a lift would be a
component of a tower block). Different depreciation rates are applied to different components,
which has tended to increase the depreciation charge in 2010/11 compared with 2009/10. The
disclosure requirements for leases have also been changed, resulting in a slight increase (£0.1m)
in the re-stated value as at 31 March 2010 and greater disclosure of the finance elements of
existing leases. Investment properties and assets held for sale have also been more tightly
defined, to exclude most cases where there is any regeneration or social value consideration,
which has had the impact of increasing the depreciation charge in 2010/11 compared with
2009/10.

$ Leases are now more tightly defined, with the finance component more clearly identified in the
disclosures within the accounts.

$ Government grants are now classified with greater emphasis on the council’s possible obligations
to repay sums previously paid over, for example if grant conditions are subsequently not met. In
the statements the effect of this is to move some grants from Receipts in Advance to Earmarked
Reserves. A further change sees the removal of the Government Grants Deferred account to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

$ Employees’ annual leave which has not been taken at the year-end is treated as an obligation
that the council may need to meet, and so is shown as an unusable reserve of £6.9m (£7.8m for
09/10). This was retrospective for 2009/10, with the change in the value of the reserve between
the years being mainly due to the calculation of the teachers element which is affected by the
timing of the Spring and Summer term dates.

$ Cash and its equivalents are now defined largely as those instruments that can be cashed within
up to three months. This primarily has the effect of reduced the value of the council’s short term
investments by £105m compared to that reported in the 09/10 Accounts, with a corresponding
increase in cash holdings.

In addition, there are a number of reporting requirements changes, namely;

$ A new Core Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement

$ A revised Core Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

$ Segmental Reporting, linking financial reporting to management reporting

Full details of these major changes are given throughout the document.

Page 22



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Foreword

5

The other significant events that have had a major impact on the Statement of Accounts during 2010/11
are outlined in Section 5 of the foreword below.

2. THE COUNCIL'S STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Statement of Accounts comprises of this Foreword, a Statement of Responsibilities, an External
Auditor’s report (to follow after completion of the audit) and sect ions and appendices as outlined below.

Section 1 – The Core Financial Statements

Section 1a - Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS)
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed
into ‘usable reserves’ (ie those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and other reserves. The Surplus
or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council’s
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and
the Housing Revenue Account for Council Tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The Net
Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund
Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked
reserves undertaken by the Council.

Section 1b – Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CI & ES)
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing the Council’s services in accordance
with IFRS, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation
position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Section 1c - Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the date of the Accounts of the assets and liabilities recognised
by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by
the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves,
ie those reserves that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent
level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that
may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those
that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that
hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only
become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations’. The Balance Sheet includes the Housing Revenue Account and the Council’s
own share of the Collection Fund, but excludes the Pension Fund and Trust Funds.

Section 1d - Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the
reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents
by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows
arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are
funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council.
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended to contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities
are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (ie borrowing) to the Council.

Section 2 – Statement of Accounting Policies
These outline the accounting and measurement bases used for the recognition, measurement and
disclosure of figures and events in preparing the financial statements in the accounts. Other accounting

policies used that are relevant to an understanding of the financial statements are also included.

Page 23



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Foreword

6

Section 3 – Notes to the Core Financial Statements - This section contains all the notes that help to
explain or give more detail to the Core Financial Statements.

Section 4 – Supplementary Financial Statements

Section 4a – Housing Revenue Account
This reflects the statutory obligation to account separately for local authority housing provision and
associated services to council tenants and leaseholders. It shows the major elements of income and
expenditure on Council Housing.

Section 4b – Collection Fund
This statutory account shows the transactions relating to Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates
and how the amounts collected have been distributed to the Council’s General Fund and preceptor (GLA).

Section 5 – Pension Fund
The Lewisham Pension Fund is a separate entity from the Council and thus has its own accounts. These
show the income and expenditure for the year, the value of the investments held and an assessment of
the liabilities at the year end.

Section 6 – Lewisham Group Accounts
The Group Accounts combine the financial results of Lewisham Council with that of its subsidiar ies,
Lewisham Homes and Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd. Transactions between the two subsidiaries
and the Council are removed on merging the Accounts of all parties. The Group Accounts therefore add
the surpluses and balances and show the combined financial position for all three entities.

Section 7 – Annual Governance Statement
The Annual Governance Statement sets out the control and governance framework for all significant
corporate systems and processes, cultures and values by which the Council is directed and controlled.
The framework describes the activities with which it engages the community, and enables it to monitor the
achievement of its strategic objectives and the delivery of appropriate and cost effective services. It also
reports any significant issues and the actions already taken and planned to be taken to address these.

Annexes
These include the Action Plan for the Annual Governance Statement, a Glossary which explains some
technical terms and a detailed analysis of capital expenditure incurred during the year.

3. SUMMARY OF THE 2010/11 FINANCIAL YEAR

The Council has incurred revenue and capital expenditure in the year. Revenue spending was generally
on items which were consumed during the year (such as employees’ salaries) and was financed from
Government Grants, Council Tax, National Non-Domestic Rates and other income. Capital expenditure
has generally been incurred on items that have a life over one year (such as the construction of major
new facilities in schools) and has been financed from loans, government and other grants, capital receipts
or revenue contributions.

3a REVENUE SPENDING 2010/11

(i) Revenue Budget Setting

The Council set a net budget of £271.45 million for 2010/11 at its meeting in March 2010. This
represented an increase of £3.20 million or 1.2% on the previous year's net budget.

(ii) Revenue Budget Outturn

During 2010/11, Mayor and Cabinet and the Executive Management Team (EMT) received regular
financial monitoring reports. These enabled the council to take corrective action where pressures were
identified, with the result that at the end of the 2010/11 financial year there was a net underspend of
£1.717m on the Directorates service budgets. The reasons for these variances were reported to the

Page 24



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Foreword

7

Public Accounts Select Committee on the 14 June 2011 and the Mayor and Cabinet on the 22 June 2011.
The main areas of underspend were on Resources (£0.964m) and Children and Young People (£0.54m).
After transfers to earmarked reserves the net underspend on the General Fund was zero.

(iii) Revenue Budget Outlook for 2011/12

The Council set a net budget requirement of £278.8m for 2011/12 at its meeting in March 2011. On the
face of it, this represents an increase of £7.3m or 2.7% on the previous year's net budget requirement.
However, due to changes in the local government funding mechanism and in particular the incorporation
of a large number of previously ring-fenced grants into the main formula grant, the two figures are not
directly comparable. The council has adequate, but not excessive, reserves to enable it to manage the
significant funding risks it faces in the medium-term as the national programme of public sector
expenditure reductions continues.

3b FUNDING OF THE REVENUE BUDGET

The Council Tax is a major source of local revenue. The other main sources of income are the
Government determined National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) and the Revenue Support Grant (RSG).
The amount to be raised from Council Tax was calculated as shown in the following table.

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Lewisham's Net Budget 271,454 268,251

Less: Formula Grant 22,851 33,304

Less NNDR received from the national pool 157,367 144,288

Less: Surplus on Collection Fund 52 49

General Fund Services to be met from Council Tax 91,184 90,610

Add Precept (GLA) 27,109 26,939

Total to be met from Council Tax 118,293 117,549

Note: The variations between the years on Formula Grant and NNDR come about due to changes by
Central Government in the redistributable amount. For variance purposes they are considered as one
block.

3c COUNCIL TAX LEVELS AND THE TAX BASE

The actual Council Tax is determined by dividing the net amounts to be met from Council Tax by the tax
base, which for Lewisham is 87,499 equivalent Band D properties for 2010/11 (86,949 for 2009/10). This
then equates to the following Council Tax at Band D:

2010/11
£000

2009/10
£000

Increase
£

Increase
%

Lewisham's Demand 1,042.11 1,042.11 00.00 0

Add: Preceptor Requirements:

Greater London Authority 309.82 309.82 0.00 0

Council Tax for Band D 1,351.93 1,351.93 00.00 0

Page 25



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Foreword

8

3d CAPITAL PROGRAMME

(i) Capital Programme 2010/11

A summary of the capital expenditure incurred during the year and its financing compared to the original
programme budget is shown in the table below. The percentage of the 2010/11 programme budget that
has been spent is 93%. This compares to a figure of 100% for 2009/10.

During Spring 2011, the annual review of the capital programme was carried out to identify expenditure
within the capital programme which, for technical accounting reasons under IFRS rules, needs to be
transferred to revenue. This resulted in £17.1m being charged to revenue, with a corresponding level of
resources being transferred to finance the expenditure (£3.9m Directorates' capital programme, £13.2m
Lewisham Homes). The Forecast spend has been adjusted to take into account those projects that were
re-classified as revenue.

Major projects (with spend over £2m) in the 2010/11 directorates' capital programme were:
Deptford Town Centre (£6.6m)
Primary Places Programmes (inc Expansion) (£6.6m)
Tidemill School (£3.5m)
Building Schools for the Future (Design and Build) (£3.2m)
Brockley PFI (£3.0m)
School Standards Fund (£2.7m)
North Lewisham Links (£2.5m)
Transport for London (£2.4m)
Highways (BVR - Prudential Borrowing) (£2.4m)
Worksmart (£2.2m)

The largest project (with spend over £1m) in the 2010/11 Lewisham Homes capital programme was the
Lift Refurbishment Programme with expenditure of £1.3m.

2010/11 2010/11 2009/10

Actual Forecast Actual

Outturn Outturn Outturn

£000 £000 £000

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Directorates' Capital Programme 54,012 57,719 60,128

Lewisham Homes’ Capital Programme 1,600 1,814 3,472

Total Capital Expenditure for the Year 55,612 59,533 63,600

CAPITAL FINANCING

Government Supported Borrowing 13,912 13,912 12,997

Unsupported Borrowing 2,645 3,323 13,484

Capital Grants 25,447 25,447 26,038

Capital Receipts 11,919 11,919 5,663

Capital Expenditure Financed from Revenue 1,689 4,933 5,418

Total Capital Expenditure Financed 55,612 59,533 63,600

(ii) Capital Programme 2011/12

The Council's capital programme budget was agreed at Mayor and Cabinet in February 2011. This
outlined the Council’s rolled forward five year programme for the years 2011/12 to 2015/16, with total
available resources of £316 million. The Directorates' capital programme for 2011/12 is £108m and the

Page 26



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Foreword

9

Lewisham Homes programme for 2011/12 is £26m (including amounts which will be charged to revenue
for technical reasons at the year end – see i) above).

The principal programmes and projects of over £2m include:

2011/12

Programme

Budget

£000

Directorates' Capital Programme

Primary Places programme 14,705

Primary Places – 2011/12 Grant 13,338

Forest Hill Pool 7,124

Deptford Station 6,776

BSF – Addey and Stanhope School (Design & Build) 6,535

BSF – Prendergast Hilly Fields School (Design & Build) 6,488

Deptford Town Centre Regeneration 5,873

Highways (BVR - Prudential Borrowing) 4,766

Tidemill School 3,749

Heathside & Lethbridge 3,551

MyPlace – Wells Park 3,131

School’s Maintenance – 2011/12 Grant 3,000

Surrey Canal Road Station 2,650

Schools Minor Works programme 2,153

Other Schemes (below £2m) 24,496

Directorates' Capital Programme 108,335

Lewisham Homes Capital Programme 26,091

Total Capital Programme - 2011/12 134,426

3e COUNCIL TAX AND NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES COLLECTION RATES

Actual Collection Rates
2010/11 2009/10 2008/09

% % %

Council Tax 94.1 92.7 93.1

National Non-Domestic Rates 98.8 98.8 99.2

Further information on Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates can be found in the Collection Fund
statements in Section 4b of the Accounts.

4. FINANCIAL HEALTH

4a General Fund

After transfers to and from reserves the General Fund balance now stands at £11.5m. This is an adequate
but not excessive level of cover and represents approximately 2.5% of Lewisham’s net budget (including
Dedicated Schools Grant expenditure). Lewisham also has earmarked reserves for specific ongoing
projects and these are detailed in Note 7 to the Core Financial Statements in Section 3 of the Accounts.

Page 27



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Foreword

10

4b Housing Revenue Account

After transfers to and from earmarked reserves the HRA total balance, including earmarked reserves,
now stands at £9.9m. The earmarked reserves are for specific ongoing projects and these are outlined in
Note 16 of the HRA statements in Section 4a of the Accounts.

4c Collection Fund

The Collection Fund had a deficit of £3,000 for the year, which when added to the brought forward surplus
of £32,000, leaves a surplus of £29,000 to carry forward to 2011/12. The details are shown in the
Collection Fund statements in Section 4b of the Accounts.

5. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS IN 2010/11 THAT HAVE HAD AN IMPACT ON THE ACCOUNTS

a) Decent Homes Strategy – A housing stock transfer took place in October 2010, in which 2,427
tenanted and 1,103 leasehold housing units, forming the Chrysalis Estate, were transferred to
London and Quadrant RSL. The asset value of the transfer was £103.2m and overhanging debt
of £41.5m was written off.

b) Impairments by Fires - Two primary schools, Temple Grove and Stillness were severely
damaged by fire during the year. Impairments of £3.3m and £1m respectively were recorded in
the accounts for the damage to the buildings.

c) Pension Fund Valuation – The ongoing, but gradual, recovery of the financial markets has
increased the value of the Fund during the year by £45m from £715m to £760m.

d) National deficit reduction strategy – The government’s strategy to reduce the national deficit
over the lifetime of this Parliament principally affects the council’s future funding plans, but has
had some direct effects on the 2010/11 accounts. In particular, gross expenditure was £3.3m
lower than originally planned, as a result of in-year reductions to funding announced in June
2010, and termination costs of £7.3m have been recognised in the accounts as the council has
implemented savings and staff reductions in response to the new funding climate.

e) Housing Revaluation – The housing stock is valued in the Council’s accounts on the basis of
existing use as social housing. This is defined by the Government as a percentage of the vacant
possession value on the open market. For 2009/10, this percentage was set at 37%, but for
2010/11, it was reduced to 25%. This has resulted in a reduction in the value of the Council’s
housing stock of £300m and has been charged as an impairment to the revenue account. There
is no net effect on revenue, but the Council’s Balance Sheet Equity has been reduced by this
figure.

Page 28



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Responsibilities

11

THE STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Authority's Responsibilities

The Authority is required:

$ to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the
Executive Director for Resources.

$ to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets;

$ to approve the statement of accounts.

Responsibility of the Executive Director for Resources

The Executive Director for Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Authority's Statement of
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the 'Code of Practice').

In preparing the Statement of Accounts as set out in this document, I certify that I have:

$ selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

$ made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

$ complied with the CIPFA Local Authority Code of Practice.

I certify that I have also:

$ kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

$ taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Statement of Accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority at the
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Janet Senior CPFA

Executive Director for Resources

30
th

June 2011

Page 29



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Independent Auditors Report

12

Independent Auditor’s report to the Members of the London Borough of Lewisham

THIS REPORT WILL BE INSERTED UPON COMPLETION OF THE EXTERNAL AUDIT

Susan M. Exton

District Auditor

Officer of the Audit Commission

Audit Commission

1
st

Floor, Millbank Tower

Millbank

London

SW1P 4HQ

Page 30



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Core Financial Statements

13

SECTION 1

CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2010/11

1a) MOVEMENT IN RESERVES
STATEMENT

1b) COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

1c) BALANCE SHEET

1d) CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Page 31



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Core Financial Statements

14

General Earmarked Housing Capital Major Capital Total Unusable Total

YEAR ENDING Fund Gen Fund Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants Usable Reserves Authority

31ST MARCH 2011 Balance Reserves Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March

2010 Brought

Forward

11,511 75,581 9,760 20,298 4,320 3,463 124,933 731,503 856,436

Movement in

Reserves during

2010/11

Surplus or (Deficit) on

the provision of

services

115,286 0 (295,365) 0 0 0 (180,079) 0 (180,079)

Other Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 229,617 229,617

Total Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

115,286 0 (295,365) 0 0 0 (180,079) 229,617 49,538

Adjustments between

accounting basis and

funding basis under

regulations (see note

6)

(108,462) 0 277,027 12,447 17,377 1,120 199,509 (199,509) 0

Net Increase /

Decrease before

Transfers to

Earmarked Reserves

6,824 0 (18,338) 12,447 17,377 1,120 19,430 30,108 49,538

Transfers to / from

Earmarked Reserves

(6,824) 6,824 18,486 (18,486) 0 0 0 0

Increase / (Decrease)

in 2010/11

0 6,824 148 12,447 (1,109) 1,120 19,430 30,108 49,538

Balance at 31 March

2011 Carried Forward

11,511 82,405 9,908 32,745 3,211 4,583 144,363 761,611 905,974

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT - YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2011

Page 32



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Core Financial Statements

15

General Earmarked Housing Capital Major Capital Total Unusable Total

YEAR ENDING Fund GF Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants Usable Reserves Authority

31ST MARCH 2010 Balance Reserves Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March

2009 Brought

Forward

11,236 79,431 12,094 17,411 1,310 920 122,402 1,183,047 1,305,449

Movement in

Reserves during

2009/10

Surplus or (Deficit) on

the provision of

services

(66,837) 0 (55,285) 0 0 0 (122,122) 0 (122,122)

Other Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (326,891) (326,891)

Total Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

(66,837) 0 (55,285) 0 0 0 (122,122) (326,891) (449,013)

Adjustments between

accounting basis and

funding basis under

regulations (see note

6)

63,262 0 26,694 2,887 29,267 2,543 124,653 (124,653) 0

Net Increase /

Decrease before

Transfers to

Earmarked Reserves

(3,575) 0 (28,591) 2,887 29,267 2,543 2,531 (451,544) (449,013)

Transfers to / from

Earmarked Reserves

3,850 (3,850) 26,257 (26,257) 0 0 0 0

Increase / (Decrease)

in 2009/10

275 (3,850) (2,334) 2,887 3,010 2,543 2,531 (451,544) (449,013)

Balance at 31 March

2010 Carried Forward

11,511 75,581 9,760 20,298 4,320 3,463 124,933 731,503 856,436

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT - YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2010

Page 33



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Core Financial Statements

16

Gross

Expenditure

£000s

Gross

Income

£000s

Net

Expenditure

£000s SERVICE

Gross

Expenditure

£000s

Gross

Income

£000s

Net

Expenditure

£000s

Note

39,519 (30,665) 8,854 Central services to the public 41,277 (33,863) 7,414

81,315 (15,002) 66,313 Cultural, environmental, regulatory and

planning services

83,396 (14,467) 68,929

418,470 (269,041) 149,429 Children's and education services 421,740 (292,548) 129,192

22,821 (10,269) 12,552 Highways and transport services 24,394 (10,223) 14,171

387,717 (341,513) 46,204 Housing services 663,401 (315,062) 348,339

113,804 (30,799) 83,005 Adult social care 119,249 (29,123) 90,126

7,520 (292) 7,228 Corporate and democratic core 7,380 (194) 7,186

1,166 0 1,166 Non distributed costs (129,120) 0 (129,120)

1,072,332 (697,581) 374,751 Cost of Services 1,231,717 (695,480) 536,238

Other Operating Expenditure

5,117 0 5,117 (Gain) / Loss on the disposal of non-

current assets

220 0 220

1,772 0 1,772 Levies 1,787 0 1,787 9

0 0 0 Contribution of housing capital receipts to

Government Pool

688 0 688 23

6,889 0 6,889 2,695 0 2,695

Financing and Investment Income and

Expenditure

34,312 (1,768) 32,544 Interest payable and similar charges 47,111 (63) 47,048

(978) 0 (978) Changes in fair value of Investment

Properties

94 0 94 11

166 0 166 (Gain) / loss on disposal of Investment

Properties

555 0 555 11

269 (3,858) (3,589) Interest and Investment Income 441 (2,932) (2,491)

57,688 (32,819) 24,869 Pensions interest cost and expected

return on pensions assets

71,140 (51,608) 19,532 42

91,457 (38,445) 53,012 119,341 (54,603) 64,738

Taxation and non-specific Grant

Income

0 (90,573) (90,573) Income from Council Tax 0 (91,234) (91,234)

0 (52,015) (52,015) General Government Grants 0 (58,216) (58,216) 34

0 (25,654) (25,654) Recognised Capital Grants and

Contributions

0 (116,775) (116,775)

0 (144,288) (144,288) National Non-Domestic Rates

redistribution

0 (157,367) (157,367)

0 (312,530) (312,530) 0 (423,592) (423,592)

122,122
Deficit/(Surplus) on provision of

services
180,079

(9,235) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-

current assets

(68,046) 24a

337,621 Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund

assets and liabilities

(191,221) 42

(1,495) Other (gains)/losses 29,650

326,891
Other Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure
(229,617)

449,013
Total Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure
(49,538)

2010/112009/10 Re-stated

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2011

Page 34



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Core Financial Statements

17

1 April 2009

Restated

31/03/2010

Restated 31/03/2011

£000 £000 £000 Note

Property, Plant & Equipment

961,288 924,799 Council Dwellings 625,215 10

879,150 845,881 Other Land and Buildings 844,638 10

24,292 28,283 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment 29,844 10

52,780 55,938 Infrastructure 57,339 10

7,965 8,451 Community Assets 8,162 10

31,409 31,182 Surplus Assets not held for Sale 30,941 10

36,756 38,785 Assets under Construction 58,098 10

1,993,640 1,933,319 1,654,237

11,260 23,583 Investment Property 22,491 11

7,606 8,084 Assets Held for Sale (Over 1 year) 8,229 19

9,088 1,401 Long Term Investments 17,857 13

1,365 13,123 Long Term Debtors 12,966 17a

2,022,957 1,979,510 Total Long Term Assets 1,715,780

107,227 29,746 Short Term Investments 60,763 13

11,105 11,153 Assets Held for Sale (Under 1 year) 6,000 19

225 257 Inventories 233 15

32,733 45,045 Debtors 40,239 17b

41,537 145,606 Cash and Cash Equivalents 128,265 18

3,630 3,172 Prepayments 6,569 20

196,457 234,979 Current Assets 242,069

35,325 45,013 Short Term Borrowing 39,351 13

500 510 Provisions (Less than 1 year) 3,481 22

68,358 76,278 Creditors 87,454 21

46,169 55,843 Receipts in Advance 64,316 33

4,283 6,968 PFI Liabilities due within one year 4,900 38

154,635 184,612 Current Liabilities 199,502

2,064,779 2,029,877 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 1,758,348

331,392 344,194 Long Term Borrowing 303,372 13

11,643 12,506 Provisions (More than 1 year) 10,532 22

488 365 Deferred capital receipts 256 24e

92,353 146,189 Deferred PFI Liabilities 175,070 38

2,721 933 Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 1,117 33

320,733 669,254 Liability related to defined benefit pension scheme 362,027 42

759,330 1,173,441 Long Term Liabilities 852,374

1,305,449 856,436 NET ASSETS 905,974

Usable Reserves

11,236 11,511 General Fund Balance 11,511

79,431 75,581 Earmarked Revenue Reserves 82,405 8

12,094 9,760 Housing Revenue Account 9,908 HRA16

17,411 20,298 Usable Capital Receipts Reserve 32,745 23a

1,310 4,320 Major Repairs Reserve 3,211 HRA15

920 3,463 Capital Grants Unapplied 4,583 23b

122,402 124,933 144,363

Unusable Reserves

94,821 102,972 Revaluation Reserve 219,640 24a

1,431,083 1,318,624 Capital Adjustment Account 920,979 24b

(15,760) (13,100) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (10,060) 24c

(320,733) (669,254) Pensions Reserve (362,027) 24d

111 25 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 22 24f

(6,475) (7,764) Short Term Compensated Absences Account (6,944) 24g

1,183,047 731,503 761,611

1,305,449 856,436 TOTAL EQUITY 905,974

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2011

Page 35



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Core Financial Statements

18

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with
third parties for both revenue and capital purposes. It has been prepared using the “Direct” method.

2009/10

Restated

£000 £000 £000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Inflows

(72,142) Council Tax income (72,354)

(147,203) NNDR received from ratepayers and national pool (160,962)

(556,665) Government grants (607,128)

(42,992) Rent received from council housing (40,063)

(40,386) Cash received for goods and services (39,446)

(5,008) Interest received (2,336)

0 Dividends received 0

(11,640) Other operating cash receipts (8,480)

(876,036) (930,769)

Cash Outflows

345,386 Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 343,266

130,473 Housing benefit paid out 153,617

1,772 Precepts and Levies 1,787

0 Contribution to Capital Receipts Pool 483

19,737 Interest paid 19,593

368,578 Other operating cash payments 361,103

865,946 879,849

(10,090) Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (50,920)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Outflows

38,314 Purchase of property, plant, equipment and investment properties 48,301

7,291 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 3,942

788 PFI Prepayments 3,342

11,981 Long-Term Debtors (12)

58,374 55,573

Cash Inflows

(8,525) Sale of property, plant, equipment and investment properties (19,679)

(33,748) Capital grants and other capital cash received (22,576)

(42,273) (42,255)

Net Cash Flows

(83,931) Net increase in short term investments 30,617

0 Net increase in long term investments 16,092

3,728 Net increase in other liquid resources 3,234

(80,203) 49,943

(64,102) Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 63,261

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash Inflows

(30,000) New loans raised 0

(250,268) New short term borrowing (38,685)

(280,268) (38,685)

Cash Outflows

250,391 Repayments of short and long term borrowing 43,685

250,391 43,685

(29,877) Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 5,000

(104,069) NET (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17,341

(41,537) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD (145,606)

(145,606) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF THE PERIOD (128,265)

2010/11

Page 36



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

19

SECTION 2

STATEMENT OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2010/11

Page 37



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

20

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. GENERAL PRINCIPLES

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2010/11 financial year and its
position at the year-end of 31 March 2011. The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of
Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current
assets and financial instruments.

The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit
(England) Regulations 2011, which requires them to be prepared in accordance with proper practices in
relation to accounts. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11 and the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2010/11 (both
published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)), supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance in the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003 where applicable.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES, ERRORS AND PRIOR PERIOD
ADJUSTMENTS

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and
conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, ie in the current and future years
affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

A number of Prior Period Adjustments have been made in the accounts due to the major changes in
accounting policies resulting from the implementation of IFRS which have been introduced in the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2010/11. These are included in the
Foreword to the Accounts and outlined in the subsequent Accounting Policies and detailed in the Notes to
the Accounts where appropriate.

3. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

The revenue and capital accounts are prepared on an accruals basis. This means that activity is
accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.

Income from the provision of services or sale of goods is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will be received by the Council.

Expenditure on supplies is recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. When there is a significant
gap between the date on which supplies are received and the date of their consumption, and the value is
material, they are carried as stocks on the Balance Sheet. Expenditure on services received (including
those provided by employees) is recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than
when payments are made.

Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for in the year to which it
relates, on a basis that reflects the effective interest rate, rather than the cash flows, of the loan or
investment.

Page 38



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

21

Where income and expenditure have been recognised in the accounts, but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is possible
that debts may not be settled, a charge is made to revenue for the income that might not be collected and
the debtor is impaired.

4. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a) Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those which are due to be settled within 12 months of the year -end.
They include such benefits as salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave for current employees and are
recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render their services to the Council. An
accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, eg time off in lieu) earned by
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial
year. The accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period
in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are
charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

b) Termination and Discretionary Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable either as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an
officer’s employment before their normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy. They are charged on an accruals basis to the Relevant Service Costs line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year in which the Council is demonstrably
committed to the termination of the employment of the officer.

The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of
early retirements. The Council operates a Panel which considers applications for early retirement and
proposals for retirements on grounds of redundancy / efficiency for employees. Any additional liabilities
arising to the Pension Funds are matched by payments from the Income and Expenditure Account.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General
Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in
Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for
the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any amounts payable but unpaid at the year -end.

c) Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of three separate pension schemes:

$ The Teachers Pension Scheme administered by Capita Teachers ’ Pensions on behalf of the
Department for Education (DfE).

$ The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by Lewisham Council.

$ The London Pension Fund administered by the London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA).

These schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), which are
earned as they work for the Council.

(i) Teachers’ Pension Scheme
This scheme is a defined benefit scheme, but is accounted for as if it was a defined contributions scheme,
since its liabilities can not be separately identified to individual local authorities. No liabilities for future
payment of benefits are therefore recognised in the balance sheet for this scheme. The Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the employer’s contributions paid to Teachers’
Pensions during the year.

Page 39



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

22

(ii) Local Government Pension Scheme
This scheme is a defined benefit scheme and is accounted for as such, since its liabilities and assets can
be identified to individual local authorities.
The liabilities of the Scheme which are attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method – ie an assessment of the future payments to be made by
the Scheme in relation to benefits earned to date, based on a number of assumptions about mortality
rates, turnover, projected earnings etc. These liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices,
using a discount rate advised by the Scheme’s Actuaries (based on the gross redemption yield of a high
quality corporate bond, using the iboxx Sterling Corporate Index).

The assets of the Scheme which are attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their
fair value. The asset categories are:

Quoted securities – current bid price
Unquoted securities – professional estimate
Unitised securities – current bid price
Property – market value.

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

$ current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year –
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the
employees worked

$ past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to
years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs

$ interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move
one year closer to being paid – debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

$ expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to the
Council, based on an average of the expected long-term return – credited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

$ gains or losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the Council of
liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees –
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs

$ actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve

$ contributions paid to the Council’s pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the
pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as expenditure.

Statutory provisions only allow the Council to raise council tax to fund the amounts payable to the
Pension Scheme in the year, rather than the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. The notional entries for assets and liabilities are therefore matched with appropriations to and
from the Pension Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. The negative balance on the
Pensions Reserve thus measures the beneficial impact on the General Fund of being required to account
on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

The detailed accounting policies followed in preparing the pension fund accounts are disclosed separately
in the Council’s Pension Fund Accounts in Section 5 of the Accounts.

(iii) London Pension Fund
This scheme is a defined benefit scheme and is accounted for as such, since its liabilities and assets can
be identified to individual Councils. The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged
with a levy from the LPFA to meet the employer’s contributions and the costs of administration.

Page 40



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

23

5. OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES

The full costs of overheads and support services are charged to those services that benefit from the
supply or service in accordance with the total absorption costing principles of the CIPFA Best Value
Accounting Code of Practice 2010/11 (BVACOP). The exceptions are as follows;

$ Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Authority’s status as a multifunctional,
democratic organisation (e.g. member’s services, external audit fees).

$ Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and
impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for Sale.

These categories are defined in BVACOP and accounted for as separate headings as part of Net
Expenditure on Continuing Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

6. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions
and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that:

$ the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

$ the grants or contributions will be received.
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset
acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or else
the future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in
the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the
relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant
Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where
it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants
Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to
fund capital expenditure.
Area Based Grant (ABG) is a general grant allocated by central government directly to the Council as
additional revenue funding. It is non-ringfenced and is credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant
Income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

7. LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease substantially transfer all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land
and buildings elements are considered separately for classification.
Arrangements which do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return
for payment are accounted for under this policy where the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of specific assets.

a) The Authority as Lessee

i) Finance Leases
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay
the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums

Page 41



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

24

paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Lease payments are apportioned between:

$ a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write down
the lease liability, and

$ a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the
authority at the end of the lease period).
The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses
arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the
deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and
impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund B alance, by
way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.

ii) Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and E xpenditure
Statement as expenditure of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.
Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the
pattern of payments (eg where there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

b) The Authority as Lessor

i) Finance Leases
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or item of plant or equipment, the relevant asset
is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount
of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is
written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Authority’s net investment in the
lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part
of the gain or loss on disposal (ie netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal),
matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

$ a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down the lease debtor
(together with any premiums received), and

$ finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not permitted
by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where
a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is
to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write
down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts
Reserve.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to
the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

ii) Operating Leases
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or item of plant or equipment, the asset is
retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight -line basis over the

Page 42



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

25

life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (eg there is a prem ium paid at the
commencement of the lease).

8. STOCKS (INVENTORIES) AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS

Building stores and fleet stock is valued and included in the Balance Sheet at average price (mid -point
between price at start and end of year). Revenue accounts are charged with the cost of obsolescent
stock written off.

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year

9. PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVES (PFIs)

PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available the
property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFI contractor. As the
Council is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes and as ownership of
the assets will pass to the Council at the end of the contracts for no additional charge, the Council carries
the assets used under the contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The original recognition of these assets at fair value was balanced by the recognition of a liability for
amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment. Where schemes include a c apital
contribution, the liability is written down accordingly. Non current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet
are revalued and depreciated in the same way as other non current assets which are owned by the
Council.
The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are analysed into five elements:

$ fair value of the services received during the year – debited to the relevant service in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

$ finance cost – an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to Interest
Payable and Similar Charges in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

$ contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the asset arising during the contract, debited
to Interest Payable and Similar Charges in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

$ payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI operator.

$ lifecycle replacement costs – recognised as prepayments in the Balance Sheet and then recognised
as non current assets on the Balance Sheet when the work is carried out.

10. FINANCIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH COMPANIES

Lewisham Homes (LH) and Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd (CRPL) are wholly owned subsidiary
companies of the Council. Group Accounts have been prepared which incorporate the accounts of LB
Lewisham, LH and CRPL and these are included in Section 6 of the Statement of Accounts.

The Council has relationships with a number of other companies, details of which are shown in note 28 to
the Core Financial Statements in Section 3 of the Statement of Accounts. During 2010/11 the Council had
a minority interest (less than 50%) in these companies. The transactions between the Council and these
companies are included in the Council’s single entity accounts.

Page 43



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

26

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council enters into a financial
instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by
the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally
recognised. For the Council’s borrowings, this means that the amount shown in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest), and the interest charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a
restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the
premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or modified
loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life
of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The
Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against
which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. Premiums and discounts are
split between the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account in accordance with their share of debt as
identified by the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement as at 1 April in the year in which they are
incurred. In accordance with statute, the reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against Council Tax or Housing Rents is
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

b) Financial Assets

i) Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an
active market. They are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority enters into the financial
instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised
cost. This category includes funds currently held by Invesco and Investec, which are externally managed
funds are held at fair value (market value at bid price), and also includes short term investments and
sundry debtors.
The annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For the loans that the Authority has made,
this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal rec eivable (plus
accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the
amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

ii) Available-for-Sale Assets
These are assets which have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or determinable payments.
The Council does not have any assets in this category.

Page 44



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

27

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on
notice of not more than 24 hours.

Cash equivalents are investments that mature in no more than three months or less from the date of
acquisition and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible Fixed Assets (e.g. software licenses) do not have any physical substance but are identifiable
and controllable by the Council through custody or legal rights. The expenditure on them is only
capitalised when it is material and the future economic benefits or service potential flowing will also be
material. The Council has reviewed the level of spend on these assets and they continue to be
immaterial and therefore are charged direct to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or se rvices,
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

a) Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised
on an accruals basis, provided the spend adds value to the property, increases its ability to deliver future
economic benefits or service potential, can be capitalised as a component under IFRS and exceeds
Lewisham’s de minimus limit of £40,000. Expenditure that only maintains an asset’s value (ie repairs and
maintenance) and does not increase its ability to deliver benefits or services is charged as revenue
expenditure when it is incurred.

b) Measurement and Valuation

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

$ the purchase price.

$ any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition
does not have commercial substance (ie it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Authority). In
the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying
amount of the asset given up by the Authority. The Council has not received any donated assets in
2010/11 or 2009/10. Any donated assets received in future will be accounted for according to the COP.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

$ infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost

$ dwellings – fair value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUV-SH)

$ all other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing
use (existing use value – EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset,
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), deprec iated historical cost
basis is used as a proxy for fair value.

Page 45



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

28

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their
carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every
five years. They are valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the Statements
of Appraisal and Valuation Manual and Guidance Notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS).
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.
Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where
they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:

$ where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

$ where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment
Account.

c) Impairment

Assets valued at £40,000 or above are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

$ where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

$ where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against the relevant service l ine in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss , adjusted for
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

d) Depreciation

Depreciation is charged for all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by applying the straight-line method
based on finite useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (ie
freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (ie assets
under construction).
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

$ dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as
determined by the valuer (dwellings are usually over 25 years and buildings over 40 years).

$ vehicles, plant and equipment – straight-line allocation over 10 years, unless advised by a suitably
qualified officer.

$ infrastructure – straight-line allocation over 25 years, unless advised by a suitably qualified officer.
The Council’s policy is to charge depreciation on the value of the asset as at 1 April each year (i.e.
opening value). It is charged from the beginning of the year that follows the date of purchase or
completion of construction, and is not adjusted for disposals or additions of assets during the year.
Where a Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. Revaluation gains are also
depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on
assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Page 46



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

29

e) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost
of using property, plant and equipment assets during the year:

$ depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service (see above) .

$ revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off .

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction
in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the
authority in accordance with statutory guidance (MRP). These amounts, therefore, are replaced by the
MRP charge to the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

f) Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The
asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously losses recognised
in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. If
assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for
sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they
not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (ie netted off against the carrying value
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of
receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of statutory
deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts is required to be
credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set
aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are
appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserve s Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The
definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of
goods or is held for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount
at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Properties are
not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year -end. Gains and
losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses
on disposal. Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and

Page 47



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

30

Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and
disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General
Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale
proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve .

16. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE

Expenditure incurred which can be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the
creation of a non-current asset for the Council (such as home improvement grants or expenditure on
voluntary aided schools), is charged to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Authority has decided to meet the cost of this expenditure
from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from
the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charg ed so
that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

17. REVENUE PROVISIONS, IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES AND RESERVES

The Council has set aside amounts from its revenue account to form provisions and reserves, which will
be used to cover future expenditure. Details of provisions and reserves are contained in notes 8 and 22
to the Core Financial Statements in Section 3 of the Accounts.

a) Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Council has undertaken a
number of staff restructuring exercises which will result in termination payments being incurred.
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year that the authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are measu red
at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking
into account relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet . All
provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year, and where it becomes less than probable that a
transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. Where some or all of the payment
required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party (eg from an insurance claim),
this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received if the authority settles the obligation.

b) Impairment Allowances

Impairment allowances (i.e. to cover council tax, housing rents and other debtors) are set up where it is
doubtful that the debts will be settled. A charge is made to the relevant account for the income and is
deducted from the current debtors balance on the balance sheet. When it is deemed that the debts are
irrecoverable they are written off to the bad debt provision. Where payments are made, they are credited
to the provision on the Balance Sheet.

c) Reserves

The Council has set aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies, which fall outside the definition of provisions (see above). These reserves are created by
appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When
expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year
to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expendit ure.

Page 48



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

31

A number of statutory reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non -current assets,
financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent resources for the Council to
use. These reserves are explained in the relevant policies and notes.

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

A contingent liability or asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible
obligation or asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. A contingent liability could also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

19. VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT)

Income and Expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT, unless it is unrecoverable from Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT on payments is paid on invoices and charged to an input tax
holding account. VAT is collected with income at source and posted to an output tax holding account.
VAT holding accounts are reconciled on a monthly basis and claims to HM Revenues and Customs for
the net VAT incurred are similarly made on a monthly basis.

20. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.

Two types of events can be identified:

$ those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

$ those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material
effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.

Page 49



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of Accounting Policies

32

Page 50



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

33

SECTION 3

NOTES TO THE
CORE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

2010/11

Page 51



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

34

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS – RESTATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The 2010/11 Statement of Accounts is the first to be prepared on an IFRS basis. The implementation of
the Code has required the restatement of a number of balances and transactions which has changed
some of the figures presented in the financial statements from those included in the Statement of
Accounts for 2009/10.

The major areas where the accounting treatment has changed are outlined in the Foreword on page 4,
and the changes to the figures from those contained in the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts are as follows:

09/10 Adjs 09/10 Adjs 09/10 Adjs

Statements Made Statements Made Statements Made

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

a) Non Current Assets

Comp Inc & Exp Statement

Housing Services 45,047 (818)

Non Distributed Costs 3,014 (1,848)

(Gain) / Loss on the disposal of

non-current assets 5,283 (166)

Changes in fair value of

Investment Properties 0 (978)

(Gain) / loss on disposal of

Investment Properties 0 166

Surplus on Revaluation of Non

Current Assets (23,087) 13,852

Other (gains)/losses (2,817) 1,322

Balance Sheet

Council Dwellings 967,150 (5,887) 931,126 (6,358)

Other Land and Buildings 875,961 3,189 842,253 3,628

Vehicle, Plant & Equipment 24,292 0 28,469 (186)

Investment Properties / Surplus

Assets 65,774 (65,774) 89,719 (89,719)

Investment Properties 0 11,143 0 23,466

Surplus Assets not Held for Sale

0 31,409 0 31,182

Assets Held for Sale (> 1 year) 0 7,606 0 8,084

Assets Held for Sale (< 1 year) 0 11,105 0 11,153

Revaluation Reserve (87,880) (6,675) (109,430) 6,724

Capital Adjustment Account (1,299,003) 13,885 (1,177,078) 12,026

Opening 01/04/09 Comp Inc & Exp 09/10 Balance Sheet 09/10

b) Leases

Comp Inc & Exp Statement

Housing Services 45,047 3

Balance Sheet

Council Dwellings 967,150 25 931,126 31

Investment Properties 0 117 0 117

Revaluation Reserve (87,880) (266) (109,430) (266)

Capital Adjustment Account (1,299,003) 124 (1,177,078) 118

Page 52



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

35

09/10 Adjs 09/10 Adjs 09/10 Adjs

Statements Made Statements Made Statements Made

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

c) Capital Grants and

Contributions

Comp Inc & Exp Statement

Cultural, Env & Planning Servs 63,193 3,086

Children's & Education Servs 138,864 8,279

Highways, Roads & Transport 10,739 1,794

Housing Services 45,047 1,992

Adult Social Care 83,206 359

Recognised Cap Grts &

Contributions 0 (25,654)

Balance Sheet

Receipts in Advance (57,022) 6,565 (66,513) 7,319

Government Grants Deferred (143,165) 143,165 (150,767) 150,767

Capital Grants Receipts in

Advance 0 (2,721) 0 (933)

Capital Adjustment Account (1,299,003) (146,089) (1,177,078) (153,690)

Capital Grants Unapplied 0 (920) 0 (3,463)

Balance Sheet 09/10Opening 01/04/09 Comp Inc & Exp 09/10

d) Revenue and Other Grants

Comp Inc & Exp Statement

Children's & Education Servs 138,864 1,047

Adult Social Care 83,206 (577)

General Government Grants (52,483) 468

Balance Sheet

Receipts in Advance (57,022) 4,288 (66,513) 3,351

Earmarked Revenue Reserves (75,143) (4,288) (72,230) (3,351)

e) Employee Benefits Adjs

Comp Inc & Exp Statement

Cultural, Env & Planning Servs 63,193 34

Children's & Education Servs 138,864 1,239

Highways, Roads & Transport 10,739 19

Housing Services 45,047 (20)

Adult Social Care 83,206 17

Balance Sheet

Provision for Accumulated

Absence 0 (6,475) 0 (7,764)

Short Term Accumulated Absence

Reserve 0 6,475 0 7,764

Page 53



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

36

09/10 Adjs 09/10 Adjs 09/10 Adjs

Statements Made Statements Made Statements Made

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance Sheet

Long Term Investments 55,787 (46,699) 56,216 (54,815)

Cash and Cash Equivalents 0 41,537 0 145,606

Short Term Investments 116,334 (9,107) 135,228 (105,482)

Bank and other Cash Holdings (14,269) 14,269 14,691 (14,691)

Opening 01/04/09 Comp Inc & Exp 09/10 Balance Sheet 09/10

2. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED, NOT ADOPTED

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2011/2012 (the Code) introduces two changes in
accounting policy, one in relation to the treatment of heritage assets held by the Council (under FRS 30
Heritage Assets), and the other in respect of accounting for Business Rate Supplements (BRS), both of
which the Council will be required to adopt in full in its 2011/12 financial statements.

The new standard requires that Heritage Assets are shown as a new class of asset in the Council’s
2011/12 Balance Sheet. The Council is required to make a disclosure of the estimated effect of this new
standard in these accounts. The Council considers that it does not hold significant heritage assets and
therefore anticipates that the adoption of the new requirement under FRS 30 will not be material.

For the 2011/12 accounts, the BRS transactions will be included in the Council’s Collection Fund
Statements since the council is a billing authority.

3. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In applying the Accounting Policies set out in Section 2, the Council has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions (shown in this note, below) and a number of assumptions which involve
uncertainty about future events (shown in the following note, Note 4).

The major judgements made in these Accounts are as follows:

$ There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government.
However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an
indication that the assets of the Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities
and reduce levels of service provision.

$ Under IFRS accounting, Leases have been reviewed to assess whether they should be classified
as Finance or Operating Leases. The definitions of each are such that a small number of leases
have been judged to have elements of both classifications, and therefore have been classified on
a balanced approach, rather than an absolute basis. The difference is not material to the
accounts.

$ A number of major contracts have been assessed to ascertain whether they have the substance
of a finance lease and the judgement was that they did not. These contracts include the provision
of ICT services from Sungard and the provision of photocopiers from Apogee.

$ All Non Current Assets were reviewed and reclassified into new or revised categories of asset ,
requiring judgements to be made. A number were placed into the revised, more stringently
defined, class of Investment Properties or allocated to the new class of Assets Held for Sale
(which identifies assets which are about to be sold) from the current class of Surplus Properties.
The effect of these judgements would not materially change the value of assets shown in the

Page 54



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

37

Balance Sheet or the depreciation charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, although both would be altered.

$ Assessments of PFI contracts were undertaken for the 2009/10 accounts and there are no
changes for the 2010/11 accounts.

$ Capital and Revenue Grants have been assessed against new criteria to ascertain whether
Conditions, either Stipulations or Restrictions, exist to restrict the use or require the repayment of
the grant. As a result of this review, and the ensuing judgements, a number of grants have been
transferred from Receipts in Advance to Earmarked Reserves.

$ The Lewisham Homes pension indemnity was agreed by the Council when Lewisham Homes
was established, and the accounting for it has been a matter of concern to the auditors in recent
years, and has been reported to Members as such. During last year’s external audit the matter
was raised, and the accounts were amended in the manner proposed by the Audit Commission,
in order to avoid a qualification on the accounts being issued. These accounts therefore continue
with this treatment.

$ The insurance provision is made up of contributions to cover liabilities arising from a number of
insurance years dating back to 1997. It has been split between less than one year and greater
than one year, estimating what proportion of the monies held relate to each of the years, what has
been paid so far in each of those years and what remains outstanding. The Council has not
commissioned an actuarial review (over and above the annual review we routinely carry out)
since it will not add any further certainty.

4. ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical
experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2011 for which there is a significant possibility of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

a) Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of repairs and
maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets. The current economic climate makes it
uncertain that the Council will be able to sustain its current spending on repairs and maintenance,
possibly bringing into some doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.
If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls.
It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for buildings could increase by approximately £1.2m
for every year that useful lives had to be reduced.

b) Provisions
The Authority has made a provision of £2.3m for the payment of redundancy costs following the setting of
the 2011/12 Revenue Budget. The exact details of the agreed proposals are still being finalised, and so
the final costs are not yet known. An increase over the forthcoming year of 10% in either the total number
of claims or the estimated average settlement could each have the effect of adding £0.2m to the provision
needed.

c) Pensions Liability
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages,
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. Two firms of consulting actuaries (one for
the LGPS and one the LPFA) are engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.
The effects on the net pensions liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured. For
instance, a 0.5% increase in the real discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the pension
liability of about £98m. However, the assumptions interact in complex ways. During 2010/11, the

Page 55



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

38

Authority’s actuaries advised that the net pensions liability had decreased by £135m as a result of
estimates being corrected as a result of experience and decreased by £56m attributable to updating of
the assumptions.

c) Arrears of Significant Debtors
The Council had balances of sundry debtors, Council Tax, NNDR and Housing Rents of approximately
£90m as at 31st March 2011. Reviews of significant balances set impairment allowances for doubtful
debts at appropriate levels. However, in the current economic climate it is not certain that such
allowances will be sufficient, as the judgements made in respect of them are necessarily primarily based
on historical trends. To date however, there is insufficient evidence of reductions in collection rates, which
in some cases have improved during 2010/11, to justify making additional impairments in this respect. If
collection rates were to deteriorate, an increase of 10% in the amount of the impairment allowance would
require an additional £5m to be set aside.

5. MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Where material items have not been separately disclosed in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, the nature and amount of items are set out below;

a) Decent Homes Strategy
A housing stock transfer took place in October 2010, in which 2,425 tenanted and 1,103 leasehold
housing units, forming the Chrysalis Estate, were transferred to London and Quadrant RSL. The asset
value of the transfer was £103.2m and overhanging debt of £41.5m was written off.

b) Housing Stock Revaluation
The housing stock is valued in the Council’s accounts on the basis of Social Housing - Existing Use,
which is defined by the Government as a percentage of the vacant possession value on the open market.
For 2009/10, this percentage was set at 37%, but for 2010/11, it was reduced to 25%. This has resulted
in a reduction in the value of the Council’s housing stock of £300m and has been charged as an
impairment to the HRA and reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement to prevent it being
a charge against rents. There is no net effect on revenue, but the Net Equity on the Council’s Balance
Sheet Equity has been reduced by this figure.

c) Pensions Indexation
The change in indexation of pensions from the Retail Price Index (RPI) to the Consumer Price Index (CPI)
has had the effect of reducing the council’s likely future pension liabilities by £130m. This accounting
entry is offset by a reduction in the Pensions Reserve so that it has no impact on the authority’s available
resources.

6. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The draft Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Executive Director for Resources on 30
June 2011. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes.
Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March
2011, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to
reflect the impact of this information.
There are no material post balance sheet events that have a significant impact on the Accounts.

7. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTNG BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER
REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement recognised by the Council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the
resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet future
capital and revenue expenditure.

Page 56



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

39

General Earmarked Housing Capital Major Capital Movement

Fund GF Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants in Unusable

Balance Reserves Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital

Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items credited or debited to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of

non-current assets 76,534 343,317 (419,851)

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and

Equipment

Movements in the market value of Investment

Properties 94 (94)

Capital grants and contributions applied (75,238) (41,537) 1,120 115,655

Revenue expenditure funded from capital

under statute 3,942 (3,942)

Amounts of non-current assets written off on

disposal or sale as part of the gain / loss on

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement 1,822 (1,047) 13,135 775

Insertion of items not debited or credited to

the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital

investment (7,202) (3,078) 10,280

Voluntary provision above MRP (1,959) 1,959

Capital expenditure charged against the

General Fund and HRA balances (1,689) 1,689

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital

Grants Unapplied Account:

Capital Grants and contributions unapplied

credited to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement

Application of grants to capital financing

transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital

Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as

part of the gain / loss on disposal to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance

new capital expenditure

Contribution from the Capital Receipts

Reserve towards administrative costs of non-

current asset disposals

Contribution from the Capital Receipts

Reserve to finance the payments to the

Government capital receipts pool 688 (688) 0

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts

Reserve upon receipt of cash

Adjustments primarily involving the Major

Repairs Reserve:

Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance credited

to the HRA (19,004) 19,004 0

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance

new capital expenditure 1,627 (1,627) 0

Usable Reserves

2010/11

Page 57



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

40

General Earmarked Housing Capital Major Capital Movement

Fund GF Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants in Unusable

Balance Reserves Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account:

Amount by which finance costs charged to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement are different from finance costs

chargeable in the year in accordance with

statutory requirements 10,062 (1,601) (8,461)

Adjustments primarily involving the

Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement

benefits debited or credited to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement (85,598) 154 85,444

Employer's pensions contributions and direct

payments to pensioners payable in the year (30,385) (177) 30,562

Adjustments primarily involving the

Collection Fund Adjustment Account:

Amount by which Council Tax income credited

to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement is different from

Council Tax income calculated for the year in

accordance with statutory requirements 3 (3)

Adjustments primarily involving the

Accumulated Absences Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged

to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is

different from remuneration chargeable in the

year in accordance with statutory requirements (820) 820

Other Adjustments 1,284 (1,627) (14,342)

Total Adjustments (108,462) 0 277,027 12,447 17,377 1,120 (199,509)

Usable Reserves

2010/11 Continued

Page 58



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

41

General Earmarked Housing Capital Major Capital Movement

Fund GF Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants in Unusable

Balance Reserves Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the

Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items credited or debited to

the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment

of non-current assets 85,002 63,287 (149,671)

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and

Equipment

Movements in the market value of

Investment Properties (978) 978

Capital grants and contributions applied (25,654) (7,881) 2,543 30,164

Revenue expenditure funded from capital

under statute 7,291 (7,291)

Amounts of non-current assets written off

on disposal or sale as part of the gain /

loss on disposal to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement 1,086 4,197 8,288 (10,047)
Insertion of items not debited or

credited to the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of

capital investment (6,640) (2,409) 9,049

Voluntary provision above MRP (1,564) 1,564

Capital expenditure charged against the

General Fund and HRA balances (5,218) 5,218

Adjustments primarily involving the

Capital Grants Unapplied Account:

Capital Grants and contributions unapplied

credited to the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement

Application of grants to capital financing

transferred to the Capital Adjustment

Account

Adjustments primarily involving the

Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited

as part of the gain / loss on disposal to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to

finance new capital expenditure (5,401) 5,401

Contribution from the Capital Receipts

Reserve towards administrative costs of

non-current asset disposals

Contribution from the Capital Receipts

Reserve to finance the payments to the

Government capital receipts pool

Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts

Reserve upon receipt of cash

Usable Reserves

2009/10 Comparative Figures

Page 59



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

42

General Earmarked Housing Capital Major Capital Movement

(Continued) Fund GF Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants in Unusable

Balance Reserves Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments primarily involving the

Major Repairs Reserve:

Reversal of Major Repairs Allowance

credited to the HRA (16,619) 16,619 0

Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to

finance new capital expenditure (12,648) 12,648 0
Adjustments primarily involving the

Financial Instruments Adjustment

Account:

Amount by which finance costs charged to

the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement are different from

finance costs chargeable in the year in

accordance with statutory requirements (301) (2,111) 2,412

Adjustments primarily involving the

Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement

benefits debited or credited to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement 40,679 249 (40,928)

Employer's pensions contributions and

direct payments to pensioners payable in

the year (29,828) (200) 30,028

Adjustments primarily involving the

Collection Fund Adjustment Account:

Amount by which Council Tax income

credited to the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement is different

from Council Tax income calculated for

the year in accordance with statutory

requirements 86 (86)

Adjustments primarily involving the

Accumulated Absences Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration

charged to the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement on an accruals

basis is different from remuneration

chargeable in the year in accordance with

statutory requirements 1,289 (1,289)

Other Adjustments (1,988) 829 (155)

Total Adjustments 63,262 0 26,694 2,887 29,267 2,543 (124,653)

Usable Reserves

2009/10 Comparative Figures

8. TRANSFERS TO AND FROM EARMARKED RESERVES

Lewisham keeps a number of earmarked reserves on the Balance Sheet. Some are required to be held
for statutory reasons, some are needed to comply with proper accounting practice, and others have been
set up voluntarily to earmark resources for future spending plans.

This note shows the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to provide
financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet
General Fund expenditure in 2010/11.

Page 60



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

43

The use of HRA earmarked reserves is shown in Note 16 of the notes to the HRA in Section 4a.

Balance Balance Balance

01/04/09

£000

In

£000

Out

£000

31/03/10

£000

In

£000

Out

£000

31/03/11

£000

General Earmarked 48,737 18,485 (14,961) 52,261 13,920 (15,836) 50,345

Insurance 12,410 786 0 13,196 1,458 0 14,654

Capital Expenditure 9,339 10,303 (13,710) 5,932 1,724 (1,689) 5,967 (a)

70,486 29,574 (28,671) 71,389 17,102 (17,525) 70,966

School Balances 8,280 6,645 (11,357) 3,568 13,058 (5,835) 10,791 (b)

School's External Funds 665 624 (665) 624 648 (624) 648 (c)

8,945 7,269 (12,022) 4,192 13,706 (6,459) 11,439

Total 79,431 36,843 (40,693) 75,581 30,808 (23,984) 82,405

09/10 Transfers 10/11 Transfers

a) Capital Expenditure Reserve
This is a reserve created to enable services to make revenue contributions towards their committed
capital spending in future years.

b) Schools Balances
This reserve represents schools’ self-managed budgets that remain unspent at the year-end. It is
earmarked for use by the schools only.

c) Schools’ External Funds
This is the unspent balances from schools’ locally generated funds and is earmarked for schools only.

9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE - LEVIES

These are included under the “Other Operating Expenditure” line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, and comprises the statutory levies for services carried out by other bodies.

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

London Pension Fund Authority 1,346 1,330

Environment Agency 174 175

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 267 267

Total Levies Paid 1,787 1,772

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a) Movements in Non Current Assets

The movements in non current assets during 2010/11 were as follows:

Page 61



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

44

2010/11 Council

Dwellings

Other

Land &

Buildings

Vehicles,

Plant &

Equipment

Infra-

structure

Assets

Comm.

Assets

Surplus

Assets

Assets under

Construction

2010/11

TOTAL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Restated Gross

Book Value b/fwd

at 1st April 2010

953,717 862,453 52,353 98,202 8,451 31,536 38,785 2,045,497

Additions 13,236 18,852 0 0 0 0 30,819 62,907

Revaluations (Reval

Reserve)

39,860 37,498 0 0 0 7,813 0 85,171

Revaluations

(Surp/Def on Prov of

Servs)

(1,442) 723 0 0 0 4,042 0 3,323

Total Revaluations 38,418 38,221 0 0 0 11,855 0 88,494

Impairments (Reval

Reserve)

(9,778) (2,768) 0 0 0 (2,959) 0 (15,505)

Impairments

(Surp/Def on Prov of

Servs)

(347,207) (62,047) 0 0 0 (3,836) 0 (413,090)

Total Impairments (356,985) (64,815) 0 0 0 (6,795) 0 (428,595)

Disposals (1,707) (1,184) (33) 0 0 (6,935) 0 (9,859)

Transfers (1,394) 16,570 6,702 4,489 (289) 1,475 (11,506) 16,047

Assets reclassed

to/from Held for

Sale

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gross Book Value

c/fwd at 31st March

2011
645,285 870,097 59,022 102,691 8,162 31,136 58,098 1,774,491

Restated

Depreciation b/fwd

at 1st April 2010

(28,918) (16,572) (24,070) (42,264) 0 (354) 0 (112,178)

Depreciation for year (17,939) (10,990) (5,131) (3,088) 0 (375) 0 (37,523)

Depreciation written

back on:

Transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Assets Revalued 1,570 383 0 0 0 226 0 2,179

Depreciation onAssets Impaired 25,190 1,720 0 0 0 106 0 27,016

Assets Sold 27 0 23 0 0 202 0 252

Depreciation c/fwd

at 31st March 2011 (20,070) (25,459) (29,178) (45,352) 0 (195) 0 (120,254)

Net Book Value at

31st March 2011 625,215 844,638 29,844 57,339 8,162 30,941 58,098 1,654,237

The movements in non current assets during 2009/10 were as follows:

Page 62



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

45

2009/10 Council

Dwellings

Other

Land &

Buildings

Vehicles,

Plant &

Equipment

Infra-

structure

Assets

Comm.

Assets

Surplus

Assets

Assets under

Construction

2009/10

TOTAL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Restated Gross

Book Value b/fwd

at 1st April 2009

964,601 891,219 44,557 92,180 7,965 31,409 36,756 2,068,687

Additions 25,946 45,533 8,385 5,660 486 0 16,212 102,222

Revaluations (Reval

Reserve)

1,091 10,691 0 0 0 1,907 0 13,689

Revaluations

(Surp/Def on Prov of

Servs)

221 (3,139) 0 0 0 0 0 (2,918)

Total Revaluations 1,312 7,552 0 0 0 1,907 0 10,771

Impairments (Reval

Reserve)

(616) (2,775) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,391)

Impairments

(Surp/Def on Prov of

Servs)

(35,083) (69,456) 0 (375) 0 0 (3,955) (108,869)

Total Impairments (35,699) (72,231) 0 (375) 0 0 (3,955) (112,260)

Disposals (2,706) (4,903) (952) 0 0 (1,371) (501) (10,433)

Transfers 263 (4,717) 363 737 0 1,569 (9,727) (11,512)

Assets reclassed

to/from Held for

Sale

0 0 0 0 0 (1,978) 0 (1,978)

Gross Book Value

c/fwd at 31st March

2010
953,717 862,453 52,353 98,202 8,451 31,536 38,785 2,045,497

Restated

Depreciation b/fwd

at 1st April 2009

(3,313) (12,069) (20,265) (39,400) 0 0 0 (75,047)

Depreciation for year (27,223) (10,233) (4,742) (2,896) 0 (456) 0 (45,550)

Depreciation written

back on:

Transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Assets Revalued 0 3,084 0 0 0 0 0 3,084

Depreciation onAssets Impaired 1,057 2,075 0 0 0 0 0 3,132

Assets Sold 561 571 937 32 0 102 0 2,203

Depreciation c/fwd

at 31st March 2010 (28,918) (16,572) (24,070) (42,264) 0 (354) 0 (112,178)

Net Book Value at

31st March 2010 924,799 845,881 28,283 55,938 8,451 31,182 38,785 1,933,319

Page 63



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

46

b) Non Current Assets Revaluations

A five-year rolling programme of revaluation for land and buildings is carried out to ensure that the
Council’s assets are held at valuations in accordance with RICS and CIPFA guidance. These are signed
off by the Council’s Valuer, the Head of Property and Development, Mr P Clark FRICS. The Council’s
policies on valuing its assets are set out in the Accounting Policies in Section 1 of the Accounts.

The HRA dwellings stock was all revalued during the financial year, and the usual General Fund assets as
per the rolling programme. In addition, a substantial number of assets were revalued following their
reclassification under IFRS. The usual analysis of the rolling programme valuations has not been
provided this year therefore, but will be included in future years.

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following have been included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Operating Expenses 130 147

Rental Income (1,386) (1,352)

Balance at End of Year (1,256) (1,205)

The following shows the movement in fair value of investment properties in 2010/11;

Restated

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Balance at Beginning of Year 23,583 11,260

Additions

Purchases 127 0

Subsequent Expenditure 0 0

Disposals (1,125) (166)

Net Gains / (Losses) from fair value adjustments (94) 978

Transfers to / from PPE 0 11,511

Balance at End of Year 22,491 23,583

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The expenditure on these assets is only capitalised when it is material and the future economic benefits
or service potential flowing will also be material. The Council has reviewed the level of spend on these
assets and they continue to be immaterial and therefore are charged direct to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Page 64



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

47

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The 2010/11 Code of Practice requires compliance with IFRS but some of the requirements are non-
compliant with primary legislation. Where this occurs, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement complies with IFRS, with the Movement in Reserves Statement containing the reversals
required to ensure that the closing balances comply with Statute.

a) Financial Instruments Balances

The borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the following categories
of financial instruments.

31 Mar 2011 31 Mar 2010 31 Mar 2011 31 Mar 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000

Financial Liabilities (Principal Amount) 303,206 344,035 35,000 40,000

Accrued Interest 166 159 4,351 5,013

Other accounting adjustments - -

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (1) 303,372 344,194 39,351 45,013

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss (2) - - - -

Total Borrowings 303,372 344,194 39,351 45,013

PFI and finance lease liabilities 175,070 146,189 4,900 6,968

Financial liabilities at amortised cost - - - -

Financial liabilities at contract amount - - 87,454 76,278

Total Creditors 478,442 490,383 131,705 128,259

Financial Guarantees (3) - - - -

Soft Loans Received (4) - - - -

Loans and receivables (principal amount) 17,857 1,401 185,901 189,935

Plus Accrued Interest - - 483 108

Plus Accounting adjustments - - - -

Loans and receivables at amortised cost (1) 17,857 1,401 186,384 190,043

Available-for-sale financial assets - - - -

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or

loss (2) - - - -

Unquoted equity investment at cost - - - -

Total Investments 17,857 1,401 186,384 190,043

Loans and receivables - - - -

Financial assets at contract amounts - - 40,239 45,045

Total Debtors 17,857 1,401 226,623 235,088

Soft loans provided (4) - - - -

Long-Term Current

Note 1 – The figures shown above do not all appear on the face of the balance sheet due to the
reclassification of certain short and long term investments as Cash Equivalents under IFRS.

Page 65



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

48

Note 2 – Under accounting requirements the carrying value of the financial instrument value is shown in
the balance sheet which includes the principal amount borrowed or lent and further adjustments for
breakage costs or stepped interest loans (measured by an effective interest rate calculation) including
accrued interest. Accrued interest is shown separately in current assets/liabilities where the
payments/receipts are due within one year. The effective interest rate is effectively accrued interest
receivable under the instrument, adjusted for the amortisation of any premiums or discounts reflected in
the purchase price.

Note 3 – Fair value has been measured by:

$ Direct reference to published price quotations in an active market; and/or

$ Estimating using a valuation technique.

Note 4 – Local authorities sometimes give financial guarantees that require them to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder of a debt if the debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of the contract. The Council provided no financial guarantees in the financial year and had
none outstanding from previous years.

Note 5 – The Council has made no loans to voluntary organisations at less than market rates (soft loans) ,
nor has it received any such loans.

Note 6 – Long Term Investments comprise of funds which are held with two external cash managers,
Invesco and Investec, who were appointed during 2007/08.

Unusual Movements
There were no unusual movements in the year.
Reclassification
There were no reclassification of financial instruments in the year.
Derecognition of instruments
There is no derecognition expected to impact where the Council has transferred financial assets to a third
party.
Collateral
The council does not hold or has not obtained any collateral for third party debts or other credit
enhancements in the financial year 2010/11 or 2009/10.
Allowance for Credit Losses
No allowance for credit losses under section 7.4.2.6 of the Code was made during the year.
Defaults and Breaches
No defaults or breaches relating to the Council’s financial instruments were incurred during the year.

b) Financial Instruments Gains / (Losses)

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to
financial instruments are made up as follows:

Page 66



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

49

Financial

Liabilities

Financial Instruments Gains and

Losses 2010/11

Measured at

amortised

cost

Loans and

Receivables

Available

For Sale

Assets

Fair Value

through

the CI&ES Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Interest expense 18,946 - - - 18,946

Losses on derecognition - - - - -

Reductions in fair value - - - - -

Impairment losses - - - - -

Fee expense - - - - -

Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on

the Provision of Services 18,946 - - - 18,946

Interest income - (1,536) - - (1,536)

Interest Income accrued on impaired

financial assets - - - - -

Increases in fair value - - - - -

Gains on derecognition - - - - -

Fee income - - - - -

Total income in Surplus or Deficit on

the Provision of Services - (1,536) - - (1,536)

Gains on revaluation - - - - -

Losses on revaluation - - - - -

Amounts recycled to the Surplus or

deficit on the provision of Services after

impairment - - - - -
Surplus arising on revaluation of

financial assets in Other

Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure - - - - -

Net Gain / (Loss) for the Year 18,946 (1,536) - - 17,410

Financial Assets

Page 67



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

50

Financial

Liabilities

Financial Instruments Gains and

Losses 2009/10

Measured at

amortised

cost

Loans and

receivables

Available

For Sale

Assets

Fair value

through

the CI&ES Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Interest expense 19,557 - - - 19,557

Losses on derecognition - - - - -

Reductions in fair value - - - - -

Impairment losses - - - - -

Fee expense - - - - -

Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on

the Provision of Services 19,557 - - - 19,557

Interest income - (2,238) - - (2,238)

Interest Income accrued on impaired

financial assets - - - - -

Increases in fair value - - - - -

Gains on derecognition - - - - -

Fee income - - - - -
Total income in Surplus or Deficit on

the Provision of Services - (2,238) - - (2,238)

Gains on revaluation - - - - -

Losses on revaluation - - - - -

Amounts recycled to the Surplus or

deficit on the provision of Services after

impairment - - - - -
Surplus arising on revaluation of

financial assets in Other

Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure - - - - -

Net Gain / (Loss) for the Year 19,557 (2,238) - - 17,319

Financial Assets

c) Fair Value of Financial Instruments not Disclosed on the Balance Sheet

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables are carried on the balance
sheet at amortised cost (in long term assets/liabilities with accrued interest in current assets/liabi lities).
Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take place over
the remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

$ For loans from the PWLB borrowing/premature repayment rates from the PWLB have been
applied to provide the fair value under PWLB debt redemption procedures;

$ For loans receivable prevailing benchmark market rates have been used to provide the fair value;

$ No early repayment or impairment is recognised;

$ Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable the
fair value is taken to be the carrying amount or the billed amount;

$ The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

The fair values calculated are as follows:

Page 68



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

51

Carrying Amount Fair value Carrying Amount Fair value

£000 £000 £000 £000

PWLB Debt (Carrying Value) 227,135 259,193 269,254 300,595

Non-PWLB debt 115,588 123,835 119,952 84,645

Total debt 342,723 383,028 389,206 385,240

Long term creditors - - - -

Total Liabilities 342,723 383,028 389,206 385,240

Money market loans 204,242 204,305 191,336 101,863

Bonds - - - -

Long term debtors 12,966 12,966 13,123 13,123

Total Assets 217,208 217,271 204,459 114,986

31 March 2011 31 March 2010

For bond holding, the differences are attributable to fixed interest loans receivable being held by the
authority whose interest rate is lower than the prevailing rate estimated to be available at 31 March. This
depresses the fair value of financial liabilities and raises the value of loans and receivables.

The fair values for loans and receivables have been determined by reference to similar practices, as
above, which provide a reasonable approximation for the fair value of a financial instrument, and includes
accrued interest. The comparator market rates prevailing have been taken from indicative investment
rates at each balance sheet date. In practice, rates will be determined by the size of the transaction and
the counterparty, but it is impractical to use these figures, and the difference is likely to be immaterial.

14. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Key risks

The Council’s activities necessarily expose it to a variety of financial risks. The key risks are:
Credit risk - The possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council;
Liquidity risk - The possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments;
Re-financing risk - The possibility that the Council might be requiring to renew a financial
instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms;
Market risk - The possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes
in such measures as interest rates movements.

b) Overall Procedures for Managing Risk

The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and
are structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk
management are set out through a legal framework based on the Local Government Act 2003 and
associated regulations. These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and investment guidance through the
Act.

Overall, these procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following ways:
$ by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice;
$ by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management clauses within its

financial regulations/standing orders/constitution;
$ by approving annually in advance prudential and treasury indicators for the following three years

limiting:

Page 69



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

52

o The Council’s overall borrowing;
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates;
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt;
o Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year.

$ by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for investing
and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with Government guidance .

These procedures are required to be reported and approved at or before the Council’s annual Council
Tax setting budget or before the start of the year to which they relate. These items are reported with the
annual treasury management strategy which outlines the detailed approach to managing risk in relation to
the Council’s financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported after each year, as is a
mid-year update.

The annual treasury management strategy which incorporates the prudential indicators was approved by
Council on 1

st
March 2010 and is available on the Council website. The key issues within the strategy

were:
$ The Authorised Limit for 2010/11 was set at £573.756 million. This is the maximum limit of

external borrowings or other long term liabilities.
$ The Operational Boundary was expected to be £373.756 million. This is the expected level of

debt and other long term liabilities during the year.
$ The maximum amounts of fixed and variable interest rate exposure were set at £589.705 million

and £33.439 million based on the Council’s net debt.
$ The maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of debt are as follows:

Upper Limit Lower Limit

% %

Less than 1 year 15 0

Between 1 and 2 years 15 0

Between 2 and 5 years 50 0

Between 5 and 10 years 50 0

More than 10 years 95 50

These policies are implemented by a central treasury team. The Council maintains written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies (Treasury Management Practices – TMPs) covering
specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash. These TMPs are
a requirement of the Code of Practice and are reviewed periodically.

c) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credi t exposures to the
Council’s customers.

This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made
with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the Fitc h,
Moody’s and Standard & Poors Credit Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also considers
maximum amounts and time limits in respect of each financial institution. Deposits are not made with
banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum requirements of the investment criteria
outlined above. Additional selection criteria are also applied after this initial criteria is applied.

This Council uses the creditworthiness service provided by Sector. This service uses a sophistica ted
modelling approach with credit ratings from all three rating agencies - Fitch, Moodys and Standard and
Poors, forming the core element. However, it does not rely solely on the current credit ratings of
counterparties but also uses the following as overlays:

$ credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies

$ CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings

$ sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries .

Page 70



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

53

The full Investment Strategy for 2010/11 was approved by Full Council on 1
st

March 2010 and is available
on the Council’s website.

The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks, building societies
and Local Authorities of £204 million cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to
make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent
experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of
irrecoverability applies to all of the Authority’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2011
that this was likely to crystallise.

d) Liquidity Risk

The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting
and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investment strategy reports), as
well as through a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of
Practice. This seeks to ensure that cash is available when needed.

The Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover any day to day cash flow
need, and the PWLB and money markets for access to longer term funds. The Council is also required to
provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures sufficient
monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable
to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.

All sums invested (£204 million) are either due to be paid in less than one year or can be easily realised.

e) Refinancing and Maturity Risk

The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above
are considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer-term risk to the Council relates to
managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. This risk relates to both the
maturing of longer term financial liabilities and longer term financial assets.

The approved treasury indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt and the limits placed on
investments placed for greater than one year in duration are the key parameters used to address this risk.
The Council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the central treasury
team address the operational risks within the approved parameters. This includes:

$ monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either new
borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and

$ monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the
Council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability
of maturities and returns in relation to the longer term cash flow needs.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows, with the maximum and minimum limits for fixed
interest rates maturing in each period (approved by Council in the Treasury Management Strategy:

Actual Actual

Minimum Maximum 31 March 2011 31 March 2010

£000 £000

Less than 1 year - 50,731 - -

Between 1 and 2 years - 50,731 5,000 -

Between 2 and 5 years - 169,103 24,662 55,241

Between 5 and 10 years - 169,103 23,002 56,235

More than 10 years 169,103 321,295 285,541 232,559

Total 338,205 344,035

Approved Limits

Page 71



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

54

f) Market Risk

i) Interest rate risk
The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in
interest rates have a complex impact on the Council, depending on how variable and fixed interest rates
move across differing financial instrument periods. For instance, a rise in variable and fixed interest rates
would have the following effects:

$ Borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement will rise;

$ Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the borrowing will fall (no impact on revenue
balances);

$ Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement will rise; and

$ Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall (no impact on revenue balances).

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate
borrowings would not impact on the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on
variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services and affect the General Fund Balance, subject to influences from Government grants (i.e. HRA).
Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in
the Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The Annual Treasury
Management Strategy draws together Council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its expected
treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this Strategy a treasury
indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposure. The central
treasury team will monitor market and forecast interest rates within the year to adjust expo sures
appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where economic circumstances
make it favourable, fixed rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better long term
returns, similarly the drawing of longer term fixed rates borrowing would be postponed.

The risk of interest rate loss is partially mitigated by Government grant payable on financing costs.

If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would
be:

Variation

£000s

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 125

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments -2,042

Increase in Government grant receivable for financing costs -75

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services -1,992

Share of overall impact debited to the HRA -50

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets -

Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure -

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on the Surplus or Deficit

on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure) -

The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being
reversed. These assumptions are based on the same methodology as used in the Note – Fair value of
Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost.

Page 72



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

55

ii) Price risk
The Council, excluding the pension fund, does not invest in equity shares or marketable bonds.

iii) Foreign exchange risk
The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. It therefore has no
exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

15. STOCKS AND INVENTORIES

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Building stores and fleet stock 229 220

Other stock 4 37

Total Stocks 233 257

16. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

The significant construction contracts over £0.5m which had been entered into by the Council at 31 March
2011 are shown below. The outstanding expenditure will be incurred in future financial years. The value
of the work completed as at 31 March 2011 has been established by using a stage of completion
methodology based on architects’ certificates obtained at periodic times during the year.

Total Value of

Value of Before During Contract

Contract 1 April 2010 2010/11 Remaining

£000 £000 £000 £000

Children & Young People

BSF Addey & Stanhope School 8,246 69 1,171 7,006

BSF Prendergast Hilly Fields School 18,585 0 2,115 16,470

Monson School 5,737 3,370 538 1,829

Brockley School 7,759 0 679 7,080

Gordonbrock School 9,407 0 955 8,452

Other Directorates

Forest Hill Pool 8,934 0 609 8,325

Deptford Town Centre (inc Tidemill School) 20,464 2,850 9,445 8,169

Lewisham Homes

Major Internal Works 1,647 0 651 996

Total Commitments 80,779 6,289 16,163 58,327

Value of Works Completed

17. DEBTORS

a) Long Term Debtors

These consist of sums repayable to the Council over a period of time of more than one year. Catford
Regeneration Partnership Ltd (CRPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council.

Balances outstanding at the end of the year are:

Page 73



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

56

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Mortgages 429 542

Land Charges Debts 498 499

Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd 11,911 11,981

Other Long Term Debtors 128 101

Total Long Term Debtors 12,966 13,123

b) Current Debtors

These are short term debts consisting of amounts due from the Government, other local authorities and
amounts for goods and services provided as at 31 March 2011:

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Government and Other Public Bodies:

HM Revenue & Customs - VAT 6,146 6,340

Education Recoupment 1,993 1,200

Other Govt. & Local Authority Accounts 7,738 16,664

Council Tax Payers 23,083 22,684

Housing Benefit Overpayments 10,330 8,446

Housing Rents (inc PSL, B & B, Hostels, Commercial) 8,238 8,672

General Debtors due for Supplies and Services 32,428 24,315

Total Current Debtors 89,956 88,321

Impairment Allowance - Collection Fund (20,946) (19,501)

Impairment Allowance - Housing (13,693) (12,080)

Impairment Allowance - Sundry (15,078) (11,695)

Total Provision for Bad Debts (49,717) (43,276)

Net Current Debtors 40,239 45,045

c) Impairment Allowances

Balance at Movement Balance at Movement Balance at

31/03/2009 in Year 31/03/2010 in Year 31/03/2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Collection Fund - Council Tax 16,793 2,708 19,501 1,445 20,946

Housing Rents 7,187 (939) 6,248 266 6,514

Housing Benefit Overpayments 4,973 859 5,832 1,347 7,179

12,160 (80) 12,080 1,613 13,693

Sundry

Services 3,970 2,318 6,288 1,701 7,989

Council Tax Court Costs 2,223 500 2,723 2,045 4,768

Housing Service Charges 1,962 (320) 1,642 (355) 1,287

Private Sector Leasing 816 226 1,042 (8) 1,034

8,971 2,724 11,695 3,383 15,078

Total Impairment Allowances 37,924 5,352 43,276 6,441 49,717

Page 74



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

57

d) Debtors which are either past due or impaired

The Council generally requires trade debtors to be settled within 30 days. An age analysis of unpaid
invoices issued through the accounts receivable system is as follows.

Accounts Receivable System

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Age of Debt £000 % £000 %

Current (1 to 30 days) 4,583 43 4,114 42

31 to 60 Days 827 8 294 3

61 to 90 Days 261 2 397 4

91 to 180 Days 551 5 674 7

181 to 365 Days 870 8 809 8

Over 1 Year 3,660 34 3,616 37

Total 10,752 100 9,904 100

2010/11 2009/10

The following tables show the aged analysis for Housing Rents, Day to Day Service Charges (excluding
Major Works) and Council Tax Court Costs. The notes to the Collection Fund include an age analysis of
Council Tax and NNDR arrears.

Housing Rents etc. Debts

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Age of Debt £000 % £000 %

Current (1 to 30 days) 4,686 57 5,128 59

31 to 90 Days 622 8 620 7

91 to 180 Days 547 7 539 6

181 to 365 Days 731 9 674 8

Over 1 Year 1,652 20 1,711 20

Total 8,238 100 8,672 100

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

Service Charges

(Day to Day, excludes Major Works) Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Age of Debt £000 % £000 %

Current (1 to 30 days) 1,435 96 1,457 84

31 to 90 Days 25 2 215 13

91 to 180 Days 12 1 22 1

181 to 365 Days 4 0 5 0

Over 1 Year 13 1 40 2

Total 1,489 100 1,739 100

2009/102010/11

Council Tax Court Costs

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Age of Debt £000 % £000 %

Year of Account 867 17 1,086 35

Under 2 Years old 1,031 20 534 17

Under 3 Years old 882 17 379 12

Under 5 Years old 1,130 22 523 17

Over 5 Years old 1,329 25 593 19

Total 5,239 100 3,115 100

2009/102010/11

Page 75



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

58

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements;

Balance

31/03/2010

Movement

in 2010/11

Balance

31/03/2011

£000 £000 £000

Cash Equivalents

Short Term Deposits 126,751 (36,656) 90,095

Money Market Funds 13,023 17,964 30,987

Call Accounts with Banks 15,000 (10,461) 4,539

Cash with External Cash Managers 5,523 (5,523) 0

160,297 (34,676) 125,621

Cash and Bank Balances

Schools Bank Accounts (3,590) 1,955 (1,635)

Euro Bank Account 10 384 394

Main Bank Accounts 1,253 (785) 468

Other Cash Balances (12,364) 15,781 3,417

(14,691) 17,335 2,644

Totals 145,606 (17,341) 128,265

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts approximate their fair values.
Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on
the immediate cash requirements, and earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates.

19. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance oustanding at start of year 11,153 11,105 8,084 7,606

Assets newly classified (Property, Plant and

Equipment) 0 4,553 145 478

Revaluation gains and losses 0 0 0 0

Impairment losses 0 0 0 0

Assets declassified as held for sale (Property,

Plant and Equipment) 0 (2,575) 0 0

Assets sold (5,153) (1,930) 0 0

Transfers from non-current to current 0 0 0 0

Balance oustanding at year-end 6,000 11,153 8,229 8,084

Current Non Current

Current is less than one year and Non Current is over one year.

Page 76



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

59

20. PREPAYMENTS

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Directorate prepayments 2,277 1,893

PFI Prepayments 4,292 544

Insurance Premiums 0 735

Total Prepayments 6,569 3,172

21. CREDITORS

These consist of amounts owed to the Government and other public bodies and all unpaid sums for
goods and services received as at the end of the year.

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Government and other public bodies:

Inland Revenue - Tax & NI Contributions 6,204 6,459

Education Recoupment 4,233 4,221

Other Govt. and Local Authority Accounts 10,465 6,190

20,902 16,870

Short Term Compensated Absences 6,944 7,764

General creditors (amounts owed for supplies and services) 59,608 51,644

Total Creditors 87,454 76,278

22. PROVISIONS

Provisions are amounts which are set aside to meet liabilities or losses that are likely or certain to arise, it
is not, however possible to determine precisely when any transfer of economic benefits will take place.

Balance Balance Balance

01/04/09

£000

In

£000

Out

£000

31/03/10

£000

In

£000

Out

£000

31/03/11

£000

Current (less than 1 year)

Insurance Provision 500 10 0 510 690 0 1,200

Redundancy Costs 0 0 0 0 2,281 0 2,281

500 10 0 510 2,971 0 3,481

Non Current (Over I year)

Insurance Provision 7,733 1,581 (1,214) 8,100 0 (1,583) 6,517

Other Provisions 3,910 542 (46) 4,406 39 (430) 4,015

11,643 2,123 -1,260 12,506 39 -2,013 10,532

Total - Provisions 12,143 2,133 -1,260 13,016 3,010 -2,013 14,013

09/10 Transfers 10/11 Transfers

Page 77



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

60

Insurance Provisions
The Council holds insurance provisions for property and employers & public liability claims, which fall
below the policy excess of insurance placed with external insurers. The Council does not arrange ‘All
Risks’ insurance for all of its properties, but insures its buildings and contents for limited perils such as
fire, lightning, aircraft impact, explosion and riot & civil commotion, It does not insure against water or
weather perils or theft. All Risks cover is obtained for more attractive property such as cash, computers
and other specified property. A reserve is also held to cover insurable but uninsured losses and to fund
risk management initiatives.

Redundancy Costs
The government’s strategy to reduce the national deficit over the lifetime of this Parliament pr incipally
affects the council’s future funding plans, but has had some direct effects on the 2010/11 accounts . A
sum of £7.3m for redundancy costs, of which £2.3m was raised as a provision, has been recognised in
the accounts as the council has implemented savings and staff reductions in response to the new funding
climate.

Other Provisions
This includes a provision to cover the liability for repayment of charges made under the Section 117 1983
Mental Health Act that have now been declared unlawful by the Court of Appeal, provisions to meet the
dilapidation costs of leased properties that are primarily used as office accommodation and which are to
be vacated as part of the authority’s office accommodation strategy and private sector leasing properties .

23. USABLE RESERVES

a) Usable Capital Receipts
Capital receipts are mainly sums received from the sale of fixed assets. All Housing capital receipts are
split into two parts: a usable part, which may be used to finance new capital expenditure; and a poolable
part, which is paid to central government. Non housing capital receipts are wholly usable to finance new
capital expenditure. The balance on this account represents amounts available for the financing of future
capital expenditure.

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Balance brought forward at start of year 20,298 17,411

Amounts receivable in year 25,054 8,550

Poolable to Central Government (688) 0

Amounts applied to finance new capital investment in year (11,919) (5,663)

Total increase/(decrease) in capital receipts in year 12,447 2,887

Balance carried forward at end of year 32,745 20,298

b) Capital Grants Unapplied
These are capital grants which are available to finance new capital expenditure but have yet to be used.

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Opening balance at start of year 3,463 920

Movement in year 1,120 2,543

Balance carried forward at end of year 4,583 3,463

Page 78



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

61

24. UNUSABLE RESERVES

a) Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve was introduced with a zero balance on 1 April 2007. It records the accumulated
gains since 1 April 2007 on non current assets held by the authority arising from increases in value (to the
extent that these gains have not been consumed by subsequent downward movements in value). The
Reserve is also debited with amounts equal to the part of depreciation charged on assets that has been
incurred only because the asset has been revalued (since 1 April 2007). On disposal the Revaluation
Reserve balance for the asset disposed of is written out to the Capital Adjustment Account. The overall
balance on the Reserve thus represents the amount by which the value of non current assets carried in
the Balance Sheet is greater because they are carried at revalued amounts rather than depreciated
historical cost (where historical cost in this sense refers to their value at 1 April 2007).

Restated

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Balance brought forward at start of year 102,972 94,821

Componentisation of Revaluation Reserve 58,447 0

Upwards revaluation of assets 85,169 13,716

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged

to the Surplus/Deficit on the provision of services (17,124) (3,503)

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not

posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 68,045 10,213

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost

depreciation (2,117) (581)

Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (7,707) (1,481)

Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (9,824) (2,062)

Balance carried forward at end of year 219,640 102,972

b) Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a
historical cost basis).

The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition,
construction and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on
donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority.

Page 79



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

62

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1
April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Restated

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Balance at Beginning of Year 1,318,624 1,431,083

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (419,950) (149,660)

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 0 0

Amortisation of intangible assets 0 0

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (3,942) (7,291)

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement (15,640) (9,203)

(439,532) (166,154)

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve (46,460) 10,148

Net amount written out of the cost of non-current assets consumed in

the year (485,992) (156,006)

Capital financing applied in the year:

Use of Capital Receipts to finance new capital expenditure 8,575 5,401

Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 1,627 2,926

Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing 64,218 19,389

Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital grants Unapplied

Account 0 0

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against

the General Fund and HRA balances 6,861 10,613

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances 7,066 5,218

88,347 43,547

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 0 0

Movement in the Donated Assets Account credited to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 0 0

Balance at End of Year 920,979 1,318,624

Page 80



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

63

c) Financial Instrument Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account is used to hold the accumulated difference between the
financing costs included in the Income and Expenditure Account and the accumulated financing costs
required in accordance with regulations to be charged to the General Fund Balance.

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Opening balance at start of year (13,100) (15,760)

Premiums paid for early redemption of debt 1,138 248

Amortisation of premiums and discounts 1,902 2,412

Balance carried forward at end of year (10,060) (13,100)

d) Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions.
The Authority accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities
recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside
to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the
Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is
directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in
the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet
them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Opening balance at start of year 669,254 320,733

Actuarial gains or losses on pensions assets and liabilities (191,221) 337,621

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to

the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement (85,444) 40,928

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners

payable in the year (30,562) (30,028)

Balance carried forward at end of year 362,027 669,254

Page 81



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

64

e) Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council
tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax
payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund fro m
the Collection Fund.

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Opening balance at start of year 25 111

Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement is different from Council Tax income

calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(3) (86)

Balance carried forward at end of year 22 25

f) Short Term Compensated Absences Account

This account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from
accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, eg annual leave enti tlement carried
forward at 31 March each year. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund
Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Opening balance at start of year 7,764 6,475

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding

year (7,764) (6,475)

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 6,944 7,764

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals

basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in

accordance with statutory requirements

(820) 1,289

Balance carried forward at end of year 6,944 7,764

Page 82



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

65

25. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESOURCE ALLOCATION
DECISIONS)

CYP Community Customer Regen Resources HRA Total

Services Services -eration

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Fees, charges & other service

income (13,234) (41,801) (33,211) (24,407) (11,305) (81,185) (205,143)

Government grants (281,611) (34,199) (234,236) (2,488) (601) (57,064) (610,199)

Total Income (294,845) (76,000) (267,447) (26,895) -11,906 (138,249) (815,342)

Employee expenses 216,322 44,001 36,235 18,362 24,532 0 339,452

Other operating expenses 132,708 128,068 273,216 24,631 17,630 137,904 714,157

Total operating expenses 349,030 172,069 309,451 42,993 42,162 137,904 1,053,609

Net Cost of Services 54,185 96,069 42,004 16,098 30,256 (345) 238,267

Net Budgets 54,725 96,091 42,041 16,252 31,220 240,329

Variation (540) (22) (37) (154) (964) (1,717)

Reconciliation to Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

£000s

Cost of Services in Service Analysis 238,267

Add services not included in main analysis 19,409

Add amounts not reported to management (Technical Accounting adjustments) 309,564

(31,002)

536,238

Service Services Not Not Net Corporate Total

not in reported included Cost of

(Single Entity) Analysis Analysis to mgmt in I&E Services Amounts

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Fees, charges & other service

income (205,143) 0 0 0 (205,143) 0 (205,143)

Surplus or deficit on associates

and joint ventures 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Interest and investment income
0 0 212 0 212 (2,491) (2,279)

Income from council tax 0 0 3 0 3 (91,233) (91,230)

Government grants and

contributions (610,199) 0 35,362 0 (574,837) (332,361) (907,198)

Total Income (815,342) 0 35,577 0 (779,765) (426,085) (1,205,850)

Employee expenses 339,452 12,804 (86,265) (30,562) 235,429 0 235,429

Other service expenses 714,157 6,605 15,051 0 735,813 0 735,813

Depreciation, amortisation and

impairment 0 0 409,609 0 409,609 95 409,704

Interest Payments 0 0 (64,408) 0 (64,408) 66,580 2,172

Precepts & Levies 0 0 0 (440) (440) 1,787 1,347

Payments to Housing Capital

Receipts Pool 0 0 0 0 0 689 689

Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed

Assets 0 0 0 0 0 775 775

Total operating expenses 1,053,609 19,409 273,987 (31,002) 1,316,003 69,926 1,385,929

Surplus or deficit on provision

of services 238,267 19,409 309,564 (31,002) 536,238 (356,159) 180,079

SEGMENTAL REPORTING FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2011

Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Reconciliation to Subjective

Analysis

Remove amounts reported to management not included in Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement

Page 83



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

66

CYP Community Customer Regen Resources HRA Total

Services Services -eration

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Fees, charges & other service

income (16,062) (40,446) (32,583) (24,139) (12,070) (85,017) (210,317)

Government grants (257,550) (34,522) (221,046) (2,728) (783) (20,209) (536,838)

Total Income (273,612) (74,968) (253,629) (26,867) -12,853 (105,226) (747,155)

Employee expenses 210,020 44,854 37,277 18,697 25,216 0 336,064

Other operating expenses 117,072 125,115 256,056 25,738 18,277 104,861 647,119

Total operating expenses 327,092 169,969 293,333 44,435 43,493 104,861 983,183

Net Cost of Services 53,480 95,001 39,704 17,568 30,640 (365) 236,028

Budgets 52,900 95,002 40,131 17,553 31,195 236,781

Variation 580 (1) (427) 15 (555) (388)

£000s

Cost of Services in Service Analysis 236,028

Add services not included in main analysis 10,977

Add amounts not reported to management 158,216

(30,470)

Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 374,751

Reconciliation to Subjective

Analysis Service Services Not Not Net Corporate Total

not in reported included Cost of

(Single Entity) Analysis Analysis to mgmt in I&E Services Amounts

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Fees, charges & other service

income (210,317) (3,333) 0 0 (213,650) 0 (213,650)

Surplus or deficit on associates

and joint ventures 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Interest and investment income
0 0 131 0 131 (3,589) (3,458)

Income from council tax 0 0 86 0 86 (90,573) (90,487)

Government grants and

contributions (536,838) 0 35,073 0 (501,765) (221,957) (723,722)

Total Income (747,155) (3,333) 35,290 0 (715,198) (316,119) (1,031,317)

Employee expenses 336,064 9,549 42,217 (30,028) 357,802 0 357,802

Other service expenses 647,119 4,761 25,824 0 677,704 0 677,704

Depreciation, amortisation and

impairment 0 0 95,738 0 95,738 (978) 94,760

Interest Payments 0 0 (40,853) 0 (40,853) 57,413 16,560

Precepts & Levies 0 0 0 (442) (442) 1,772 1,330

Payments to Housing Capital

Receipts Pool 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gain or Loss on Disposal of Fixed

Assets 0 0 0 0 0 5,283 5,283

Total operating expenses 983,183 14,310 122,926 (30,470) 1,089,949 63,490 1,153,439

Surplus or deficit on the

provision of services 236,028 10,977 158,216 (30,470) 374,751 (252,629) 122,122

SEGMENTAL REPORTING FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2010

Reconciliation to Net Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Remove amounts reported to management not included in Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement

Page 84



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

67

26. TRADING OPERATIONS

The following services trade with the public or other third parties. The relevant line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is also shown for each category.

2010/11 2009/10

(Surplus)/ (Surplus)/

Expenditure Income Deficit Deficit

£000 £000 £000 £000

Planning & Development Services

Markets 1,253 (1,253) 0 64

Industrial Estates 132 (460) (328) (381)

Cultural & Related Services

Theatre 1,449 (768) 681 715

Total - Trading Operations 2,834 (2,481) 353 398

Note - Under the Local Authorities Act 1990 (amended) Street Markets operate as a trading account and
any surplus or deficit at the year end is carried over into the following year. In 2010/11 there was a
surplus of £20k (2009/10 - deficit of £16k), and the total accumulated surplus is now £143k.

27. AGENCY SERVICES

Two officers from the Customer Services Directorate undertook some part time work for the London
Borough of Barking and Dagenham during 2010/11 and the Council received £100k for their services .

The Council did not carry out any other agency services or other work for other local authorities or public
bodies in 2010/11 or 2009/10.

28. INVESTMENT IN COMPANIES

a) Companies of which the Council is the sole owner.

i) Lewisham Homes Limited
Lewisham Homes is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council and Councillors Nisbet and Paschoud sat
on its board throughout the year. Former Councillor Stockbridge sat on the board until May 2010 and was
replaced by Councillor Bell in July 2010. The Council made payments of £22.3m to the company in
2010/11 (£26.1m in 2009/10).

ii) Catford Regeneration Partnership Limited
Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd (CRPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council and the
Director of Property and Programme Management and the Head of Business Management and Service
Support are its directors. The Council advanced a loan of £11.98m to CRPL in 2009/10, and CRPL
repaid principal of £0.057m and made interest payments of £0.84m during 2010/11 to the Council.

Both of these companies are included in the Council’s Group Accounts, which are shown in Section 6 of
the Statement of Accounts.

b) Companies of which the Council is a joint owner or shareholder.

i) Lewisham Schools for the Future LEP Limited
The Council has a small minority stake of 10% in Lewisham Schools for the Future LEP Limited which is
the local education partnership company which was established by its strategic partner, a consortium
made up of Costain Engineering and Construction Limited and Babcock Project Investments Limited

Page 85



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

68

under the Council’s Building Schools for the Future (BSF) programme to rebuild and refurbish the
secondary schools within the Borough.
Additionally the Council has a 10% stake in four Special Purpose Vehicles set up in relation to those
schools which are being newly built under the Government's Private Finance Initiative within this BSF
Programme, one for each phase of the programme, known as Lewisham SPV1 Limited, Lewisham SPV
2 Limited, Lewisham SPV3 Limited and Lewisham SPV4 Limited, and in their related Holding Companies,
Lewisham Building Schools for the Future Holdings 1 Limited, 2, 3 and 4 Limited. The corporate
structure is standard to the BSF scheme.
The Head of Business Management and Service Support is the Council’s Director on the LEP and its
SPV’s.
The Council made payments in 2010/11 to the LEP of £6.0m (£6.85m in 2009/10), to the SPV of £8.2m
(£8.8m in 2009/10) and to the SPV2 of £0.9m (zero in 2009/10).

ii) South-East London Combined Heat and Power Ltd (SELCHP)
The Council has a small minority share in of less than 1% in South-East London Combined Heat and
Power Ltd (SELCHP) which is a joint venture with the London Borough of Greenwich for the provision of
waste disposal and waste to energy services. Payments of £5.02m were made during the year to the
company (£4.93m in 2009/10).

iii) Greater London Enterprise Ltd
The Council has a small minority share in Greater London Enterprise Ltd which is a company limited by
guarantee and provides property management & consultancy services.

29. MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

The Council paid the following amounts to elected members of the council during the year.

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Allowances - Basic 912 883

Allowances - Pensions and NI 100 116

IT and Telephone 57 62

Travel and Subsistence 30 44

Training 20 23

Other Expenses 26 7

Total Expenditure in Year 1,145 1,135

30. OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION

a) Employees whose Remuneration was £50,000 or more

The number of employees whose remuneration, excluding employer’s pension contributions, was
£50,000 or more, in bands of £5,000, is shown below. These figures include a number of senior
employees whose details are also disclosed separately in note b) below.

The Council made total remuneration payments comprising both redundancy and salary costs of over
£50,000 to 16 staff in 2010/11 (note – a significant number of redundancies were paid in 2011/12). For
comparative reasons, these are not shown in the table below.

The breakdown of these payments was;
£95,000 to £99,999 – 2; £80,000 to £84,999 – 2; £75,000 to £79,999 – 3;
£70,000 to £74,999 – 1; £65,000 to £69,999 – 2; £60,000 to £64,999 – 1;
£55,000 to £59,999 – 3; £50,000 to £54,999 – 2.

Page 86



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

69

Remuneration Band

Non-School

Employees

School

Employees
Total

Employees

Non-School

Employees

School

Employees
Total

Employees

£50,000 to £54,999 77 174 251 66 157 223
£55,000 to £59,999 41 67 108 34 62 96
£60,000 to £64,999 18 38 56 17 40 57
£65,000 to £69,999 15 34 49 13 37 50
£70,000 to £74,999 4 27 31 4 19 23

£75,000 to £79,999 3 11 14 8 9 17

£80,000 to £84,999 1 7 8 4 8 12

£85,000 to £89,999 2 8 10 5 7 12

£90,000 to £94,999 9 3 12 5 1 6

£95,000 to £99,999 2 1 3 2 0 2

£100,000 to £104,999 4 1 5 2 2 4

£105,000 to £109,999 2 2 4 3 0 3

£110,000 to £114,999 0 1 1 0 1 1

£130,000 to £134,999 0 0 0 0 0 0

£135,000 to £139,999 1 0 1 2 0 2

£140,000 to £144,999 3 0 3 2 0 2

£190,000 to £194,999 1 0 1 1 0 1

£230,000 to £234,999 0 0 0 0 1 1

Total 183 374 557 168 344 512

Note - Where salary bands are not quoted, there are no employees in those bands for either year.

2009/102010/11

b) Disclosure of Senior Employees’ Remuneration for financial year 2010/11

Post Holder Information

Salary (inc

fees and

allowances)

Employer's

Pension

Contributions

Total

including

Pension

Contributions

£ £ £

Senior Employees - Salary over £150,000

Chief Executive - B Quirk 192,387 38,477 230,864

Senior Employees - Salary below £150,000
Executive Director for Customer Services 141,123 28,225 169,348
Executive Director for Children and Young People 141,123 28,225 169,348

Executive Director for Resources 141,123 28,225 169,348
Executive Director for Community Services 138,495 27,699 166,194

Director of Programme Management and Property 109,538 21,908 131,446

Head of Law and Monitoring Officer 107,538 21,508 129,046

Director of Children's Social Care (part year) 94,237 18,847 113,084

Totals 1,065,564 213,113 1,278,677

Note – No payments in respect of bonuses, expenses or compensation for loss of office were made in
2010/11 to these employees.

Page 87



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

70

c) Disclosure of Senior Employees’ Remuneration for financial year 2009/10

Post Holder Information

Salary (inc

fees and

allowances)

Employer's

Pension

Contributions

Total

including

Pension

Contributions

£ £ £

Senior Employees - Salary over £150,000

Head Teacher Tidemill School - M Elms 231,400 16,701 248,101

Chief Executive - B Quirk 192,387 37,515 229,902

Senior Employees - Salary below £150,000

Executive Director for Customer Services 141,123 27,519 168,642

Executive Director for Children and Young People 141,123 27,519 168,642

Executive Director for Resources 138,495 27,007 165,502
Executive Director for Community Services 135,867 26,494 162,361

Director of Programme Management and Property 109,538 21,360 130,898

Director of Children's Social Care 109,538 21,360 130,898

Head of Law and Monitoring Officer 107,538 20,970 128,508

Totals 1,307,009 226,445 1,533,454

Note – No payments in respect of bonuses, expenses or compensation for loss of office were made in
2009/10 to these employees.

31. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

2010/11 2009/10

Payments to the Audit Commission £000 £000

Fees payable with regard to external audit services 443 427

Fees payable in respect of statutory inspection 0 20

Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns 131 148

Fees payable in respect of other services provided by the appointed auditor 0 0

External Auditor Fees 574 595

These fees exclude a £35,000 fee payable for the audit of the Pension Fund.

32. DEDICATED SCHOOLS’ GRANT

The Council’s expenditure on schools is funded primarily by the Dedicated Schools’ Grant (DSG), which
are grant monies provided by the Department for Education. DSG is ring-fenced and can only be applied
to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget, as defined in the School Finance (England)
Regulations 2008. The Schools Budget includes elements for a range of educational services provided
on a Council wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget (ISB), which is divided into a budget share
for each maintained school.

The details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2010/11 and 2009/10 are as follows:

Page 88



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

71

Central

Expen-

diture

£000

Individual

Schools

Budget

(ISB)

£000

2009/10

Total

£000

Central

Expen-

diture

£000

Individual

Schools

Budget

(ISB)

£000

2009/10

Total

£000

Final DSG for Year 30,161 163,628 193,789 27,998 150,218 178,216

Brought forward from previous year 390 0 390 1,122 9,005 10,127

Carry forward to next year agreed in

advance

0 0 0 0 0 0

Agreed budgeted distribution in

Year
30,551 163,628 194,179 29,120 159,223 188,343

Actual Central Expenditure 30,551 0 30,551 28,730 0 28,730

Actual ISB deployed to schools 0 163,628 163,628 0 159,223 159,223

Local authority contribution for Year 0 0 0 0 0 0

Use of DSG in Year 30,551 163,628 194,179 28,730 159,223 187,953

Carried forward to next year 0 0 0 390 0 390

2010/11 2009/10

33. GRANT AND TAXATION INCOME

The Council credited the following taxation and general grants to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2010/11;

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Income from Council Tax (91,234) (90,573)

National Non-Domestic Rates redistribution (157,367) (144,288)

Formula Revenue Grant (22,851) (33,304)

Recognised Capital Grants and Contributions (116,775) (25,654)

Area Based Grant (33,728) (18,812)

Other Grants (non-service specific) (1,637) 101

Total (423,592) (312,530)

Credited to Services

Dedicated Schools Grant (194,179) (187,953)

Housing and Council Tax Benefit (228,984) (215,184)

Sure Start Grants (14,290) (13,587)

Schools Standard Grant and Schools Standard Fund (31,896) (27,604)

Other Grants (65,130) (69,350)

Total (534,479) (513,678)

The Council has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as
income as they have conditions attached to them that have not yet been satisfied. The balances at the
year-end are as follows:

Page 89



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

72

2010/11

£000

Capital Grants (1,117)

Revenue Grants (2,091)

Total (3,208)

34. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Revenue Receipts in Advance

Capital Contributions Unapplied 35,169 26,508

Council Tax 5,293 5,245

PFI Schemes 16,486 14,868

Other Receipts in Advance 7,368 9,222

Total Receipts in Advance 64,316 55,843

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

This note disclosures additional information on transactions between the Council and its related parties.
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, which are bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled by the council.
The purpose of the note is to demonstrate fairness and openness in the Accounts.

(a) Central Government and Other Local Authorities
The general government grants received are shown in Note 34 to the Core Financial Statements. The
precept to the Greater London Authority is shown in the notes of the Collection Fund in Section 4b of the
Accounts. There were numerous other transactions between the Council and other Local Authorities.

(b) Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Joint Ventures
The companies that are related to the Council are detailed in Note 28 to the Core Financial Statements.
Material transactions were as follows:

$ Lewisham Homes is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council and Councillors Nisbet and
Paschoud sat on its board throughout the year. Former Councillor Stockbridge sat on the board
until May 2010, and was replaced by Councillor Bell in July 2010. The Council paid a
management fee of £20.4m to the company in 2010/11 (£21.1m in 2009/10).

$ Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd (CRPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council and the
Director of Property and Programme Management and the Head of Business Management and
Service Support are its directors. The Council advanced a loan of £11.98m to CRPL in 2009/10,
and CRPL repaid principal of £0.057m and made interest payments of £0.84m during 2010/11 to
the Council.

$ South-East London Combined Heat and Power Ltd (SELCHP) is a joint venture with the London
Borough of Greenwich and Councillor Paschoud sat on its board during the year. Payments of
£5.02m were made in 2010/11 to the company (4.93m in 2009/10).

$ The Council owns 10% of the shares of the Lewisham Schools for the Future Local Education
Partnership (LEP), and its subsidiary Special Purpose Vehicles (SPV). The Head of Business
Management and Service Support is the Council’s Director on the LEP and its SPV’s. The
Council made payments in 2010/11 to the LEP of £6.0m (£6.85m in 2009/10), to the SPV of
£8.2m (£8.8m in 2009/10) and to the SPV2 of £0.9m (zero in 2009/10).

Page 90



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

73

(c) Members and Chief Officers
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The total
cost of members (inc allowances) are shown in Note 29.
This note has been compiled by using the Council's Register of Members and Chief Officers' Declarations
of Interests. This is open to public inspection at the Civic Suite at Lewisham Town Hall. Declarable
related party transactions over £2,000 are as follows:

$ Councillor Affiku is employed by Lewisham Primary Care Trust with whom Lewisham operates
joint commissioning arrangements for health and social care, worth approximately £200m in
2010/11.

$ Councillor Best is a member of Sydenham Gardens to whom Lewisham paid £7,300 in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Clarke is employed by the National Society of Epilepsy to whom Lewisham paid
£0.16m in 2010/11 and a member of the Grove Park Community Group to whom Lewisham paid
£35,800 in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Clutten is a student member of Goldsmith University College Council to whom
Lewisham paid £40,600 in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Egan is a member of Hither Green Community Association to whom Lewisham paid
£2,000 in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Fletcher is on the Council of Management of the Lewisham Youth Theatre to whom
Lewisham paid £62,300 in 2010/11 and is a board member of the Ilderton Motor Project to whom
Lewisham paid £10,000 in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Foreman is employed by Haberdasher’s Askes Knights Academy to whom Lewisham
paid £0.61m in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Hall is a board member of the Phoenix Community Homes to whom Lewisham paid
£1.38m in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Johnson is a member of the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority to whom
Lewisham paid £35,000 in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Long is Chair (remunerated) of the South London and Maudsley NHS Trust to whom
Lewisham paid £3.59m in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Mallory is a member of Lee Green Lives to whom Lewisham paid £5,200 in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Millbank is a member of Voluntary Action Lewisham to whom Lewisham paid £0.355m,
a member of the Ackroyd Community Association to whom Lewisham paid £0.22m and a member
of the Oak Hill Community Nursery to whom Lewisham paid £70,300, all payments made in
2010/11.

$ Councillor Morrison is employed by the North Downham Training Project to whom Lewisham paid
£0.25m in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Muldoon is a board member of the South London and Maudsley NHS Trust to whom
Lewisham paid £3.59m in 2010/11, and a member of the Noah’s Ark Children’s Venture to whom
Lewisham paid £53,500 in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Nisbet is a member of Lewisham & Southwark Age Concern to whom Lewisham paid
£0.22m, is a member of Sydenham Music to whom Lewisham paid £18,500 and is a member of
Sydenham Gardens to whom Lewisham paid £7,300, all payments were made in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Onuegbu is a member of the South London and Maudsley NHS Trust to whom
Lewisham paid £3.59m in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Paschoud is a member of the Ravensbourne Project to whom Lewisham paid £0.26m,
a member of Contact a Family – Lewisham to whom Lewisham paid £0.15m, a member of the
Lewisham Disability Coalition to whom Lewisham paid £0.145m, a member of Platform 1 (Forest
Hill) Youth Project to whom Lewisham paid £22,200 and a member of Forest Hill and Sydenham
Youth Forum to whom Lewisham paid £7,800, all payments made in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Peake is a member of the Lewisham Citizen Advice Bureau to whom Lewisham paid
£0.49m in 2010/11 and a member of the Forest Hill Society to whom Lewisham paid £2,100 in
2010/11.

$ Councillor Smith is a member of Groundwork Trust, London South to whom Lewisham paid
£52,800 in 2010/11.

$ Former Councillor Stockbridge was a member of Phoenix Community Homes to whom Lewisham
paid £1.38m in 2010/11.

$ Councillor Till is employed by Dinardo Ltd to whom Lewisham paid £0.45m, a member of the
North Downham Training Project to whom Lewisham paid £0.25m, a committee member of the

Page 91



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

74

Marsha Phoenix Memorial Trust to whom Lewisham paid £0.25m, a member of the Ackroyd
Community Association to whom Lewisham paid £0.22m, a member of the Noah’s Ark Children’s
Venture to whom Lewisham paid £53,500, a member of the Ilderton Motor Project to whom
Lewisham paid £10,000 and a member of the Rockbourne Youth Management Committee to
whom Lewisham paid £2,700, all payments were made in 2010/11.

$ The Interim Executive Director for Regeneration is the Director of Interea Consulting, to whom
Lewisham paid £0.24m in 2010/11 (£0.204m in 2009/10) for his services.

(d) Lewisham Pension Fund

$ The Council’s contribution to the Pension Fund in 2010/11 on behalf of its employees was
£25.0m (£25.6m in 2009/10).

$ The cost of administering the Pension Fund of £0.47m (£0.58 in 2009/10) was charged to the
fund in 2010/11.

$ The Pension Fund had £0.04m of cash balances invested with the Council as at 31 March 2011
(on 31 March 2010 the Pension Fund had £5.1m of cash balances invested with the Council).

36. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the
value of assets acquired under finance leases and PFI contracts), together with the resources that have
been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue
as assets are used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Author ity that has
yet to be financed. The CFR movement is analysed in the second part of this note.

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 404,066 391,264

Capital investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 55,304 61,240

Investment Properties 308 2,360

Intangible Assets 0 0

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 0 0

55,612 63,600

Sources of finance

Capital Receipts (11,919) (5,663)

Government Grants and other contributions (25,447) (26,038)

Sums set aside from Revenue: (1,689) (5,418)

Minimum Revenue Provision (6,439) (5,797)

Other: Transfer of Housing Stock (41,536) (7,882)

(87,030) (50,798)

Movement in Capital Financing Requirement in Year (31,418) 12,802

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 372,648 404,066

Page 92



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

75

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Explanation of movements in year

Increase in underlying need to borrowing (supported by government

financial assistance) 13,912 12,997

Increase in underlying need to borrowing (unsupported by

government financial assistance) 2,645 13,484

Debt Redeemed as part of Housing Stock Transfer/ MRP (47,975) (13,679)

Increase/ (decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (31,418) 12,802

37. LEASES

A Lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment or series of
payments the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time. The definition of a lease includes hire
purchase contracts. Lease classification is made at the inception of the lease.

A Finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.

An Operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

a) Authority as a Lessee

i) Finance Leases
The Council has a small number of residential properties under finance leases.
The assets under these leases are carried as Council Dwellings in the balance sheet at the following net
amounts.

31/03/11 31/03/10

£000 £000

Council Dwellings 565 1,010

Finance Lease Liabilities
The annual payments for the residential property are made at peppercorn rates. The minimum lease
payment is therefore immaterial.

ii) Operating Leases
The Authority has operating leases in the following areas:

Council Dwellings (life of 25 years),
School Plant and Equipment (life ranging from 1 - 7 years),
Council Plant and Equipment (contract expires in 2011-12)
Refuse Vehicles.

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in futures are:

31/03/11 31/03/10

£000 £000

Not later than one year 2,172 2,112

Later than one year and not later than five years 5,381 7,108

Later than five years 3,709 1,655

11,262 10,875

Page 93



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

76

The expenditure charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the
year in relation to these leases was:

31/03/11 31/03/10

£000 £000

Minimum lease payments 2,033 1,816

2,033 1,816

b) Authority as a Lessor

i) Finance Leases
The Council has leased out a small number of commercial properties. The Council has a gross
investment in the leases, made up of the minimum lease payments expected to be received over the
remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the property when the lease comes to an end. The
minimum lease payments comprise settlement of the long-term debtor for the interest in the property
acquired by the lessee and finance income that will be earned by the Authority in future years whilst the
debtor remains outstanding. The gross investment is made up of the following amounts:

31/03/11 31/03/10

£000 £000

Finance lease debtor

(net present value of minimum lease payments):

Current 600 600

Unearned finance income - -

Gross investment in the lease 600 600

The gross investment and the minimum lease payments will be received over the following periods;

31/03/11 31/03/10 31/03/11 31/03/10

£000 £000 £000 £000

Not later than one year - 55 0 20

Later than one year and not later than five years 152 381 149 286

Later than five years 64 261 200 220

216 697 349 526

Gross Investment

Lease Paymentin the Lease

Minimum

ii) Operating Leases
The Authority leases out Commercial property for Investment purposes.
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

31/03/11 31/03/10

£000 £000

Not later than one year 1,818 1,877

Later than one year and not later than five years 6,516 7,162

Later than five years 9,944 11,176

18,278 20,215

Page 94



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

77

38. PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVES (PFI) CONTRACTS

a) Description of PFI Contracts

i) Downham Lifestyles Centre PFI
A PFI agreement was signed in September 2005 for the provision of the Downham Lifestyles Centre for a
period of 32 years. The centre provides health and leisure facilities and opened in March 2007. Unitary
charge payments were £1.9m in 2010/11 (£1.8m in 2009/10). It is expected that the lifetime unitary
charge payments will be £74m.

ii Brockley Area Housing PFI
An HRA PFI agreement was signed in June 2007 for the provision of the housing management services,
repairs and maintenance and Decent Homes Standard refurbishment work to 1,845 leasehold and
tenanted properties in the Brockley area. Under this contract the Council made unitary charge payments
of £13m in 2010/11 (£10.4m in 2009/10). The contract is for a 20 year period and over its lifetime the
project is expected to cost £314m, including £284m of unitary charges and £3m of capital contributions.

iii) Grouped Schools PFI
A PFI contract was signed in August 2006 for the rebuild and running of three schools for 30 years at an
estimated cost of £226m;

$ Greenvale Special School - which opened in September 2007

$ Forest Hill Secondary School - which opened in January 2008.

$ Prendergast Ladywell Fields College (formerly Crofton Secondary School) - phase 1 opened in
January 2008 and phase 2 opened in September 2008.

The unitary charge for 2010/11 was £6.8m (in 2009/10 the unitary charge was £6.6m).

iv) BSF Catford and Sedgehill Schools
A PFI contract was signed in December 2007 for the rebuild and running of two secondary schools,
Sedgehill and Catford High. The operational start dates were January 2009 for Sedgehill School and April
2009 for Catford High School (now named Conisborough School). The unitary charge for 2010/11 was
£8m (the unitary charge in 2009/10 was £7.1m). The total expenditure on the PFI contract over its 26 year
operational life is estimated to be £238m.

v) BSF Northbrook School
A PFI contract was signed in 2009/10 for the construction of Northbrook School. Construction started in
June 2009 and it became operational in January 2011, with a unitary charge for 2010/11 of £0.7m. The
total unitary charge payments over 27 years are estimated to be £85m.

vi) Street Lighting
A PFI contract was signed in April 2011 for the replacement of the boroughs street lighting equipment and
its ongoing maintenance until 2036. As there were no transactions in 2010/11, more detailed disclosures
are not included in this years accounts.

b) PFI Liabilities

Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, they have been
calculated to compensate the contractor for the fair value of the services they provide, the capital
expenditure incurred and interest payable whilst the capital expenditure remains to be reimbursed. The
outstanding liability to pay to the contractors for capital expenditure incurred is as follows;

2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance outstanding at start of year 6,968 4,283 146,189 92,353

Movement in Year (2,068) 2,685 28,881 53,836

Balance outstanding at end of year 4,900 6,968 175,070 146,189

Due within 1 Year Deferred

Page 95



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

78

c) Movement in PFI Assets in year

The assets which are used to provide the services under these PFI contracts are recognised in the
Council’s Balance Sheet. The movements in value over the year are detailed in the following table.

£000 £000 £000 £000

Gross Book Value b/fwd from previous year 228,566 278,556

Additions 31,715 36,846

Revaluations (recognised in Revaluation Reserve) 8,847 3,613

Revaluations (recognised in Surplus/ Deficit on the

Provision of Services) 511 245

Total Revaluations 9,358 3,858

Impairments (recognised in Revaluation Reserve) (2,125) (1,293)

Impairments (recognised in Surplus/ Deficit on the

Provision of Services) (47,852) (89,339)

Total Impairments (49,977) (90,632)

Disposals (63) (62)

Transfers 0 0

Assets reclassified (to)/ from Held for Sale 0 0

Gross Book Value at End of the Year 219,599 228,566

Depreciation Balance b/fwd from previous year (482) (2)

Depreciation for year (4,041) (5,413)

Depreciation written back on:

Transfers 0 0

Assets Revalued 0 9

Assets Impaired 482 4,922

Assets sold 2 2

484 4,933

Depreciation Balance c/fwd to following year (4,039) (482)

Net Book Value at End of the Year 215,560 228,084

2009/102010/11

d) Payments due under PFI contracts

The Council makes an agreed fixed payment each year which is linked to inflation and can be reduced if
the contractor fails to meet availability and performance standards. The following table shows the
estimated cash payments due to be paid (as part of a unitary charge) for each PFI. The price base is in
nominal terms assuming a 2.5% RPI increase per annum compounded until the end of the contract. The

Page 96



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

79

amounts are broken down into the different elements of the payments reflecting how they will be
accounted for.

Note: Amounts shown for Brockley HRA PFI relate only to the unitary charge for Tenanted properties.

Brockley

HRA

Downham

Lifestyles

Grouped

Schools

BSF Catford

& Sedgehill

BSF

Northbrook Total

Payments due £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

within 1 year

Service charges 5,041 193 2,189 2,055 642 10,120

Interest 5,955 1,486 3,767 4,839 1,934 17,981

Repayment of liability 2,622 134 721 1,177 246 4,900

Planned lifecycle replacement 0 147 189 56 0 392

13,618 1,960 6,866 8,127 2,822 33,393

within 2 to 5 years

Service charges 22,627 820 9,381 8,839 2,732 44,399

Interest 21,679 6,023 14,382 18,404 7,510 67,998

Repayment of liability 12,148 548 3,000 5,128 1,120 21,944

Planned lifecycle replacement 253 811 1,535 1,040 166 3,805

56,707 8,202 28,298 33,411 11,528 138,146

within 6 to 10 years

Service charges 39,795 1,146 13,292 12,617 3,784 70,634

Interest 20,159 7,657 16,098 20,088 8,718 72,720

Repayment of liability 14,099 718 3,886 6,838 1,857 27,398

Planned lifecycle replacement 2,297 1,187 4,151 4,501 638 12,774

76,350 10,708 37,427 44,044 14,997 183,526

within 11 to 15 years

Service charges 47,409 1,297 15,285 14,617 4,263 82,871

Interest 12,245 7,842 13,912 16,516 7,616 58,131

Repayment of liability 20,450 1,152 5,396 9,171 2,389 38,558

Planned lifecycle replacement 3,064 1,368 5,537 6,701 1,460 18,130

83,168 11,659 40,130 47,005 15,728 197,690

within 16 to 20 years

Service charges 10,622 1,467 17,586 16,953 4,823 51,451

Interest 1,442 7,636 10,905 11,740 6,122 37,845

Repayment of liability 6,334 1,922 9,816 14,892 3,939 36,903

Planned lifecycle replacement 593 1,564 4,324 6,459 1,671 14,611

18,991 12,589 42,631 50,044 16,555 140,810

within 21 to 25 years

Service charges 0 1,660 20,221 15,495 5,457 42,833

Interest 0 6,907 5,783 4,036 3,624 20,350

Repayment of liability 0 3,154 16,244 16,297 6,545 42,240

Planned lifecycle replacement 0 1,773 3,829 4,653 1,864 12,119

0 13,494 46,077 40,481 17,490 117,542

within 26 to 30 years

Service charges 0 1,099 548 0 1,676 3,323

Interest 0 3,459 29 0 332 3,820

Repayment of liability 0 3,050 475 0 2,504 6,029

Planned lifecycle replacement 0 1,173 134 0 648 1,955

8,781 1,186 5,160 15,127

TOTAL PAYMENTS DUE 248,834 67,393 202,615 223,112 84,280 826,234

Page 97



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

80

39. LONG TERM CONTRACTS

a) Leisure Centre Management
The Council has a Public Private Partnership (PPP) investment contract for the management of three of
its five leisure facilities (Bridge Leisure Centre, Ladywell Arena and the Wavelengths Leisure Centre) with
Parkwood. The arrangement includes investment, totalling £2.7m over the life of the contract, to upgrade
and maintain the facilities. The contract commenced in October 2001 and runs until October 2011.
However, due to the extension of the Wavelengths Leisure Centre and Library in August 2008 to include
a new 25m pool and changing areas, a variation was agreed to manage the extended facility. The total
payment under the revised contract in 2010/11 was £1.44m (£1.33m in 2009/10).

The two remaining centres were run under management only contracts which were due to expire on the
14 October 2006. The Forest Hill Pools contract was allowed to expire on its due date but was still
managed under an extension contract until 2009 to enable the site to be maintained and secured. The
Ladywell Leisure Centre contract was due to expire in April 2010 but a further Variation was secured to
allow the contract to be extended until October 2011 to bring it in line with the existing Parkwood
Contract. The total payment for these contracts in 2010/11 was £0.499m (£0.675m in 2009/10).

b) Parks and Open Spaces
The Council entered into a new 10 year Green Space Contract with Glendale Grounds Management on
1

st
March 2010. The contract has a 5 year break clause and a value of just under £4m per annum which

includes the London Living Wage allocation. The contract covers parks and open spaces, highways
enclosure and housing grounds maintenance on Lewisham homes sites. There is no investment element
to this contract.

c) Networks and Telecommunications and Primary ICT Services
The contract with SunGard Public Sector for the provision of ICT services expired on 31 March 2011. The
Council is now engaged with Capita in a joint contract with Bromley Council to cover these services,
which is for a period of up to 9 years, beginning on 1 April 2011.

d) Schools’ ICT Framework
As part of the Building Schools for the Future programme, an ICT Framework agreement was signed in
December 2007 for the provision of interim and full ICT managed service provision for secondary schools
in the Borough over a period of 10 years. Capital investment in ICT equipment for 2010/11 was £1.01m
(£2.54m in 2009/10 and £3.95 in 2008/09), with the total estimated capital expenditure over the life of the
contract to be just under £20m. The revenue implications of the ICT managed service are being met by
the individual schools.

40. TERMINATION BENEFITS

The government’s strategy to reduce the national deficit over the lifetime of this Parliament princi pally
affects the council’s future funding plans, but has had some direct effects on the 2010/11 accounts.
A sum of £7.3m for termination of employment costs, affecting 285 employees, has been recognised in
the accounts as the council has implemented savings and staff reductions in response to the new funding
climate. This sum includes payments of £1.2m to the Pension Fund in respect of employees who have
been granted early access to their pensions. The costs of termination benefits in 2009/10 was £1.4m.

41. PENSION SCHEMES ACCOUNTED FOR AS DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES

Teachers employed by the Council are members of the Teachers Pension Scheme, which is administered
by Capita on behalf of the Department for Education (DfE). The scheme provides benefits for teachers
upon their retirement with the Council making contributions to the scheme based on a percentage of
members pensionable pay. The scheme is unfunded and the DfE use a notional fund to set a national
employers contribution rate which is paid by all employers.

Page 98



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

81

The Teachers Pensions Scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme. However, the assets and
liabilities of the Teachers’ scheme cannot reliably be identified at individual employer level and therefore
for the purposes of this Statement of Accounts it is accounted for on the same basis as a defined
contribution scheme.

In 2010/11 the Council paid £12.2m to the DfE in respect of teachers’ pension costs (£11.9m in 2009/10).
This represented 14.1% of pensionable pay between April 2010 and March 2011.

The authority is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early retirement outside
of the terms of the Teachers’ scheme. These benefits are fully accrued in the pensions liability shown in
Note 42 below.

42. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES

a) Participation in pensions schemes

The Council offers retirement benefits as part of the terms and conditions of staff employment. Although
these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council is committed to making
these payments, and they therefore are required to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their
future entitlement.

The Council makes contributions on behalf of its employees to two pension schemes:

(i) the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered locally by the Council. This is a defined
benefit final salary scheme, meaning that both the Council and the employees pay contributions into a
fund, calculated at a level which is intended to balance the pensions liabilities with inves tment assets.

(ii) the London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA), which provides retirement benefits for former G reater
London Council (GLC) staff and operates in the same way as the LGPS.

b) Transactions relating to retirement benefits

In accordance with International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS19), the Council recognises the cost of
retirement benefits relating to the LGPS and LPFA in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However the charge which is
required against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year so the real cost of retirement
benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following
transactions have been made during the year in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
the Movement in Reserves Statement and the General Fund Balance:

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Local Government
Pension Scheme

LPFA

2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost of Services

Current Service Cost 25,577 13,528 572 457

Past Service Cost (126,186) 140 (5,599) 0

Curtailments and Settlements 660 1,906 0 28
Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure

Interest Cost 67,088 53,659 4,052 4,029

Expected Return on Scheme Assets (48,664) (30,856) (2,944) (1,963)

Total Retirement Benefits charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (81,525) 38,377 (3,919) 2,551

Page 99



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

82

Other charges to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

Actuarial Gains and (Losses) 169,898 (312,387) 21,323 (21,906)

Total Retirement Benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement 88,373 (274,010) 17,404 (19,355)

Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made for Retirement
Benefits to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services 81,525 (38,377) 3,919 (2,551)

Actual amount charged against General Fund
and HRA Balances for pensions in the year:

Employers' contributions payable to scheme 29,852 29,172 710 856

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement at 31

st
March 2011 is a loss of £277.771m (£265.673m for the LGPS and

£12.098m for the LPFA).

c) Assets and Liabilities in relation to Retirement Benefits

The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the authority at 31 March 2 011
are shown in the following tables detailing a reconciliation of opening and closing balances. It should be
noted that the valuation of the assets was based on December 2010 data and may differ from the final
valuation shown in the Pension Fund Accounts.

Reconciliation of Present Value of the
Scheme Liabilities

Local Government
Pension Scheme

LPFA

31 Mar 11 31 Mar 10 31 Mar 11 31 Mar 10

£000 £000 £000 £000

Opening Scheme Liabilities 1,319,354 793,449 86,181 59,938

Adjustments relating to previous year 0 (11,558) 0 0

Lewisham Homes FRS17 Indemnity 0 59,726 0 0

Current Service Cost 25,577 13,528 572 457

Interest Cost 67,088 53,659 4,052 4,029

Contributions by Members 8,376 8,301 139 172

Actuarial Losses/(Gains) (194,632) 434,334 (11,474) 25,332

Past Service Costs (126,186) 140 (5,599) 0

Losses on Curtailments 660 1,906 0 28

Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements 0 0 0 0

Estimated Unfunded Benefits Paid (5,085) (4,783) (256) (257)

Estimated Benefits Paid (34,047) (29,348) (4,131) (3,518)

Closing Scheme Liabilities 1,061,105 1,319,354 69,484 86,181

Page 100



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

83

Reconciliation of Fair Value of the Scheme
Assets

Local Government
Pension Scheme

LPFA

31 Mar 11 31 Mar 10 31 Mar 11 31 Mar 10

£000 £000 £000 £000

Opening Fair Value of Scheme Assets 686,418 485,433 49,863 47,221

Adjustments relating to previous year 0 (12,363) 0 0

Lewisham Homes FRS17 Indemnity 0 41,141 0 0

Expected Return on Assets 48,604 30,856 2,944 1,963

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) (24,734) 138,009 9,849 3,426

Contributions by the employer 24,767 24,389 454 599

Contributions by members 8,376 8,301 139 172

Contributions in respect of Unfunded Benefits 5,085 4,783 256 257

Benefits Paid (34,047) (29,348) (4,131) (3,518)

Unfunded Benefits Paid (5,085) (4,783) (256) (257)

Assets Distributed on Settlements 0 0 0 0

Closing Fair Value of Scheme Assets 709,444 686,418 59,118 49,863

The actual return on scheme assets in 2010/11 showed a gain of £43.822m for the LGPS (gain of
£168.865m for 2009/10) and a gain of £3.445m for the LPFA (gain of £5.389m for 2009/10).

d) Scheme History

Scheme History

2010/11 2009/10 2008/09 2007/08 2006/07

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Local Government Pension Scheme

Fair Value of Scheme Assets 709,444 686,418 485,433 635,822 722,000

Present Value of Scheme Liabilities
(1,061,10

5)
(1,319,35

4) (793,449) (812,380) (939,600)

Surplus/Deficit (351,661) (632,936) (308,016) (176,558) (217,600)

LPFA

Fair Value of Scheme Assets 59,118 49,863 47,221 54,611 53,420

Present Value of Scheme Liabilities (69,484) (86,181) (59,938) (62,474) (71,797)

Surplus/Deficit (10,366) (36,318) (12,717) (7,863) (18,377)

Total Liability (362,027) (669,254) (320,733) (184,421) (235,977)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay retirement
benefits. Whilst the total liability of £362m has a significant impact on the net worth of the authority as
recorded in the balance sheet, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial
position of the authority remains healthy. The deficit will be made good by increased contributions over
the remaining working life of employees (ie before the payments become due), as assessed by the
scheme actuary. Finance is only required to fund the payment of discretionary benefits when they are
actually paid to pensioners.

The total contributions expected to be made to the LGPS by the Council in the year to 31 March 2012 are
£25.1m. The total expected contributions to the LPFA in the year to 31 March 2012 are £1.0m.

Page 101



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

84

e) Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary
levels etc. The liabilities have been assessed by independent firms of actuaries (the LGPS by Hymans
Robertson and the LPFA by Barnett Waddingham), based on their latest triennial valuations as at 31st
March 2010.

The main assumptions used in the valuations are:

Local Government
Pension Scheme

LPFA

2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10

Expected rate of return on scheme assets

Equities 7.5% 7.8% 7.2% 7.3%

Bonds 4.9% 5.0% - -

Property 5.5% 5.8% - -

Target Return Portfolio - - 5.0% 5.0%

Cash 4.6% 4.8% 3.0% 3.0%

Cashflow Matching - - 4.4% 4.5%

Rate of Inflation – CPI 2.8% - 2.7% -

Rate of Inflation – RPI 3.6% 3.8% 3.5% 3.9%

Salary Increase Rate * 5.1% 5.3% 4.5% 5.4%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 5.5% 5.5% 5.5% 5.5%

Mortality assumptions

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners

Men 21.0yrs 20.8yrs 20.0yrs 21.0yrs

Women 23.8yrs 24.1yrs 22.9yrs 23.4yrs

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners

Men 22.9yrs 22.3yrs 22.0yrs 22.0yrs

Women 25.7yrs 25.7yrs 24.9yrs 24.2yrs

* Note – The salary increase assumed for the year to 31
st

March 2012 is 1%, thereafter as shown in table.

Assets are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments, and consist of the following:

Fair Value of Total
Scheme Assets

Local Government Pension
Scheme

LPFA

2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10

% £000 £000 % £000 £000

Equities 74.0 524,989 514,814 12.0 7,094 5,485

Bonds 16.0 113,511 116,691 - - -

Property 9.0 63,850 48,049 - - -

Target Return Portfolio - - - 54.0 31,924 26,926

Cash 1.0 7,094 6,864 (1.0) (591) (1,496)

Cashflow Matching - - - 35.0 20,691 18,948

Total Value of Assets 100.0 709,444 686,418 100.0 59,118 49,863

Page 102



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

85

f) History of Experience Gains and Losses

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in the years 2006/07 to 2010/11
can be analysed into the following categories, shown also as a percentage of assets or liabilities as at 31
March of that year.

Experience Gains and Losses

2010/11 2009/10 2008/09 2007/08 2006/07

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Local Government Pension Scheme

Experience Gains/(Losses) on Assets (24,734) 138,009 (199,461) (136,900) 8,400

As a percentage of Assets (3.5%) 21.4% (25.1%) (16.9%) 0.9%

Experience Gains/(Losses) on Liabilities 148,890 (2,015) 135 36,809 900

As a percentage of Liabilities 14.0% (0.2%) 0.0% 5.8% 0.1%

LPFA

Experience Gains/(Losses) on Assets 9,849 3,426 (7,825) 1,512 1

As a percentage of Assets 16.7% 6.9% (16.6%) 2.8% 0.0%

Experience Gains/(Losses) on Liabilities 763 633 (11) 5,098 86

As a percentage of Liabilities 1.1% 0.7% 0.0% (8.2%) (0.1%)

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Council has the following Contingent Liabilities as at the date of the approval of the Accounts:

a) The Council wholly owns Lewisham Homes, which is an arms-length management organisation
(ALMO) who are responsible for managing and providing housing related services for the Council. In the
event that they cease to be a “going concern”, all their assets and liabilities would revert to the Council,
with the Council being responsible for any net liability. Since the 2010/11 draft accounts of Lewisham
Homes show that they made a surplus and that they are a going concern, it is appropriate that this
indemnity is disclosed as a contingent liability, rather than raise a provision in the Council’s accounts. It is
not possible to quantify the extent of the costs that may result from this event happening.

b) The ending of the Connexions contract is subject potentially to legal challenge. The Council has taken
on staff related to the NEETS reduction strategy engaged previously under the Babcock contract and the
costs of those staff is built into the allocations. There are a further 11 staff who Babcock argue should be
subject to TUPE transfer

44. CONTINGENT ASSETS

A contingent asset is an item of income that is likely but not certain and is subject to a further event or
decision. At the date of approval of the accounts the Council has no contingent assets.

Page 103



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

86

45. TRUST FUNDS

The Council acts as a trustee for other funds which are not included in the Balance Sheet.

Balance

31/03/2009

Movement

in 09/10

Balance

31/03/2010

Movement

in 10/11

Balance

31/03/2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Children and Young People 26 1 27 1 28

Community Services 22 7 29 (6) 23

Cemeteries Graves Maintenance 12 (1) 11 11 22

Comforts Fund 1 0 1 0 1

Total Trust Funds 61 7 68 6 74

Interest on trust funds is credited annually at the average rate earned on the Council’s revenue balances.
The fund balances as at 31 March 2011 were invested as follows:

2009/10 2010/11

£000 £000

Cash 41 47

External investments (at market value) 27 27

Total Trust Funds 68 74

Page 104



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

87

SECTION 4a

HOUSING
REVENUE
ACCOUNT

2010/11

Page 105



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

88

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

This account is maintained in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989 to show all income and expenditure relating to the Council’s responsibilities as landlord of dwellings
and associated property.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000 Note

INCOME

Gross rent - dwellings 65,138 70,144 1

- other housing property 3,520 3,319 1

Charges for services and facilities 8,683 8,821 1

Housing subsidy - housing element 15,527 15,056 2

Contribution towards expenditure 6,048 4,914 4

Overhanging debt grant 41,537 7,881

Total Income 140,453 110,135

EXPENDITURE

Supervision & management - General expenses 33,897 36,441 5

- Special expenses 6,380 6,823 6

Repairs and maintenance 20,561 21,977 7

Repairs and Maintenance funded by Major Repairs Allowance 13,151 13,608 14/16

Rent, rates and other charges 379 858 8

Rent Rebate Subsidy Shortfall 850 1,514 3

Contribution to doubtful debt provision 1,338 476 9

Depreciation - dwellings 18,010 26,023 11

- other housing assets 994 1,025 11

Impairment of fixed assets 324,313 36,239 12

Debt management expenses 48 58

Total Expenditure 419,921 145,042

Net Cost of Services as included in the Council's Income and

Expenditure Account 279,468 34,907

HRA services share of CDC 140 190

HRA share of other amounts included in the whole authority net cost

of services but not allocated to specific services 0 0

Net Cost of HRA Services 279,608 35,097

HRA share of the operating income and expenditure included in

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(Gain) / loss on sale of HRA fixed assets (1,047) 4,197

Interest payable and similar charges 17,046 15,985 13

Interest and investment income (213) (131)

Pension interest cost and expected return on pension assets (29) (137) 18

Deficit for the year on HRA services 295,365 55,011

Page 106



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

89

MOVEMENT ON HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT RESERVES STATEMENT

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous year 9,760 12,094

Surplus of (deficit) for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure Statement (295,365) (55,285)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under statute 277,027 26,695

Net increase or (decrease) before transfers to or from reserves (18,338) (28,590)

Transfers (to) or from reserves 18,486 26,257

Increase or (decrease) in year on the HRA 148 (2,333)

Balance on the HRA at the end of the current year 9,908 9,760

Page 107



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

90

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

1. GROSS RENT OF DWELLINGS

This is the total rent collectable for the year after allowance is made for empty property. At 31 March
2011, 2.43% of lettable property was empty (2.7% at 31 March 2010). These figures for empty property
exclude accommodation for the homeless and dwellings designated for sale, major works and
improvements. Average rents were £77.82 in 2010/11 and £76.79 per week In 2009/10.

Service charges have been disaggregated from rents and are shown under charges for services and
facilities.

a) Housing stock

The Council was responsible for managing 15,195 dwellings as at 31 March 2011 (17,893 as at 31 March
2010).

During the year one stock transfer has taken place: 2,427 flats and houses in the Chrysalis (Forest Hill,
Rushey Green and Catford) area were transferred to London and Quadrant Housing Association.

The stock was made up as follows:

2010/11 2009/10

Nos. Nos.

Houses/Bungalows 2,447 3,216

Flats/Maisonettes 12,748 14,677

Stock at 31 March 15,195 17,893

The changes in stock can be summarised as follows:

2010/11 2009/10

Nos. Nos.

Stock at 1 April 17,893 18,437

Less Sales, Demolitions, etc. (271) (78)

Less Stock Transfers (2,427) (475)

Add Re-purchases, Conversions etc. 0 9

Stock at 31 March 15,195 17,893

b) Rent arrears

2010/11 2009/10

£'000 £'000

Arrears due from - current tenants 2,931 3,229

- former tenants 3,071 3,028

Total Arrears 6,002 6,257

9.2% 8.9%Total Arrears as % of Gross Rent of Dwellings Due

The arrears shown in this note exclude water charges, heating charges and all other charges collected as
part of tenants' rent. Housing rent represents 93% of the total collectable from tenants.

Page 108



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

91

c) Rent – other housing property

2010/11 2009/10

£'000 £'000

Aerial Sites 313 309

Garage rents 750 708

Reception Hostels 1,324 1,165

Commercial property rent 1,065 1,065

Ground Rents 68 72

Total Other Rents & Charges 3,520 3,319

d) Charges for services and facilities (including Heating and Services Charges to Tenants and
leaseholders).

Between 2003 and 2005, service charges for caretaking, grounds maintenance, communal lighting and
the Lewisham Tenants’ Levy were separated from rent and charged separately to tenants. In 2010/11
charges for bulk household waste removal and window cleaning were introduced.
The average tenants’ service charge was £5.75 in 2010/11 (£4.49 in 2009/10).

2010/11 2009/10

£'000 £'000

Heating Charges 987 942

Leasehold Service Charges 3,558 3,780

Tenants Service Charges 4,138 4,099

Total Charges for Services and Facilities 8,683 8,821

2. GOVERNMENT HOUSING EXCHEQUER SUBSIDY

This is a Government grant towards the net cost of management and maintenance and financing costs
(i.e. capital financing, lease costs and deferred interest payments) after allowing for an assumed rent
increase. The subsidy includes the major repairs allowance, which represents the Government's estimate
of the long-term average amount of capital spending required to maintain the housing stock in its present
condition. The Subsidy is made up of the following elements:

2010/11 2009/10

£'000 £'000

Management Allowance 17,116 19,010

Maintenance Allowance 23,981 26,889

Major Repairs Allowance 13,670 15,788

Charges for Capital 14,888 17,156

Other Reckonable Expenditure 80 264

PFI Credit 10,353 10,353

Guideline Rent Income (64,539) (74,367)

Interest on Receipts (22) (37)

Total Housing Element of Subsidy 15,527 15,056

Page 109



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

92

3. REBATES

Assistance with rents is available under the Housing benefits scheme for those on low income.
Approximately 60% of Council tenants received help under this scheme as at 31 March 2011 (60% as at
31 March 2010). The scheme is administered by the Council. Rent rebates are chargeable to the
General Fund and the corresponding subsidy is credited to General Fund.

Subsidy on rent rebates is subject to capping as the Council's rent is in excess of the Government's limit
for subsidy on rebates, the shortfall on subsidy due to overpayments is now met by the General Fund.
The cost of rebates over the subsidy limit is recharged back to the HRA. Rent rebate administration costs
are fully chargeable to general fund.

The costs, income and rebates over limitation charged back to the HRA are shown below:

2010/11 2009/10

£'000 £'000

Rent Rebates Given (GF) 42,717 45,486

Subsidy Received on Rebates (GF) (41,867) (43,972)

Net cost to council 850 1,514

Net cost to the HRA

Shortfall on limitation 850 1,514

Net cost to GF

Shortfall on overpayments 0 0

4. OTHER INCOME

2010/11 2009/10

£'000 £'000

Commission on insurance and water rates 712 736

Court costs 102 83

Inter-borough nominations 0 43

Hsg Mgt Contract Retentions 0 76

Government grants 439 462

Recharges of repairs 3,926 2,801

Professional fees 36 36

Recharge to capital receipts 429 278

Hostels: Heat, Light and Water Charges 239 242

Other miscellaneous income 165 157

Total Other Income 6,048 4,914

5. SUPERVISION AND MANAGEMENT – GENERAL EXPENSES

This includes the provision of services to all tenants including rent collection and accounting, rent arrears
recovery, tenancy application and lettings, finance and administration, policy and management functions.

Page 110



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

93

6. SUPERVISION AND MANAGEMENT - SPECIAL EXPENSES

This includes the provision of services applicable to particular tenants including central heating, metered
energy supplies, maintenance of grounds, communal lighting, lifts and ancillary services.

7. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

This includes day-to-day repairs to Council housing stock and cyclical external decoration. Void properties
prior to re-letting and certain tenants' properties are eligible for internal decoration. Gross repairs and
maintenance expenditure for 2010/11 was £20.56m (2009/10 - £21.98m).

8. RENT, RATES AND OTHER CHARGES

Expenditure relating to business rates, ground rents and lease rents payable.

9. CONTRIBUTIONS TO IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE (PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS)

A contribution of £1.338m (2009/10 - £0.476m) was transferred from the HRA to an impairment allowance
to meet doubtful debts. Details of the accumulated impairment allowance are as follows:

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Housing tenants 5,349 5,661

Leaseholders 2,453 2,230

Commercial properties, miscellaneous debts 618 361

Total Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 8,420 8,252

10. NON CURRENT ASSETS

The following table gives details of the valuation of housing assets:

31/03/11 31/03/10

£000 £000

Operational Assets:

Dwellings 625,215 924,799

Other Land and Buildings 39,826 38,431

Infrastructure 119 124

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 2,139 1,356

Total Operational Assets 667,299 964,710

Investment Properties 19,479 22,825

Total Housing Assets 686,778 987,535

Valuation of Council dwellings

Existing use value - social housing 625,215 924,799

Vacant possession value 2,500,860 2,499,457

Page 111



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

94

The difference between the vacant possession value and the value of dwellings in their existing use as
social housing reflects the economic cost to the council (and the Government) of providing housing at less
than open market rents.

The revaluations of council dwellings in 2010/11 resulted in a decrease of £300m in the value of the stock
as at 31/03/11. Additional impairments resulted from capital expenditure which did not technically
increase the value of the assets.

11. DEPRECIATION

The total charge for depreciation of housing assets is as follows:

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Operational Assets:

Dwellings 18,010 27,400

Govt Grants Deferred 0 (1,377)

Total Depreciation Dwellings 18,010 26,023

Other Land and Buildings 994 1,037

Govt Grants Deferred 0 (12)

Total Depreciation Other land and buildings 994 1,025

Total Operational Assets 19,004 27,048

Non-operational assets 0 0

Total Housing Assets 19,004 27,048

12. AMORTISATON OF PREMIUMS AND DISCOUNTS

Included in the “Interest payable and similar charges” line is the cost to the HRA of loan redemption
premiums and income from loan redemption discounts which are amortised over 10 years.

13. HOUSING CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The reduction in the level of capital expenditure from 2009/10 (£8.7m) to 2010/11 (£4.3m) is due to the
reclassifying of some expenditure as revenue instead of capital. This is required under the IFRS
component accounting rules, and was also actioned last year. Expenditure that cannot be capitalised as a
component or does not add value to an existing building has to be charged to revenue. This amount was
fully funded from the Major Repairs Reserve.

Total capital receipts from the disposal of housing assets were £1.1m in 2010/11 (£2.35m in 2009/10) of
which £0.3m (£0.62m in 2009/10) were usable capital receipts.

The following table shows total capital expenditure on housing assets and how it was financed:

Page 112



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

95

2010/11 2009/10

£'000 £'000

Capital expenditure on housing 4,327 8,736

Financed by:

Government Supported Borrowing 2,700 2,600

Capital Grants 0 1,243

Capital Receipts 0 1,967

Major Repairs Reserve 1,627 2,926

Total Capital Expenditure Financed 4,327 8,736

14. HRA SET-ASIDE (CONTRIBUTION TO MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION)

Under the current Capital Finance system, there is no requirement to repay principal on housing debt. The
total housing debt at 31 March 2011 was £246m (£246m as at 31 March 2010).

15. MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE

The movements on the Major Repairs Reserve are as follows:

2010/11 2009/10

£'000 £'000

Balance as at 1 April (4,320) (1,310)

Transferred in (depreciation dwellings) (19,004) (28,437)

Financing of capital expenditure on housing assets 1,627 2,926

Financing Revenue MRP repairs 13,151 9,853

Transfer to the HRA 5,335 12,648

Balance as at 31 March (3,211) (4,320)

16. MOVEMENT IN HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT RESERVES AND BALANCES

Balance at Transfers in Transfers out Balance at

31/03/2010 31/03/2011

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-earmarked Balance 0 0 0 0

Property and Stock Related Reserves 6,935 582 780 6,737

Staff Related Reserves 300 0 0 300

Other Earmarked Reserves 2,526 346 0 2,872

Total 9,761 928 780 9,909

Page 113



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Housing Revenue Account

96

Balance at Transfers in Transfers out Balance at

31/03/2009 31/03/2010

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-earmarked Balance 703 0 703 0

Property and Stock Related Reserves 7,604 1,114 1,783 6,935

Staff Related Reserves 1,010 300 1,010 300

Other Earmarked Reserves 2,777 366 617 2,526

Total 12,094 1,780 4,113 9,761

17. PENSIONS COSTS – IAS 19

In accordance with IAS 19, Lewisham recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the net cost of services
when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.
However, the cost to the HRA is based on the amounts payable in the year, so the accrued cost of
retirement benefits is reversed out of the HRA .

Page 114



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Collection Fund

97

SECTION 4b

COLLECTION
FUND

2010/11

Page 115



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Collection Fund

98

THE COLLECTION FUND

Lewisham Council is a designated ‘billing’ authority and as such is required by statute to maintain a
separate Collection Fund. The accounts of the Collection Fund are prepared on an accruals basis and
show the transactions relating to both the Council Tax and the National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR).
The account also shows how the amount collected has been distributed to the Council’s General Fund
and the Greater London Authority in respect of Council Tax and to the Government in respect of NNDR.
The costs of collecting local taxes are accounted for in the General Fund as part of the Council's own
budget. An allowance towards the cost of collecting NNDR (calculated on a formula basis) is deducted
from the monies paid to the Government and transferred to the General Fund.
The Council’s share of the year end balances of the Collection Fund are included in the Council’s Balance
Sheet and its share of the transactions are included in the Council’s Cash Flow Statement.

COLLECTION FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000 Note

INCOME

Income from Council Tax (net) 92,619 94,778 3

Transfers from General Fund:

- Council Tax Benefits 28,359 27,109

Income from National Non-Domestic Rates (net) 47,040 44,873 4

TOTAL INCOME 168,018 166,760

EXPENDITURE

Precepts and Demands upon the Collection Fund

- London Borough of Lewisham 91,184 90,610

- Greater London Authority 27,109 26,939

National Non-Domestic Rates

- Payment to National Pool 46,163 43,784 4

- Cost of Collection Allowance 329 328 4

Bad and Doubtful Debts

- Net adjustment to Impairment Allowance (Council Tax) 1,876 3,512 5

- Net adjustment to Impairment Allowance (NNDR) 246 345 5

- Amounts Written Off (Council Tax) 745 874

- Amounts Written Off (NNDR) 302 416 4

Contributions from previous year's Collection Fund Surplus

- London Borough of Lewisham 52 50

- Greater London Authority 15 14

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 168,021 166,872

DEFICIT / (SURPLUS) FOR THE YEAR 3 112

(SURPLUS) AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR (32) (144)

FUND (SURPLUS) AT THE END OF THE YEAR (29) (32)

COLLECTION FUND BALANCE SPLIT INTO ITS ATTRIBUTABLE PARTS

Surplus as

at 31/03/09

Deficit for

2009/10

Surplus as

at 31/03/10

Deficit for

2010/11

Surplus as

at 31/03/11
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

London Borough of Lewisham (111) 86 (25) 3 (22)

Greater London Authority (33) 26 (7) 0 (7)

(144) 112 (32) 3 (29)

Page 116



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Collection Fund

99

NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT

1. COLLECTION FUND SURPLUS OR DEFICIT

An initial forecast is made in January each year of the estimated Collection Fund balance at the end of

the financial year. This estimated surplus or deficit is then distributed to or recovered from the Council

and the GLA in the following year in proportion to their respective annual demands made on the Fund.

Any difference between the estimated and actual year end balance on the Fund is taken into account as

part of the forecast to be made of the Fund’s balance during the following financial year.

2. THE COUNCIL TAX BASE AND THE “BAND D” EQUIVALENT

The annual budget process requires that each authority determines its own ‘Band D' tax charge by

dividing its own budget requirement by the respective tax base for the financial year. The ‘Band D’ tax

calculated forms the basis of the charge for all properties. Properties fall into one of eight valuation bands

based on market values at 1st April 1991. Those that fall in other valuation bands pay a proportion of the

‘Band D’ tax charge according to its banding and the band proportion.

The tax base used in setting the council tax is set by the end of January for the following financial year. It

is based on the actual number of dwellings on the Valuation List that fall within each valuation band. The

total in each band is adjusted for exemptions, single person occupancy discounts, discounts for second

homes and long term empty properties, disabled band relief and new properties. The total for each band

is then expressed as a “Band D” equivalent number by multiplying the resulting total by the relevant band

proportion. The tax base for both 2010/11 and 2009/10 assumed a collection rate of 96.25%.

The table below sets out the tax base calculation for 2010/11;

Council Band Band D Council Band D Council

Tax Property Actual Adjusted D Equivalents Tax Equivalents Tax

Band Value Number Number Ratio as per Ratio Charge as per Ratio Charge

£000 (1) (2) £ £

A uo to 40 7,071 5,466 6/9 3,643 901.29 3,581 901.29

B 40 - 52 31,721 25,597 7/9 19,908 1,051.50 19,771 1,051.50

C 52 - 68 40,840 34,770 8/9 30,907 1,201.73 30,614 1,201.73

D 68 - 88 25,123 22,407 1 22,407 1,351.93 22,308 1,351.93

E 88 - 120 7,194 6,575 11/9 8,036 1,652.36 8,050 1,652.36

F 120 - 160 2,761 2,561 13/9 3,700 1,952.79 3,714 1,952.79

G 160 - 320 1,292 1,205 15/9 2,008 2,253.22 2,008 2,253.22

H over 320 177 150 18/9 300.0 2,703.86 290.5 2,703.86

Totals 116,179 98,731 90,909.0 90,336.5

0 0

90,909.0 90,336.5

96.25% 96.25%

87,500 86,949

(1) Total number of dwellings as per Valuation Officer's List

(2) Total number of dwellings after allowing for Discounts, Exemptions and Other Adjustments

2010/11 2009/102010/11

Add: Contributions in lieu

Total Band D equivalents

Estimated Collection Rate

NET COUNCIL TAX BASE

No.of Properties

3. COUNCIL TAX INCOME

Page 117



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Collection Fund

100

2009/10

£000 £000 £000

Gross Council Tax Income Due 143,602 143,028

Less: Adjustments to charge 604 561

Exemptions (5,969) (5,943)

Disabled Relief (74) (79)

Discounts (15,980) (15,680)

(21,419) (21,141)

Total Due from Council Tax payers 122,183 121,887

Transfers from General Fund for Council Tax Benefits (28,359) (27,109)

Adjustment to Charge (1,205) 0

Net amount of Council Tax Receivable 92,619 94,778

2010/11

4. NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES

The Council is responsible for collecting the National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) (often referred to as
Business Rates) which are payable within its area. The amount payable is based upon the rateable value
of commercial properties multiplied by the NNDR multiplier, which is set annually by the Government. The
amount due is paid over to the Government and redistributed back to councils via the formula grant
mechanism. The Council’s share of this redistributed money is paid into the General Fund.

2010/11 2009/10

£m £m

Non-Domestic Rateable Value 133.8 118.1

pence pence

National Non-Domestic Rate Multiplier 41.4 48.5

National Non-Domestic Rate Multiplier (Small Business) 40.7 48.1

2009/10

£000 £000 £000

Gross NNDR Collectable (after voids and exemptions) 51,717 48,985

Reductions and Relief:

Mandatory Relief (3,430) (4,035)

Discretionary Relief (165) (152)

Interest on Refunds and Other Adjustments (1,082) (4,677) 75

Total Receivable from Business Rates 47,040 44,873

Irrecoverable Amounts Written Off (302) (416)

Net Adjustment to Impairment Allowance (246) (345)

Net Amount Collectable from Business Ratepayers 46,492 44,112

Cost of Collection Allowance transfer (329) (328)

Amount Payable to NNDR Pool 46,163 43,784

2010/11

5. COLLECTION FUND ARREARS AND IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE (BAD DEBT PROVISION)

Page 118



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Collection Fund

101

a) Council Tax

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

Council Tax Arrears 29,890 29,428

Impairment Allowance (27,174) (25,298)

As a Percentage of Arrears 90.9% 86.0%

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Age of Arrears £000 % £000 %

Year of Accounts 6,284 21 8,048 27

Under 2 Years old 5,062 17 5,176 18

Under 3 Years old 4,183 14 4,100 14

Under 5 Years old 6,330 21 5,524 19

Over 5 Years old 8,031 27 6,580 22

Total 29,890 100 29,428 100

2010/11 2009/10

Income from court costs and penalties (and the associated debtors provision) as a result of arrears

recovery action are accounted for in the General Fund. As at 31 March 2011, these amounted to £5.24m

(£3.12m at 31 March 2010) with an accumulated impairment allowance totalling £4.77m or 87% (£2.72m

or 87% at 31 March 2010).

b) National Non-Domestic Rates

31/03/2011 31/03/2010

£000 £000

NNDR Arrears 3,167 2,922

Impairment Allowance (974) (728)

As a Percentage of Arrears 30.8% 24.9%

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Age of Arrears £000 % £000 %

Year of Accounts 1,883 59 2,036 70

Under 2 Years old 858 27 517 18

Under 3 Years old 269 8 206 7

Under 5 Years old 133 4 140 5

Over 5 Years old 24 1 23 1

Total 3,167 100 2,922 100

2010/11 2009/10

Income from court costs and penalties (and the associated debtors provision) as a result of arrears

recovery action are accounted for in the General Fund. As at 31 March 2011, these amounted to

£0.049m (£0.062m at 31 March 2010) with an accumulated impairment allowance totalling £0.044m or

90% (£0.056m or 90% at 31 March 2010).

Page 119



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Collection Fund

102

Page 120



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

103

SECTION 5

PENSION FUND
ACCOUNTS

2010/11

Page 121



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

104

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

INTRODUCTION

The Pension Fund provides for the payment of benefits to London Borough of Lewisham employees and
former employees and admitted and scheduled bodies. These benefits include retirement allowances and
pensions payable to former employees and their dependants, lump sum death gratuities and special
short-term pensions. The Fund is financed by income from investments and contributions from
employees, the Council and other admitted and scheduled bodies.

ORGANISATION

The Fund is operated under various sets of regulations made under the Superannuation Act 1972. The
main sets of regulations are the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and
Contributions) Regulations 2007 and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration)
Regulations 2008.

Formal responsibility for investment management of the Pension Fund is delegated to the Council's
Pensions Investment Committee, which monitors the external investment managers. Each investment
manager has an individual performance target and benchmark tailored to balance the risk and return
appropriate to the fund. The investment managers also have to consider the Pensions Investment
Committee’s views on socially responsible investments. Details of this policy are contained in the
Statement of Investment Principles (see web address below).

A report on the Fund’s performance and topical developments is sent to all pensioners bi -annually. A
statement of the Fund’s corporate governance, funding strategy and investment principles can be found
on the authority’s website, at the following address:

“www.lewisham.gov.uk/CouncilAndDemocracy/Finances/PensionsDocuments.htm”

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Pension Fund Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 2010/11 CIPFA Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting. The 2010/11 Code states that the Pension Fund Accounts
should be prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards 26 Retirement Benefit Plans
except where interpretations or adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (No. 3) Regulations 2007 also requires
administering authorities in England and Wales to prepare a Pension Fund Annual Report which must
include the Fund Account and a Net Assets Statement with supporting notes prepared in accordance with
proper practices. The Code summarises the Pension Code and the minimum disclosure requirements.

The date for publishing the Pension Fund Annual Report is on or before 1 December the following year,
up to five months after a local authority must approve its Statement of Accounts. The Council will be
taking its Annual Report to its Pensions Investment Committee in order to comply with this deadline.

The Accounting Policies and the basis of preparation of the Accounts are shown below: -

(a) Basis of Preparation - The Accounts have been prepared on an accruals basis, i.e. income and
expenditure attributable to the financial year have been included, even where payment has not
actually been made or received. The only exception being Transfer Values which are prepared on
a cash basis. The financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other
benefits due after the period end; these are reported upon separately in the actuary’s report and
reflected in the income and expenditure account. The accounts are prepared on a going concern
basis for accounting purposes.

Page 122



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

105

(b) Investments - Investments in the Net Assets Statement are shown at market value based on bid
prices as required by the 2010/11 Local Authority Code and the IAS 26 Retirement Benefit Plans.
The market value of equity investments is based on the official closing data, in the main, with last
trade data being used in a small number of countries. Unit ised equities are quoted based on last
trade or official closing price. Northern Trust, the Fund’s custodian, sets out its pricing policies in
a document entitled “Asset pricing guidelines” which details its pricing process and sets out
preferred pricing sources and price types.

(c) Private equity investments are valued in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles, including FAS 157 which is consistent with the International Private Equity
and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines. These guidelines set out that all investments are
carried at fair value and they recommend methodologies for measurement.

(d) The Pension Fund’s Hedge Fund assets are held in the Jubilee Absolute Return Fund which is a
collective investment scheme structured as a protected cell of Jubilee Absolute Return Fund PCC
Limited, an open ended investment company listed on the Irish Stock Exchange. The Jubilee
Absolute Return Fund produces an official single-priced NAV and hence there are no bid-offer
prices for subscriptions or redemptions. The official single-priced NAV is produced on a monthly
basis by the independent administrator, HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) Limited (“HSBC”).

(e) Property - The Fund does not have any direct investments in property but does use a property
Fund of Funds manager, Schroders, to invest in pooled property funds. The Schroders funds are
all currently valued at least quarterly. The majority of property assets to which the fund has
exposure to are located in the UK. They are valued in accordance with the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors' Valuation Standards and are valued on the basis of their open market value
(OMV).

The only non UK fund is the Continental European Fund I. Its net asset value is derived from the
net asset values of the underlying funds. Like the UK, the value of the underlying assets are
assessed by professionally qualified valuers. Valuation practices will vary between countries
according to local Generally Accepted Accounting Practices. The frequency of independent
valuations does however vary. All the funds are independently valued on a rolling basis at least
annually.

(f) Contributions –there are seven employee contribution bands (revised annually in line with
inflation) ranging from 5.5% for members earning under £12,000 a year to 7.5% to members
earning over £75,000 a year. The employer’s contribution is reviewed every three years and is
determined as the rate necessary to ensure that the Fund is able to meet its long -term liabilities.
This is assessed at each triennial actuarial revaluation.

(g) Actuarial – The adequacy of the Fund's investments and contributions in relation to its overall and
future obligations is reviewed every three years by an actuary appointed by the Council. The
Council's Actuary, Hymans Robertson, assesses the Fund's assets and liabilities in accordance
with Regulation 77 of the Local Government Scheme Regulations 1997. The contribution rate
required for benefits accruing in future is assessed by considering the benefits which accrue over
the course of the three years to the next valuation. The valuation on the 31

st
March 2010 valued

the fund’s liabilities as £949 million (£840 million 2007) and the corresponding assets as £715
million (£734 million 2007) with a consequent deficit of £234 mil lion (£106 million 2007) and
funding level of 75.4% (87.4% 2007).

The valuation was based on the projected unit valuation method. This assesses the cost of
benefits accruing to existing members during the year following valuation and allowing for future
salary increases. The resulting contribution rate is adjusted to allow for any difference in the value
of accrued liabilities (allowing for future salary increases) and the market value of assets.

In order to value both liabilities which have accrued at the valuation date and those accruing in
respect of future service the actuary has assumed that the Fund’s assets will generate a return of
6.1% per annum (5.8% p.a. in 2007). The actuary set the employer contribution accordingly to
recover the deficit over future periods.

Page 123



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

106

The actuarial review carried out for 31 March 2010 resulted in an increase to the Council’s
contribution rate from 20% to 20.5% with effect from 1

st
April 2011 and annual increases of 0.5%

for the subsequent two years. The next actuarial valuation of the fund will have an effective date
of 1 April 2013, with new employer contribution rates taking effect from 2014/15.
The Actuary has calculated the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits to be
£1,044 million at the 31

st
March 2011 (£1,122 million 31

st
March 2010).

(h) Investment Management and Administration - paragraph 42 of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 permit the Council to charge the scheme's
administration costs to the Fund. A proportion of relevant Council officers' salaries, including
related on-costs, has been charged to the Fund on the basis of actual time spent on scheme
administration and investment-related business. The fees of the Fund's general investment
managers are charged on a quarterly basis and are generally calculated as a set percentage of
the market value funds under management as at the end of those quarters. The Council’s
administrative costs are shown in the Fund Account as part of expenditure.

(i) Foreign currency transactions are made using the WM/ Reuters exchange rate in the following
circumstances:

- Purchase and sales: the foreign exchange rate applicable on the day prior to
the trade date is used.

- Stock holdings: the converted foreign exchange rate is used at stock valuation
date.

- Dividend receipts: the rate applicable on the day prior to the date the dividend
is received is used.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

2010/11 Financial Year - Summary of Fund Value

Fund Managers have individual annual performance targets measured over rolling three-year periods net
of fees.

Fund Manager Assets Assets

Value

Proportion

of the Fund

Assets

Value

Proportion

of the Fund

2010/11 2010/11 2009/10 2009/10

£000 % £000 %

UBS Bonds 124,672 16.4% 123,300 17.2%

Alliance Bernstein Global Equities 177,416 23.3% 192,200 26.9%

RCM Global Equities incl

UK

169,067 22.2% 141,500 19.8%

Schroders Property Property 68,386 9.0% 60,800 8.5%

HarbourVest (Incl Legacy

Stock)

Private Equity 27,857 3.7% 21,100 3.0%

UBS passive equity UK Tracker Fund 125,728 16.5% 150,700 21.1%

Fauchier Hedge Fund of

Funds

22,054 2.9% 20,400 2.9%

Investec Commodities 40,059 5.3% 0 0.0%

M&G Credit 5,314 0.7% 0 0.0%

Securities Lending Securities Lending 150 0.0% 0 0.0%

LB Lewisham Cash and Net

Current Assets

-75 0.0% 5,100 0.7%

Total Fund 760,628 100.0% 715,100 100.0%

Page 124



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

107

FUND ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
ST

MARCH 2011

The Fund Account shows the surplus or deficit for the year.

See 2010/11 2009/10

note £000 £000

DEALINGS WITH MEMBERS, EMPLOYERS AND OTHERS

DIRECTLY INVOLVED WITH THE SCHEME

Contributions Receivable:

- from Employer 1 29,504 29,761

- from Employees 1 9,330 9,728

Transfer Values In 3,265 7,017

Other Income 0 2

Sub-Total: Income 42,100 46,508

Benefits Payable:

- Pensions 2 27,724 26,833

- Lump Sums: Retirement allowances 4,757 5,002

- Lump Sums: Death grants 535 583

Payments to and on account of leavers:

- Refunds of Contributions 1 4

- Transfer Values Out 8,210 3,453

Administrative and other expenses borne by the scheme 3 1,021 863

Sub-Total: Expenses 42,248 36,738

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS

Investment Income 4 11,381 12,158

Change in market value of investments (realised and unrealised) 36,637 175,590

Investment Expenses:

- Fund Managers’ Fees (1,649) (513)

- Tax on Dividends (739) (713)

Total Net Returns on Investments 45,630 186,522

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN THE FUND DURING YEAR 45,482 196,292

OPENING NET ASSETS OF THE FUND 715,146 518,854

CLOSING NET ASSETS OF THE FUND 760,628 715,146

(9,770)148Total Net (additions) withdrawals from Dealings with Scheme

Members

Page 125



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

108

NET ASSETS STATEMENT AS AT 31
ST

MARCH 2011

See 31 Mar 11 31 Mar 10

note £000 £000

INVESTMENT ASSETS

EQUITIES:

United Kingdom 162,087 33,237

Overseas 282,468 264,064

5 444,555 297,301

MANAGED FUNDS:-

Property 62,831 60,276

Equities 23,804 169,277

Fixed Interest 124,625 76,354

Index Linked 0 40,338

Hedge Fund of Funds 91,045 20,371

5 302,306 366,616

CASH DEPOSITS 8 13,332 8,143

DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Assets 6 17,486 0

Liabilities 6 (17,532) (175)

OTHER INVESTMENT BALANCES

Debtors in respect of investment transactions 7 3,333 38,666

Creditors in respect of investment transactions 7 (2,777) (573)

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 5 760,703 709,978

NET CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Debtors 7 547 700

Creditors 7 (663) (591)

Cash in Hand 8 41 5,059

TOTAL NET ASSETS 760,628 715,146

The Net Assets Statement shows the market value of the investments and other assets held by the

Pension Fund as at 31 March 2011.

Note: The Net Assets Statement explicitly does not take account of the liability to pay pensions or
benefits after the period end. This liability is included within the Council’s balance sheet.

Note: The indexed linked securities are part of unitised fixed interest holding and are included as part of
the Managed Funds Fixed Interest category. The Indexed linked element of the holding as at 31

st
March

2011 was £42.516 million.

Page 126



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

109

NOTES TO THE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

1. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVED

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Employer Contributions

Administering: Normal 24,950 24,027

Administering: Additional 0 1,523

Admitted: Normal 816 873

Scheduled 3,738 3,338

29,504 29,761

Employee Contributions

Administering 8,241 8,314

Admitted 206 271

Scheduled 883 1,143

9,330 9,728

2. BENEFITS PAYABLE

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Administering 16,642 15,613

Admitted 745 73

Scheduled 174 561

Dependants Pensions 1,225 1,248

Pensions Increases 8,938 9,338

27,724 26,833

3. ADMINISTRATION COSTS

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Administration 466 583

Advisory Costs (excl Audit Fees) 515 242

External Audit Fees 35 38

Bank Charges 5 0

1021 863

4. INVESTMENT INCOME

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Cash 150 40

Equity 6,109 6,958

Fixed Interest 2,636 2,869

Managed Funds (incl Property) 2,487 2,284

Securities Lending 37 0

Other (38) 7

11,381 12,158

Page 127



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

110

5. INVESTMENT ANALYSIS

The only (non UK Government) security forming over 5% of the portfolio is an investment in a UBS UK
Equity Tracker pooled fund. This pooled fund is sufficiently diversified to ensure that overall exposure to a
single UK security exceeding 5% will not occur.

An analysis of investment movements is set out below:

INVESTMENTS

Value at

31 March

2010

Purchases

at Cost

Sales

Proceeds

Capital

Changes / Re-

classification

Change in

Market Value

and Other

Value at

31 March

2011
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

UK Equities 33,237 10,248 (12,197) 119,164 11,635 162,087

Global Equities 264,064 135,499 (124,997) (162) 8,064 282,468

Other Managed Funds 0

Equities 169,277 3,171 (10,635) (142,595) 4,586 23,804

Property 60,276 3,908 (2,380) 272 755 62,831

Fixed Interest Securities 76,354 2,594 (1,726) 40,338 7,065 124,625

Index Linked Securities 40,338 0 0 (40,338) 0 0

Other 20,371 43,880 (35) 22,403 4,426 91,045

Derivatives (175) 0 0 14 116 (45)

663,742 199,300 (151,970) (904) 36,647 746,815

Cash Deposits 8,143 13,332

Other Investment Balances 38,093 556
Total Investments 709,978 760,703

(The amounts in respect of derivative payments and receipts represent the cost at inceptio n of the
contract)

Equity holdings are further analysed as follows

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

UK EQUITY

- listed 162,087 33,192

- unlisted 0 45

TOTAL UK EQUITY 162,087 33,237

OVERSEAS EQUITY

- listed 282,468 264,064

TOTAL EQUITY INVESTMENTS 444,555 297,301

EQUITY MANAGED FUNDS

Unit Trust: UK Equities 23,804 151,941

Unit Trust: Overseas Equities 0 17,336

TOTAL EQUITY MANAGED FUNDS 23,804 169,277

TOTAL EQUITY INVESTMENTS 468,359 466,578

The Pension Fund’s bond investments are held with UBS in the form of pooled funds. The fund denoted
Index linked above is comprised wholly of UK Government index linked gilts. The remaining funds are
comprised of various government and corporate bonds.

Page 128



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

111

6. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

The global equity managers Alliance Bernstein and RCM are instructed to operate a half currency hedge
to mitigate the effect on returns of appreciation or depreciation of Sterling against the local currencies of
assets held.

In practice this is achieved by the use of futures and forward foreign exchange contracts, which entitle
and oblige the seller and holder to exchange assets or currency on a future date at a predeterm ined price
or rate. The former are tradable on exchanges, the latter are “over the counter” agreements, which
neither the purchaser or the seller may transfer.

At 31 March 2011, forward foreign exchange contracts were the only derivative contracts held. There is
no cost on entering into these contracts but the market value is established as the gain or loss that would
arise at the settlement date from entering into an equal and opposite contract at the reporting date.

Sterling Value of

Obligation on

Purchase or Sale Date

Sterling Value of

Equal and Opposite

Obligation at End of

Year

Implied

Unrealised Gain

/ (Losses)

£000 £000 £000

2009/10

Currency contracted to purchase (13,177) 13,100 (77)

Currency contracted to sell 13,177 (13,275) (98)

Net Position 0 (175) (175)

2010/11

Currency contracted to purchase (18,093) 18,154 61

Currency contracted to sell (668) 561 (107)

Net Position (18,761) 18,715 (46)

7. DEBTORS AND CREDITORS

(a) Debtors

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Contributions Due from Admitted / Scheduled Bodies 547 700

Equity Dividends/ Income from Managed Funds 483 590

Interest and Other Income 151 2

Tax Refunds 0 396

Pending Trades 2,699 37,678

3,880 39,366

(b) Creditors

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Fund Manager and Custody Fees (663) (580)

Consultancy / Advisory Fees (incl Audit Fees) 0 (11)

Taxes Due 0 (4)

Pending Trades (2,777) (569)

(3,440) (1,164)

Page 129



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

112

The pending trades relate to purchases and sales by managers which have yet to be the subject of cash
settlement. The debtors figure is relatively high as a result of a balancing exercise at the year end which
required managers to sell shares to provide funds to establish a new commodities mandate and to
transfer between managers to get the asset allocation to correspond to the strategic benchmark.

8. CASH DEPOSITS

The Cash Deposits relate 100% to UK Cash Holdings, and are analysed as follows:

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Northern Trust 13,332 8,143

Lewisham 41 5,059

13,373 13,202

The Northern Trust Company is the fund global custodian and the cash is held in an interest bearing
account to meet the cash flow requirements of our fund managers. Pending trade sales and purchases at
the year end are treated as investment debtors and creditors
Cash in Hand is Pension Fund contributions held in the Borough’s current account prior to investment.

9. TRANSACTION COSTS

The following direct costs were incurred in relation to individual investment transactions:

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Equity Purchases 192

Equity Sales 129

Total Transaction Costs 351 321

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Information in respect of material transactions with related parties is disclosed elsewhere within the
Pension Fund accounts. There were no provisions for doubtful debt and no amounts written off in the
period.

Eight Councillors sit on the Pensions Investment Committee which oversees the Fund. Five Councillors of
this Committee are members of the pensions scheme. At each meeting of the Pensions Investment
Committee Councillors are asked to make declarations of interest. No material declarations of interest
were made in 2010/11. During the year no trustees or Council chief officers with direct responsibility for
pension fund issues have undertaken any declarable transactions with the Pension Fund.

The Council, the administering body, had the dealings with the Fund as follows:

a) Recharges from the Council for the in-house administration costs and other expenses
borne by the scheme were transacted for £1.02m (see note 3).

b) All cash transactions relating to pension activities are currently effected through the
Council’s bank account and consequently pension fund cash balances are held by the
Council from time to time. Any interest receivable on such balances is paid to the
Pension Fund annually at an interest rate equating to that earned by the Council on
temporary investments.

Page 130



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

113

11. ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS (AVCs)

The fund has two AVC providers: Clerical Medical and Equitable Life. The value of AVC investments is
shown below, the contributions are held by the providers and do not form part of the Lewisham fund’s
assets.

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Value at the Beginning of Year 1,421 1,057

Contributions and Transfers Received 338 335

Investment Return 31 151

Paid Out (349) (122)

Value at the End of the Year 1,441 1,421

12. SCHEDULED BODIES

The following are scheduled bodies to the fund:

Christ The King Sixth Form College

Haberdashers’ Aske’s Knights Academy

Lewisham Homes

St Matthew Academy

13. ADMITTED BODIES

The following are admitted bodies to the fund:

National Car Parks Ltd

Excalibur Tenant Management Project

PLUS

Housing 21

Lewisham Nexus Services

Lewisham Way Youth and Community Centre

Lewisham Park Housing Association

SAGE Educational Trust

Lewisham Elders Resource Centre

CIS Securities

Wide Horizons

Phoenix

INSPACE

T Brown & Sons

Quality Heating

VT Group

Bentley Jenison

Broomleigh Housing Association

14. STOCK LENDING

The Statement of Investment Principles permits the Fund to enter into stock lending (whereby the Fund
lends other bodies stocks in return for a fee and collateral whilst on loan). The council entered into stock
lending transactions during the financial year earning £0.037m.

Page 131



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Pension Fund Accounts

114

15. MEMBERSHIP

2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Administering Authority 5,436 5,860 6,694 6,267 6,201 6,117

Scheduled Bodies 642 582 194 122 91 76

Admitted Bodies 128 131 51 44 35 32

6,206 6,573 6,939 6,433 6,327 6,225

Employees Deferred

Beneficiaries

Retired Former

Employees

Page 132



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

115

SECTION 6

GROUP
ACCOUNTS

2010/11

Page 133



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

116

GROUP ACCOUNTS

The following Group Accounts present the financial position of the Council’s group of organisations. The
Council’s group includes Lewisham Homes Limited and Catford Regeneration Partnersh ip Limited. These
organisations are both wholly owned subsidiaries of the Council.

Lewisham Homes Limited is an arms-length management organisation (ALMO) that was set up as part of
the Council’s initiative to deliver better housing services and achieve the government’s Decent Homes
Standard by 2012. Lewisham Homes Limited is responsible for managing and providing housing related
services such as repairs and maintenance of council dwellings.

Catford Regeneration Partnership Ltd (CRPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council and the Head
of Property and Programme Management and the Head of Business Management and Support are
directors of the board

Page 134



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

117

GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT – YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2011

General Earmarked Housing Capital Major Capital Total Unusable Total

YEAR ENDING Fund Gen Fund Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants Usable Reserves Authority

31ST MARCH 2011 Balance Reserves Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31

March 2010

Brought Forward

11,516 75,580 12,024 20,298 4,320 3,463 127,201 731,503 858,704

Movement in

Reserves during

2010/11

Surplus or (Deficit)

on the provision of

services

115,151 0 (293,844) 0 0 0 (178,693) 0 (178,693)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Other

Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 229,663 229,663

Total

Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

115,151 0 (293,844) 0 0 0 (178,693) 229,663 50,970

Adjustments

between accounting

basis and funding

basis under

regulations (see note

6)

(108,391) 0 277,027 12,447 17,377 1,120 199,580 (199,580) 0

Net Increase /

Decrease before

Transfers to

Earmarked

Reserves

6,760 0 (16,817) 12,447 17,377 1,120 20,887 30,083 50,970

Transfers to / from

Earmarked Reserves

(6,824) 6,824 18,486 0 (18,486) 0 0 0 0

Increase /

(Decrease) in

2010/11

(64) 6,824 1,669 12,447 (1,109) 1,120 20,887 30,083 50,970

Balance at 31

March 2011 Carried

Forward

11,452 82,404 13,693 32,745 3,211 4,583 148,088 761,586 909,674

Page 135



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

118

GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT – YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2010

General Earmarked Housing Capital Major Capital Total Unusable Total

YEAR ENDING Fund GF Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants Usable Reserves Authority

31ST MARCH 2010 Balance Reserves Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Reserves Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31

March 2009

Brought Forward

11,236 79,431 13,075 17,411 1,310 920 123,383 1,183,047 1,306,430

Movement in

Reserves during

2009/10

Surplus or (Deficit)

on the provision of

services

(66,833) 0 (35,230) 0 0 0 (102,063) 0 (102,063)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other

Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

0 0 (18,772) 0 0 0 (18,772) (326,891) (345,663)

Total

Comprehensive

Income and

Expenditure

(66,833) 0 (54,002) 0 0 0 (120,835) (326,891) (447,726)

Adjustments

between accounting

basis and funding

basis under

regulations (see note

6)

63,262 0 26,694 2,887 29,267 2,543 124,653 (124,653) 0

Net Increase /

Decrease before

Transfers to

Earmarked

Reserves

(3,571) 0 (27,308) 2,887 29,267 2,543 3,818 (451,544) (447,726)

Transfers to / from

Earmarked Reserves

3,851 (3,851) 26,257 0 (26,257) 0 0 0 0

Increase /

(Decrease) in

2009/10

280 (3,851) (1,051) 2,887 3,010 2,543 3,818 (451,544) (447,726)

Balance at 31

March 2010 Carried

Forward

11,516 75,580 12,024 20,298 4,320 3,463 127,201 731,503 858,704

Page 136



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

119

Gross

Expenditure

£000s

Gross

Income

£000s

Net

Expenditure

£000s SERVICE

Gross

Expenditure

£000s

Gross

Income

£000s

Net

Expenditure

£000s

39,519 (30,665) 8,854 Central services to the public 41,277 (33,863) 7,414

81,341 (15,154) 66,187 Cultural, environmental, regulatory and planning

services

83,859 (15,704) 68,155

418,470 (269,041) 149,429 Children's and education services 421,740 (292,548) 129,192

22,821 (10,269) 12,552 Highways and transport services 24,394 (10,223) 14,171

373,914 (329,938) 43,976 Housing services 652,327 (305,472) 346,855

113,804 (30,799) 83,005 Adult social care 119,249 (29,123) 90,126

7,520 (292) 7,228 Corporate and democratic core 7,380 (194) 7,186

1,166 0 1,166 Non distributed costs (129,120) 0 (129,120)

1,058,555 (686,158) 372,397 Cost of Services 1,221,106 (687,127) 533,980

Other Operating Expenditure

5,117 0 5,117 (Gain) / Loss on the disposal of non-current assets 220 0 220

1,772 0 1,772 Levies 1,787 0 1,787

0 0 0 Contribution of housing capital receipts to

Government Pool

688 0 688

6,889 0 6,889 2,695 0 2,695

Financing and Investment Income and

Expenditure

34,559 (1,768) 32,791 Interest payable and similar charges 47,111 (63) 47,048

(978) 0 (978) Changes in fair value of Investment Properties 165 0 165

166 0 166 (Gain) / loss on disposal of Investment Properties 555 0 555

269 (3,791) (3,522) Interest and Investment Income 441 (2,135) (1,694)

57,688 (50,854) 6,834 Pensions interest cost and expected return on

pensions assets

71,140 (51,608) 19,532

91,704 (56,413) 35,291 119,412 (53,806) 65,606

Taxation and non-specific Grant Income

0 (90,573) (90,573) Income from Council Tax 0 (91,234) (91,234)

0 (52,015) (52,015) General Government Grants 0 (58,216) (58,216)

0 (25,654) (25,654) Recognised Capital Grants and Contributions 0 (116,775) (116,775)

0 (144,288) (144,288) National Non-Domestic Rates redistribution 0 (157,367) (157,367)

16 0 16 Corporation Tax Payable 0 4 4

16 (312,530) (312,514) 0 (423,588) (423,588)

102,063 Deficit/(Surplus) on provision of services 178,693

(9,235)

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets

(68,046)

356,393 Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund assets and

liabilities

(191,267)

(1,495) Other (gains)/losses 29,650

345,663 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (229,663)

447,726 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (50,970)

2010/112009/10 Re-stated

GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR Y.E. 31ST MARCH 2011

Page 137



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

120

Reconciliation of the Single Entity Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure for the year
to the Group Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

2010/11

£000

2009/10

Restated

£000
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure for the year on the

Authority's Income and Expenditure Statement

(49,538) 449,013

Adjustments for transactions with other group entities (30,860) (29,066)

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure in the Group

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement attributable to the

authority

(80,398) 419,947

Deficit in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement attributable to group entities

29,428 27,779

Group Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(50,970) 447,726

Page 138



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

121

1 April 2009

Restated

31/03/2010

Restated 31/03/2011

£000 £000 £000

Property, Plant & Equipment

961,288 924,799 Council dwellings 625,215

879,150 845,881 Other land and buildings 844,638

24,469 28,993 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment 30,636

52,780 55,938 Infrastructure 57,339

7,965 8,451 Community 8,162

36,756 38,784 Assets under construction 58,098

31,409 31,182 Surplus Assets not held for Sale 30,941

1,993,817 1,934,028 1,655,029

11,260 23,648 Investment Property 34,401

7,606 8,084 Assets Held for Sale 8,229

9,088 1,401 Long term investments 17,857

2,011 1,461 Lewisham Homes Pension Asset 46

1,365 13,123 Long term debtors 12,966

2,025,145 1,981,746 Total Long Term Assets 1,728,528

107,227 29,746 Short Term Investments 60,763

11,105 11,153 Assets Held for Sale 6,000

309 344 Inventories 262

29,680 44,685 Debtors 37,758

42,923 148,783 Cash and Cash Equivalents 130,316

3,630 3,172 Prepayments 6,569

194,874 237,883 Current Assets 241,668

35,325 45,013 Short term borrowing 39,351

942 578 Provisions 3,531

65,529 77,621 Creditors 84,196

46,169 55,843 Receipts in advance 64,316

4,283 6,968 PFI Liabilities due within one year 4,900

152,248 186,023 Current Liabilities 196,294

2,067,771 2,033,606 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 1,773,903

331,392 344,194 Long term borrowing 315,227

11,643 12,506 Provisions 10,532

488 365 Deferred capital receipts 256

92,353 146,189 Deferred PFI Liabilities 175,070

2,721 933 Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 1,117

322,744 670,715 Liability related to defined benefit pension scheme 362,027

761,341 1,174,902 Long Term Liabilities 864,229

1,306,430 858,704 NET ASSETS 909,674

Usable Reserves

11,236 11,511 General Fund Balance 11,511

79,431 75,581 Earmarked Revenue Reserves 82,405

12,094 9,760 Housing Revenue Account 9,908

17,411 20,298 Usable Capital Receipts Reserve 32,745

1,310 4,320 Major Repairs Reserve 3,211

920 3,463 Capital Grants Unapplied 4,583

981 2,264 Lewisham Homes Reserves 3,785

0 4 Catford Regeneration Partnership Reserves (60)

123,383 127,201 148,088

Unusable Reserves

94,821 102,972 Revaluation Reserve 219,569

(320,733) (669,254) Pensions Reserve (361,981)

1,431,083 1,318,624 Capital Adjustment Account 920,979

(15,760) (13,100) Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (10,060)

111 25 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 22

(6,475) (7,764) Short Term Compensated Absences Account (6,944)

1,183,047 731,503 761,586

1,306,430 858,704 TOTAL EQUITY 909,674

GROUP BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2011

Page 139



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

122

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT 2010/11

2009/10

Restated

£000 £000 £000

(12,566) NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (50,348)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Outflows

51,020 Purchase of property, plant, equipment and investment properties 48,768

7,291 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 3,942

788 PFI Prepayments 3,342

0 Long-Term Debtors (12)

11 Taxation paid 4

59,110 56,044

Cash Inflows

(8,525) Sale of property, plant, equipment and investment properties (19,623)

(33,748) Capital grants and other capital cash received (22,576)

(42,273) (42,199)

Net Cash Flows

(83,982) Net increase in short term investments 30,644

0 Net increase in long term investments 16,092

3,728 Net increase in other liquid resources 3,234

(80,254) 49,970

(63,417) Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 63,815

FINANCING

Cash Inflows

(30,000) New loans raised 0

(250,268) New short term borrowing (38,685)

(280,268) (38,685)

Cash Outflows

250,391 Repayments of short and long term borrowing 43,685

250,391 43,685

(29,877) Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 5,000

(105,860) NET (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18,467

(42,923) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD (148,783)

(148,783) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF THE PERIOD (130,316)

2010/11

Page 140



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

123

Notes to the Group Accounts

1. Method of preparation

The Group Accounts have been prepared using the acquisition method and include the accounts of
the Council and its subsidiaries, Lewisham Homes Limited and Catford Regeneration Partnership
Limited.

2. Lewisham Homes Limited

Lewisham Homes Limited was incorporated on the 22 January 2007 and is a wholly owned subsidiary
of the council and is limited by guarantee. Lewisham Homes Limited’s auditors are:

KPMG LLP
2 Cornwall Street
Birmingham
B3 2DL
United Kingdom.

3. Lewisham Homes Limited’s Accounts

Lewisham Homes Limited’s Accounts for 2009/10 received an unqualified audit opinion and their
Statement of Accounts can be obtained from:

Lewisham Homes Limited
9 Holbeach Road
Catford
London
SE6 4TW

4. Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the London Borough of Lewisham, Lewisham Homes Limited, and Catford
Regeneration Partnership Limited are in line with those stated in Section 1 of these accounts.

5. Summary of Subsidiaries’ Transactions included in the Group Revenue Account

This is a summary of Lewisham Homes’ and Catford Regeneration Partnership’s transactions
included in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, prior to the elimination of
intra-group transactions (the transactions that took place between the subsidiaries and the council):

Catford Lewisham Catford Lewisham

RP Ltd Homes Total RP Ltd Homes Total

2009/10 2009/10 2009/10

2010/11 2010/11 2010/11 Restated Restated Restated

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost of Services (774) (1,484) (2,258) (126) (2,228) (2,354)

Other Operating Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 909 (41) 868 117 (17,838) (17,721)

Taxation and non-specific Grant Income 0 4 4 5 11 16

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 0 (46) (46) 0 18,772 18,772

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 135 (1,567) (1,432) (4) (1,283) (1,287)

Page 141



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Group Accounts

124

6. Summary of Subsidiaries’ Transactions included in the Group Balance Sheet

This is a summary of Lewisham Homes’ and Catford Regeneration Partnership’s transactions included in
the Group Balance Sheet, prior to the elimination of intra-group transactions (the transactions that took
place between the subsidiaries and the council):

Catford Lewisham Catford Lewisham

RP Ltd Homes Total RP Ltd Homes Total

2009/10 2009/10 2009/10

2010/11 2010/11 2010/11 Restated Restated Restated

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Long term assets 11,910 838 12,748 11,981 2,171 14,152

Inventories 0 29 29 0 87 87

Debtors 86 4,722 4,808 69 2,418 2,487

Cash and Cash Equivalents 124 1,927 2,051 231 2,946 3,177

Provisions 0 (50) (50) 0 (68) (68)

Creditors (396) (3,635) (4,031) (361) (3,829) (4,190)

Long term borrowing (11,855) 0 (11,855) (11,916) 0 (11,916)

Liability related to defined benefit pension scheme 0 0 0 0 (1,461) (1,461)

Net assets (131) 3,831 3,700 4 2,264 2,268

Page 142



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

125

SECTION 7

ANNUAL
GOVERNANCE

STATEMENT

2010/11

Page 143



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

126

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

The London Borough of Lewisham (Lewisham) is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted
in accordance with the law and proper standards. It must make certain that public money is safeguar ded
and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. Lewisham also has a duty
under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the
way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, Lewisham is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements
for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes
arrangements for the management of risk.

Lewisham has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with
the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) explains how the authority has complied with the code and
also meets the requirements of regulation the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 in relation

to the publication of a statement on internal control.

2. THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by which the
authority is directed and controlled. The framework also governs the activities through which it accounts
to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost
effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve aims and objectives or compliance with
policies and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to
the achievement of Lewisham’s policies, aims and objectives. It then evaluates the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and seeks to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Lewisham for the year ended 31 March 2011 and up to
the date of approval of the annual governance statement and statement of accounts.

A summary of the governance framework

Lewisham’s directly elected Mayor ensures the Council has a clear strategic direction and effective
leadership. The Council benefits from the perspectives and contributions of 54 Councillors. The Council’s
Constitution clearly defines the roles of Members and Officers, and this clarity contributes to effective
working relationships across the Council.

The Local Code of Corporate Governance and well developed Codes of Conduct for Members and
Officers demand the highest standards of ethical behaviour. These are reviewed regularly and are
communicated widely.

Financial decisions are tied to corporate priorities. The management of risk is handled at a corporate and
directorate level and is overseen by an independently chaired Internal Control Board. The involvement

Page 144



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

127

and contribution made by the Constitution Working Party, the Standards Committee and the Audit Panel
to provide a check on the Council’s governance arrangements represent constructive and informative
tools to ensure the robustness of the Council’s arrangements.

The Council’s overall vision for the area is shared by its key partners on the Lewisham Strategic
Partnership (LSP) and was developed following extensive consultation with the community.

The Annual Audit letter of 2009/10, issued by the Audit Commission’s appointed auditor concluded that
the Council was considered to have ‘strong governance arrangements in place’ and ‘effective risk
management systems which are well integrated across the whole of the council and includes partnership
working’.

In December 2010, the Government introduced the Decentralisation & Localism Bill into Parliament. The
Bill proposes to devolve more power to councils and neighbourhoods and gives local communities greater
control over local decisions such as housing and planning. The Head of Law briefed Councillors in June
2011 on the current position in relation to the Localism Bill and the impact that it could possibility have on
the Members Code of Conduct. Specific training on aspects of the Localism Bill is planned for July 2011.

3. ELEMENTS OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

a) Identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose and intended outcomes for
citizens and service users

The long-standing vision of the Council is: Together, we will make Lewisham the best place in London to
live, work and learn. This was agreed following extensive consultation and adopted by the LSP as the
vision statement for Lewisham’s first Community Strategy, launched in 2003. This joint vision is promoted
on the Lewisham website and in Council strategies, which are also published on the website.

In 2008 the LSP published “Shaping our future: Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS)
2008-2020” in line with the recommendations of the Local Government White Paper, Strong and
Prosperous Communities (2006). The development of the SCS was informed by an extensive programme
of consultation, which identified resident’s aspirations for Lewisham, and which ensured that those views
fed into the six key outcomes for the borough the SCS sets out to achieve.

This development approach was endorsed by the Audit Commission, when they concluded in their 2009
Area Assessment that “Lewisham’s local strategic partnership understands the issues of concern to
residents very well. Their main priorities reflect local people’s needs and wishes clearly ”.

The Council has an enduring set of 10 corporate priorities and in 2008 published and communicated
widely a Corporate Strategy (2008-11) which sets out how the organisation will contribute to the delivery
of the SCS. The Corporate Strategy is reviewed every year through the Annual Report and is also
supplemented by the Monthly Management Report.

b) Reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications for the authority’s governance
arrangements
The Lewisham Strategic Partnership is led by the LSP board which is chaired by Lewisham’s directly-
elected Mayor. A series of thematic partnerships work with the LSP board, each concentrating on a
specific set of cross-cutting policy issues. The thematic partnerships bring together the relevant
organisations and individuals to determine appropriate interventions and to ensure that joint -working
results in the best possible outcomes. The LSP board and thematic partnership boards have re -aligned
their focus around the six key outcomes set out in the SCS. The plans which relate to the thematic
boards, are monitored on a regular basis. The monitoring of such plans feeds up to the LSP board and
into the wider monitoring of the SCS.

The Council assessed the implications of change for the Council’s governance arrangements through the
review of the Local Code of Corporate Governance at the Standards Committee (10

th
May 2007) and at

Council (23
rd

May 2007). Further reviews of the Local Code have taken place in 2008, 2009 and 2010.
The review of 2009 (reported to Standards Committee on 5

th
May 2009) recommended that the Local

Page 145



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

128

Code be extended to include a new requirement – in the light of new CIPFA guidance and the Council’s
extensive partnership arrangements – to ensure effective partnership governance and risk management.

Further to this, on an ongoing basis, the work of the Constitution Working Party and the Internal Control
Board addresses governance issues arising out of the Council’s vision for the area. In its 2007 Direction
of Travel statement, the Audit Commission noted that, in Lewisham, ‘robust corporate governance
arrangements continue to operate’. In their feedback following the 2008 ‘Use of Resources’ assessment
the Audit Commission found ‘excellent arrangements around ethical governance”. As a result the Audit
Commission nominated the Council as an example of ‘notable practice’ – for other local authorities to
follow – in the field of developing arrangements to secure ethical governance. And during a study of social
responsibility and community cohesion in 2009, OfSTED found “a clear vision which focuses strongly on
outcomes.”

The 2009/10 Annual Audit Letter states that the Council ‘has strong governance arrangements in place,
such as a development and training programme for members, and is able to demonstrate that these have
led to a wide range of positive outcomes’ . It also notes that the Council ‘ continues to have a clear vision
of the outcomes it seeks to achieve to deliver best value for local people, including improving the quality
of life, based on an ongoing assessment of need through the procurement strategy’.

c) Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance with
the authority’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources.

Lewisham has a successful record in this area, which was recognised in the 2009 Organisational
Assessment with a score of 3 out of 4 for performance management.

In the 2009/10 Annual Audit Letter the Audit Commission concluded that the Council ‘has comprehensive
data quality processes in place. The Council has continued to implement an effective process for
recording and reporting data and ensures that it is reliable’

A review of the Performance Management Framework takes place annually, to ensure continuous
improvement. The Performance Management Framework allows for robust and structured target setting
against national requirements and local priorities. It also allows the Council, its partners and residents to
monitor and measure the Council’s effectiveness against these national and local performance indicators.

Our Monthly Management Report is the centrepiece of our performance reporting structure. It provides a
clear and easy to read analysis of our performance against a basket of 80 indicators including National
Indicators and local measures, and also includes an executive summary to direct attention to areas of
strong performance as well as areas requiring greater management attention. It is produc ed entirely from
the Performance Plus (P+) system and is presented monthly to the Executive Management Team and
quarterly to Mayor’s briefing and to the Mayor and Cabinet.

The Monthly Management Report utilises exception reporting to focus attention on key areas: exception
reporting for red Projects, Risk and Finance and Red and Green exception reporting for performance. By
combining these four areas for each of our corporate priorities, it functions as the critical tool for
supporting decisions across the organisation. While examining this report, the Executive Management
Team, Mayor and Cabinet and Public Accounts Select Committee challenge all aspects of performance.
The report is also published on the Council’s website, and so is accessible to members of the general
public.

The quality of services for users is also measured through satisfaction surveys and information from the
complaints management and resolution process. The Council’s complaints procedure is published on the
web and has been publicised, through the Council’s quarterly newsletter – “Lewisham Life” - to all
residents of the borough. The Council has continued to improve its complaints procedure. A revised
complaints management system – iCasework – was implemented across the Council on 30 June 2008
and allows for the monitoring and review of intelligence on the resolution of complaints. In combination
with bespoke complaints handling training courses, this ensures that the Council learns from complaints.
The Head of Public Services reports annually to the Standards Committee with an update on complaints
handling, and performance in this area is also reviewed annually by both Mayor and Cabinet and the
Public Account Select Committee.

Page 146



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

129

Value for Money (VfM) is integral to Council operations, and the budget strategy is predicated on ensuring
that the council is delivering good VfM. A Budget Saving Strategy Group effectively replaces the former
Efficiency Programme Board. There has been recent emphasis on securing budget savings (whether this
be via improving efficiency or by budget cuts or service cessations). The group was created to focus on
delivering the revenue budget savings which would be needed to make the Budget Strategy work.

The Group comprises, Heads of Strategy and Performance and Group Finance Managers, plus a
representative from Human Resources and Legal Services. The Group has the remit to review and act as
a sounding board for the Budget Strategy, savings process, saving proposals and the mechanics for
ensuring the Council has a smooth process for delivering savings. The Group is also responsible for
annually reviewing the existing process and suggesting ways to improve it.

In addition to this, the Council is continuing to develop its approach to value for money through its
participation in the Local Authority Performance System (LAPS). The LAPS tool enables London local
authorities to benchmark costs and performance and develop VFM profiles across a range of service
areas.

d) Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the Executive, non executive,
scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective
communication

The Council’s Constitution sets out the roles and responsibilities of the Mayor, Chair of Council , the
Council as a whole, the Executive, Overview and Scrutiny committees, Standards Committees and other
committees.

Members follow the required formal procedures when making Council decisions, which ensure that such
decisions are made transparently and openly. There is an annual programme of regular meetings
whereby formal decisions are taken. Every committee agenda includes as a standard item a section on
declarations of interest by committee members which sets out the legal position in relation to the need to
declare, and on occasion, withdraw from discussion of matters where the member has a personal and/or
prejudicial interest.

Decisions are taken in accordance with the Council and Mayoral scheme of delegation as appropriate and
these schemes are maintained, kept up to date
and made available to the public as detailed within the Constitution. Decisions are taken in accordance
with the general principles of administrative law and on the basis of professional advice at all times.
Minutes are published and made widely available through the Lewisham website. All Executive decisions
are subject to review by Overview and Scrutiny business panel and may be called-in in accordance with
the Council’s Constitution. There were no call-ins during the financial year 2009-10. The most recent
example of a matter referred to the Mayor for reconsideration in accordance with the call in was the
prioritisation of transport schemes on June 1

st
2011.

The highest standards of ethical conduct are adhered to in order to avoid actual,
potential and perceived conflicts of interest. The principles of decision making appear as Article 16 within
the Constitution. Standards Committee receives a report on Member compliance with the Code of
Conduct, a process which was recognised as ‘notable practice’ by the Audit Commission in the 2007/08
Use of Resources audit.

In achieving accreditation under the London Member Development Charter in April 2008 (for a minimum
period of 3 years) , the Council has agreed a range of role descriptors for members according to the role
they fulfil (e.g. executive/community representative/overview and scrutiny etc) and has put in place a
personal development scheme to enhance member capability in those roles. Officers support all Members
in the performance of their various roles and this is detailed in the Constitution. The roles of the statutory
officers are also set out at Article 14 of the Constitution and in detailed job descriptions. The Schemes of
Delegation by both the Mayor and the Council are appended to the Constitution at Part VIII.

e) Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of
behaviour for members and staff

Page 147



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

130

The Council adopted an amended Member Code of Conduct in July 2010 to comply with new legal
requirements. It complies with all statutory provisions and is appended to the Constitution at Part V. It
appears on the Council’s website, on the intranet and is well publicised. A comprehensive training
programme on the Codes of Conduct is delivered by the Head of Law (Monitoring Officer) on an on-going
basis for members of the Council.

Monitoring Officer advice is regularly sought by members in relation to potential Code of Conduct issues.
The Standards Committee was consulted on changes to the Member Code in November 2009. They
were also consulted on the review of compliance with the Members Code of Conduct in November 2010.

The Council has in place an Employee Code of Conduct which complies with all legal requirements and is
appended to the Constitution at Part V. The purpose and content of the Employee Code of Conduct is
communicated frequently and widely.

f) Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme of
delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions are
taken and the processes and controls required to manage risks

Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions
The Council’s Financial Regulations, Financial Procedures and Directorates’ Scheme of Delegation, are
regularly updated and communicated to all relevant staff and are available on the Council’s intranet. The
Financial Regulations, the Schemes of Delegation and the Financial Procedures are currently being
updated with the view to publishing the reviewed additions in September 2011. The Council’s procedure
rules, of which Standing Orders are a part, are reviewed alongside the Constitution; the Constitution is
reviewed on a regular basis.

Alongside this, the financial awareness rolling training programme for budget holders will continue in
2011/12 and beyond, to ensure that all budget holders have the necessary skills required to manage
budgets effectively.

Scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how
decisions are taken
The Constitution is very clear about the decision making process. It requires that Members follow formal
procedures when making Council decisions, which ensures that such decisions are made transparently
and openly. There is an annual programme of regular meetings whereby formal decisions are taken.
Committee reports are produced by officers in a standard format to ensure that authors address all
significant considerations such as the legal and financial implications of decisions, equal ities issues,
environmental issues and a crime and disorder assessment. Every committee agenda includes as a
standard item a section on declarations of interest by committee members which sets out the legal
position in relation to the need to declare, and on occasion, withdraw from discussion of matters where
the member has a personal or prejudicial interest. The principles of decision making appear as Article 16
within the Constitution. There is a well embedded agenda planning process and a requirement for reports
to be signed off by senior officers. Decisions are taken in accordance with the Council and Mayoral
scheme of delegation as appropriate and these schemes are maintained, kept up to date and made
available to the public as detailed within the Constitution. The Constitution requires Executive decisions to
be published within two working days of being taken, and sent to all Members of the Council where
possible by electronic means. Minutes are published and made publicly available on the Lewisham
website. All Executive decisions may be called-in by the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel in
accordance with the Council’s Constitution.

The Constitution provides for the Council to have a Constitution Working Party (CWP) to advise it on the
operation of its constitutional arrangements. In practice, the procedure rules set out in the Constitution
are under constant review to reflect changing needs. In 2010/11 reports to Full Council have included
Members Allowances and Pensions, Council Procedure Rules, the status of the Housing Select
Committee and the composition of the Appointments Committee. The Constitution has been updated to
reflect these new responsibilities.

Maintaining an adequate and effective system of internal audit
The Account and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, require the Council to undertake an adequate and
effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control. The role of internal

Page 148



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

131

audit is to provide an independent and objective opinion on the control environment within the Council.
Internal audit work is undertaken in accordance with the CIPFA Internal Audit Code of Practice for Internal
Audit in Local Authorities 2006 (the code).

The work of Internal Audit is set out in an annual internal audit plan that covers the key financial systems,
schools, and the operational activities where Internal Audit and management perceive there are risks to
achieving operational objectives. The work of internal audit also supports the work of the Council’s
External Auditor who reviews our work in detail to satisfy themselves the work of internal audit can be
relied upon. From the 31 March the Council must conduct a review at least once a year of the
effectiveness of its system of internal control and report on this to members. A review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal audit will take place in 2011/12.

For each audit where controls have been analysed, Internal Audit issues an assurance statement which
indicates the level of assurance that management can place on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal controls. For 2010/11, four levels of assurance were used: Two positive levels, ‘substantial’ and
‘adequate’ assurance; and two negative levels, ‘limited’ and ‘no assurance’. In each report Intern al Audit
may also make control improvement recommendations, rated High, Medium or Low.

For 2010/11 one hundred and eleven assurance reviews were undertaken. Of the 98 of these where an
opinion on internal controls was issued only 7% (21% in 2009/10) were issued with a negative level of
assurance, and no ‘no assurance’ opinions were issued. In respect of recommendations made 4% were
high (5% in 2009/10) and 58% medium (47% in 2009/10).

The key financial systems are fundamental to the operation of the Council, so it is important that these
systems have robust internal control mechanisms and operate effectively. The Head of Audit and Risk
confirmed that all of these key financial systems have been issued with a positive assurance level for
2010/11. In all but two cases these systems have either maintained or improved their assurance level on
2009/10. There were specific reasons for the two which declined slightly, cash collection and NNDR, and
both systems retained their positive assurance level. Fixed Assets was not reviewed by internal audit
during 2010/11 due to the implementation of a new system at the year-end. For this year only, this work
will therefore be picked up directly by the External Auditors.

Overall the Council is maintaining an adequate and effective system of internal audit. Internal audit has
identified areas where internal controls can be strengthened and reported that, on the whole the Council
is managing its operational risk effectively.

The processes and controls required to manage risks
The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 highlight the Council’s responsibility for ensuring it
has in place a sound system of internal control which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

There is a robust risk strategy and framework, reviewed and updated in 2010/11, in place to manage
risks. All services must maintain an operational risk register aligned to their service plan objectives. Risks
are recorded and reported using the Council’s main performance management system – Performance
Plus. The risk registers record significant risks and score them in terms of impact and likelihood. Target
scores are set and mitigation actions identified and monitored.

Directorate risk registers are considered in detail at least quarterly at Directorate Management Teams.
Key risks within the directorate and corporate risk registers are then subject to quarterly reviews by the
Risk Management Working Party and the Internal Control Board. The Internal Control Board is chaired by
an independent ‘non executive’ person (Bill Roots, a former London local authority Chief Executive) and
comprises the Executive Management Team, Head of Law (Monitoring Officer), Head of Audit and Risk
and Group Manager for Insurance and Risk. Risks are updated quarterly and are tracked through the
monthly management report which summarises key risks and mitigation actions taken.

Risk Management is embedded within the Council’s approach to programme and project management.
Project risks are regularly reviewed by Project Review Groups and Corporate Project Board. Risks for the
whole capital programme are reviewed and updated quarterly. Members are involved in scrutinising risks
with updates of the Capital Programme considered regularly by Public Accounts Select Commi ttee and
reported to Mayor & Cabinet.

Page 149



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

132

In addition for 2010/11 to support better decision making, with the significant savings proposals
considered and agreed by members, specific attention was given to identifying, assessing the key risks
for each proposal submitted as part of the budget setting process.

RSM Tenon, the Council’s independent internal audit contractor, carried out an annual risk maturity review
(which reported in May 2011) and has assessed the Council as maintaining its ‘managed’ approach t o
risk.

The 2009/10 Annual Audit Letter, issued by the Audit Commission’s appointed auditor concluded that the
Council “has effective risk management systems which are well integrated across the whole of the council
and includes partnership working”.

g) Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit
Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities
The Audit Panel is made up of six elected members and up to four independent advisors and meets at
least quarterly. A key role of the panel is to review and comment on the strategy, plans and resources of
Internal Audit. Internal Audit update reports are received by the panel on a quarterly basis, summarising
the audit reports issued, management’s progress on implementing internal audit recommendations, and
the performance of the Internal Audit function. Update reports on the activities of the Anti-fraud and
Corruption Team are also received by the panel on a quarterly basis. The panel receive the annual report
of the Council’s Head of Audit and Risk.

The panel consider and monitor the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management arrangements, the
control environment and associated anti-fraud and anti-corruption arrangements. In terms of external
assurance, the panel consider the external auditor’s Annual Plan, other relevant external reports which
contribute to the level of assurance. The panel monitors management action in response to issues raised
by internal and external audit, and significant issues identified by these are included in the action plan
appended to this statement.

The panel also consider the Council’s annual Statement of Accounts and this Statement and makes
comments on those to the meeting of the Full Council that considers the accounts.

h) Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures, and
that expenditure is lawful

The duties of the Head of Law (Monitoring Officer) are defined in the Constitution. The Monitoring Officer
attends Mayor and Cabinet and Full Council meetings and regularly briefs EMT on corporate legislative
developments (e.g. Localism Bill 2010 and specific proposals within the Bill including Governance). Legal
advice is incorporated in every report and advice on proper process is a regular feature of that. Where
gaps or non-compliance are identified, appropriate action is taken (e.g. in response to Freedom of
Information compliance issues, alternative procedural arrangements were put in place to enhance
performance). Reports do not proceed unless robust legal implications on all matters have been
considered and are included in the report. Experienced professional legal staff are employed by the
Council.

The financial management of the authority is conducted in accordance with financial regulations set out in
the Constitution. The Council has designated the Executive Director of Resources as Chief Finance
Officer in accordance with Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and to discharge the
responsibilities under Section 114 of the Local Government Act 1998 and Sections 25-28 of the Local
Government Act 2003 in relation to the Chief Financial Officer’s statutory duties. The Chief Finance
Officer advises on the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs, keeping proper financial
records and maintaining effective systems of financial control. These duties are reflected in the job
description of the Executive Director for Resources which are set out at Article 14 of the Constitution.
Financial implications are included in all committee reports and form an integral part of the information
needed to aid the decision making process.

The Pensions Investment Committee has agreed a Governance Policy Statement which sets out how the
Committee exercises its fiduciary duty to members of the Pension Fund. The Committee’s governance
arrangements include the appointment of an independent Custodian Bank responsible for the safe
custody of the Fund’s assets, the appointment of an independent investment advisor, independent

Page 150



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

133

actuary and investment consultant, Hymans Robertson. The Committee will review its Statement of
Investment Principles in accordance with the CIPFA’s Pensions Panel Principles of Investment decision
making.

i) Whistle-blowing and procedures for receiving and investigating complaints from the public

The Council has a whistle-blowing policy in place which is widely publicised on the Council’s website and
in ‘Lewisham Life’. Complaints made under this policy are handled by the Head of Law (Monitoring
Officer) and an annual review is considered by the Standards Committee (March 2011).

j) Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to their strategic
roles, supported by appropriate training

The overall aim of the Members’ Development Programme is to ensure that all members have access to
the training and development opportunities they need to fulfil their responsibilities to the local community
and provide clear leadership and effective scrutiny of local Council functions. The 2010-11 personal
development programme and general member development programme have both been completed and
an initial induction programme for new Members has been undertaken.

This is recognised as best practice and feedback from members indicates the programme has helped
them considerably in carrying out their roles.’

The 2009/10 Annual Audit Letter recognised the training Members were receiving, stating that the Council
‘has strong governance arrangements in place, such as a development and training programme for
members, and is able to demonstrate that these have led to a wide range of positive outcomes’.

The Head of Personnel and Development has responsibility for the development needs of senior officers.
The Monitoring Officer also plays a key role in ensuring that senior officers are aware of their statutory
duties and changes in legislation. At the start of the financial year the Chief Executive defines objectives
for each of the Executive Directors. These are then cascaded to officers throughout the organisation
through the Performance Evaluation Scheme.

k) Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and other
stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation

Lewisham has an open and outward facing culture that is clearly focussed on the needs of our residents
and facilitated by an exceptionally strong and diverse approach to engagement and consultation.

The Council’s engagement activity is overseen by the Communications and Consultation Board. The
Board operates at senior Head of Service Level and provides a strategic steer on the communication and
consultation agendas within the Council. It is supported by its subsidiary, the Consultation Steering Group,
which draws representation from across the Council and supports effective resident engagement at an
operational level.

These arrangements are underpinned by the Council’s Framework for Engagement (2009 -2012). This
sets in place shared principles for engagement, which were also agreed at a partnership level through the
Stronger Communities Partnership.

In support of this, and to provide increased channels through which citizens are engaged, the Council
continues to promote e-Participation by implementing a new online engagement system. This system
provides the platform through which citizens can respond to online consultations as well as set up and
respond to e-Petitions. Other channels of engagement include the 18 ward-level Area Assemblies which
came into operation in 2008 and are open to anybody living or working in the ward, and the Young
Citizens Panel which enables any young person aged 11-18 years either living or studying in the borough
to join.

The Audit Commission awarded Lewisham a “green flag” for community engagement and empowerment
of local people, in their 2009 Area Assessment. They concluded that ‘empowering and involving local
people is at the heart of the way public sector partnerships work in Lewisham to improve the area as a

Page 151



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

134

place to live. Partners have an excellent track record of involving local people, including those who are
less likely to be active in the local community.’

l) Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other group
working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of partnerships, and
reflecting these in the authority’s overall governance arrangements

The Council acts in a number of partnerships with a view to improving the quality of life for local people.
These partnerships take a variety of forms, from large scale contracting, as in the case of the Building
Schools for the Future programme, to strategic alliances such as the Lewisham Strategic Partnership
(LSP). The Council has used the Audit Commission report on the governance of partnerships to provide a
framework to assess its arrangements in relation to partnership working.

As a first stage in that process, the Head of Law (Monitoring Officer) conducted an exercise in relation to
several of the most significant partnerships in the borough and reported those findings to the Internal
Control Board. In February 2009, a detailed audit of all of the Council’s major partnerships and contractual
arrangements was reported to the EMT and to ICB. In response, EMT required all Directorates to
consider partnership governance arrangements, and particularly the business continuity arrangements of
those partnerships, as a standing item at Directorate Management Team meetings. In November 2009,
the Chief Executive presented a paper to ICB which assessed the main risks to the partnerships within
each of Lewisham’s six Sustainable Community Strategy priority themes.

As part of the review of the Local Code in 2009 the Standards Committee accepted a recommendation to
extend the Code to include a provision to ensure that the Council has robust and effective mechanisms to
ensure partnerships are effectively governed and that partnership risks are identified and managed.

In November 2009, Standards Committee considered a new “Standards in Partnership” protocol that has
been developed by Standards for England. Adherence to this protocol is intended to ensure that the aims
of the partnership can be fulfilled effectively and the public can have confidence in the operati on of the
partnership.

The Standing Committee made a recommendation to refer this partnership protocol to the LSP, where it
was considered in December 2009. The LSP reviewed its Terms of Reference and Code of Conduct in
2010 in order to reflect the good practice set out in the new Standards for England partnership protocol.

4. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

Lewisham has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by
the work of executive managers within the authority who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit and Risk’s annual report, and
also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

The process by which the governance framework has been maintained and reviewed is widespread. It
occurs throughout the year and at year end. On an ongoing basis, throughout the year, it has involved the
following:

$ Consideration by Internal Control Board of governance issues – including risk registers, counter-
fraud updates and internal audit reports.

$ The Head of Audit and Risk prepares a rolling plan of audit coverage to be achieved in the
forthcoming year, based in primarily on an assessment of the Council’s risk profile. The plan is
reviewed by the Internal Control Board.

$ The Audit Panel receives the Internal Audit Strategy and approves the annual audit plan.

$ The Audit Panel receives the annual assurance report from the Head of Audit & Risk which set
out his opinion on the Council’s overall control environment.

$ The Audit Panel reports on its work to the Public Accounts Select Committee twice a year.

$ Executive Management Team (EMT) consider a full range of governance issues throughout the
year, including issues relating to the improvement of the Internal Audit Service. EMT scrutinise
performance and risk regularly and ensure management action where necessary.

Page 152



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

135

$ The Standards Committee considered the efficiency of the Council’s complaints handling system
and the effectiveness of the Whistle Blowing Policy. In June 2010 it considered the review of the
Council’s Code of Corporate Governance, and in November 2010 it reviewed Member
compliance with the Member Code of Conduct.

$ The Independent Remuneration Panel made recommendations to the Council about the
accountability and effectiveness of Members.

$ Consideration of external audit reports conducted in year by Mayor and Cabinet, Audit Panel and
relevant Select Committees.

$ Constitution Working Party undertook a review of the Constitution in its entirety in March 2009
which led to amendments to the Constitution in line with the Local Government and Public
Involvement Act 2007. It also considered the reviews undertaken by the Independent
Remuneration Panel and referred those to Full Council.

At year end, the review of the effectiveness of the governance framework is conducted under the
auspices of the Chief Executive by a team of officers consisting of:

$ Kath Nicholson: Head of Law and Monitoring Officer

$ Troy Robinson: Standards & Education Law Advisor

$ Barrie Neal: Head of Corporate Policy and Governance

$ David Austin: Interim Head of Audit and Risk

$ Annabel Saunders: Principal Policy Officer

$ Caroline Doyle: Principal Policy Officer

The AGS working party have met regularly since March 2008. Officers have been drawn from across the
council to represent key areas of expertise in governance and internal control matters. The terms of
reference for the group are as follows:

$ To provide expertise in the development of the AGS on governance and internal control matters

$ To analyse CIPFA/SOLACE guidance in relation to the development of the Annual Governance
Statement

$ To collate evidence from across the organisation relating to CIPFA/SOLACE guidance

$ To evaluate evidence collated and identify areas for action

$ To compile an action plan of significant governance issues

$ To develop the Annual Governance Statement to be incorporated in the Statement of Accounts on
an annual basis

$ To ensure that the AGS is signed off appropriately through the council’s key control mechanisms:
EMT, Standards Committee, Audit Panel, Internal Control Board and Full Council

$ To review the Annual Governance Statement and arrangements for governance and internal
control throughout the year

The process by which the governance provisions are reviewed at year end includes:

$ The consideration by EMT members on the 2nd June 2010 of a draft Annual Governance
Statement. Where any gaps have been identified in evidence gathering, these are addressed in
the action plan outlined in Appendix 2. EMT also consider the outcome and action plans of
external inspections and audit, using those to address any significant governance issues for the
future.

$ Preparation of the Accounts and the Head of Audit and Risk’s Annual Report and consideration of
these and the Annual Governance Statement by the Council’s Audit Panel on 22

nd
June 2011.

$ A review of the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance by the Standards Committee on
the 21

st
June 2011, with reference to CIPFA/Solace Guidance.

$ Referral of the Annual Governance Statement to full Council with the Statement of Accounts, and
advice from Audit Panel on the 21

st
September 2011.

$ Sign off by the Chair of the Council and Chief Executive, once approved.

Page 153



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annual Governance Statement

136

5. SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES

Actions taken to deal with governance issues during the course of 2010/11 are referred to at section 3 of
this statement.

We propose over the coming year (2011/12) to take steps to address significant governance issues which
have been identified through the annual review and through external assessment and inspection. These
issues are set out at Annexe 1 along with the actions proposed to address the need fo r improvement.

We intend to monitor their implementation, operation and effectiveness as part of our next annual review.
To do this regularly throughout 2011/12 it is proposed that the officer team dealing with governance
arrangements meet quarterly and report on progress to the EMT/Internal Control Board and/or Audit
Panel on relevant issues.

Signed: ………..................……………………………………………………………………

Leading Member (or equivalent) & Chief Executive (or equivalent) on
behalf of the Council

Page 154



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

137

ANNEXE 1

SIGNIFICANT
GOVERNANCE ISSUES –

ACTION PLAN

2010/11

Page 155



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

138

SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES – ACTION PLAN 2010/11

Issue
Decent Homes

Further reduce the gap between Lewisham and national expectations for the decent
homes standard

Action Continue to monitor progress in delivering the Housing Strategy action plan

External

Assurance Link
Annual Audit Letter 2010

Desired

Outcomes

A reduction in the gap between the proportion of homes in Lewisham that meet the

Decent Homes Standard, and the proportion of homes that do so nationally

Timescales March 2012

Lead Officer Genevieve Macklin

Notes

Progress to date:
This is an ongoing action from the 2009/10 action plan. It originated in the

recommendations made by the Audit Commission’s appointed auditor in the 2008

Annual Audit Letter:

"The Council needs to ensure that its strong partnerships and effective leadership lead

to a step change in outcomes…it should concentrate in particular on further reduc ing

the gaps between national expectations for educational outcomes, health inequalities

and decent homes standards and those in Lewisham".

Brockley PFI (Regenter B3)

The PFI has achieved 100% decency in this programme.

Lewisham Homes (ALMO):

The level of non-decency in 2010/11 within Lewisham Homes’ stock was 55%.

Stock Transfers:

$ By March 2011 Phoenix Community Housing completed decent homes works to

3773 tenanted homes which means only 32% of the stock is non-decent

$ L&Q has achieved 100% decency at Grove Park

$ Broomleigh (Affinity Sutton) has achieved 100% decency at Orchard Estate and

Village Court.

$ By March 2011, Broomleigh (Affinity Sutton) had made 177 tenanted homes across

Newstead Road Estate and Leybridge Court (Lee Transfer) decent with 298 home

remaining non-decent

$ Forest Hill & Sydenham, Rushey Green and Catford transferred to L&Q in October

2010. By March 2011, L&Q had made 499 tenanted homes decent with 1782

tenant homes remaining non-decent

Next steps:
Lewisham Homes (ALMO)

$ The Homes & Communities Agency (HCA) announced the allocations for Decent

Homes Backlog Funding in February 2011 and awarded Lewisham £94.5 million

Page 156



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

139

over 4 years, which was the second highest settlement in England. The allocations

for 2013/14 and 2014/15 are provisional allocations which are not guaranteed and

could be subject to change. For 2011/12, Lewisham Homes are estimating that

719 tenanted homes will be made decent, bringing the non-decency level down to

53%. Lewisham Homes have projected that by 2015, the non-decency level of

their stock will be 28%.

Stock Transfers

$ Phoenix Community Housing are due to complete decent homes works by

December 2012.

$ Broomleigh (Affinity Sutton) will complete decent homes works at Newstead Road

Estate and Leybridge Court by 2012.

$ L&Q are scheduled to complete decent homes works at Forest Hill, Sydenham,

Rushey Green and Catford by October 2014.

Issue
Households in Temporary Accommodation
Reduce the numbers of households in temporary accommodation.

Action

Put in place robust systems for the management of homeless applications and the

allocation of temporary accommodation, reduce the number of households in

temporary accommodation.

External

Assurance Link
National Indicator 156

Desired

Outcomes

Maintain the number of households in temporary accommodation at 877 during

2011/12

Timescales March 2012

Lead Officer Genevieve Macklin

Notes

Progress to date:
This is an ongoing action from the 2009/10 action plan.

In line with the TA reduction plan agreed with the CLG, In 2008/09, the numbers of
households in temporary accommodation reduced by 696, the third largest drop in
London. In percentage terms at 28% the reduction was the 6th most improved. This
trend has been sustained with the numbers in temporary accommodation reducing by
a further 566 between April 2009 and March 2010. The1242 households in temporary
accommodation at the end of March was below the target set out in the TA reduction
plan agreed with CLG. At the end of December 2010 there were 957 households in
temporary accommodation, 80 short of the target.

The numbers in temporary accommodation have been reduced by a range of different
actions. The starting point is early identification of issues and active homeless
prevention to sustain people in their accommodation. This includes working with
private tenants who are experiencing issues with their landlords, mediation with
parents and young people and a whole range of other steps. Lewisham's levels of
homeless prevention have increased steadily through 2008-9 and into 2010-11. Where
households cannot be sustained in existing accommodation they are offered advice
about a range of options including how to rent privately, shared ownership and other
intermediate housing products, mobility schemes and supported housing options and
often this results in homelessness being prevented as well.

It is the range of these actions, as part of a clear strategy and action plan, which has

Page 157



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

140

led to the reduction in numbers. This has not been at the expense of the suitability of
the accommodation offered.

At the end of April 2011 there were 947 households in temporary accommodation.
Numbers continued to reduce after December 2010 to a low of 918 in February 2011
but have risen slightly in the last 2 months as a result of increased homeless
approaches, a trend being mirrored across London.

Next steps:
During 2011-12 the service aims to sustain numbers at existing levels. Whilst the
national indicator is no longer in place it is clearly prudent to sustain numbers in
temporary accommodation at a lower level and this remains a key objective for the
service area. Progress against the target is being monitored within Customer Services
Management team and through a range of activity being overseen by a Customer
Services Programme Board, which includes a range of service transformation projects
aimed at improving homeless prevention and resolution of housing need issues and
improvements in the costs and quality of temporary accommodation where it is used.

Issue
Impact of the Recession
Assess and monitor the impact of the Recession.

Action
Assess and monitor the impact of the Recession on the Building Schools for the

Future, housing and town centre regeneration programmes.

External

Assurance Link
Annual Audit Letter 2010

Desired

Outcomes

Accurate and timely monitoring of risks to delivery provides basis for well-informed

decision making.

Timescales March 2012

Lead Officer Steve Gough

Notes

Progress to date:
This is an ongoing action from the 2009/10 action plan. It originated in the
recommendations made by the Audit Commission’s appointed auditor in the 2008
Annual Audit Letter:

"The Council needs to assess and monitor the impact of the economic downturn on
demand-led services and its regeneration programmes, especially Building Schools for
the Future, housing and the Lewisham Town Centre development project”

In February 2011 Mayor & Cabinet agreed the 2011-12 Budget that included the
following update on the risks associated with the 2011-16 Capital Programme:

The risks to the programme have changed over the last 12 months. Then, the risks
associated with the housing market, contractor failure and securing adequate project
management skills were identified. The housing market risk remains and, following the
cuts in social housing funding, has probably grown in significance. Construction prices
are currently low with tender returns regularly below estimates. Constructors are
squeezing their supply chains and profit margins in order to win work and this can
leave them prone to financial failure. Officers will continue to assess financial risks
before appointing any major contractors to schemes.

Primary school places remain a key concern. It is estimated that the short term growth
in pupil numbers across the borough could lead to a requirement for up to 18 additional
forms of entry by September 2011. Some permanent expansion has been agreed and
the rebuild of both Gordonbrock and Brockley schools is now in progress but, these
measures fall short of the projected needs. £16.338 million of Department for

Page 158



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

141

Education capital has been allocated in 2011/12 and officers are currently considering
how this should be allocated.

Capital resources have been reviewed in detail following the publishing of the
Comprehensive Spending Review and the other announcements from the government
about cuts. It was announced that there would be significant cuts to capital funding of
around 45%. Full details of what this means in practice are still to be announced, it is
known that there will be no revenue support for borrowing after 2010/11.

The Council’s Capital Programme includes a number of complex programmes such as
Building Schools for the Future, Customer Services transformation and the
redevelopment of Deptford and Catford Town Centres, where skilled programme and
project management are required to successfully deliver to time and cost. The
Council’s current successful approach to the development of internal capacity remains
vulnerable to pressures from across the market for highly skilled programme and
project managers.

Issue

Impact of public sector spending cuts
The delivery of the Council’s multi-year strategy to manage a fundamental financial

restructure needs to be monitored, and impacts on public services and Council

employees must be limited.

Action
Monitor the delivery of the Council’s multi-year financial strategy.

External

Assurance Link
Annual Audit Letter

Desired

Outcomes

The Council’s financial strategy is effectively monitored and impacts on public services

and Council employees as a result of the financial restructuring are limited.

Timescales March 2012

Lead Officer Conrad Hall

Notes

Progress to date:
On the 23rd May 2010, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced £6.2bn of public

sector spending cuts. The key point in this announcement for Local Government was

that there would be immediate in-year reductions of £1.165bn in individual grants.

A report on the £3.295m in-year reductions that Lewisham would need to make as a

result of these public sector spending cuts went to the Public Accounts Committee on

the 13 July 2010 and Mayor & Cabinet on the 14 July. This report set out the impact on

services that would arise from making over £3m savings.

The Spending Review was announced on 20 October 2010, setting departmental

expenditure limits (DEL) for each Government department for the 4 year period from

2011/12 to 2014/15. The Spending Review announced that overall revenue funding to

Local Authorities will reduce by 26% in real terms by 2014-15 and the cuts over the

four year period will be significantly front-loaded.

The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was announced on 13

December 2010. The Settlement was the first part of two 2 year settlements and

covers the periods of 2011-12 and 2012-13. The average reduction in formula grant

across England is 9.9% in 2011/2012 and 7.3% in 2012/2013.

Page 159



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

142

Lewisham’s formula grant has reduced by 10.6% in 2011/20/12 and 7.8% in

2012/2013.

The council agreed its 2011/12 budget on 1
st

March 2011. Savings of £20.467m were

agreed for that year, and further budget savings of £8.878m and £3.356m agreed in

principle for years 2012/13 and 2013/14. Achievement of the savings will be tracked

through the council’s budget monitoring system, and the first set of full forecasts will be

available at the end of June 2011.

In 2010/11 the budget was delivered with a net underspend of £1.7m.

Next steps:
Further savings may be required for years from 2012/13 onwards. The council is

considering its approach to future efficiency requirements and closely tracking

government funding announcements.

Issue
Health & Safety

Compliance with appropriate standards of Health & Safety

Action
To identify the appropriate standard for Health & Safety to which the Council should

apply and achieve compliance with it

External

Assurance Link
British Standard OHSAS 18001

Desired

Outcomes

All Directorates to be compliant with the requirements of the BS OHSAS 18001 for the

management of Health & Safety in the Council

Timescales December 2012

Lead Officer David Austin / Executive Directors

Notes

Progress to date:

This is an ongoing action from the 2009/10 action plan.

In line with BS OHSAS 18001 the Council’s single Health & Safety (H&S) management

system has been implemented corporately and in each of the Directorates with one

exception – the Children and Young People Directorate, including schools.

The Corporate H&S Team and the governance of H&S has been restructured to focus

on the critical activities to maintaining a single effective and consistent risk based

approach to H&S across the Council. A H&S Board has been created to oversee both

corporate and directorate H&S risks. The Corporate H&S team is now focused on:

$ developing and maintaining a full set of H&S policies and guidance in line with BS

OHSAS 18001 to meet statutory requirements;

$ communicating H&S priorities and good practice (including coordinating training

for and providing advice to directorates);

$ conducting risk based audits and capturing and reporting on all H&S accidents,

incidents and near misses.

The Council’s internal audit service completed an advisory review in 2010/11 of the

Page 160



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

143

Corporate H&S policies, management system and compliance with legislative

requirements. This highlighted some areas for continued operational improvement

within the H&S system.

Next steps:

The Corporate H&S team will:

$ continue to support and monitor the implementation of the H&S management

system in the Children and Young People directorate;

$ work with directorate H&S management nominees to implement the

recommendations from the H&S review by December 2011, and maintain and

strengthen H&S practices across the Council through the business as usual

activities identified above.

Issue
Business Continuity Management

Strengthen the Council’s business continuity arrangements.

Action

The Emergency Planning / Business Continuity Manager, and Directorate business

continuity leads to implement the recommendations contained in the audit report by

Kiln House Associates Ltd dated 12 May 2010.

External

Assurance Link
Procedures to be reviewed by the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM Tenon.

Desired

Outcomes

Robust business continuity arrangements established and their effectiveness tested on

a regular basis.

Timescales
March 2012 - all recommendations have been implemented except for specific ICT

related recommendations where work is in progress.

Lead Officer Malcolm J Smith / Ralph Wilkinson

Notes

Progress to date:

This action originated from the draft business continuity management audit report
produced by Kiln House Associates Ltd which assesses the Council's Business
Continuity arrangements against the requirements of BS25999. The audit report said
that the Council can take limited assurance that the Business Continuity Management
system as currently set out is effective. The report made 37 recommendations for
action.

Significant progress has been made since the audit. All services have conducted a
business impact assessment and produced a business continuity plan. Some critical
services have already had their plan tested. An on line tool has been developed to aid
services with business continuity. The Council now records all business continuity
incidents and reviews them to establish trends, learn lessons and take action where
appropriate.

Three recommendations remain outstanding (on records management and systems
disaster recovery) where work is in progress which is monitored by the Business
Continuity Coordinators Group chaired by Malcolm Smith. The next review meeting is
now on the 22nd July 2011.

Next steps:

Work will continue to complete the three outstanding actions from the audit.

Testing of critical service business continuity plans will continue using local table top
exercises. The lessons learnt from these will be included in updated plans. Although

Page 161



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

144

Council wide exercises have been used in the past to test plans the local exercises are
proving much more effective.

Work to prepare services for the challenges of the London Olympics 2012 period is
underway. A robust action plan is in place and is continually being updated. Progress
is being monitored by the ‘London 2012 Logistics Working Group’ chaired by Hilary
Renwick.

An on line reporting tool to record and monitor all business continuity incidents will be
developed over the summer. The tool will make it easier to record incidents, trends
and establish appropriate actions as well as making the corporate Business Continuity
and Risk working groups aware of such risks.

Issue Improving the quality of auditable grant claims

Action
To implement the recommendations of the Audit Commission’s report on grant claims

for 2008/09.

External

Assurance Link
Audit Commission report on grant claims for 2009/10

Desired

Outcomes

To improve the quality of grant claims submitted to the Audit Commission and thereby

reducing the total amount of external audit fees for 2009/10.

Timescales By March 2011 and annually thereafter

Lead Officer Steve Mace and Directorate Lead Officers for individual grants

Notes

Progress to date:

The District Auditor stated at the Audit Panel on 23 December that the grants audit
process had improved from last year. The general direction of auditable grant claims is
good, however there are some grants where there is still room for improvement (e.g.
teacher’s pensions). There will be close collaboration by Finance staff and Directorate
lead officers in the submission of grant claims and the subsequent response to audit
queries.

The forecast outturn for external audit fees in the last financial year is £130k. This is a
reduction of £50k on the previous year. This has been achieved by a mixture of fewer
grants and better liaison with the Audit Commission.

Next steps:

Progress will be monitored throughout 2011/12.

Issue
Closing of Accounts

Close the Council’s financial accounts on time.

Action
Although the accounts closed on time for 2009/10, the introduction of the International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) will add considerable complexity and increase

the risk of closing in a timely fashion.

External

Assurance Link
External auditors of the Statement of Accounts.

Page 162



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

145

Desired

Outcomes
Accounts produced on time and without significant issues arising from the audit.

Timescales September 2011

Lead Officer Conrad Hall

Notes

Progress to date:

Monthly meetings have been programmed in with the District Auditor. Enhanced
project management arrangements have been introduced, including the review of new
IFRS requirements to ensure that any potential issues are highlighted and addressed.
In January 2011 the Audit Commission assessed the council's arrangements as 'red',
primarily due to slippage against the original project plan. Although the remaining time
is tight officers are still confident that the deadlines can be achieved.

Next steps:

Monthly meetings will continue with the District Auditor. Although the remaining time is
tight officers are still confident that the deadlines can be achieved.

Issue Ongoing review of the Annual Governance Statement

Action

The AGS working party will continue to meet on a regular basis through 2011/12 to

review progress against the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan.

Reports on progress will be submitted to EMT members and ICB as appropriate

Desired

Outcomes

The AGS working party act as an effective body to ensure the ongoing review and

improvement of governance arrangements.

Timescales Quarterly meetings in 2011/12; reporting to EMT members and ICB as required

Lead Officer Kath Nicholson, Barrie Neal, David Austin

Notes

Progress to date:

The AGS working group met at the beginning of May 2011 to sign off on the AGS
action plan 2010/11. They then met again at the end of May 2011 to discuss and
agree the new AGS action plan 2011/12.

The 2010/11 Annual Governance Statement is updated annually. It is circulated to ICB
(which includes EMT members), Audit Panel and Full Council for review and sign off, in
line with the required timescales.

Next steps:

The AGS working group will continue to meet during 2011/12. It will consider progress
with this action plan and will report to EMT and ICB as appropriate. It will also be
responsible for updating and reporting the 2010/11 Annual Governance Statement in
line with required timescales.

Issue
Information Management & Security
Compliance with appropriate standards of Information Management & Security (IM&S)

Page 163



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 1

146

Action
To identify and comply with the appropriate standards for Information Management &

Security

AGS Criteria Objective 2 & 3

External

Assurance Link
ICO/Internal Audit/ Audit Commission

Desired

Outcomes

Robust IM&S activities established, documented and complied with by all council

officers

Timescales December 2012

Lead Officer Georgina Chambers (Corporate Information and Records Manager)

Notes

Progress to date:

The Corporate Information Management Team have identified re levant IM&S
legislation and standards and are currently reviewing all IM&S policies to ensure they
accurately reflect identified requirements and that officers are aware of their
responsibilities.

We have an Information Asset Register that identifies all the Councils Information
Assets and names the relevant responsible information owners, and provides the
frame work for future developments.

The recent re-organisation of the Technology & Transformation Division has created a
new Information Management Team bringing together the relevant disciplines: strategy
for the IM&T division, Data protection, Access to Information, Information Security,
Records Management, Information Sharing, Compliance with Code of Connection.

Next steps:

The Information Management Team will:

$ continue to review IM&S policies: identify legislation and standards we work to and
how we meet their requirements. Get signed acceptance from officers;

$ get the framework right and align policies and procedures (use of IT, USBs, drives,
clear desk policy, information sharing, records management including retention
and disposal);

$ raise awareness of risk and personal responsibility for information we handle by
working with Information Asset Owners, through comms and training. We will
ensure officers know the safest way to work with personal information, including
knowing how to identify the category of sensitive personal information and know
the extra care needed when working with it;

$ assess and monitor compliance through management information, audits and
other channels where appropriate.

Page 164



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 2

147

ANNEXE 2

GLOSSARY OF TERMS
AND ACRONYMS USED

IN THE ACCOUNTS

2010/11

Page 165



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 2

148

GLOSSARY OF TERMS USED IN THE ACCOUNTS

ACCRUALS Amounts included in the accounts to cover income and expenditure
attributable to the financial year, but for which payment had not been
received or made as at 31 March.

ACTUARY An independent professional who advises on the financial position of
the Pension Fund and carries out a full valuation every three years.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE Expenditure on the acquisition or enhancement of assets which
significantly prolong their useful lives or increase their market value..
This is considered to be of benefit to the Council over a period of
more than one year, e.g. land and buildings.

CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT
ACCOUNT

Represents capital resources set aside to meet past capital
expenditure.

CAPITAL RECEIPTS Income received from the sale of land, buildings and plant.

COLLECTION FUND A separate statutory account into which Council Tax and National
Non-Domestic Rates are paid in order to meet payments due to the
Council's General Fund and Preceptors (currently the Greater
London Authority).

CONTINGENT LIABILITY A possible liability to incur future expenditure at the balance sheet
date dependant upon the outcome of uncertain events.

CREDITORS Amount of money owed by the Council for goods, works or services
received.

DEBTORS Amount of money owed to the Council by individuals and
organisations.

DEPRECIATION The loss in value of an asset due to age, wear and tear, deterioration
or obsolescence. An annual charge in respect of this is made to
service revenue accounts over the life of most assets to reflect the
usage in the year.

EARMARKED RESERVES Amounts set aside for specific purposes to meet future commitments
or potential liabilities, for which it is not appropriate to establish
provisions.

FAIR VALUE This is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged
or liability settled, assuming that the transaction was negotiated
between parties knowledgeable about the market in which they are
dealing and willing to buy/sell at an appropriate price, with no other
motive in their negotiations other than to secure a fair price.

GENERAL FUND The account which comprises the revenue costs of providing
services, which are met by General Government Grants and the
Council's demand on the Collection Fund.

INFRASTRUCTURE A classification of fixed assets which have no market value and which
exist primarily to facilitate transportation and communication
requirements (e.g. roads, street lighting). They are usually valued at
historic cost.

Page 166



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 2

149

LEASES A Lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in
return for a payment or series of payments the right to use an asset for
an agreed period of time. The definition of a lease includes hire
purchase contracts.

A Finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risk and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Title may or may not
eventually be transferred.

An Operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

MEMORANDUM
ACCOUNT

These Accounts are not part of the Council’s formal statutory Accounts
and are included in the Statement for added information.

MINIMUM REVENUE
PROVISION

The prudent amount which must be charged to an authority's revenue
account each year for principal repayments on loans .

NATIONAL NON-
DOMESTIC RATE (NNDR)

National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR) is set by the Government and
collected by the Council and paid into the central pool. The Government
pays back to the Council their share of the pool as part of the formula
grant allocation.

PRIVATE FINANCE
INITIATIVE

This is a central government initiative whereby contracts for specified
services are let to private sector suppliers by the Council which may
include capital investment as well as the provision of the service.
Payments are made to the supplier in return, which may be reduced if
performance targets are not met.

PRECEPT These are demands made upon the Collection Fund by the Council's
General Fund and the Greater London Authority in accordance with their
budget requirements.

PROVISIONS This is an amount which is set-aside for a specific liability or loss, which
is likely to be incurred, but where the exact amount and date on which
they will arise is uncertain.

REVALUATION RESERVE Represents the gains on the revaluation of non current assets which
have not yet been realised through sales.

REVENUE SUPPORT
GRANT

This is the main general grant which is paid to the Council by Central
Government to fund local services.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE Day-to-day expenditure incurred in the running of Council services, e.g.
salaries, wages, supplies and services.

SUPPORT SERVICES These are activities of a professional, technical and administrative
nature which are not Council services in their own right, but support
main front-line services.

Page 167



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 2

150

ACRONYMS USED IN THE ACCOUNTS

ABG Area Based Grant

BVACOP Best Value Code of Practice

BVR Best Value Review

CDC Corporate and Democratic Core

CI&ES Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

DSG Dedicated Schools Grant

Ex-ILEA Ex-Inner London Education Authority

FRS Financial Reporting Standard

HRA Housing Revenue Account

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

LEP Local Education Partnership

LGPS Local Government Pension Scheme

LPFA London Pensions Fund Authority

LSP Local Strategic Partnership

MiRS Movement in Reserves Statement

MRP Minimum Revenue Provision

NDC Non Distributed Costs

NNDR National Non-Domestic Rates

PCT Primary Care Trust

PFI Private Finance Initiative

SORP Statement of Recommended Practice

SPV Special Purpose Vehicle

SSAP Statement of Standard Accounting Practice

TPS Teacher’s Pensions Scheme

VAT Value Added Tax

Page 168



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 3

151

ANNEXE 3

CAPITAL
EXPENDITURE

ANALYSIS

2010/11

Page 169



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 3

152

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE ANALYSIS 2010/2011

During quarter 4 of 2010/11 a review of the capital programme was carried out to ensure that the spend
within the programme was being accounted for correctly under IFRS rules. This resulted in £17.1m being
written off to revenue (£3.9m Directorates' capital programme, £13.2m Lewisham Homes). The Forecast
spend has been adjusted to take into account the projects that were re-classified as revenue.

Actual

Expenditure

Adjusted

Forecast/

Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 %

Directorates' Capital Programme

Community Services

Forest Hill Pool 1,290 1,535 (245) -16%

- Other projects 580 534 45 9%

Community Services Sub Total 1,870 2,069 -199 -9.6%

Resources

ICT - IMT Programme 577 601 (24) -4%

ICT - Tech Refresh 494 501 (7) -1%

Resources Sub Total 1,071 1,102 -31 -2.8%

Children and Young People (CYP)

Primary Place Expansion 3,904 3,309 595 18%

Tidemill School 3,487 3,776 (289) -8%

BSF - D&B 3,226 4,141 (915) -22%

Primary Places programme 2,682 2,480 202 8%

Rushey Green School 1,104 1,111 (7) -1%

Torridon Library (CC Phase 3) 900 880 21 2%

Quality & Access for All Young Children - Capital Grant 880 1,629 (749) -46%

Schools Minor Works Programme 731 860 (129) -15%

BSF - ICT 610 1,009 (399) -40%

Monson (Hatcham Temple Grove) School (BSF) 472 675 (203) -30%

Play Builder programme 458 506 (47) -9%

Aiming High for Disabled Children (Short Breaks) 456 595 (140) -23%

MyPlace - Wells Park 321 606 (285) -47%

- Other projects 799 1,074 (275) -26%

Children and Young People Sub Total 20,031 22,650 -2,619 -11.6%

CYP Schools

Standards Fund Projects 2,674 0 2,674 N/A

CYP Schools Sub Total 2,674 0 2,674 N/A

Variation of Actual to

Programme

Page 170



LEWISHAM STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Annexe 3

153

Actual

Expenditure

Adjusted

Forecast/

Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 %

Directorates' Capital Programme (Continued)

Regeneration

Deptford Town Centre Regeneration 6,553 6,752 (199) -3%

North Lewisham Links - route 1 2,532 2,278 254 11%

TfL Programme 2010/11 2,420 2,218 202 9%

Highways BVR Programme 2,395 3,005 (610) -20%

Worksmart 2,234 2,450 (216) -9%

Pepys Environmental 1,665 1,875 (211) -11%

Parklands: Ladywell Fields and the Waterlink Way 1,519 1,529 (10) -1%

TfL Programme 2009/10 520 398 122 31%

Deptford Station 425 2,388 (1,963) -82%

Borough Road Reconstruction & Resurfacing Works

(Highways: Snow Works) 278 288 (10) -3%

- Other projects 290 799 (509) -64%

Regeneration SubTotal 20,832 23,981 -3,149 -13.1%

Customer Services

Brockley PFI 3,000 2,000 1,000 50%

Private Sector Grants 984 800 184 23%

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 803 866 (63) -7%

Kender Phase 4 Site Assembly 733 761 (28) -4%

Acquisition of the freehold interests in 67 Arran Rd -

SE6, 28 Thornsbeach Rd - SE6 & 7 Cambridge Drive - 308 579 (271) -47%

Housing Options/ Homelessness Group 296 478 (182) -38%

Cash Incentive Scheme 280 300 (20) -7%

Vehicles - 2009/10 Programme 263 263 0 0%

Heathside & Lethbridge - Partnership Works 173 974 (801) -82%

Excalibur Phase 1 Site Assembly 169 66 103 156%

Honor Oak New Build: Hilton House 0 348 (348) -100%

- Other projects 524 483 42 9%

Customer Services Sub Total 7,534 7,918 -384 -4.9%

Total Directorates' Capital Programme 54,012 57,719 (3,707) -6.4%

Lewisham Homes Capital Programme

Lift Refurbishment Programme 1,268 1,159 108 9%

Tenants Panel 53 15 39 267%

Roofs 10 0 10 N/A

Extensions/ Deconversions Grant Funded 268 640 (372) -58%

Total Lewisham Homes Capital Programme 1,600 1,814 (214) -11.8%

Total Council's Capital Programme 55,612 59,533 (3,922) -6.6%

Variation of Actual to

Programme

Page 171



 

 1

Annual Governance Statement      Appendix 1 

  
 

1. Scope of responsibility 

 

The London Borough of Lewisham (Lewisham) is responsible for ensuring that its 

business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards. It must make 

certain that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used 

economically, efficiently and effectively. Lewisham also has a duty under the Local 

Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the 

way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness. 

 

In discharging this overall responsibility, Lewisham is responsible for putting in place 

proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise 

of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

 

Lewisham has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance, which is 

consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government.  

 

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) explains how the authority has complied with 

the code and also meets the requirements of regulation the Accounts and Audit (England) 

Regulations 2011 in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control. 

 

2. The purpose of the governance framework  

 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values, by 

which the authority is directed and controlled. The framework also governs the activities 

through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the 

authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether 

those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services. 

 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 

manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk or failure to achieve aims and 

objectives or compliance with policies and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 

absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an 

ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 

Lewisham’s policies, aims and objectives. It then evaluates the likelihood of those risks 

being realised and the impact should they be realised, and seeks to manage them 

efficiently, effectively and economically.  

 

The governance framework has been in place at Lewisham for the year ended  

31 March 2011 and up to the date of approval of the annual governance statement and 

statement of accounts. 

Page 172



 

 2

The governance framek 

A summary of the governance framework 

Lewisham’s directly elected Mayor ensures the Council has a clear strategic direction and 

effective leadership. The Council benefits from the perspectives and contributions of 54 

Councillors. The Council’s Constitution clearly defines the roles of Members and Officers, 

and this clarity contributes to effective working relationships across the Council.  

 

The Local Code of Corporate Governance and well developed Codes of Conduct for 

Members and Officers demand the highest standards of ethical behaviour. These are 

reviewed regularly and are communicated widely. 

 

Financial decisions are tied to corporate priorities. The management of risk is handled at a 

corporate and directorate level and is overseen by an independently chaired Internal 

Control Board. The involvement and contribution made by the Constitution Working Party, 

the Standards Committee and the Audit Panel to provide a check on the Council’s 

governance arrangements represent constructive and informative tools to ensure the 

robustness of the Council’s arrangements.  

 

The Council’s overall vision for the area is shared by its key partners on the Lewisham 

Strategic Partnership (LSP) and was developed following extensive consultation with the 

community. 

 

The Annual Audit letter of 2009/10, issued by the Audit Commission’s appointed auditor 

concluded that the Council was considered to have ‘strong governance arrangements in 

place’ and ‘effective risk management systems which are well integrated across the whole 

of the council and includes partnership working’.  

 

In December 2010, the Government introduced the Localism Bill into Parliament.  The Bill 

proposes to devolve more power to councils and neighbourhoods and gives local 

communities greater control over local decisions such as housing and planning.  The Head 

of Law briefed Members in June 2011 on the current position in relation to the Localism 

Bill and the impact that it could possibility have on the Members Code of Conduct.  A 

follow up briefing to Members will take place in the Autumn before the Localism Bill 

receives Royal Assent, which is excepted to happen in October 2011.  A briefing on the 

Localism Bill was also provided to the Executive Management Team in May 2011, with a 

further update provided in July 2011.  The Head of Law has also provided training to staff 

in specific services such Planning and Housing, were the Localism Bill could have a 

significant impact.   

 

3.  Elements of the governance framework 

 

a) Identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose and intended 

outcomes for citizens and service users  

The long-standing vision of the Council is: Together, we will make Lewisham the best 

place in London to live, work and learn. This was agreed following extensive consultation 

Page 173



 

 3

and adopted by the LSP as the vision statement for Lewisham’s first Community Strategy, 

launched in 2003. This joint vision is promoted on the Lewisham website and in Council 

strategies, which are also published on the website.  

 

In 2008 the LSP published “Shaping our future: Lewisham’s Sustainable Community 

Strategy (SCS) 2008-2020” in line with the recommendations of the Local Government 

White Paper, Strong and Prosperous Communities (2006). The development of the SCS 

was informed by an extensive programme of consultation, which identified resident’s 

aspirations for Lewisham, and which ensured that those views fed into the six key 

outcomes for the borough the SCS sets out to achieve.  

 

This development approach was endorsed by the Audit Commission, when they 

concluded in their 2009 Area Assessment that “Lewisham’s local strategic partnership 

understands the issues of concern to residents very well. Their main priorities reflect local 

people’s needs and wishes clearly”.  

 

The Council has an enduring set of 10 corporate priorities and in 2008 published and 

communicated widely a Corporate Strategy (2008-11) which sets out how the organisation 

will contribute to the delivery of the SCS. The Corporate Strategy is reviewed every year 

through the Annual Report and is also supplemented by the Monthly Management Report.  

 

b) Reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications for the authority’s     

governance arrangements  

The Lewisham Strategic Partnership is led by the LSP board which is chaired by 

Lewisham’s directly-elected Mayor. A series of thematic partnerships work with the LSP 

board, each concentrating on a specific set of cross-cutting policy issues. The thematic 

partnerships bring together the relevant organisations and individuals to determine 

appropriate interventions and to ensure that joint-working results in the best possible 

outcomes.  The LSP board and thematic partnership boards have re-aligned their focus 

around the six key outcomes set out in the SCS. The plans which relate to the thematic 

boards, are monitored on a regular basis. The monitoring of such plans feeds up to the 

LSP board and into the wider monitoring of the SCS.  

 

The Council assessed the implications of change for the Council’s governance 

arrangements through the review of the Local Code of Corporate Governance at the 

Standards Committee (10th May 2007) and at Council (23rd May 2007). Further reviews of 

the Local Code have taken place in 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011. The review of 2009 

(reported to Standards Committee on 5th May 2009) recommended that the Local Code be 

extended to include a new requirement – in the light of new CIPFA guidance and the 

Council’s extensive partnership arrangements – to ensure effective partnership 

governance and risk management.  

 

Further to this, on an ongoing basis, the work of the Constitution Working Party and the 

Internal Control Board addresses governance issues arising out of the Council’s vision for 

the area. In its 2007 Direction of Travel statement, the Audit Commission noted that, in 

Lewisham, ‘robust corporate governance arrangements continue to operate’. In their 

Page 174



 

 4

feedback following the 2008 ‘Use of Resources’ assessment the Audit Commission found 

‘excellent arrangements around ethical governance”. As a result the Audit Commission 

nominated the Council as an example of ‘notable practice’ – for other local authorities to 

follow – in the field of developing arrangements to secure ethical governance. And during 

a study of social responsibility and community cohesion in 2009, OfSTED found “a clear 

vision which focuses strongly on outcomes.”  

 

The 2009/10 Annual Audit Letter states that the Council ‘has strong governance 

arrangements in place, such as a development and training programme for members, and 

is able to demonstrate that these have led to a wide range of positive outcomes’ . It also 

notes that the Council ‘ continues to have a clear vision of the outcomes it seeks to 

achieve to deliver best value for local people, including improving the quality of life, based 

on an ongoing assessment of need through the procurement strategy’. 

 

c) Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in 

accordance with the authority’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the 

best use of resources.  

Lewisham has a successful record in this area, which was recognised in the 2009 

Organisational Assessment with a score of 3 out of 4 for performance management.  

 

In the 2009/10 Annual Audit Letter the Audit Commission concluded that the Council ‘has 

comprehensive data quality processes in place. The Council has continued to implement 

an effective process for recording and reporting data and ensures that it is reliable’.  

 

A review of the Performance Management Framework takes place annually, to ensure 

continuous improvement. The Performance Management Framework allows for robust and 

structured target setting against national requirements and local priorities. It also allows 

the Council, its partners and residents to monitor and measure the Council’s effectiveness 

against these national and local performance indicators.  

 

Our Monthly Management Report is the centrepiece of our performance reporting 

structure. It provides a clear and easy to read analysis of our performance against a 

basket of 80 indicators including National Indicators and local measures, and also includes 

an executive summary to direct attention to areas of strong performance as well as areas 

requiring greater management attention. It is produced entirely from the Performance Plus 

(P+) system and is presented monthly to the Executive Management Team and quarterly 

to Mayor’s briefing and to the Mayor and Cabinet.   

 

The Monthly Management Report utilises exception reporting to focus attention on key 

areas: exception reporting for red Projects, Risk and Finance and Red and Green 

exception reporting for performance. By combining these four areas for each of our 

corporate priorities, it functions as the critical tool for supporting decisions across the 

organisation. While examining this report, the Executive Management Team, Mayor and 

Cabinet and Public Accounts Select Committee challenge all aspects of performance. The 

report is also published on the Council’s website, and so is accessible to members of the 

general public.  

Page 175



 

 5

 

The quality of services for users is also measured through satisfaction surveys and 

information from the complaints management and resolution process. The Council’s 

complaints procedure is published on the web and has been publicised, through the 

Council’s quarterly newsletter – “Lewisham Life” - to all residents of the borough. The 

Council has continued to improve its complaints procedure. A revised complaints 

management system – iCasework – was implemented across the Council on 30 June 

2008 and allows for the monitoring and review of intelligence on the resolution of 

complaints. In combination with bespoke complaints handling training courses, this 

ensures that the Council learns from complaints. The Head of Public Services reports 

annually to the Standards Committee with an update on complaints handling, and 

performance in this area is also reviewed annually by both Mayor and Cabinet and the 

Public Account Select Committee.  

 

Value for Money (VfM) is integral to Council operations, and the budget strategy is 

predicated on ensuring that the council is delivering good VfM. A Budget Saving Strategy 

Group effectively replaces the former Efficiency Programme Board.  There has been 

recent emphasis on securing budget savings (whether this be via improving efficiency or 

by budget cuts or service cessations).  The group was created to focus on delivering the 

revenue budget savings which would be needed to make the Budget Strategy work.  

  

The Group comprises, Heads of Strategy and Performance and Group Finance Managers, 

plus a representative from Human Resources and Legal Services.  The Group has the 

remit to review and act as a sounding board for the Budget Strategy, savings process, 

saving proposals and the mechanics for ensuring the Council has a smooth process for 

delivering savings.  The Group is also responsible for annually reviewing the existing 

process and suggesting ways to improve it.  

 

In addition to this, the Council is continuing to develop its approach to value for money 

through its participation in the Local Authority Performance System (LAPS).  The LAPS 

tool enables London local authorities to benchmark costs and performance and develop 

VFM profiles across a range of service areas. 

 

d) Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the Executive, non 

executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and 

protocols for effective communication  

The Council’s Constitution sets out the roles and responsibilities of the Mayor, Chair of 

Council, the Council as a whole, the Executive, Overview and Scrutiny committees, 

Standards Committees and other committees.   

 

Members follow the required formal procedures when making Council decisions, which 

ensure that such decisions are made transparently and openly. There is an annual 

programme of regular meetings whereby formal decisions are taken. Every committee 

agenda includes as a standard item a section on declarations of interest by committee 

members which sets out the legal position in relation to the need to declare, and on 

Page 176



 

 6

occasion, withdraw from discussion of matters where the member has a personal and/or 

prejudicial interest.  

 

Decisions are taken in accordance with the Council and Mayoral scheme of delegation as 

appropriate and these schemes are maintained, kept up to date 

and made available to the public as detailed within the Constitution. Decisions are taken in 

accordance with the general principles of administrative law and on the basis of 

professional advice at all times. Minutes are published and made widely available through 

the Lewisham website. All Executive decisions are subject to review by Overview and 

Scrutiny business panel and may be called-in in accordance with the Council’s 

Constitution. There were no call-ins during the financial year 2009-10. The most recent 

example of a matter referred to the Mayor for reconsideration in accordance with the call in 

was the prioritisation of transport schemes on June 1st 2011. 

 

The highest standards of ethical conduct are adhered to in order to avoid actual, 

potential and perceived conflicts of interest. The principles of decision making appear as 

Article 16 within the Constitution. Standards Committee receives a report on Member 

compliance with the Code of Conduct, a process which was recognised as ‘notable 

practice’ by the Audit Commission in the 2007/08 Use of Resources audit.  

 

In achieving accreditation under the London Member Development Charter in April 2008 

(for a minimum period of 3 years) , the Council has agreed a range of role descriptors for 

members according to the role they fulfil (e.g. executive/community 

representative/overview and scrutiny etc) and has put in place a personal development 

scheme to enhance member capability in those roles. Officers support all Members in the 

performance of their various roles and this is detailed in the Constitution. The roles of the 

statutory officers are also set out at Article 14 of the Constitution and in detailed job 

descriptions. The Schemes of Delegation by both the Mayor and the Council are 

appended to the Constitution at Part VIII.  

 

e) Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the 

standards of behaviour for members and staff 

The Council adopted an amended Member Code of Conduct in July 2010 to comply with 

new legal requirements. It complies with all statutory provisions and is appended to the 

Constitution at Part V. It appears on the Council’s website, on the intranet and is well 

publicised. A comprehensive training programme on the Codes of Conduct is delivered by 

the Head of Law (Monitoring Officer) on an on-going basis for members of the Council.  

 

Monitoring Officer advice is regularly sought by members in relation to potential Code of 

Conduct issues. The Standards Committee was consulted on changes to the Member 

Code in November 2009.  They were also consulted on the review of compliance with the 

Members Code of Conduct in November 2010. 

 

The Council has in place an Employee Code of Conduct which complies with all legal 

requirements and is appended to the Constitution at Part V. The purpose and content of 

the Employee Code of Conduct is communicated frequently and widely. 

Page 177



 

 7

f) Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme 

of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how 

decisions are taken and the processes and controls required to manage risks 

 

Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions 

The Council’s Financial Regulations, Financial Procedures and Directorates’  Scheme of 

Delegation, are regularly updated and communicated to all relevant staff and are available 

on the Council’s intranet. The Financial Regulations, the Schemes of Delegation and the 

Financial Procedures are currently being updated with the view to publishing the reviewed 

additions in September 2011. The Council’s procedure rules, of which Standing Orders are 

a part, are reviewed alongside the Constitution; the Constitution is reviewed on a regular 

basis. 

 

Alongside this, the financial awareness rolling training programme for budget holders will 

continue in 2011/12 and beyond, to ensure that all budget holders have the necessary 

skills required to manage budgets effectively. 

 

Scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly 

define how decisions are taken 

The Constitution is very clear about the decision making process.  It requires that 

Members follow formal procedures when making Council decisions, which ensures that 

such decisions are made transparently and openly. There is an annual programme of 

regular meetings whereby formal decisions are taken. Committee reports are produced by 

officers in a standard format to ensure that authors address all significant considerations 

such as the legal and financial implications of decisions, equalities issues, environmental 

issues and a crime and disorder assessment.  

 

Every committee agenda includes as a standard item a section on declarations of interest 

by committee members which sets out the legal position in relation to the need to declare, 

and on occasion, withdraw from discussion of matters where the member has a personal 

or prejudicial interest. The principles of decision making appear as Article 16 within the 

Constitution.  

 

There is a well embedded agenda planning process and a requirement for reports to be 

signed off by senior officers. Decisions are taken in accordance with the Council and 

Mayoral scheme of delegation as appropriate and these schemes are maintained, kept up 

to date and made available to the public as detailed within the Constitution.  

 

The Constitution requires Executive decisions to be published within two working days of 

being taken, and sent to all Members of the Council where possible by electronic means. 

Minutes are published and made publicly available on the Lewisham website. All 

Executive decisions may be called-in by the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel in 

accordance with the Council’s Constitution.  

 

The Constitution provides for the Council to have a Constitution Working Party (CWP) to 

advise it on the operation of its constitutional arrangements.  In practice, the procedure 

Page 178



 

 8

rules set out in the Constitution are under constant review to reflect changing needs. In 

2010/11 reports to Full Council have included Members Allowances and Pensions, Council 

Procedure Rules, the status of the Housing Select Committee and the composition of the 

Appointments Committee. The Constitution has been updated to reflect these new 

responsibilities. 

 

The Chief Executive, Barry Quirk, the Head of Law, Kath Nicholson and the Executive 

Director for Resources, Janet Senior, will be providing training in October 2011 on 

decision making within the Local Authority.  The trained will be delivered to Group 

Managers, Head of Services and other relevant staff who undertake decisions within the 

organisation. 

 

Maintaining an adequate and effective system of internal audit 
The Account and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, require the Council to undertake an 

adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal 

control. The role of internal audit is to provide an independent and objective opinion on the 

control environment within the Council. Internal audit work is undertaken in accordance 

with the CIPFA Internal Audit Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Authorities 2006 

(the code).  

 

The work of Internal Audit is set out in an annual internal audit plan that covers the key 

financial systems, schools, and the operational activities where Internal Audit and 

management perceive there are risks to achieving operational objectives.  The work of 

internal audit also supports the work of the Council’s External Auditor who reviews our 

work in detail to satisfy themselves the work of internal audit can be relied upon.  From the 

31 March the Council must conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its 

system of internal control and report on this to members. A review of the adequacy and 

effectiveness of internal audit will take place in 2011/12. 

 

For each audit where controls have been analysed, Internal Audit issues an assurance 

statement which indicates the level of assurance that management  can place on the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls.  For 2010/11, four levels of assurance 

were used:  Two positive levels, ‘substantial’ and ‘adequate’ assurance; and two negative 

levels, ‘limited’ and ‘no assurance’.  In each report Internal Audit may also make control 

improvement recommendations, rated High, Medium or Low. 

 

For 2010/11 one hundred and eleven assurance reviews were undertaken.  Of the 98 of 

these where an opinion on internal controls was issued only 7% (21% in 2009/10) were 

issued with a negative level of assurance, and no ‘no assurance’ opinions were issued.  In 

respect of recommendations made 4% were high (5% in 2009/10) and 58% medium (47% 

in 2009/10). 

 

The key financial systems are fundamental to the operation of the Council, so it is 

important that these systems have robust internal control mechanisms and operate 

effectively. The Head of Audit and Risk confirmed that all of these key financial systems 

have been issued with a positive assurance level for 2010/11.  In all but two cases these 

Page 179



 

 9

systems have either maintained or improved their assurance level on 2009/10.  There 

were specific reasons for the two which declined slightly, cash collection and NNDR, and 

both systems retained their positive assurance level.  Fixed Assets was not reviewed by 

internal audit during 2010/11 due to the implementation of a new system at the year-end.  

For this year only, this work will therefore be picked up directly by the External Auditors. 

 

Overall the Council is maintaining an adequate and effective system of internal audit.  

Internal audit has identified areas where internal controls can be strengthened and 

reported that, on the whole the Council is managing its operational risk effectively. 

 

The processes and controls required to manage risks  

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 highlight the Council’s responsibility 

for ensuring it has in place a sound system of internal control which includes 

arrangements for the management of risk. 

 

There is a robust risk strategy and framework, reviewed and updated in 2010/11, in place 

to manage risks. All services must maintain an operational risk register aligned to their 

service plan objectives. Risks are recorded and reported using the Council’s main 

performance management system – Performance Plus.  The risk registers record 

significant risks and score them in terms of impact and likelihood.  Target scores are set 

and mitigation actions identified and monitored. 

 

Directorate risk registers are considered in detail at least quarterly at Directorate 

Management Teams.  Key risks within the directorate and corporate risk registers are then 

subject to quarterly reviews by the Risk Management Working Party and the Internal 

Control Board. The Internal Control Board is chaired by an independent ‘non executive’ 

person (Bill Roots, a former London local authority Chief Executive) and comprises the 

Executive Management Team, Head of Law (Monitoring Officer), Head of Audit and Risk 

and Group Manager for Insurance and Risk. Risks are updated quarterly and are tracked 

through the monthly management report which summarises key risks and mitigation 

actions taken.  

 

Risk Management is embedded within the Council’s approach to programme and project 

management.  Project risks are regularly reviewed by Project Review Groups and 

Corporate Project Board. Risks for the whole capital programme are reviewed and 

updated quarterly. Members are involved in scrutinising risks with updates of the Capital 

Programme considered regularly by Public Accounts Select Committee and reported to 

Mayor & Cabinet. 

 

In addition for 2010/11 to support better decision making, with the significant savings 

proposals considered and agreed by members, specific attention was given to identifying, 

assessing the key risks for each proposal submitted as part of the budget setting process. 

 

RSM Tenon, the Council’s independent internal audit contractor, carried out an annual risk 

maturity review (which reported in May 2011) and has assessed the Council as 

maintaining its ‘managed’ approach to risk. 

Page 180



 

 10

The 2009/10 Annual Audit Letter, issued by the Audit Commission’s appointed auditor 

concluded that the Council “has effective risk management systems which are well 

integrated across the whole of the council and includes partnership working”.  

 

g) Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit 

Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities 

The Audit Panel is made up of six elected members and up to four independent advisors 

and meets at least quarterly. A key role of the panel is to review and comment on the 

strategy, plans and resources of Internal Audit. Internal Audit update reports are received 

by the panel on a quarterly basis, summarising the audit reports issued, management’s 

progress on implementing internal audit recommendations, and the performance of the 

Internal Audit function. Update reports on the activities of the Anti-fraud and Corruption 

Team are also received by the panel on a quarterly basis. The panel receive the annual 

report of the Council’s Head of Audit and Risk. 

 

The panel consider and monitor the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management 

arrangements, the control environment and associated anti-fraud and anti-corruption 

arrangements. In terms of external assurance, the panel consider the external auditor’s 

Annual Plan, other relevant external reports which contribute to the level of assurance. 

The panel monitors management action in response to issues raised by internal and 

external audit, and significant issues identified by these are included in the action plan 

appended to this statement. 

 

The panel also consider the Council’s annual Statement of Accounts and this Statement 

and makes comments on those to the meeting of the Full Council that considers the 

accounts.  

 

h) Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 

procedures, and that expenditure is lawful  

The duties of the Head of Law (Monitoring Officer) are defined in the Constitution. The 

Monitoring Officer attends Mayor and Cabinet and Full Council meetings and regularly 

briefs EMT, Members and relevant staff on corporate legislative developments.  In 2011, 

the Head of Law has briefed EMT, Members and relevant staff on the current position in 

relation to the Localism Bill and the possible impact that it could possibility have on the 

organisation.  The Head of Law has also briefed EMT, Members and relevant staff on the 

Bribery Act 2010, which came into force on 1st July 2011.   

 

Legal advice is incorporated in every report and advice on proper process is a regular 

feature of that. Where gaps or non-compliance are identified, appropriate action is taken 

(e.g. in response to Freedom of Information compliance issues, alternative procedural 

arrangements were put in place to enhance performance). Reports do not proceed unless 

robust legal implications on all matters have been considered and are included in the 

report. Experienced professional legal staff are employed by the Council.   

 

The financial management of the authority is conducted in accordance with financial 

regulations set out in the Constitution. The Council has designated the Executive Director 

Page 181



 

 11

of Resources as Chief Finance Officer in accordance with Section 151 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 and to discharge the responsibilities under Section 114 of the Local 

Government Act 1998 and Sections 25-28 of the Local Government Act 2003 in relation to 

the Chief Financial Officer’s statutory duties. The Chief Finance Officer advises on the 

proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs, keeping proper financial records 

and maintaining effective systems of financial control. These duties are reflected in the job 

description of the Executive Director for Resources which are set out at Article 14 of the 

Constitution. Financial implications are included in all committee reports and form an 

integral part of the information needed to aid the decision making process.  

 
The Pensions Investment Committee has agreed a Governance Policy Statement which 

sets out how the Committee exercises its fiduciary duty to members of the Pension Fund. 

The Committee’s governance arrangements include the appointment of an independent 

Custodian Bank responsible for the safe custody of the Fund’s assets, the appointment of 

an independent investment advisor, independent actuary and investment consultant, 

Hymans Robertson. The Committee will review its Statement of Investment Principles in 

accordance with the CIPFA’s Pensions Panel Principles of Investment decision making.  

 

i) Whistle-blowing and procedures for receiving and investigating complaints from the 

public  

The Council has a whistle-blowing policy in place which is widely publicised on the 

Council’s website and in ‘Lewisham Life’. Complaints made under this policy are handled 

by the Head of Law (Monitoring Officer) and an annual review is considered by the 

Standards Committee (March 2011).  

 

j) Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in relation to 

their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training 

The overall aim of the Members’ Development Programme is to ensure that all members 

have access to the training and development opportunities they need to fulfil their 

responsibilities to the local community and provide clear leadership and effective scrutiny 

of local Council functions. The 2010-11 personal development programme and general 

member development programme have both been completed and an initial induction 

programme for new Members has been undertaken.  

 

This is recognised as best practice and feedback from members indicates the programme 

has helped them considerably in carrying out their roles.’  

 

The 2009/10 Annual Audit Letter recognised the training Members were receiving, stating 

that the Council ‘has strong governance arrangements in place, such as a development 

and training programme for members, and is able to demonstrate that these have led to a 

wide range of positive outcomes’.  

 

The Head of Personnel and Development has responsibility for the development needs of 

senior officers. The Monitoring Officer also plays a key role in ensuring that senior officers 

are aware of their statutory duties and changes in legislation. At the start of the financial 

year the Chief Executive defines objectives for each of the Executive Directors. These are 

Page 182



 

 12

then cascaded to officers throughout the organisation through the Performance Evaluation 

Scheme.  

 

k) Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community 

and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation  

Lewisham has an open and outward facing culture that is clearly focussed on the needs of 

our residents and facilitated by an exceptionally strong and diverse approach to 

engagement and consultation.  

 

The Council’s engagement activity is overseen by the Communications and Consultation 

Board. The Board operates at senior Head of Service Level and provides a strategic steer 

on the communication and consultation agendas within the Council. It is supported by its 

subsidiary, the Consultation Steering Group, which draws representation from across the 

Council and supports effective resident engagement at an operational level.  

 

These arrangements are underpinned by the Council’s Framework for Engagement (2009-

2012). This sets in place shared principles for engagement, which were also agreed at a 

partnership level through the Stronger Communities Partnership.  

 

In support of this, and to provide increased channels through which citizens are engaged, 

the Council continues to promote e-Participation by implementing a new online 

engagement system. This system provides the platform through which citizens can 

respond to online consultations as well as set up and respond to e-Petitions. Other 

channels of engagement include the 18 ward-level Area Assemblies which came into 

operation in 2008 and are open to anybody living or working in the ward, and the Young 

Citizens Panel which enables any young person aged 11-18 years either living or studying 

in the borough to join. 

 

The Audit Commission awarded Lewisham a “green flag” for community engagement and 

empowerment of local people, in their 2009 Area Assessment. They concluded that 

‘empowering and involving local people is at the heart of the way public sector 

partnerships work in Lewisham to improve the area as a place to live. Partners have an 

excellent track record of involving local people, including those who are less likely to be 

active in the local community.’ 

  

l) Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other 

group working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of 

partnerships, and reflecting these in the authority’s overall governance 

arrangements  

The Council acts in a number of partnerships with a view to improving the quality of life for 

local people. These partnerships take a variety of forms, from large scale contracting, as in 

the case of the Building Schools for the Future programme, to strategic alliances such as 

the Lewisham Strategic Partnership (LSP). The Council has used the Audit Commission 

report on the governance of partnerships to provide a framework to assess its 

arrangements in relation to partnership working.  

 

Page 183



 

 13

As a first stage in that process, the Head of Law (Monitoring Officer) conducted an 

exercise in relation to several of the most significant partnerships in the borough and 

reported those findings to the Internal Control Board. In February 2009, a detailed audit of 

all of the Council’s major partnerships and contractual arrangements was reported to the 

EMT and to ICB. In response, EMT required all Directorates to consider partnership 

governance arrangements, and particularly the business continuity arrangements of those 

partnerships, as a standing item at Directorate Management Team meetings. In November 

2009, the Chief Executive presented a paper to ICB which assessed the main risks to the 

partnerships within each of Lewisham’s six Sustainable Community Strategy priority 

themes.  

 

As part of the review of the Local Code in 2009 the Standards Committee accepted a 

recommendation to extend the Code to include a provision to ensure that the Council has 

robust and effective mechanisms to ensure partnerships are effectively governed and that 

partnership risks are identified and managed.  

 

In November 2009, Standards Committee considered a new “Standards in Partnership” 

protocol that has been developed by Standards for England. Adherence to this protocol is 

intended to ensure that the aims of the partnership can be fulfilled effectively and the 

public can have confidence in the operation of the partnership.  

 

The Standing Committee made a recommendation to refer this partnership protocol to the 

LSP, where it was considered in December 2009. The LSP reviewed its Terms of 

Reference and Code of Conduct in 2010 in order to reflect the good practice set out in the 

new Standards for England partnership protocol.  

 

4.  Review of effectiveness 

 

Lewisham has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness 

of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of 

effectiveness is informed by the work of executive managers within the authority who have 

responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the 

Head of Internal Audit and Risk’s annual report, and also by comments made by the 

external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

 

The process by which the governance framework has been maintained and reviewed is 

widespread. It occurs throughout the year and at year end. On an ongoing basis, 

throughout the year, it has involved the following: 

 

� Consideration by Internal Control Board of governance issues – including risk 

registers, counter-fraud updates and internal audit reports.   

 

� The Head of Audit and Risk prepares a rolling plan of audit coverage to be achieved 

in the forthcoming year, based in primarily on an assessment of the Council’s risk 

profile.  The plan is reviewed by the Internal Control Board.  

Page 184



 

 14

 

� The Audit Panel receives the Internal Audit Strategy and approves the annual audit 

plan. 

 

� The Audit Panel receives the annual assurance report from the Head of Audit & Risk 

which set out his opinion on the Council’s overall control environment. 

 

� The Audit Panel reports on its work to the Public Accounts Select Committee twice a 

year. 

 

� Executive Management Team (EMT) consider a full range of governance issues 

throughout the year, including issues relating to the improvement of the Internal Audit 

Service. EMT scrutinise performance and risk regularly and ensure management 

action where necessary.  

 

� The Standards Committee considered the efficiency of the Council’s complaints 

handling system and the effectiveness of the Whistle Blowing Policy. In June 2010 it 

considered the review of the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance, and in 

November 2010 it reviewed Member compliance with the Member Code of Conduct. 

 

� The Independent Remuneration Panel made recommendations to the Council about 

the accountability and effectiveness of Members.  

 

� Consideration of external audit reports conducted in year by Mayor and Cabinet, Audit 

Panel and relevant Select Committees. 

 

� Constitution Working Party undertook a review of the Constitution in its entirety in 

March 2009 which led to amendments to the Constitution in line with the Local 

Government and Public Involvement Act 2007. It also considered the reviews 

undertaken by the Independent Remuneration Panel and referred those to Full 

Council.  

 

At year end, the review of the effectiveness of the governance framework is 

conducted under the auspices of the Chief Executive by a team of officers 

consisting of: 

 

� Kath Nicholson: Head of Law and Monitoring Officer 

� Troy Robinson: Standards & Education Law Advisor 

� Barrie Neal: Head of Corporate Policy and Governance 

� David Austin: Interim Head of Audit and Risk 

� Annabel Saunders: Principal Policy Officer 

� Caroline Doyle: Principal Policy Officer 

 

The AGS working party have met regularly since March 2008. Officers have been drawn 

from across the council to represent key areas of expertise in governance and internal 

control matters. The terms of reference for the group are as follows:   

Page 185



 

 15

 

� To provide expertise in the development of the AGS on governance and internal 

control matters 

� To analyse CIPFA/SOLACE guidance in relation to the development of the Annual 

Governance Statement 

� To collate evidence from across the organisation relating to CIPFA/SOLACE 

guidance 

� To evaluate evidence collated and identify areas for action 

� To compile an action plan of significant governance issues 

� To develop the Annual Governance Statement to be incorporated in the Statement of 

Accounts on an annual basis 

� To ensure that the AGS is signed off appropriately through the council’s key control 

mechanisms: EMT, Standards Committee, Audit Panel, Internal Control Board and 

Full Council 

� To review the Annual Governance Statement and arrangements for governance and 

internal control throughout the year 

 

The process by which the governance provisions are reviewed at year end includes: 

 

� The consideration by EMT members on the 2nd June 2010 of a draft Annual 

Governance Statement. Where any gaps have been identified in evidence gathering, 

these are addressed in the action plan outlined in Appendix 2. EMT also consider the 

outcome and action plans of external inspections and audit, using those to address 

any significant governance issues for the future.  

 

� Preparation of the Accounts and the Head of Audit and Risk’s Annual Report and 

consideration of these and the Annual Governance Statement by the Council’s Audit 

Panel on 22nd June 2011. 

 

� A review of the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance by the Standards 

Committee on the 21st June 2011, with reference to CIPFA/Solace Guidance.  

 

� Referral of the Annual Governance Statement to full Council with the Statement of 

Accounts, and advice from Audit Panel on the 21st September 2011. 

 

� Sign off by the Chair of the Council and Chief Executive, once approved. 

 

5.  Significant governance issues 

 

Actions taken to deal with governance issues during the course of 2010/11 are referred to 

at section 3 of this statement.  

 

We propose over the coming year (2011/12) to take steps to address significant 

governance issues which have been identified through the annual review and through 

Page 186



 

 16

external assessment and inspection. These issues are set out at Annexe 1 along with the 

actions proposed to address the need for improvement.  

 

We intend to monitor their implementation, operation and effectiveness as part of our next 

annual review. To do this regularly throughout 2011/12 it is proposed that the officer team 

dealing with governance arrangements meet quarterly and report on progress to the 

EMT/Internal Control Board and/or Audit Panel on relevant issues.  

 

 

Signed: ………..................…………………………………………………………………… 

Leading Member (or equivalent) & Chief Executive (or equivalent) on 

behalf of [the authority] 

 

 

 

 

Page 187



 

17 

Appendix 2 

 

Significant governance issues - Action Plan 

 

Issue 
Decent Homes 

Further reduce the gap between Lewisham and national expectations for the decent homes 
standard 

Action Continue to monitor progress in delivering the Housing Strategy action plan  

External 

Assurance Link 
Annual Audit Letter 2010 

Desired 

Outcomes 

A reduction in the gap between the proportion of homes in Lewisham that meet the Decent 

Homes Standard, and the proportion of homes that do so nationally 

Timescales March 2012 

Lead Officer Genevieve Macklin 

Notes 

 

Progress to date: 
This is an ongoing action from the 2009/10 action plan. It originated in the recommendations 

made by the Audit Commission’s appointed auditor in the 2008 Annual Audit Letter:  

 

"The Council needs to ensure that its strong partnerships and effective leadership lead to a 

step change in outcomes…it should concentrate in particular on further reducing the gaps 

between national expectations for educational outcomes, health inequalities and decent homes 

standards and those in Lewisham". 

 

Brockley PFI (Regenter B3) 

The PFI has achieved 100% decency in this programme.  

 

Lewisham Homes (ALMO): 

The level of non-decency in 2010/11 within Lewisham Homes’ stock was 56%. 

 

Stock Transfers: 

• By end of June 2011 Phoenix Community Housing had a non decency level of 29%. 

• L&Q has achieved 100% decency at Grove Park. 

• Forest Hill & Sydenham, Rushey Green and Catford transferred to L&Q in October 2010.  

Since transfer L&Q has made 1022 tenanted homes decent with 58% remaining non-

decent. 

• Broomleigh (Affinity Sutton) has achieved 100% decency at Orchard Estate and Village 

Court. 

• In the year 2010/11 Broomleigh (Affinity Sutton) had made 177 tenanted homes decent 

across Newstead Road Estate and Leybridge Court (Lee Transfer) with 298 home 

remaining non-decent. 

 

Next steps: 
Lewisham Homes (ALMO) 

• The Homes & Communities Agency (HCA) announced the allocations for Decent Homes 

Backlog Funding in February 2011 and awarded Lewisham £94.5 million over 4 years, 

which was the second highest settlement in England. The allocations for 2013/14 and 

Page 188



 

18 

2014/15 are provisional allocations which are not guaranteed and could be subject to 

change.  Lewisham Homes have agreed to take £3 million of next years backlog funding 

allocation this year.  This additional funding will raise the number of homes made decent in 

2011/12 from 744 to 993. 

 

Stock Transfers 

• Phoenix Community Housing are due to complete decent homes works by December 

2012. 

• Broomleigh (Affinity Sutton) will complete decent homes works at Newstead Road Estate 

and Leybridge Court by 2012. 

• L&Q are scheduled to complete decent homes works at Forest Hill, Sydenham, Rushey 

Green and Catford by October 2014. 

 

 

 

Issue 
Households in Temporary Accommodation 
Reduce the numbers of households in temporary accommodation. 

Action 
Put in place robust systems for the management of homeless applications and the allocation of 

temporary accommodation, reduce the number of households in temporary accommodation. 

External 

Assurance Link 
National Indicator 156 

Desired 

Outcomes 
Maintain the number of households in temporary accommodation at  877 during 2011/12 

Timescales March 2012 

Lead Officer Genevieve Macklin 

Notes 

 
Progress to date: 
This is an ongoing action from the 2009/10 action plan.  
 
In line with the TA reduction plan agreed with the CLG, In 2008/09, the numbers of households 
in temporary accommodation reduced by 696, the third largest drop in London. In percentage 
terms at 28% the reduction was the 6th most improved.  This trend has been sustained with 
the numbers in temporary accommodation reducing by a further 566 between April 2009 and 
March 2010.  The1242 households in temporary accommodation at the end of March was 
below the target set out in the TA reduction plan agreed with CLG. At the end of December 
2010 there were 957 households in temporary accommodation, 80 short of the target.  
 
The numbers in temporary accommodation have been reduced by a range of different actions. 
The starting point is early identification of issues and active homeless prevention to sustain 
people in their accommodation.  This includes working with private tenants who are 
experiencing issues with their landlords, mediation with parents and young people and a whole 
range of other steps.  Lewisham's levels of homeless prevention have increased steadily 
through 2008-9 and into 2010-11.  Where households cannot be sustained in existing 
accommodation they are offered advice about a range of options including how to rent 
privately, shared ownership and other intermediate housing products, mobility schemes and 
supported housing options and often this results in homelessness being prevented as well.   
 
It is the range of these actions, as part of a clear strategy and action plan, which has led to the 
reduction in numbers. This has not been at the expense of the suitability of the accommodation 
offered. 
 
At the end of June 2011 there were 989 households in temporary accommodation, an increase 

Page 189



 

19 

of 42 since the end of April.  This shows a continued trend for increasing numbers, which is 
mirrored across London, with a number of boroughs showing significantly greater increases 
than those in Lewisham. Causes include an increased level of approaches from homeless 
households but also, a reduction in the number of permanent social housing offers made to 
those in temporary accommodation.  A permanent housing offer is one of the primary ways the 
homelessness duty is brought to an end and the numbers in temporary accommodation 
reduce.  Social housing re-lets have been reducing for more than a year.  Offers of new build 
social housing have helped to sustain the supply of accommodation but in 2011/12 much of the 
delivery of the new build programme is in the last quarter of the year. 
 
Next steps: 
During 2011-12 the service aims to sustain numbers at existing levels.  Whilst the national 
indicator is no longer in place it is clearly prudent to sustain numbers in temporary 
accommodation at a lower level and this remains a key objective for the service area.  
Progress against the target is being monitored within Customer Services Management team 
and through a range of activity being overseen by a Customer Services Programme Board, 
which includes a range of service transformation projects aimed at improving homeless 
prevention and resolution of housing need issues and improvements in the costs and quality of 
temporary accommodation where it is used. 
 
Projects are currently focussing on the assessment process, to ensure homeless applications 
are dealt with swiftly and effectively and changing the balance of temporary accommodation 
used, to ensure less use of emergency bed & breakfast type accommodation which is costly 
and does not support providing settled situations for families.  There is also a focus on 
increasing the availability of private rented homes available for temporary accommodation and 
prevention placements.  The use of private rented accommodation across London to meet 
housing need has been affected by pressures on the housing market.  Reduced levels of new 
home ownership/mortgages has led to more households accessing private rented homes as 
and alternative, which is having a knock on impact on the availability of rented homes for our 
client groups and schemes. 

 

 

Issue 
Impact of the Recession  
Assess and monitor the impact of the Recession. 

Action 
Assess and monitor the impact of the Recession on the Building Schools for the Future, 

housing and town centre regeneration programmes.  

External 

Assurance Link 
Annual Audit Letter 2010 

Desired 

Outcomes 

Accurate and timely monitoring of risks to delivery provides basis for well-informed decision 

making. 

Timescales March 2012 

Lead Officer Steve Gough 

Notes 

 
Progress to date: 
This is an ongoing action from the 2009/10 action plan. It originated in the recommendations 
made by the Audit Commission’s appointed auditor in the 2008 Annual Audit Letter:  
 
"The Council needs to assess and monitor the impact of the economic downturn on demand-
led services and its regeneration programmes, especially Building Schools for the Future, 
housing and the Lewisham Town Centre development project” 
 
In February 2011 Mayor & Cabinet agreed the 2011-12 Budget that included the following 
update on the risks associated with the 2011-16 Capital Programme: 

The risks to the programme have changed over the last 12 months. Then, the risks associated 
with the housing market, contractor failure and securing adequate project management skills 

Page 190



 

20 

were identified. The housing market risk remains and, following the cuts in social housing 
funding, has probably grown in significance. Construction prices are currently low with tender 
returns regularly below estimates. Constructors are squeezing their supply chains and profit 
margins in order to win work and this can leave them prone to financial failure. Officers will 
continue to assess financial risks before appointing any major contractors to schemes. 

Primary school places remain a key concern. It is estimated that the short term growth in pupil 
numbers across the borough could lead to a requirement for up to 18 additional forms of entry 
by September 2011. Some permanent expansion has been agreed and the rebuild of both 
Gordonbrock and Brockley schools is now in progress but, these measures fall short of the 
projected needs. £16.338 million of Department for Education capital has been allocated in 
2011/12 and officers are currently considering how this should be allocated. 

Capital resources have been reviewed in detail following the publishing of the Comprehensive 
Spending Review and the other announcements from the government about cuts. It was 
announced that there would be significant cuts to capital funding of around 45%. Full details of 
what this means in practice are still to be announced, it is known that there will be no revenue 
support for borrowing after 2010/11. 

The Council’s Capital Programme includes a number of complex programmes such as Building 
Schools for the Future, Customer Services transformation and the redevelopment of Deptford 
and Catford Town Centres, where skilled programme and project management are required to 
successfully deliver to time and cost. The Council’s current successful approach to the 
development of internal capacity remains vulnerable to pressures from across the market for 
highly skilled programme and project managers. 
 
Next steps: 

The risks associated with the impact of the Recession on key elements of the Council’s Capital 
Programme will continue to be monitored at scheme level (via Project Review Groups and 
Corporate Project Boards) and reported quarterly to Mayor & Cabinet. 

 

 

 

Issue 

Impact of public sector spending cuts  
The delivery of the Council’s multi-year strategy to manage a fundamental financial restructure 

needs to be monitored, and impacts on public services and Council employees must be limited. 

Action 
Monitor the delivery of the Council’s multi-year financial strategy.  

External 

Assurance Link 
Annual Audit Letter  

Desired 

Outcomes 

The Council’s financial strategy is effectively monitored and impacts on public services and 

Council employees as a result of the financial restructuring are limited. 

Timescales March 2012 

Lead Officer Conrad Hall  

Notes 

 
Progress to date: 
On the 23rd May 2010, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced £6.2bn of public sector 

spending cuts. The key point in this announcement for Local Government was that there would 

be immediate in-year reductions of £1.165bn in individual grants.  

 

A report on the £3.295m in-year reductions that Lewisham would need to make as a result of 

these public sector spending cuts went to the Public Accounts Committee on the 13 July 2010 

and Mayor & Cabinet on the 14 July. This report set out the impact on services that would arise 

from making over £3m savings. 

 

Page 191



 

21 

The Spending Review was announced on 20 October 2010, setting departmental expenditure 

limits (DEL) for each Government department for the 4 year period from 2011/12 to 2014/15. 

The  Spending Review announced that overall revenue funding to Local Authorities will reduce 

by 26% in real terms by 2014-15 and the cuts over the four year period will be significantly 

front-loaded. 

 

The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was announced on 13 December 2010. 

The Settlement was the first part of two 2 year settlements and covers the periods of 2011-12 

and 2012-13. The average reduction in formula grant across England is 9.9% in 2011/2012 

and 7.3% in 2012/2013. 

 

Lewisham’s formula grant has reduced by 10.6% in 2011/20/12 and 7.8% in 2012/2013. 

 

The council agreed its 2011/12 budget on 1
st
 March 2011.  Savings of £20.467m were agreed 

for that year, and further budget savings of £8.878m and £3.356m agreed in principle for years 

2012/13 and 2013/14.  Achievement of the savings will be tracked through the council’s budget 

monitoring system, and the first set of full forecasts will be available at the end of June 2011. 

 

In 2010/11 the budget was delivered with a net underspend of £1.7m. 

 

Next steps: 
Further savings may be required for years from 2012/13 onwards.  The council is considering 

its approach to future efficiency requirements and closely tracking government funding 

announcements. 

 

An update on the medium term Financial Strategy will be presented to Mayor & Cabinet in the 

Autumn by the Executive Director for Resources.  

   

 

 

Issue 
Health & Safety 

Compliance with appropriate standards of Health & Safety 

Action 
To identify the appropriate standard for Health & Safety to which the Council should apply and 

achieve compliance with it 

External 

Assurance Link 
British Standard OHSAS 18001 

Desired 

Outcomes 

All Directorates to be compliant with the requirements of the BS OHSAS 18001 for the 

management of Health & Safety in the Council  

Timescales December 2012 

Lead Officer David Austin / Executive Directors 

Notes 

 

Progress to date: 

This is an ongoing action from the 2009/10 action plan. 

 

In line with BS OHSAS 18001 the Council’s single Health & Safety (H&S) management system 

has been implemented corporately and in each of the Directorates with one exception – the 

Children and Young People Directorate, Schools.  This is pending Schools moving to a 

common technology platform with the Council. 

Page 192



 

22 

 

The Corporate H&S Team and the governance of H&S has been restructured to focus on the 

critical activities to maintaining a single effective and consistent risk based approach to H&S 

across the Council.  A H&S Board has been created to oversee both corporate and directorate 

H&S risks.  The Corporate H&S team is now focused on: 

• developing and maintaining a full set of H&S policies and guidance in line with BS OHSAS 

18001 to meet statutory requirements;   

• communicating H&S priorities and good practice (including coordinating training for and 

providing advice to directorates); 

• conducting risk based audits and capturing and reporting on all H&S accidents, incidents 

and near misses. 

 

The Council’s internal audit service completed an advisory review in 2010/11 of the Corporate 

H&S policies, management system and compliance with legislative requirements.  This 

highlighted some areas for continued operational improvement within the H&S system. 

 

Next steps: 

The Corporate H&S team will: 

• continue to support and monitor the implementation of the H&S management system in 

the Children and Young People directorate; 

• work with directorate H&S management nominees to implement the recommendations 

from the H&S review by December 2011, and maintain and strengthen H&S practices 

across the Council through the business as usual activities identified above. 

 

 

 

Issue 
Business Continuity Management 

Strengthen the Council’s business continuity arrangements.  

Action 

The Emergency Planning / Business Continuity Manager, and Directorate business continuity 

leads to implement the recommendations contained in the audit report by Kiln House 

Associates Ltd dated 12 May 2010. 

External 

Assurance Link 
Procedures to be reviewed by the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM Tenon.  

Desired 

Outcomes 

Robust business continuity arrangements established and their effectiveness tested on a 

regular basis. 

Timescales 
March 2012 - all recommendations have been implemented except for specific ICT related 

recommendations where work is in progress. 

Lead Officer Malcolm J Smith / Ralph Wilkinson 

Notes 

 

Progress to date: 

This action originated from the draft business continuity management audit report produced by 
Kiln House Associates Ltd which assesses the Council's Business Continuity arrangements 
against the requirements of BS25999.  The audit report said that the Council can take limited 
assurance that the Business Continuity Management system as currently set out is effective.  
The report made 37 recommendations for action. 
 
Significant progress has been made since the audit.  All services have conducted a business 
impact assessment and produced a business continuity plan.  Some critical services have 
already had their plan tested.  An on line tool has been developed to aid services with business 
continuity.  The Council now records all business continuity incidents and reviews them to 
establish trends, learn lessons and take action where appropriate. 

Page 193



 

23 

 
During the recent London riots the Council’s emergency and business continuity arrangements 
held up extremely well. Robust command and control structures were quickly put in place to 
provide assurances that critical services, particularly those to the most vulnerable, continued 
and that our response ensured that our staff, clients and key assets were protected. 
Arrangements are now focusing on the recovery stage, particularly support and assisting 
affected businesses. 
 
Three recommendations remain outstanding (on records management and systems disaster 
recovery) where work is in progress which is monitored by the Business Continuity 
Coordinators Group chaired by Malcolm Smith.  The next review meeting is now on the 5

th
 

November 2011. 
 

Next steps: 

Work will continue to complete the three outstanding actions from the audit.  
 
Testing of critical service business continuity plans will continue using local table top exercises.  
The lessons learnt from these will be included in updated plans.  Although Council wide 
exercises have been used in the past to test plans the local exercises are proving much more 
effective. 
 
Work to prepare services for the challenges of the London Olympics 2012 period is underway.  
A robust action plan is in place and is continually being updated.  Progress is being monitored 
by the ‘London 2012 Logistics Working Group’ chaired by Hilary Renwick. 
 
An on line reporting tool to record and monitor all business continuity incidents will be 
developed this summer.  The tool will make it easier to record incidents, trends and establish 
appropriate actions as well as making the corporate Business Continuity and Risk working 
groups aware of such risks.  
 

 
 

Issue Improving the quality of auditable grant claims  

Action 
To implement the recommendations of the Audit Commission’s report on grant claims for 

2008/09. 

External 

Assurance Link 
Audit Commission report on grant claims for 2009/10 

Desired 

Outcomes 

To improve the quality of grant claims submitted to the Audit Commission and thereby reducing 

the total amount of external audit fees for 2009/10. 

Timescales By March 2011 and annually thereafter 

Lead Officer Steve Mace and Directorate Lead Officers for individual grants 

Notes 

 

Progress to date: 

The District Auditor stated at the Audit Panel on 23 December that the grants audit process 
had improved from last year.  The general direction of auditable grant claims is good, however 
there are some grants where there is still room for improvement (e.g. teacher’s pensions). 
There will be close collaboration by Finance staff and Directorate lead officers in the 
submission of grant claims and the subsequent response to audit queries.  
 
The forecast outturn for external audit fees in the last financial year is £130k. This is a 
reduction of £50k on the previous year.  This has been achieved by a mixture of fewer grants 
and better liaison with the Audit Commission. 
 

Page 194



 

24 

Next steps: 

Progress will be monitored throughout 2011/12. 
 

 

Issue 
Closing of Accounts 

Close the Council’s financial accounts on time.  

Action 

 

Although the accounts closed on time for 2009/10, the introduction of the International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) will add considerable complexity and increase the risk of 

closing in a timely fashion. 

External 

Assurance Link 
External auditors of the Statement of Accounts. 

Desired 

Outcomes 
Accounts produced on time and without significant issues arising from the audit. 

Timescales September 2011 

Lead Officer Conrad Hall 

Notes 

 

Progress to date: 

The draft accounts were completed on time and although no longer statutorily required to be 
approved by Members at this stage, they were nonetheless presented to the Audit Panel 
before the end of June. 
 

Next steps: 

The audit is currently progressing, and as to be expected some issues have arisen which are 
being discussed with the auditor. This is a normal process in the audit of accounts of any large 
and complex organisation such as a London Borough. We expect the auditors to complete their 
audit in time to meet statutory deadline.  The formal report on the audit and the final accounts, 
will be presented to Members for approval in September.  
 

 

Issue Ongoing review of the Annual Governance Statement 

Action 

The AGS working party will continue to meet on a regular basis through 2011/12 to review 

progress against the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan. 

 

Reports on progress will be submitted to EMT members and ICB as appropriate 

Desired 

Outcomes 

The AGS working party act as an effective body to ensure the ongoing review and 

improvement of governance arrangements. 

Timescales Quarterly meetings in 2011/12; reporting to EMT members and ICB as required 

Lead Officer Kath Nicholson, Barrie Neal, David Austin 

Notes 

 

Progress to date: 

The AGS working group met at the end August 2011 to discuss and agree AGS report and 
progress against the 2011/12 action plan.   
 
The 2010/11 Annual Governance Statement is updated annually.  It is circulated to ICB (which 
includes EMT members), Audit Panel and Full Council for review and sign off, in line with the 
required timescales. 

Page 195



 

25 

 

Next steps: 

Complete the work to update the Council’s Constitution, Codes of Conduct and related 
corporate policies (including; counter fraud, whistle blowing, procurement) to ensure they 
reflect, and members and officers receive awareness training in, the requirements of the 
Bribery Act 2010 which took full effect from the 1July 2011.  The Act defines the offences 
relating to individuals offering or receiving a bribe and the corporate responsibilities of the 
Council to prevent bribery through effective governance arrangements.   
 
The AGS working group will continue to meet during 2011/12. It will consider progress with this 
action plan and will report to EMT members and ICB as appropriate. It will also be responsible 
for updating and reporting the 2010/11 Annual Governance Statement in line with required 
timescales.  
 

 

Issue 
Information Management & Security 
Compliance with appropriate standards of Information Management & Security (IM&S) 

Action 
To identify and comply with the appropriate standards for Information Management & Security 

AGS Criteria Objective 2 & 3 

External 

Assurance Link 
ICO/Internal Audit/ Audit Commission 

Desired 

Outcomes 
Robust IM&S activities established, documented and complied with by all council officers 

Timescales December 2012 

Lead Officer Georgina Chambers (Corporate Information and Records Manager) 

Notes 

 

Progress to date: 

 
The Corporate Information Management Team have identified relevant IM&S legislation and 
standards and are currently reviewing all IM&S policies to ensure they accurately reflect 
identified requirements and that officers are aware of their responsibilities. The Security 
policies are currently being updated as a result. We have started a publicity campaign to raise 
awareness of information security with communications published on 'News for You'. We are 
working with Capita to deliver encryption to all our technical assets and media encryption will 
be delivered to all staff within the next 6 weeks. This will provide assurance that any portable 
devices in use are encrypted. 
 
The new Information Management course will be formally launched in September. The FOI 
report has been expanded to include reporting on Data Protection matters.  
 
We have an Information Asset Register that identifies all the Councils Information Assets and 
names the relevant responsible information owners, and provides the frame work for future 
developments. Currently we are working with a group of approx 25 asset owners and have 
identified a range of measures needed to ensure compliance: these are being implemented 
now. A report on progress will be presented to the IM&T board in September. 
 
The recent re-organisation of the Technology & Transformation Division has created a new 
Information Management Team bringing together the relevant disciplines: strategy for the IM&T 
division, Data protection, Access to Information, Information Security, Records Management, 
Information Sharing, Compliance with Code of Connection and Enterprise Architecture. 
 

 

Page 196



 

26 

Next steps: 

The Information Management Team will: 

• continue to review IM&S policies: identify legislation and standards we work to and how we 
meet their requirements. Get signed acceptance from officers; 

• get the framework right and align policies and procedures (use of IT, USBs, drives, clear 
desk policy, information sharing, records management including retention and disposal);   

• raise awareness of risk and personal responsibility for information we handle by working 
with Information Asset Owners, through comms and training. We will ensure officers know 
the safest way to work with personal information, including knowing how to identify the 
category of sensitive personal information and know the extra care needed when working 
with it; 

• assess and monitor compliance through management information, audits and other 
channels where appropriate. 

 

 

 

Page 197



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 

re
p

o
rt

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

L
e
w

is
h

a
m

 

A
u

d
it

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

Page 198



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

 C
o

n
te

n
ts

K
e

y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

3

A
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.3

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

3

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.4

A
u

d
it
 c

lo
s
u

re
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
4

B
e

fo
re

 I
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.5

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.6

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.6

E
rr

o
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.6

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.1

3

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 D

ra
ft

 a
u

d
it

 r
e

p
o

rt
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
1

5

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.2

0

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 –
 U

n
a

d
ju

s
te

d
 m

is
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

.2
3

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

 –
 l

e
tt

e
r 

o
f 

re
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
2

5

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

 –
 A

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

2
8

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

 –
 G

lo
s

s
a

ry
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
3

0
 T

ra
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
t 
e

x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 

R
e

d
  

  
  

  
  

 A
m

b
e

r 
  

  
  

  
  

G
re

e
n

 

Page 199



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
3

 K
e

y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 a

u
d

it
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
 

It
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e
 m

e
s
s
a
g

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 I
 h

a
v
e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 y

o
u

r 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

O
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s
 

U
n

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 a
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

 
T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 i
s
 i
n

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

P
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 

 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

A
t 

th
e

 1
2

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
; 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
 g

o
in

g
 o

n
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 p

la
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t,

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 (

IF
R

S
) 

re
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
, 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
, 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
, 

p
ri

v
a

te
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
P

F
I)

 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

a
s
h

 f
lo

w
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

la
rg

e
ly

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
d
e

la
y
s
 

c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

b
e

in
g

 u
n

a
b

le
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

b
a

la
n

c
e

s
. 

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

u
d

it
 a

re
a

s
, 
a

n
d

 b
a

s
e

d
 

u
p

o
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 d
a

te
, 

I 
p

la
n

 t
o

 i
s
s
u
e

 a
n

 u
n

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 
m

y
 d

ra
ft

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

L
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
ir

s
t 

ti
m

e
, 

h
a
v
e

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 t
h

e
ir

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
A

s
 I
 h

a
v
e

 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 l
a

rg
e

r 
m

o
re

 c
o

m
p

le
x
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 w

ill
 f
in

d
 t

h
e

 

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 I
F

R
S

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
a

le
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
e

y
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 i
ts

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f
o

r 
a

u
d

it
 b

y
 t

h
e

 d
e

a
d

lin
e

 o
f 

3
0

 J
u

n
e

 

2
0

1
1

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 n
o

t 
a

ll 
a

re
a

s
 

w
e

re
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
. 

In
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
it
s
 n

e
w

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

s
s
e

t 

re
g

is
te

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 h

a
d

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 

tr
a

il 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 d
e
la

y
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

p
a

p
e

rs
 o

n
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 m
e

 o
n

 2
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
. 

D
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e

la
y
s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u
lt
in

g
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
a

te
 o

f 
3

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 f

o
r 

is
s
u

in
g

 t
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

 m
a

y
 b

e
 

m
is

s
e

d
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 u
s
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 o

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 d
ra

ft
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 
 

Page 200



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
4

 M
y
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 e
rr

o
rs

, 
o

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

o
s
e

 o
f 

a
 c

le
a

rl
y
 t

ri
v
ia

l 

n
a

tu
re

, 
a

n
d

 I
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

a
d

ju
s
te

d
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
rr

o
rs

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

. 
I 

w
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
s
k
 y

o
u

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

to
 a

d
ju

s
t 

th
e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
rr

o
rs

. 
If

 y
o

u
 d

e
c
id

e
 n

o
t 

to
 d

o
 

s
o

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 t
e

ll 
m

e
 w

h
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
e

tt
e

r 
o
f 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
, 

a
 d

ra
ft

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 

in
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 4
. 

 

M
y
 t

e
a

m
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

ll 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
. 

S
h

o
u

ld
 a

n
y
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri

s
e

 i
n

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 w
o

rk
 t

h
a

t 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
, 

I 
w

ill
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e

m
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

a
n

e
l.
  

I 
w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o

 t
h

a
n

k
 t

h
e

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir

 c
o

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a

r’
s
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 a
n

d
 l
o

o
k
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 i
n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
. 

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 

I 
p

la
n

 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
 a

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
. 

A
u

d
it

 c
lo

s
u

re
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

N
o

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

to
 m

y
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 m
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

e
x
e

rc
is

in
g

 m
y
 f

o
rm

a
l 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

o
w

e
rs

 s
o

 I
 p

la
n
 t

o
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
 

c
lo

s
u

re
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 w
it
h

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

. 

  

Page 201



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
5

 B
e

fo
re

 I
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 

 
 

I 
c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
o

 y
o

u
 

M
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 o

n
ly

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 o

f 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

th
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 m
y
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
. 

M
y
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
ll 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 t
h

a
t 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

to
 y

o
u

. 
 

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e

I 
c
a

n
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
's

 e
th

ic
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
o

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
S

 1
 (

re
v
is

e
d

) 
- 

In
te

g
ri

ty
, 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

. 
I 

c
a

n
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 t
h

re
a

t 
to

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e
, 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

. 
  

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

 A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 a

n
y
 n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

 
 

I 
a

s
k

 y
o

u
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
o

 m
e

 
I 

a
s

k
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it

 P
a

n
e

l 
to

: 

!
 

ta
k
e

 n
o

te
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 (
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
);

  

!
 

re
v
ie

w
 u

n
a

d
ju

s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 (

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

) 
a

n
d

 i
f 

y
o

u
 d

e
c
id

e
 n

o
t 

to
 a

m
e

n
d

 

p
le

a
s
e

 t
e

ll 
m

e
 w

h
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 l
e

tt
e

r;
 

!
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
, 

(A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

).
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
, 

o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
e

fo
re

 I
 i
s
s
u
e

 m
y
 o

p
in

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
; 

a
n

d
 

!
 

a
g

re
e

 y
o

u
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 (
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 5
).

 

!
 

re
p

o
rt

 i
ts

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

s
 i
ts

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

 

     

Page 202



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
6

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
 

 
T

h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 a

u
d

it
 h

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 e
rr

o
rs

 t
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 c

le
a

ra
n

c
e

 o
f 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 m
a

tt
e

rs
, 

I 
p

la
n

 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p
o

rt
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 
m

y
 d

ra
ft

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

A
s
 a

t 
1

2
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 I

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

n
y
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ie
c
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
: 

!
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 p

la
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t,

  

!
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
, 

!
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
, 

 

!
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
P

F
I)

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

  

!
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
h

 f
lo

w
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

 

!
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 I

F
R

S
 r

e
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
e

a
s
e
s
 c

la
s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

) 

!
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
lis

in
g

 a
u

d
it
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 

E
rr

o
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

A
t 

th
e

 1
2

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

, 
e

rr
o

rs
 o

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

o
s
e

 o
f 

a
 c

le
a

rl
y
 t

ri
v
ia

l 
n

a
tu

re
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

m
y
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

o
 a

d
ju

s
t 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 e
rr

o
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

!
 

o
v
e

rs
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 f
o

r 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 b

y
 £

4
1

.5
m

 

!
 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
lim

in
a

te
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 C

a
tf

o
rd

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 L

td
, 

£
1

1
.9

m
 i
n

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
 I

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

u
ri

n
g

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
, 

b
u

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
d

ju
s
te

d
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

I 
b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 y
o

u
 i
n

 f
u

lf
ill

in
g

 y
o

u
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
s
k
 y

o
u

 t
o

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 

th
e

s
e

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

If
 y

o
u

 d
e

c
id

e
 n

o
t 

to
 a

m
e

n
d

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 t
e

ll 
m

e
 

w
h

y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 l
e

tt
e

r.
 T

h
e
s
e

 a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

Page 203



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
7

 

!
 

R
e

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 g
a

in
 o

n
 r

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 £

1
5

7
,0

0
0

 

!
 

R
e

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

m
o

u
n

ts
 i
n

c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

c
e

ip
ts

 i
n
 a

d
v
a

n
c
e

 £
2

6
2

,0
0

0
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

R
1

C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 u

n
a

d
ju

s
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
. 

If
 y

o
u

 c
h

o
o

s
e

 n
o

t 
to

 a
m

e
n

d
, 

th
e

 r
e

a
s
o
n

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

 

Page 204



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
8

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
a
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
m

e
a
n

s
 b

y
 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

it
s
 s

te
w

a
rd

s
h

ip
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 f

u
n

d
s
. 
A

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e
 

fi
n

a
l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

ts
. 
It

 i
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
th

a
t 

y
o

u
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

m
y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 b

e
fo

re
 y

o
u

 

a
d

o
p

t 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

t.
 

In
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 I

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
y
 a

u
d

it
. 

K
e
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s
 

K
e

y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

 
F

in
d

in
g

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 m

u
s
t 

p
re

p
a

re
 t

h
e

ir
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

u
n

d
e

r 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 f

ro
m

 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
. 

W
h

ile
 t

h
is

 p
re

s
e
n

ts
 m

a
n

y
 p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

h
e
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 f
o

r 
s
e

v
e

ra
l 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

re
a

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
e

a
s
e

s
, 

p
ri

v
a

te
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
P

F
I)

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g

ra
n

ts
 

d
e

fe
rr

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
ru

a
ls

 

 

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
 I

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 

re
s
ta

te
d

 b
a

la
n

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 o
n

 k
e
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

U
n

fo
rt

u
n

a
te

ly
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
n

ly
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 v
e

ry
 l
im

it
e

d
 I

F
R

S
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 b

e
fo

re
 3

0
 J

u
n

e
. 

 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

m
y
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 d
u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

a
u

d
it
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
d

e
q
u

a
te

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
I 

d
id

 

n
o

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

 a
n

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 P
F

I 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 u

n
ti
l 
2

4
 A

u
g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
1

. 
T

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

f 
p

h
a

s
e

 4
 o

f 
it
s
 B

u
ild

in
g
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 F
u

tu
re

 (
B

S
F

) 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

  

L
a

rg
e

 s
c

a
le

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 t
ra

n
s

fe
rs

  

In
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n

ts
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 l
a

rg
e

 

s
c
a

le
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rs
 (

L
S

V
T

s
) 

w
e

re
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 i
n

c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 

a
s
 l
o

s
s
e
s
 o

n
 d

is
p

o
s
a

l.
 T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 

y
e

a
rs

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t.

 T
h

re
e

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

(C
h

ry
s
a

lis
) 

h
a

v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
 

 T
o

 d
a

te
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 e

rr
o

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

L
S

V
T

s
 .

  

In
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

d
o

u
b

le
 c

o
u

n
te

d
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

rh
a

n
g

in
g

 d
e

b
t 

g
ra

n
t 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
n

 e
rr

o
r 

o
f 

£
4

1
,5

3
7

k
, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 a

ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 b

a
la

n
c
e

. 

 

Page 205



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
9

 

K
e

y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

 
F

in
d

in
g

N
e

w
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
y
s

te
m

s
  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
e

d
 n

e
w

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

!
 

A
s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

 

!
 

N
N

D
R

 (
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
) 

s
y
s
te

m
.

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 n

e
w

 a
s
s
e
t 

re
g

is
te

r 
(R

e
a

l 
A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t)
 i
n

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
IF

R
S

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
’s

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n

 t
h
e

y
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
u

ra
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 

s
y
s
te

m
. 

I 
a

ls
o

 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

p
ri

n
g

 u
s
in

g
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
’s

 

w
o

rk
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
y
 w

o
rk

. 
U

n
fo

rt
u

n
a

te
ly

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

id
 n

o
t 

g
o

 a
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
. 

In
 f

a
c
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
 n

 a
b

le
 t

o
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 p

la
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

a
s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r.

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 d
e

la
y
e

d
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 

o
f 

th
is

 a
re

a
. 

T
h

e
 N

N
D

R
 (

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
) 

s
y
s
te

m
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 
 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 H

o
m

e
s

 L
im

it
e

d
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 i

n
d

e
m

n
it

y
  

D
if
fe

ri
n

g
 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

f 
in

d
e

m
n

it
y
 i
n

 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

p
e

n
s
io

n
 c

o
s
ts

 h
a

s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 g

ro
u

p
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts

 L
a

rg
e

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 i
n

d
e

x
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
n

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 r

e
ta

il 
p

ri
c
e

 i
n

d
e

x
 (

R
P

I)
 t

o
 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
u

m
e

r 
p

ri
c
e

 i
n

d
e
x
 (

C
P

I)
, 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 h

a
d

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
t 

o
f 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 

H
o

m
e

s
 L

im
it
e

d
’s

 l
ik

e
ly

 f
u

tu
re

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
; 

th
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

th
is

 y
e

a
r 

is
 n

o
t 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
to

 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

C
a

s
h

 F
lo

w
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

 

T
h

e
 c

a
s
h

 f
lo

w
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

is
 a

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 h

a
d

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
n

 p
a

s
t 

y
e
a

rs
 i
n

 p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
 a

n
 

a
c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n
d

 t
im

e
ly

 v
e

rs
io

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
.

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 f

ro
m

 p
a

s
t 

y
e

a
rs

 o
f 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 t
im

e
ly

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e

 c
a

s
h

 f
lo

w
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e

 c
a

s
h

 f
lo

w
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

d
id

 n
o

t 
a

g
re

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

n
 u

n
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
£

3
6

1
m

 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 c

a
s
h

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

N
e

w
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

 1
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
a

 i
s
 

in
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c

o
u

n
ts

  

In
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
b

le
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 

ti
m

e
ly

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 W
h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
.

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

h
e

 d
ra

ft
 W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 o

n
 2

9
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
1

 i
n

 

lin
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

. 
M

y
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
a

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

s
ta

rt
e

d
. 

 

Page 206



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

0
 F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
w

e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

T
h

e
s
e

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 t
h

o
s
e

 I
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u
d

it
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

I 
a

m
 n

o
t 

e
x
p

re
s
s
in

g
 

a
n

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l.
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

is
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
g

s
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s

s
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

ff
e

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
 

A
s

s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

w
a

s
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
it
s
 n

e
w

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

re
g

is
te

r 
(R

e
a

l 
A

s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t)
, 

lis
ti
n

g
 o

f 
£

1
,6

5
4

m
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

ts
 a

t 
n

e
t 

b
o
o

k
 v

a
lu

e
, 

in
 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

 w
a

s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 

R
A

M
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
b

y
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

1
. 

 

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
, 

in
 m

id
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
1

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

d
 

to
 r

e
v
e

rt
 t

o
 s

p
re

a
d

s
h

e
e

t 
re

c
o

rd
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 m
e

 o
n

 2
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
. 

 

 

 T
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

rr
o

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

   

 Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
e

s
t 

th
e

 R
A

M
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
d

a
ta

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 

fr
o

m
 m

a
n

u
a

l 
re

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 

c
a

p
a

b
le

 o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 t

im
e

ly
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 e
n

tr
ie

s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

 

Page 207



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

1
 F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
Q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

 I 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

y
o
u

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
, 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
, 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
s
. 

 

T
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 I

 w
a

n
t 

to
 r

a
is

e
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
. 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

ra
c
ti

c
e
s
, 

p
o

li
c
ie

s
, 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

s
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
lo

s
u

re
s
 

Is
s

u
e

F
in

d
in

g
s

Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

M
y
 a

u
d

it
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
ty

p
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
e

rr
o

rs
, 

ro
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 c
a

s
ti
n

g
 e

rr
o

rs
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 

s
h

e
e

t)
, 

tr
iv

ia
l 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 n
o

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

v
e

 c
h

o
s
e

n
 

n
o

t 
to

 a
m

e
n

d
. 

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 q
u

a
lit

y
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
l 
a

c
c
o

u
n
ts

 

c
lo

s
e

d
o

w
n

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

 

Page 208



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

2
 F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
d

if
fi

c
u

lt
ie

s
 e

n
c
o

u
n

te
re

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 

 W
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

I 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
 o

n
 3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
, 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

. 
T

h
e

 i
n
it
ia

l 
d

e
a

d
lin

e
 t

h
a

t 
I 

a
g

re
e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

fi
n

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 s

e
t 

o
f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 w
a

s
 1

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

1
. 

T
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

d
id

 u
ti
lis

e
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

r 

c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
s
u
p

p
lie

d
 b

y
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
a

m
. 

U
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
h

e
lp

s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

r 
fi
le

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
ile

d
 w

h
ils

t 
p

re
p
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
ra

ft
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

e
n

s
u

re
s
 a

ll 
k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 a

re
 c

o
v
e

re
d

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 f
o

r 
p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 p

la
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t,

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
, 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
, 

p
ri

v
a

te
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 (
P

F
I)

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

s
h

 f
lo

w
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t.

 

T
h

e
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
u
d

it
 t

ra
ils

 m
e
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
m

y
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
a

m
 h

a
d

 t
o

 r
a

is
e

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
u

d
it
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 I
 b

e
lie

v
e

 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 q
u
e

ri
e

s
 a

s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 

th
e

 d
e

la
y
s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
s
lip

p
a

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

c
u
s
s
e

d
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 h
e

r 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

. 
D

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 t

e
a

m
 h

a
v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

o
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 a
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 a
u

d
it
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
. 

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

R
2

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 t
im

e
ly

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
a

lin
g

 w
it
h

 a
u

d
it
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 

  A
u

d
it

 F
e

e
s

I 
w

ill
 d

is
c
u

s
s
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

e
x
tr

a
 w

o
rk

 I
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

is
 a

u
d
it
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
ti
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

s
p

e
n

t 
d

e
a

lin
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

u
a

l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r,

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e

rr
o

rs
, 

d
e

la
y
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t
o

 a
u

d
it
 

q
u

e
ri

e
s
. 

 

L
e
tt

e
r 

o
f 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

B
e

fo
re

 I
 i
s
s
u
e

 m
y
 o

p
in

io
n

, 
a

u
d

it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 m

e
 t

o
 a

s
k
 y

o
u

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
w

ri
tt

e
n

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 (

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

) 
a

b
o

u
t 

y
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

Page 209



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

3
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 

I 
a
m

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 k

n
o

w
n

 a
s
 t

h
e
 

v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
. 

In
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 I

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
y
 a

u
d

it
. 

 

K
e

y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

 
F

in
d

in
g

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 f

in
a

n
c

e
s

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 V
a

lu
e

 F
o

r 
M

o
n

e
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
lim

a
te

 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 p
u

b
lic

 f
in

a
n

c
e

s
 w

it
h

 p
u

b
lic

 b
o

d
ie

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

m
a

jo
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

It
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 k
e

e
p

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 u
n

d
e

r 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d
 t

a
k
e

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 

a
d
v
e

rs
e

 

tr
e

n
d

s
. 

 A
s
 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 m

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

th
e

 

is
s
u

in
g

 o
f 

a
n

 u
n

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
. 

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 r

o
b

u
s
t 
p

la
n

s
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
lim

a
te

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 

a
 f

o
u

r 
y
e

a
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 i
n

 2
0

1
0
, 

w
h

ic
h

 e
x
p

e
c
ts

 t
o

 s
a

v
e

 o
v
e

r 
£

8
8

m
 

c
o

s
ts

 f
ro

m
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
. 

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

-y
e

a
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£
3

.2
9

5
m

. 
T

h
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 e

n
c
o

m
p

a
s
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

 

 I 
a

s
s
e

s
s
 y

o
u

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
tw

o
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
. 

M
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 t
w

o
 a

re
a

s
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
b

e
lo

w
. 

 

I 
in

te
n

d
 t

o
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 s

ta
ti
n
g

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

d
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 y
o

u
r 

u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

Page 210



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

4
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
 c

o
n

ta
in

s
 t

h
e
 w

o
rd

in
g

 o
f 

m
y
 d

ra
ft

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

 V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

fi
n

d
in

g
s

 

C
ri

te
ri

o
n

F
in

d
in

g
s

1
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
il

ie
n

c
e

  

T
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

s
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 

p
la

c
e

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

re
s

il
ie

n
c

e
.

F
o

c
u

s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

0
/1

1
: 

 

T
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e

s
 

to
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 a

 s
ta

b
le

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
e

n
a
b

le
s
 i
t 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 o
p

e
ra

te
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
o

re
s
e
e

a
b

le
 f

u
tu

re
. 

 

 I 
a

m
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 a

 s
ta

b
le

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 s

ta
b

le
 b

o
th

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
e

s
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 c

u
lt
u
ra

lly
, 

w
it
h

 a
 l
o

w
 t

u
rn

o
v
e

r 
o

f 
k
e

y
 

fi
n

a
n

c
e

 s
ta

ff
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 g
o

o
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
e

a
d

 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

G
o

o
d

 u
s
e

 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 o

f 
b

e
n

c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 V

a
lu

e
 F

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y
 P

ro
fi
le

s
) 

to
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
a

re
a

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t,

 e
it
h

e
r 

b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 o
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 a
re

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 o
f 

e
m

e
rg

in
g

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
ri

e
fi
n

g
s
. 

2
. 

S
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 

T
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

s
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
in

g
 h

o
w

 i
t 

s
e

c
u

re
s

 e
c

o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

n
e

s
s

. 

 F
o

c
u

s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

0
/1

1
: 

 

T
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
in

g
 i
ts

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 

ti
g

h
te

r 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 b

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 c

o
s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 i
ts

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

ig
h

te
r 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 s

e
c
u

re
d

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 b

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 c

o
s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

T
h

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 M

a
y
o

r,
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
, 

h
a

v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 a

 

c
le

a
r 

le
a

d
 o

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
in

g
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

re
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 w
h

ic
h

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

, 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

e
re

 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

s
 w

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
1

. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
re

s
 n

e
w

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a
s
 g

o
o

d
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
It

 u
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 P
lu

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

s
y
s
te

m
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 v

ia
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 

Page 211



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

5
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 D
ra

ft
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
 IN

D
E

P
E

N
D

E
N

T
 A

U
D

IT
O

R
’S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 T
O

 T
H

E
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

 O
F

 T
H

E
 L

O
N

D
O

N
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 O
F

 L
E

W
IS

H
A

M
 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 G

ro
u

p
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

 I 
h

a
v
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 G

ro
u

p
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

. 
T

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 G

ro
u

p
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 G
ro

u
p

 M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 G

ro
u

p
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 G
ro

u
p

 B
a

la
n

c
e

 S
h

e
e

t,
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 G

ro
u

p
 C

a
s
h

 F
lo

w
, 

th
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t,
 t

h
e

 M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

te
d

 n
o

te
s
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o

u
n
ti
n

g
 P

o
lic

ie
s
. 

 T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 s

o
le

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 P
a

rt
 I

I 
o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

 a
n

d
 f
o

r 
n

o
 

o
th

e
r 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

, 
a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u

t 
in

 p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
 4

8
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

. 

R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r 

 A
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 m
o

re
 f

u
lly

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

th
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 G

ro
u

p
’s

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

p
e

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
. 

M
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 a

u
d

it
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
p

p
lic

a
b

le
 l
a
w

 a
n

d
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

U
K

 a
n

d
 I

re
la

n
d

).
 T

h
o

s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 m

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

’s
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 

   

Page 212



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

6
 S

c
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

 A
n

 a
u

d
it
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
to

 g
iv

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 f
re

e
 f

ro
m

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
 o

r 
e

rr
o

r.
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f:
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 G
ro

u
p

’s
 c

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 a

p
p

lie
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
; 
th

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

n
e

s
s
 

o
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 G

ro
u

p
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
I 

re
a

d
 a

ll 
th

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o

rd
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

If
 I

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 a

p
p

a
re

n
t 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 I

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

m
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

 In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

: 

!
 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
’s

 a
ff

a
ir

s
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 o
f 
it
s
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

y
e

a
r 

th
e

n
 e

n
d

e
d

; 

!
 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 G

ro
u

p
’s

 a
ff

a
ir

s
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 o
f 
it
s
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

th
e

n
 e

n
d

e
d

; 
a

n
d

 

!
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 

 In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

, 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

iv
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o

rd
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 

M
a

tt
e

rs
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I

 r
e

p
o

rt
 b

y
 e

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 

 I 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

th
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 I
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 y
o

u
 i
f,

 i
n

 m
y
 o

p
in

io
n

 t
h

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 ‘
D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 G
o

o
d

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t:
 a

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
’ 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 C

IP
F

A
/S

O
L

A
C

E
 i
n

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
7

. 

    

Page 213



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

7
  O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

 I 
h

a
v
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

. 
T

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t,
 t

h
e

 N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

ts
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 n

o
te

s
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 P

o
lic

ie
s
. 

 T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 s

o
le

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 P
a

rt
 I

I 
o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
8

 a
n

d
 f
o

r 
n

o
 

o
th

e
r 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

, 
a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u

t 
in

 p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
 4

8
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

. 

R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r 

 A
s
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d

 m
o

re
 f

u
lly

 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 

th
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

’s
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

p
e

r 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
. 

M
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 a

u
d

it
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 a
p

p
lic

a
b
le

 l
a

w
 a

n
d

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

U
K

 a
n

d
 I

re
la

n
d

).
 T

h
o

s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 m

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

’s
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 E
th

ic
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
. 

S
c

o
p

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

 A
n

 a
u

d
it
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
to

 g
iv

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 f
re

e
 f

ro
m

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 f

ra
u

d
 o

r 
e

rr
o

r.
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f:
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
’s

 c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 a

p
p

lie
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
; 

th
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

; 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
I 

re
a

d
 a

ll 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o

rd
 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
in

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
If

 I
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 a

p
p

a
re

n
t 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 

in
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 I

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

m
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 

   

Page 214



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

8
  O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

 In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
’s

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

: 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

is
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

fu
n

d
’s

 a
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
, 

o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 p

a
y
 p

e
n

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 y

e
a

r;
 a

n
d

 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 

 In
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

, 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

iv
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

la
n

a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o

rd
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 

C
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

 o
n

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 u
s

e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s

 T
h

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
u

tt
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o
u

rc
e

s
, 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 

p
ro

p
e

r 
s
te

w
a

rd
s
h

ip
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e

 a
d

e
q

u
a

c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
u

d
it

o
r’

s
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 

 I 
a

m
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 5

 o
f 

th
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9

9
8

 t
o

 s
a

ti
s
fy

 m
y
s
e

lf
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s
 m

e
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 y
o

u
 

m
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

h
a

v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 I 
re

p
o

rt
 i
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 m
y
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

m
e

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

I 
a

m
 n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r,

 n
o

r 
h

a
v
e

 I
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
, 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
ll 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n
g

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

Page 215



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

9
 B

a
s

is
 o

f 
c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

 I 
h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
, 

h
a

v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a

, 
p

u
b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
, 

a
s
 t

o
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r:
 

!
 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n

c
e

; 
a

n
d

 

!
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g
 h

o
w

 i
t 

s
e

c
u

re
s
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
. 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 t
h

e
s
e

 t
w

o
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
s
 t

h
o

s
e

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
r 

m
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
n
 s

a
ti
s
fy

in
g

 m
y
s
e

lf
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

. 

I 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 m

y
 w

o
rk

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 m

y
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 I

 u
n

d
e

rt
o

o
k
 s

u
c
h

 w
o

rk
 a

s
 I

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 t
o

 

fo
rm

 a
 v

ie
w

 o
n

 w
h

e
th

e
r,

 i
n

 a
ll 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

s
p

e
c
ts

, 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a

d
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 p
ro

p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 

in
 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

C
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

O
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

m
y
 w

o
rk

, 
h

a
v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n
 t

h
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
, 

I 
a

m
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t,
 

in
 a

ll 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

s
p

e
c
ts

, 
th

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 

u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
in

g
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
. 

C
e

rt
if

ic
a

te

I 
c
e

rt
if
y
 t

h
a

t 
I 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e

 a
u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 o

f 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 a
n

d
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9

9
8

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 

A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 [S
ig

n
a

tu
re

] 
 S

u
s

a
n

 M
. 

E
x

to
n

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

A
u

d
it

o
r 

A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

1
s
t 

F
lo

o
r,

 M
ill

b
a

n
k
 T

o
w

e
r 

M
ill

b
a

n
k
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
S

W
1

P
 4

H
Q

 
 x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
 2

0
1

1
 

Page 216



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

0
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

th
e

 d
ra

ft
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

I 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

u
ri

n
g

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
I 

b
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

id
 y

o
u

 i
n

 f
u

lf
il
li

n
g

 y
o

u
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
. 

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 

e
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

B
a

la
n

c
e

 s
h

e
e

t 

A
d

ju
s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
D

r 
£

0
0

0
s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

D
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

R
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

O
th

e
r 

g
a

in
s

 /
 l

o
s

s
e

s
 

T
h

e
 M

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 N
o

te
 7

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 h

a
v

e
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
b

o
v

e
 e

rr
o

r.
 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

v
e

rs
e

 t
h

e
 d

o
u

b
le

 

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 o

v
e

rh
a

n
g

in
g

 d
e

b
t 

g
ra

n
t.

4
1

,5
3

7

4
1

,5
3

7

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

C
re

d
it

o
rs

D
e

b
to

rs
 –

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

d
e

b
to

rs
 d

u
e

 

fo
r 

s
u

p
p

li
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

v
e

rs
e

 a
n

 

in
c

o
rr

e
c

t 
jo

u
rn

a
l 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i

n
 

a
n

 o
v

e
rs

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

b
to

rs
 a

n
d

 

c
re

d
it

o
rs

.

 
 

2
,3

8
7

 
 2

,3
8

7

Page 217



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

1
 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 

e
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

B
a

la
n

c
e

 s
h

e
e

t 

A
d

ju
s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
D

r 
£

0
0

0
s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

D
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

N
o

te
 1

7
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
d

e
b

to
rs

: 

O
th

e
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
b

o
d

ie
s

 

O
th

e
r 

lo
c

a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

 

N
H

S
 b

o
d

ie
s

 

O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c
 b

o
d

ie
s

 

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
rs

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 h

a
v

e
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
c

lo
s

e
d

. 

R
e

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

d
e

b
to

rs
 i

n
 l

in
e

 

w
it

h
 C

o
d

e
 d

is
c

lo
s

u
re

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

 
 

 4
,9

8
1

1
,9

0
8

6
2

3

2
2

6

7
,7

3
8

N
o

te
 2

1
 C

re
d

it
o

rs
: 

O
th

e
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
b

o
d

ie
s

 

O
th

e
r 

lo
c

a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

 

N
H

S
 b

o
d

ie
s

 

O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c
 b

o
d

ie
s

 

C
o

m
p

a
ra

to
rs

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 h

a
v

e
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
c

lo
s

e
d

. 

R
e

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
re

d
it

o
rs

 i
n

 

li
n

e
 w

it
h

 C
o

d
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.

 
 

 1
0

,4
6

5

5
,5

7
7

2
,8

3
6

1
,8

3
8

2
1

4

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c

e
 –

 P
F

I 

s
c

h
e

m
e

s

E
a

rm
a

rk
e

d
 r

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

R
e

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

P
F

I 
s

c
h

e
m

e
 

in
te

rn
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 

 
 

6
5

0
 

 6
5

0

Page 218



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

2
 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i

n
c

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 

e
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

B
a

la
n

c
e

 s
h

e
e

t 

A
d

ju
s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
D

r 
£

0
0

0
s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

D
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

D
e

b
to

rs
 –

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 

d
e

b
to

rs
 d

u
e

 

fo
r 

s
u

p
p

li
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c

e
 –

 P
F

I 

s
c

h
e

m
e

s

R
e

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

P
F

I 
s

c
h

e
m

e
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 d
u

e
. 

 
 

6
7

6
 

 6
7

6

C
re

d
it

o
rs

 –
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c

re
d

it
o

rs
 

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c

e
 –

 o
th

e
r 

re
c

e
ip

ts
 i

n
 a

d
v

a
n

c
e

 

R
e

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
n

ta
l 

in
c

o
m

e
 

re
c

e
iv

e
d

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c

e
. 

 
 

5
6

2
 

 5
6

2

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s

E
a

rm
a

rk
e

d
 r

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 

R
e

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
m

o
u

n
ts

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
d

il
a

p
id

a
ti

o
n

 c
o

s
ts

 n
o

t 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 o
f 

a
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 

u
n

d
e

r 
IA

S
 3

7
. 

 
 

8
4

9
 

 8
4

9

G
ro

u
p

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
: 

L
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 d

e
b

to
rs

 

L
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
li

m
in

a
te

 

tr
a

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

a
n

d
 C

a
tf

o
rd

 R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 L
td

. 

 
 

 1
1

,9
1

1

1
1

,9
1

1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 219



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

3
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
 –

 U
n

a
d

ju
s

te
d

 
m

is
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
I 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

is
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
, 

[i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 u

n
c

o
rr

e
c

te
d

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 e
a

rl
ie

r 
y
e

a
rs

,]
 b

u
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
d

ju
s
te

d
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

I 
b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
m

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 y
o

u
 i

n
 f

u
lf

il
li

n
g

 y
o

u
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
s

k
 y

o
u

 t
o

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 

th
e

s
e

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

If
 y

o
u

 d
e

c
id

e
 n

o
t 

to
 a

m
e

n
d

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 t
e

ll
 m

e
 w

h
y
 i

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 l

e
tt

e
r.

 I
f 

y
o

u
 b

e
li
e
v
e
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 u

n
c
o

rr
e
c
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
,

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ll
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

v
e
ly

, 
is

 i
m

m
a
te

ri
a
l,
 p

le
a
s
e
 r

e
fl

e
c
t 

th
is

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 l
e
tt

e
r.

 P
le

a
s
e
 a

tt
a
c
h

 a
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

th
e

u
n

c
o

rr
e
c
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 l
e
tt

e
r.

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

B
a

la
n

c
e

 s
h

e
e

t 

U
n

a
d

ju
s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
D

r 
£

0
0

0
s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

D
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

D
e

b
to

rs

In
te

re
s

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 

R
e

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
a

in
 o

n
 

re
v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
v

e
s

tm
e

n
ts

. 
1

5
7

1
5

7

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c

e
 –

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 u
n

a
p

p
li

e
d

 

U
s

a
b

le
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

 

(m
is

s
 p

o
s

ti
n

g
)

R
e

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
m

o
u

n
ts

 

in
c

o
rr

e
c

tl
y
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

c
e

ip
ts

 i
n

 

a
d

v
a

n
c

e
.

 
 

2
6

2
 

1
0

0

Page 220



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

4
 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

B
a

la
n

c
e

 s
h

e
e

t 

U
n

a
d

ju
s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
D

r 
£

0
0

0
s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

D
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

U
s

a
b

le
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

 

(d
u

p
li

c
a

te
 e

n
tr

y
) 

1
6

2

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

Page 221



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

5
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 4
 –

 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 S

u
s
a

n
 M

 E
x
to

n
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
A

u
d

it
o

r 
1

s
t 

fl
o

o
r 

M
ill

b
a

n
k
 T

o
w

e
r 

M
ill

b
a

n
k
  

L
o

n
d

o
n

  
S

W
1

P
 4

 H
Q

 
 D

e
a

r 
M

s
 E

x
to

n
  

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 -

 A
u

d
it
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

 I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

o
f 

m
y
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

n
d

 b
e

lie
f,

 h
a

v
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

, 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 y

o
u

 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
. 

A
ll 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
, 

G
ro

u
p

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 f
u

lf
ill

e
d

 m
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

fo
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 K

in
g

d
o

m
 w

h
ic

h
 g

iv
e

s
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 y
o

u
, 

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

m
a

k
in

g
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 y
o

u
  

U
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 m

is
s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

 

T
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
f 

u
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 a
re

 n
o

t 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
to

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

e
it
h

e
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

lly
 o

r 
in

 a
g

g
re

g
a

te
. 

  

T
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 w

h
e

n
 a

u
d

it
 f

in
is

h
e

d
?

 

Page 222



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

6
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 r

e
c

o
rd

s
 

A
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 p
e

rs
o

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
ty

, 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 y

o
u

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
, 

a
n

d
 a

ll 
th

e
 t

ra
n

s
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

In
te

rn
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 t
o

 y
o

u
 a

ll 
d

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 I

 a
m

 a
w

a
re

. 

 Ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
e

s
 

I 
a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d
g

e
 m

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
to

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
te

c
t 

fr
a

u
d

 o
r 

e
rr

o
r.

 
I 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
: 

!
 

m
y
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
, 
o

r 
s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ra
u

d
, 

in
v
o

lv
in

g
 e

it
h

e
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ro

le
s
 i
n

 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 w
h

e
re

 

fr
a

u
d

 c
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

ff
e

c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
; 

 

!
 

m
y
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 o

f 
a

n
y
 a

lle
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
, 

o
r 

s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 f

ra
u

d
, 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
ty

’s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

d
 b

y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
, 

fo
rm

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
, 

a
n

a
ly

s
ts

, 
re

g
u

la
to

rs
 o

r 
o
th

e
rs

; 
a

n
d

 

!
 

th
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
o

u
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lly
 m

is
s
ta

te
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
. 

L
a

w
, 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

, 
c

o
n

tr
a

c
tu

a
l 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
d

e
s

 o
f 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t

o
 y

o
u

 a
ll 

k
n

o
w

n
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

, 
o

r 
s
u

s
p

e
c
te

d
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a

w
s
, 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
d

e
s
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

, 
w

h
o

s
e

 

e
ff

e
c
ts

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 T
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a

w
, 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
e

ff
e

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
o

n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

. 
  

 A
ll 

k
n

o
w

n
 a

c
tu

a
l 
o

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 l
it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 c

la
im

s
, 

w
h

o
s
e

 e
ff
e

c
ts

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
o

r 
a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti

m
a

te
s

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

a
ir

 v
a

lu
e

s
 

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o

s
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 a
t 

fa
ir
 v

a
lu

e
. 

 

R
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
 t

ra
n

s
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
ty

 o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a
m

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

th
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

y
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 I

 a
m

 a
w

a
re

. 
 I

 h
a

v
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 s

u
c
h

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

Page 223



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

7
 S

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
e

v
e

n
ts

A
ll 

e
v
e

n
ts

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 d

a
te

 o
f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

r 
d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 o

r 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
. 

O
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 I
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 

p
la

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
re

c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
s
e

 a
re

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
  

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

T
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 w

h
e

n
 a

u
d

it
 f

in
is

h
e

d
?

 

  S
ig

n
e

d
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
L

o
n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

L
e

w
is

h
a

m
  

I 
c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 t
h

is
 l
e
tt
e

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
n

 [
d

a
te

] 
 S

ig
n

e
d

 
 N

a
m

e
 

 P
o

s
it
io

n
 

 D
a

te
 

  

Page 224



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

8
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 5
 –

 A
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

P
a

g
e

n
o

.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

1
 =

 L
o

w
 

2
 =

 M
e

d
 

3
 =

 H
ig

h
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

D
a

te
 

7
7

7
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 

b
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 u
n

a
d

ju
s
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
. 

If
 y

o
u

 

c
h

o
o

s
e

 n
o

t 
to

 a
m

e
n

d
, 

th
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
e

t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

 

2
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 

N
o

t 
a

g
re

e
d

 
W

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

it
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t
o

 a
m

e
n

d
, 

a
n

d
 

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

 t
h
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
h

a
ir

 o
f 

th
e

 

A
u

d
it
 P

a
n

e
l 
to

 s
ig

n
 a

 

le
tt

e
r 

o
f 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 

B
y
 3

0
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 

1
0

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
e

s
t 

th
e

 R
A

M
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
a

ll 
d

a
ta

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 f

ro
m

 m
a

n
u

a
l 

re
c
o

rd
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 c

a
p

a
b
le

 o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 t

im
e

ly
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

3
G

ro
u

p
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 &

 C
a

p
it
a

l 

  
  

 

 

A
g

re
e

d
 

N
o

n
e

 
B

y
 3

1
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 

1
2

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 t
im

e
ly

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 a
u

d
it
 q

u
e

ri
e
s
 

3
G

ro
u

p
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 &

 C
a

p
it
a

l 

 

A
g

re
e

d
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

, 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
e

v
e

ry
 

y
e

a
r.

 

B
y
 3

1
 

M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
2

 

Page 225



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

9
 

Page 226



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
3

0
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 6
 –

 G
lo

s
s

a
ry

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

A
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

y
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 A
u

d
it

 c
lo

s
u

re
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

A
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 m
a

rk
s
 t

h
e

 p
o

in
t 

w
h

e
n

 I
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 m

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

a
u

d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
  

O
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

I 
m

u
s
t 

g
iv

e
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

 

!
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

in
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
; 

a
n

d
  

!
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

u
le

s
. 

  

 O
p

in
io

n

If
 I

 a
g

re
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

, 
I 

is
s
u

e
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

. 
I 

is
s
u

e
 a

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 o
p

in
io

n
 i
f:

 

!
 

I 
fi
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

o
 n

o
t 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

; 
o

r 

!
 

I 
c
a

n
n

o
t 

c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
. 

     M
a

te
ri

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
c

e
 

Page 227



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
3

1
 T

h
e

 A
u

d
it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
 (

A
P

B
) 

d
e

fi
n

e
s
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
c
e

p
t 

a
s
 ‘
a

n
 e

x
p

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e

 o
r 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

c
e

 o
f 
a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
m

a
tt

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
A

 m
a

tt
e

r 
is

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
if
 i
ts

 o
m

is
s
io

n
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

s
u

c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e

 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
o
r’

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

; 
a

ls
o

 a
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
is

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
if
 i
t 
w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e

. 
M

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
it
e

m
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
m

. 
W

e
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
d

e
fi
n

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
a

lly
, 

a
s
 i
t 

h
a

s
 b

o
th

 n
u
m

e
ri

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
o

n
-n

u
m

e
ri

c
a

l 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

’.
  

T
h

e
 t

e
rm

 ‘
m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
’ 
a

p
p

lie
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
u

ti
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
ta

tu
te

, 
a

s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 t

h
e

ir
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 d
o

 n
o
t 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 a
ff

e
c
t 

th
e

ir
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

‘S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

’ 
a

p
p

lie
s
 t
o
 t

h
e

s
e

 w
id

e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

d
o

p
t 

a
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
m

a
y
 d

if
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 l
e

v
e

l 
a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 

a
u

d
it
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e

 h
a
s
 b

o
th

 q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
s
p
e

c
ts

. 
 

 W
e

a
k

n
e

s
s

e
s

 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

A
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

x
is

ts
 w

h
e

n
: 

 

!
 

a
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
is

 d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
, 

s
e

t 
u

p
 o

r 
u

s
e
d

 i
n

 s
u

c
h

 a
 w

a
y
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t,

 o
r 

d
e

te
c
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
t,

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

q
u

ic
k
ly

; 
o

r 
 

!
 

a
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t,

 o
r 

d
e

te
c
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
t,

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 i
s
 m

is
s
in

g
. 

 

A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o
n

tr
o

l 
is

 a
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
, 

o
r 

a
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 t

h
a

t,
 i
n
 m

y
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 a

re
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
h

a
t 

I 
s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 y

o
u

. 

        V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 

Page 228



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
3

2
 T

h
e

 a
u

d
it
o

r’
s
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 h

a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 p
ro

p
e

r 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o
n

o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 i
ts

 

u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 

T
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 d
e

fi
n

e
s
 p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
fo

rm
 a

 

k
e

y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o
n

tr
o

l.
T

h
e

s
e

c
o

m
p

ri
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r:

  

!
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 f
in

a
n

c
e

s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

c
u

re
 s

o
u

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

; 

!
 

h
a

v
in

g
 a

 s
o

u
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 i
n

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
; 

!
 

re
lia

b
le

 a
n

d
 t
im

e
ly

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 t
h

a
t 

m
e

e
ts

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
u

s
e

rs
, 

s
ta

k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a
l 
p

e
o

p
le

; 

!
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
u

y
in

g
 q

u
a

lit
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

lie
s
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
a

ilo
re

d
 t

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
; 

!
 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
lia

b
le

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 d
e

c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

; 

!
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 d
is

p
la

y
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

s
 o

f 
g

o
o

d
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

; 

!
 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 a

 s
o

u
n

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l;
 

!
 

m
a

k
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
; 

!
 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 a

s
s
e

ts
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 n

e
e

d
s
; 

a
n
d

 

!
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

, 
o

rg
a

n
is

in
g

 a
n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

If
 I

 f
in

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 h

a
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

I 
is

s
u

e
 a

n
 u

n
q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 c
o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
. 

If
 I

 f
in

d
 t

h
a

t 
it
 d

id
 n

o
t,

 I
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

 

Page 229



  If
 y

o
u

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

in
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
o

rm
a

t 
o

r 
in

 a
 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 E

n
g

lis
h

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 c
a

ll:
  

0
8

4
4

 7
9

8
 7

0
7

0
 

©
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 2

0
1

1
. 

D
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 P

u
b

lis
h

in
g

 T
e

a
m

. 

Im
a

g
e

 c
o

p
y
ri

g
h

t 
©

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 T
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 e

x
p

la
in

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 

a
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

R
e

p
o

rt
s
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

y
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 t

o
 n

o
n

-e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
ir

e
c
to

rs
, 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
o

le
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

c
c
e

p
t 

n
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

: 

!
 

a
n

y
 d

ir
e

c
to

r/
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
; 

o
r 

 

!
 

a
n

y
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
. 

 

           

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 

Page 230



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 

re
p

o
rt

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

L
e
w

is
h

a
m

 P
e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
  

A
u

d
it

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

Page 231



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

 C
o

n
te

n
ts

K
e

y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
 

3

B
e

fo
re

 I
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 

4

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
5

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
1

4

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 –
 U

n
a

d
ju

s
te

d
 m

is
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

1
7

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

 –
 G

lo
s

s
a

ry
 

1
8

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

 –
 A

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

2
0

  

Page 232



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
3

 K
e

y
 m

e
s

s
a

g
e

s
 

T
h

is
 d

ra
ft

 r
e

p
o

rt
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s

e
s

 t
h

e
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 t

o
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 m

y
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

u
d

it
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

It
 

s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 t

h
e

 m
e

s
s

a
g

e
s

 a
ri

s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
y

 a
u

d
it

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

p
e

n
s

io
n

 f
u

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 s
u

m
m

a
ri

s
e

s
 t

h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 m

y
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 

a
u

d
it
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
It

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 t
h
a

t 
y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

b
e

fo
re

 I
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 a
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 i
s
s
u

e
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

th
a

n
 

th
e

 m
a

in
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

o
n

 7
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

1
. 

I 
fo

u
n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

d
ra

ft
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d

 f
o

u
r 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
e

rr
o

rs
, 

th
re

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
o

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

o
te

s
, 

a
n

d
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
n

o
n

 t
ri

v
ia

l 
a

n
d

 t
ri

v
ia

l 

e
rr

o
rs

. 
 T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 t
w

o
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
s
 m

is
s
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

 T
h

e
 e

rr
o

rs
 

fo
u

n
d

 f
ro

m
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 d
a

te
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

. 
 

A
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 s

e
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

w
a

s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
. 

S
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 t

im
e

ly
 

m
a

n
n

e
r 

a
n

d
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 c
a
s
e

s
, 

d
id

 n
o

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 t
o

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 q

u
e

ry
 b

e
in

g
 r

a
is

e
d
. 

D
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 m

a
in

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

le
ft
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
, 

th
e

 a
u
d

it
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
g

o
in

g
. 

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 i
te

m
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 o
n

 p
a

g
e

 5
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

re
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 I

 p
la

n
 t

o
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 

fu
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 (
a

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
tt

a
c
h

m
e

n
t)

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 

a
 d

ra
ft

 f
o

rm
a

t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
. 

Page 233



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
4

 B
e

fo
re

 I
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 

 
 

I 
c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
o

 y
o

u
 

M
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 o

n
ly

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 o

f 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

th
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 m
y
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
. 

M
y
 a

u
d

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 a
ll 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 t
h

a
t 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

to
 y

o
u

. 
 

 In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e

I 
c
a

n
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
's

 e
th

ic
a

l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
o

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
S

 1
 (

re
v
is

e
d

) 
- 

In
te

g
ri

ty
, 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

. 
I 

c
a

n
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 t
h

re
a

t 
to

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
e
, 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

. 

 T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
's

 A
u

d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 a

n
y
 n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
rr

o
rs

 t
h

a
t 

I 
h
a

v
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t

o
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 t
im

e
ly

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 I
 a

m
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
in

g
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
fe

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
 

 
 

I 
a

s
k

 y
o

u
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
o

 m
e

 
I 

a
s

k
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it

 P
a

n
e

l 
to

: 

!
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 r
a

is
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

s
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 (

p
a

g
e

 5
);

 

!
 

ta
k
e

 n
o

te
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 (
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
);

  

!
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 b

e
fo

re
 I

 i
s
s
u

e
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 (
a

 s
e

p
a
ra

te
 

a
tt

a
c
h

m
e

n
t-

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

);
  

!
 

a
g

re
e

 y
o

u
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 (
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 5
);

 a
n

d
 

!
 

re
p

o
rt

 i
ts

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
p
p

ro
v
e

s
 i
ts

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

 

Page 234



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
5

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
S

u
b

je
c

t 
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 i
te

m
s

 n
o

te
d

 b
e

lo
w

 I
 p

la
n

 t
o

 i
s

s
u

e
 a

n
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

li
fi

e
d

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s

io
n

 f
u

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s

io
n

 f
u

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 c

le
a

ra
n

c
e

 o
f 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 b

e
lo

w
, 

I 
p

la
n

 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
. 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 (
to

 f
o

llo
w

) 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 c
o

p
y
 o

f 
m

y
 d

ra
ft

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

M
y
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

. 
T

h
e

 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 i
te

m
s
 a

re
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
. 

!
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

tw
o

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
. 

!
 

A
u

d
it
e

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

to
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

e
 p

ri
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 I
n

v
e

s
te

c
 f
u

n
d

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

. 

!
 

R
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
s
: 

fr
o

m
 A

X
IS

e
 (

p
e

n
s
io

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
) 

to
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
le

d
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 f

ro
m

 p
a

y
ro

ll 
to

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
le

d
g

e
r 

fo
r 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

. 
 

!
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 t
e

s
ti
n
g

 o
f 

re
c
e

ip
ts

 a
n

d
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l.
 

!
 

R
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 c

a
s
h

 b
a

la
n

c
e

. 

!
 

R
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
a

le
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r.

 

I 
h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 r

a
is

e
d

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
I 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 m

y
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

n
: 

!
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
 (

n
o

t 
y
e

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
);

 

!
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
; 

!
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
s
 (

n
e

w
 n

o
te

 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il)

. 

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
e

ip
t 

a
n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

te
rn

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
, 

m
y
 t

e
a

m
 m

a
y
 r

a
is

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

u
d

it
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
. 

 

E
rr

o
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
  

T
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
 w

e
re

 i
n

c
o

m
p

le
te

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 a

n
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
In

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 n

o
r 

th
e

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 

n
e

t 
a

s
s
e

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
9

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 t
w

o
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 (

IF
R

S
) 

in
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
 

Page 235



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
6

 M
y
 a

u
d

it
 t

o
 d

a
te

 h
a

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 e

rr
o

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 a
d

ju
s
t 

(r
e

fe
r 

to
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
).

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 f
o

u
r 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 

to
 d

a
te

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
a

s
s
e

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t.
 

!
 

T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 t

w
o

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 e
rr

o
rs

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
c
a

te
g

o
ri

e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
a

s
s
e

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
in

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 

!
 

T
h

e
 d

e
ri

v
a

ti
v
e

s
 w

e
re

 s
h

o
w

n
 o

n
 a

 g
ro

s
s
 b

a
s
is

 o
n
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
a

s
s
e

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t,
 i
n

s
te

a
d

 o
f 
d

is
c
lo

s
in

g
 o

n
ly

 t
h

e
 p

ro
fi
t/

lo
s
s
. 

 

!
 

T
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 o

n
e

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

m
a

d
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 e

q
u

it
y
, 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 y

e
a

rs
. 

N
o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 e
rr

o
rs

 h
a
d

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

r 
th

e
 t
o

ta
l 
n

e
t 

a
s
s
e

ts
. 

 T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 t

h
re

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 o

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

in
 t

h
e

 n
o

te
s
: 

!
 

T
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 n

o
 c

o
lla

te
ra

l 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 (

£
1

1
m

ill
io

n
),

 n
o

r 
re

la
te

d
 s

to
c
k
 l
e

n
d

in
g

 (
£

1
0

.2
m

ill
io

n
).

  

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t

h
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 p

ri
v
a

te
 e

q
u

it
y
 (

£
2

6
.2

m
ill

io
n

).
 

T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 a

ls
o

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 
tr

iv
ia

l 
a

n
d

 n
o

n
 t

ri
v
ia

l 
d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 e

rr
o
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 a
d

ju
s
t 

fo
r 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 e
rr

o
rs

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

o
 d

a
te

 (
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
).

 
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

R
1

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

 f
u

ll 
q

u
a

lit
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 a
re

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
. 

  

Page 236



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
7

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
T

h
e

 P
e

n
s

io
n

 F
u

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

m
e

a
n

s
 b

y
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

it
s

 

s
te

w
a

rd
s

h
ip

 o
f 

p
u

b
li

c
 f

u
n

d
s

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 h
a

s
 f

in
a

l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

s
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

It
 i

s
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
th

a
t 

y
o

u
 

c
o

n
s

id
e

r 
m

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 a
d

o
p

ts
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 

In
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 m

y
 a

u
d

it
 I

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

I 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
y
 a

u
d

it
. 

K
e
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k
 a

n
d

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 

 

K
e

y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

 
F

in
d

in
g

1
. 

S
e

p
a

ra
te

 b
a

n
k

 a
c

c
o

u
n

ts
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
 

U
n

d
e

r 
re

v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
, 

th
e

 F
u
n

d
 m

u
s
t 

fr
o

m
 1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
1

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

n
d

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 b

a
n

k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
ra

th
e

r 

th
a

n
 h

a
v
e

 i
ts

 f
u

n
d

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 b

a
n

k
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 c

lo
s
in

g
 c

a
s
h

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
w

ill
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 t
h

e
 

o
p

e
n

in
g

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 w
it
h

in
 a

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 b
a

n
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
 n

e
w

 b
a

n
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 o

p
e

n
 f

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
u

s
e

d
 t

h
is

 b
a

n
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 

tr
a

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 h
e

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 m

o
n

ie
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
c
le

a
rl

y
 

ri
n

g
-f

e
n

c
e

d
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
m

o
n

ie
s
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

  
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 

w
ill

 n
o

w
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

s
 s

o
o

n
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

2
. 

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

 (
IF

R
S

) 

S
o

m
e

 p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 d
u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
IF

R
S

. 

I 
h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
IF

R
S

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e

n
t 

v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

fu
n

d
e

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

u
n

d
e

r 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
A

c
c
o
u

n
ti
n

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 (

IA
S

)2
6

. 
 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
I 

fo
u

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a
d

 n
o

t 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
a
s
s
e

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
2

0
0

9
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 I

F
R

S
. 

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
ls

o
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
, 

(a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h

 r
e

la
te

d
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
s
).

  

 

Page 237



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
8

  

K
e

y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

 
F

in
d

in
g

3
. 

U
n

q
u

o
te

d
 i

n
v

e
s

tm
e

n
ts

 

T
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
u

n
q

u
o

te
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 i
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 a

 v
e

ry
 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 h

a
s
 a

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 

u
n

q
u

o
te

d
 i
n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 r
is

k
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

 

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

I 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 u
n

q
u

o
te

d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

I 
fo

u
n

d
: 
 

!
 

H
a

rb
o

u
rv

e
s
t 

p
ri

v
a

te
 e

q
u

it
y
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 

u
s
e

d
 t

o
 p

re
p
a

re
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

. 
D

u
e

 t
o

 t
im

in
g

, 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 u
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
u

s
to

d
ia

n
 w

a
s
 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 I

 f
o

u
n

d
 a

 d
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 I

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

o
f 

£
2

.1
6

 m
ill

io
n

. 
 

!
 

M
&

G
: 

T
h

e
 c

u
s
to

d
ia

n
 h

a
d

 u
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 3

1
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 

m
e

a
n

t 
th

a
t 

th
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 a

t 
c
o
s
t 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 f
a

ir
 v

a
lu

e
. 

T
h

e
 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
s
 t

ri
v
ia

l 
fo

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 (

£
5

k
) 

b
u

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 i
n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

a
re

 d
is

c
lo

s
e
d

 a
t 

m
a

rk
e

t 
v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r.

 

4
. 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 o
n

e
 m

o
n

th
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

th
a

n
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

b
y
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 o

n
 t

h
e

 2
7

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

1
. 

T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

v
o

id
 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0
 t

h
e

 

C
u

s
to

d
ia

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 l
a

te
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 c

a
u

s
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

le
a

v
e

s
 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il.

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
a

u
d

it
 o

n
 7

 J
u

n
e

 2
0
1

1
, 

1
1

 d
a

y
s
 l
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 

d
a

te
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 w
e

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

d
y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

re
 w

e
re

 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 a
u

d
it
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 

th
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

le
ft

 d
u

ri
n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
. 
 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 h

a
rd

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 a

u
d

it
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 r

a
is

e
d

 s
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

le
ft
 a

n
d

 I
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 a

s
 s

o
o

n
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
. 

5
. 

F
a

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 d

is
c

lo
s

u
re

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

h
e

re
n

t 
ri

s
k
 t
h

a
t 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

n
e

t 
a

s
s
e

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

a
t 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 f

a
ir

 v
a

lu
e

. 
 

D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 I

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 

in
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
a

s
s
e

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t.
 I

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
p
o

rt
. 

!
 

I 
fo

u
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d

 w
e

re
 m

a
te

ri
a

lly
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
I 

fo
u

n
d

 t
w

o
 

d
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
a

s
s
e
t 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
(£

6
5

k
 f

o
r 

R
C

M
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 £
2

4
6

k
 f

o
r 

S
c
h

ro
d

e
rs

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
).

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

in
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
ri
c
e

s
 d

if
fe

r 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 d

u
e

 t
o

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 

fa
c
to

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ri
c
in

g
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d
 m

e
th

o
d

s
. 

 

Page 238



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
9

  

K
e

y
 a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

 
F

in
d

in
g

!
 

I 
a

ls
o

 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 I

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 

S
c
h

ro
d

e
r 

c
o
n

ta
in

e
d

 a
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

o
n

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

 i
n

s
te

a
d

 

o
f 

3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

. 
A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 I

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
(£

7
.1

m
ill

io
n

) 
in

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
, 

o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 c
u
s
to

d
ia

n
's

 

c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 M
a

rc
h

 p
ri

c
e

 w
a

s
 n

o
n

 

tr
iv

ia
l 
(£

1
7

8
k
).

 

!
 

I 
te

s
te

d
 t

h
e

 p
ri

c
e

 o
f 

e
q

u
it
ie

s
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 H
a

rb
o

u
rV

e
s
t 

P
ri

v
a

te
 E

q
u

it
y
 G

ro
u

p
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
u

b
lic

ly
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 (

p
ri

c
e

s
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
w

e
b

s
it
e

s
).

 T
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 

d
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
y
 o

f 
£

1
8

7
k
 (

d
u

e
 t

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
p

ri
c
in

g
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
).

 

!
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
y
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
 I

 t
o
o

k
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e
s
, 

s
a

le
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

 I
 

fo
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 d

is
c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 v
a

lu
e

s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r:
 

!
A

lli
a

n
c
e

 B
e

rn
s
te

in
: 

S
a

le
s
 £

2
9

4
k
, 

P
u
rc

h
a

s
e

s
 £

4
8
9

k
  

!
S

c
h

ro
d

e
rs

: 
P

u
rc

h
a

s
e

s
 £

2
7

5
k
  

V
a

ri
o

u
s
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
u

s
to

d
ia

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 f
u

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
re

p
o

rt
s
 a

re
 d

u
e

 t
o

 

ti
m

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ri
c
in

g
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 u

s
e

d
, 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 n
o

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 f
o

r 

th
e

s
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
. 

 I
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

v
a

lu
e

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

re
 f

a
ir

ly
 s

ta
te

d
. 

Page 239



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

0
 F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
w

e
a
k
n

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

I 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 o

n
e

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
 i
n

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

 p
la

n
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 I

n
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d

 I
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

p
e

a
te

d
 t

h
is

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
 b

e
lo

w
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 t
h

o
s
e

 I
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u
d

it
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 p

re
p

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

I 
a

m
 n

o
t 

e
x
p

re
s
s
in

g
 

a
n

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l.
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

is
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 

 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s

s
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
e

ff
e

c
t 

1
. 

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 r

e
c

o
n

c
il

ia
ti

o
n

 (
p

re
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

a
u

d
it
 f

in
d

in
g

)

M
y
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 i
n

d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 n

o
t 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 

o
u

t 
re

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
le

d
g

e
r 

a
n

d
  

!
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 (

p
a

y
ro

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
);

 o
r 

!
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rs
 i
n

 a
n

d
 o

u
t 

(p
e

n
s
io

n
 s

y
s
te

m
 A

X
IS

e
).

 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
le

d
g

e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

k
e

p
t 
u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 i
f 
n

o
 

re
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

2
. 

C
a

s
h

 b
o

o
k

 r
e

c
o

n
c

il
ia

ti
o

n
 

I 
fo

u
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 c

a
s
h

 b
o

o
k
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 

c
a

s
h

 r
e

la
ti
n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
 

re
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 b

u
t 

th
e
re

 r
e

m
a

in
e

d
 a

 d
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
y
 o

f 

£
7

3
k
. 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

 a
n
a

ly
s
e

 t
h

is
 d

is
c
re

p
a

n
c
y
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
h

o
u

ld
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
h

 

b
a

la
n

c
e

. 
A

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
o

v
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 b
a

n
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
th

is
 w

ill
 r

e
m

a
in

 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 p

ro
p
e

r 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
a
n

d
 s

e
g

re
g

a
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 t
h

e
 

p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d

 m
o

n
ie

s
. 

3
. 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 d
e

ta
il

s
 

T
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 n

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 t
h

e
 m

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 

o
p

e
n

in
g

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
lo

s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
 

A
X

IS
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

h
a

t 
I 

o
b

ta
in

e
d

 a
s
 a

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
r 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 n
o

te
 t

o
 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
g

re
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

o
te

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

im
in

g
 (

th
e

 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 p
ri

n
te

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 n
o

te
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 s

a
v
e

d
).

  

K
e

e
p

in
g

 a
 r

e
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 w

h
o

 j
o

in
 o

r 
le

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
. 

 

Page 240



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

1
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

R
2

E
n

s
u

re
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
le

d
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 A
X

IS
e

 s
y
s
te

m
/p

a
y
ro

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

. 

R
3

M
a

in
ta

in
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 r
e

c
o

rd
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 c

a
s
h

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 b

a
n

k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
is

 u
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 

tr
a

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n

s
. 

R
4

K
e

e
p

 a
 f

u
ll 

re
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
, 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
lo

s
in

g
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
r 

is
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

   

Page 241



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

2
 F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
Q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

I 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

y
o
u

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
, 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
, 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
s
. 

 

T
h

e
s
e

 a
re

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 I

 w
a

n
t 

to
 r

a
is

e
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
. 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

ra
c
ti

c
e
s
, 

p
o

li
c
ie

s
, 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

s
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
lo

s
u

re
s
 

 

Is
s

u
e

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

1
. 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

 l
e

d
g

e
r 

T
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
g

re
e

 t
o

 

th
e

 l
e

d
g

e
r.

 T
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 d
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
y
 o

f 
£

6
.2

 m
ill

io
n

 d
u

e
 t

o
 

ti
m

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 n

o
w

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 a

m
e

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
e

d
g

e
r 

to
 

a
g

re
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

 

R
5

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
c
c
o

u
n
ts

 a
g

re
e

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 l
e

d
g

e
r 

b
e

fo
re

 s
u

b
m

it
ti
n

g
 t

o
 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
. 

2
. 

W
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
r 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 

u
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
 t

o
 p

re
p

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

p
a

p
e

rs
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 b

e
g

a
n

. 
T

h
is

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 

d
e

la
y
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
e

rr
o

rs
 b

e
in

g
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
. 

R
6

U
s
e

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
 t
o

 

p
re

p
a

re
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 b

e
g
in

s
. 

Page 242



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

3
 F

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
d

if
fi

c
u

lt
ie

s
 e

n
c
o

u
n

te
re

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 

A
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 s

e
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

d
it
. 
S

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 t

im
e

ly
 m

a
n

n
e

r 
a

n
d

 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 c
a

s
e

s
, 

d
id

 n
o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 a
u

d
it
 q

u
e

ry
 

b
e

in
g

 r
a

is
e

d
. 

I 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 k
e
y
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d

 l
e

ft
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 r

e
a

s
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
la

y
s
. 

I 

d
o

 n
o

t 
e

x
p

e
c
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t
o

 a
ri

s
e

 n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r.

 

L
e
tt

e
r 

o
f 

re
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

B
e

fo
re

 I
 i
s
s
u
e

 m
y
 o

p
in

io
n

, 
a

u
d

it
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 m

e
 t

o
 a

s
k
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 P

a
n

e
l 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

w
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 (

re
fe

r 
to

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

 -
 a

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 a
tt

a
c
h

m
e

n
t)

. 

Page 243



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

4
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

th
e

 d
ra

ft
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 

I 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

u
ri

n
g

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
d

ju
s

te
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

I 
b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 
a

tt
e

n
ti

o
n

 t
o

 a
id

 y
o

u
 i

n
 f

u
lf

il
li

n
g

 y
o

u
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
ie

s
. 

T
a

b
le

 1
: 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

n
o

te
 (

v
a

lu
e

) 
 

A
d

ju
s

te
d

 m
is

-s
ta

te
m

e
n

t
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 o

f 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t

£
0

0
0

N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t:

 T
h

e
 e

q
u

it
y
 t

ra
c
k
e

r 
fu

n
d

 h
a

d
 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
o

rr
e
c
tl
y
 r

e
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 ‘
s
e

g
re

g
a

te
d

 

e
q

u
it
ie

s
’ 
in

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
v
e

rs
e

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
T

h
is

 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

1
2

5
,6

3
3

 

 

N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t:

 T
h

e
 i
n

d
e

x
 l
in

k
e
d

 f
u

n
d

s
 h

a
d

 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
o

rr
e
c
tl
y
 r

e
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 ‘
fi
x
e

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

’ 
in

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
v
e

rs
e

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
T

h
is

 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

4
2

,4
1

4
 

N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t:

 T
h

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
 e

q
u

it
y
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 r

e
c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 a

s
 ‘
o

th
e

r 
fu

n
d

s
’ 
in

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

, 
y
e

t 
th

e
 p

ri
o

r 
y
e

a
r 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
d

ju
s
te

d
 

to
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

is
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 y

e
a

rs
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ri

o
r 

y
e

a
r 

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 t
o

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

 a
 

p
ri

o
r 

p
e

ri
o

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 y

e
a

rs
. 

2
3

,6
8

1
 

N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t:

 D
e

ri
v
a

ti
v
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
d

 

in
c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
ri

v
a

ti
v
e

s
 o

n
 a

 g
ro

s
s
 

b
a

s
is

 i
n

 t
h

e
 N

e
t 

A
s
s
e

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t.

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
e
t 

a
s
s
e

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

b
y
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 o

n
ly

 t
h

e
 p

ro
fi
t 

o
r 

th
e

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 d
e

ri
v
a

ti
v
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 N

e
t 

A
s
s
e

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t.

 

1
7

,2
0

3
 (

a
s
s
e

ts
)/

1
7

,2
8

3
 

(l
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
) 

Page 244



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

5
 

A
d

ju
s

te
d

 m
is

-s
ta

te
m

e
n

t
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 o

f 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t

£
0

0
0

N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

t 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

U
n

q
u

o
te

d
 H

a
rb

o
u

rv
e

s
t 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e
n

 v
a

lu
e

d
 a

s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
1

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t
im

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

is
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
, 
to

 s
h

o
w

 

th
e

 v
a

lu
e

 a
s
 a

t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
. 

2
,1

6
3

 

N
o

te
 1

 f
u

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t:
 A

d
m

it
te

d
/s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 b

o
d

y
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 i
n

p
u

t 
th

e
 

fi
g

u
re

 f
o

r 
a

d
m

it
te

d
 b

o
d

ie
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 l
in

e
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 b

o
d

ie
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

 

T
h

is
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

5
7

1
 

N
o

te
 1

4
: 

C
o

lla
te

ra
l 
d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
. 

T
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 n

o
 

c
o

lla
te

ra
l 
d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

1
0

,9
9

6
 

N
o

te
 1

4
: 

S
to

c
k
 L

e
n

d
in

g
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 v

a
lu

e
 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
to

c
k
 l
e

n
d

in
g

. 

T
h

is
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

1
0

,2
0

0
 

P
ri

v
a

te
 e

q
u

it
y
 n

o
te

. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 v

a
lu

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 

fo
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 P

ri
v
a

te
 E

q
u

it
y
. 

 

T
h

is
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

£
2

6
,2

0
0

 

N
o

te
 1

3
: 

C
a

s
h

 h
e

ld
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 w
a

s
 

in
c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

c
u

s
to

d
ia

n
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 n

o
te

 t
o

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

 t
h
e

 c
a

s
h

 b
e

in
g

 h
e

ld
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

. 
 

V
a

ri
o

u
s
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 n

o
te

: 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 

a
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 v
a

lu
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 a

s
 

‘p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

s
’.
  

T
h

is
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 s

u
b

s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

2
,5

9
4

 

S
to

c
k
 l
e

n
d

in
g

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 n
o

te
 t

o
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

th
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

in
c
o

m
e

 a
ri

s
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 s

to
c
k
 l
e

n
d

in
g

. 

1
6

8
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 n

o
te

: 
T

h
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

s
 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

H
a

rb
o

u
rv

e
s
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a

r 
d

id
 n

o
t 

a
g

re
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

re
p

o
rt

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
e

 n
o

te
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

3
7

8
 

 

 

Page 245



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

6
    T

a
b

le
 2

: 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

m
a

d
e

 t
o

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
n

o
te

 (
c

h
a

n
g

e
 t

o
 t

e
x

t 
o

r 
o

m
is

s
io

n
) 

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
n

o
te

 
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

m
a

d
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 t

e
x

t 
o

r 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

N
e

t 
A

s
s

e
t 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
m

it
te

d
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
9

 N
e

t 
A

s
s
e

t 
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
IF

R
S

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 

a
m

e
n

d
 t

h
is

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 a

n
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
, 
n

o
r 

a
n

 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 r
is

k
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 t
h

is
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

R
o

u
n

d
in

g
 e

rr
o

rs
 

T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
o

te
s
, 

a
s
 s

o
m

e
 f

ig
u

re
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
o

u
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 

s
o

m
e

 h
a

d
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 r
o

u
n

d
e

d
 (

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
d

is
c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 u

p
 t

o
 £

1
4

6
k
).

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 a
m

e
n

d
 t

h
is

 i
n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
li

c
ie

s
 

T
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
tw

o
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 h

e
ld

: 
M

&
G

 a
n

d
 I

n
v
e

s
te

c
. 

T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 a
m

e
n

d
 t

h
is

 i
n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

 

Page 246



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

7
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 3
 –

 U
n

a
d

ju
s

te
d

 
m

is
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

I 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

u
ri

n
g

 m
y
 a

u
d

it
 b

u
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

a
d

ju
s

te
d

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

I 
b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 
a

tt
e

n
ti

o
n

 t
o

 h
e
lp

 y
o

u
 i

n
 f

u
lf

il
li
n

g
 y

o
u

r 
g

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

 a
n

d
 a

s
k

 y
o

u
 

to
 c

o
rr

e
c

t 
th

e
s

e
 m

is
s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 
If

 y
o

u
 d

e
c

id
e

 n
o

t 
to

 a
m

e
n

d
, 

p
le

a
s

e
 t

e
ll

 m
e

 w
h

y
 i

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 l

e
tt

e
r.

 I
f 

y
o

u
 b

e
li

e
v

e
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c

t 
o

f 
th

e
 u

n
c

o
rr

e
c

te
d

 e
rr

o
rs

, 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ll

y
 a

n
d

 c
o

ll
e

c
ti

v
e

ly
, 

is
 i

m
m

a
te

ri
a

l,
 p

le
a

s
e

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

th
is

 

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 l

e
tt

e
r.

 P
le

a
s

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

 a
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

th
e

 u
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 e

rr
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 l

e
tt

e
r.

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

B
a

la
n

c
e

 s
h

e
e

t 

U
n

a
d

ju
s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
N

a
tu

re
 o

f 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t 
D

r 
£

0
0

0
s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

D
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

C
r 

£
0

0
0

s
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 u
n

a
d

ju
s
te

d
 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 247



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

8
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 4
 –

 G
lo

s
s

a
ry

 
A

u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n

  

O
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

I 
m

u
s
t 

g
iv

e
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

 

!
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
o
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

in
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
; 

a
n

d
  

!
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 r

u
le

s
. 
 

O
p

in
io

n
 

If
 I

 a
g

re
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

, 
I 

is
s
u

e
 a

n
 u

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

. 
I 

is
s
u

e
 a

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 o
p

in
io

n
 i
f:

 

!
 

I 
fi
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 d

o
 n

o
t 

g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d

 f
a

ir
 v

ie
w

; 
o

r 

!
 

I 
c
a

n
n

o
t 

c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 g

iv
e

 a
 t

ru
e

 a
n

d
 f

a
ir

 v
ie

w
. 

M
a

te
ri

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
c

e
 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 B

o
a

rd
 (

A
P

B
) 

d
e

fi
n

e
s
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
c
e

p
t 

a
s
 ‘
a

n
 e

x
p

re
s
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e

 o
r 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

c
e

 o
f 
a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
m

a
tt

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
A

 m
a

tt
e

r 
is

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
if
 i
ts

 o
m

is
s
io

n
 w

o
u

ld
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

s
u

c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e

 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
o
r’

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

; 
a

ls
o

 a
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
is

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
if
 i
t 
w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e

. 
M

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
it
e

m
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
m

. 
W

e
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
d

e
fi
n

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
a

lly
, 

a
s
 i
t 

h
a

s
 b

o
th

 n
u
m

e
ri

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
o

n
-n

u
m

e
ri

c
a

l 
a

s
p

e
c
ts

’.
  

T
h

e
 t

e
rm

 ‘
m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
’ 
a

p
p

lie
s
 o

n
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
u

ti
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
ta

tu
te

, 
a

s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 t

h
e

ir
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
, 

w
h

ic
h

 d
o

 n
o
t 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ri
ly

 a
ff

e
c
t 

th
e

ir
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

 

‘S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

’ 
a

p
p

lie
s
 t
o
 t

h
e

s
e

 w
id

e
r 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

d
o

p
t 

a
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
m

a
y
 d

if
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 m

a
te

ri
a

lit
y
 l
e

v
e

l 
a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 

a
u

d
it
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

c
e

 h
a
s
 b

o
th

 q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

n
ti
ta

ti
v
e

 a
s
p
e

c
ts

. 
 

W
e

a
k

n
e

s
s

e
s

 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

A
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

x
is

ts
 w

h
e

n
: 

 

!
 

a
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
is

 d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
, 

s
e

t 
u

p
 o

r 
u

s
e
d

 i
n

 s
u

c
h

 a
 w

a
y
 t

h
a

t 
it
 i
s
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t,

 o
r 

d
e

te
c
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
t,

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

q
u

ic
k
ly

; 
o

r 
 

Page 248



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
1

9
 !

 
a

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t,

 o
r 

d
e

te
c
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
t,

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 i
s
 m

is
s
in

g
. 

 

A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o
n

tr
o

l 
is

 a
 w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
, 

o
r 

a
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 t

h
a

t,
 i
n
 m

y
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 a

re
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
h

a
t 

I 
s
h

o
u

ld
 r

e
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 y

o
u

. 

Page 249



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

0
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 5
 –

 A
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
   

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 1

 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

 f
u

ll 
q

u
a

lit
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 a
re

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

S
e

lw
y
n

 T
h

o
m

p
s
o

n
 –

 G
ro

u
p

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

H
ig

h
 

D
a

te
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
T

h
is

 q
u

a
lit

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 a
s
 s

o
o

n
 a

s
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
, 
a

n
d

 w
e

 w
ill

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 b

e
fo

re
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 a

u
d

it
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

 

E
n

s
u

re
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
le

d
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 A
X

IS
e

 s
y
s
te

m
/p

a
y
ro

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

C
a

ro
l 
E

ld
ri

d
g

e
 –

 G
ro

u
p

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

H
ig

h
 

D
a

te
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
T

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

, 
to

 b
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 f
ro

m
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 

c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 o
ff

ic
e

rs
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 D

iv
is

io
n

  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 3

 

M
a

in
ta

in
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 r
e

c
o

rd
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 c

a
s
h

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 b

a
n

k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
is

 u
s
e

d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 

Page 250



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

1
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

S
e

lw
y
n

 T
h

o
m

p
s
o

n
 –

 G
ro

u
p

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

H
ig

h
 

D
a

te
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
T

h
e

 n
e

w
 b

a
n

k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
h

a
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 

u
p

. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 n

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 b
y
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 4

 

K
e

e
p

 a
 f

u
ll 

re
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
, 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
lo

s
in

g
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
r 

is
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

C
a

ro
l 
E

ld
ri

d
g

e
 –

 G
ro

u
p

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

L
o

w
 

D
a

te
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

1
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
T

h
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

re
c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 e

x
is

ts
. 

T
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
lo

s
in

g
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 5

 

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
c
c
o

u
n
ts

 a
g

re
e

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 l
e

d
g

e
r 

b
e

fo
re

 s
u

b
m

it
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

S
e

lw
y
n

 T
h

o
m

p
s
o

n
 –

 G
ro

u
p

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

H
ig

h
 

D
a

te
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
in

g
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 6

 

U
s
e

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

p
e

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

a
p

e
rs

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 b

e
g

in
s
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 

S
e

lw
y
n

 T
h

o
m

p
s
o

n
 –

 G
ro

u
p

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

H
ig

h
 

D
a

te
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
 

Page 251



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e

p
o
rt

 
2

2
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
lo

s
in

g
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 

           

Page 252



  If
 y

o
u

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

in
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 f
o

rm
a

t 
o

r 
in

 a
 l
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 E

n
g

lis
h

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 c
a

ll:
  

0
8

4
4

 7
9

8
 7

0
7

0
 

©
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 2

0
1

1
. 

D
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 P

u
b

lis
h

in
g

 T
e

a
m

. 

Im
a

g
e

 c
o

p
y
ri

g
h

t 
©

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 

 T
h

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 e

x
p

la
in

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 

a
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

R
e

p
o

rt
s
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

y
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 t

o
 n

o
n

-e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
ir

e
c
to

rs
, 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
r 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
o

le
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 b

o
d

y
. 

A
u

d
it
o

rs
 a

c
c
e

p
t 

n
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

: 

!
 

a
n

y
 d

ir
e

c
to

r/
m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
; 

o
r 

 

!
 

a
n

y
 t

h
ir

d
 p

a
rt

y
. 

 

           

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
1

 
  

Page 253



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LONDON 
BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM 

Opinion on the pension fund accounting statements 

I have audited the pension fund accounting statements for the year ended 31 March 
2011 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The pension fund accounting 
statements comprise the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related 
notes. These accounting statements have been prepared under the accounting 
policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies. 

This report is made solely to the members of London Borough of Lewisham in 
accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, 
as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of 
Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010. 

Respective responsibilities of the Director of Resources and auditor 

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Director of Finance’s Responsibilities, 
the Director of Resources is responsible for the preparation of the pension fund’s 
Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom. My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require me to comply with the Auditing Practice’s Board’s Ethical 
Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
accounting statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting 
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. 
This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the fund; 
and the overall presentation of the accounting statements. I read all the information in 
the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting 
statements. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies I consider the implications for my report. 

Opinion on accounting statements

In my opinion the pension fund’s accounting statements: 

! give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund 
during the year ended 31 March 2011 and the amount and disposition of the 
fund’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2011, other than liabilities to pay 
pensions and other benefits after the end of the scheme year; and 

! have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

Opinion on other matters 

Page 254



In my opinion, the information given in the annual report for the financial year for 
which the accounting statements are prepared is consistent with the accounting 
statements.

Matters on which I report by exception 

I have nothing to report in respect of the governance statement on which I report to 
you if, in my opinion the governance statement does not reflect compliance with the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008 and related 
guidance.

Susan M Exton 
District Auditor 

1st Floor, 
Millbank Tower, 
Millbank,
London
SW1P 4HQ 

Xx September 2011  

Page 255



Draft management representation letter  

To:

Susan M Exton 

District Auditor 

Audit Commission 

1st Floor, Millbank Tower 

Millbank 

London

SW1P 4QH 

London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund - Audit for the year

ended the 31st of March 2011 

I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, having made appropriate 

enquiries of other officers of the London Borough of Lewisham, the following 

representations given to you in connection with your audit of the Council’s 

financial statements for the year ended the 31st of March 2011. All 

representations cover the Pension Fund accounts included within the 

financial statements.

Compliance with the statutory authorities 

I have fulfilled my responsibility under the relevant statutory authorities for 

preparing the financial statements in accordance with the Code of Practice 

for Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, which give a true and 

fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the London 

Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund, for the completeness of the information 

provided to you, and for making accurate representations to you.

Supporting records 

All relevant information and access to persons within the entity has been 

made available to you for the purpose of your audit, and all the transactions 

undertaken by the London Borough of Lewisham have been properly 

reflected and recorded in the financial statements.  

Internal control 

I have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which I am 

aware.

Irregularities 

I acknowledge my responsibility for the design, implementation and 

maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud or error. 

I also confirm that I have disclosed: 

Page 256



! my knowledge of fraud, or suspected fraud, involving either 

management, employees who have significant roles in internal 

control or others where fraud could have a material effect on the 

financial statements;  

! my knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, 

affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by 

employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others; and 

! the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 

statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

Law, regulations, contractual arrangements and codes of practice 

I have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance, or suspected 

non-compliance with laws, regulations and codes of practice, whose effects 

should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

Transactions and events have been carried out in accordance with law, 

regulation or other authority.  The Council has complied with all aspects of 

contractual arrangements that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements in the event of non-compliance.  

All known actual or possible litigation and claims, whose effects should be 

considered when preparing the financial statements, have been disclosed to 

the auditor and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

applicable financial reporting framework. 

Accounting estimates including fair values 

I confirm the reasonableness of the significant assumptions used in making 

the accounting estimates, including those investments measured at fair 

value.

I confirm that the unadjusted discrepancies summarised below are not 

material to the financial statements, either individually or in aggregate. 

These misstatements have been discussed with those charged with 

governance and the reasons for not correcting these items are as follows: 

External audit finding  Council response 

I found two discrepancies 

between the net asset 

statement and the external 

confirmation from the fund 

manager (£65k for RCM 

investments and £246k for 

Schroders investments).

The Council confirmed that in some 

cases the prices differ slightly due to 

various factors including pricing 

sources and methods.  The value 

disclosed in the accounts is fairly 

stated.

I have no external investment The Council has confirmed via the 

Page 257



manager confirmation for the 

valuation of one investment 

(£7.1million) in the accounts as 

at 31 March, other than the 

custodian's confirmation.  The 

difference between the 

December and the March price 

was non trivial (£178k). 

custodian that this valuation is 

correct as at 31 March 2011. 

I tested the price of equities 

held in Harbour Vest Private 

Equity Group against publicly 

available information (prices 

held on external websites). 

There was a discrepancy of 

£187k.

Various differences between the 

custodian and the fund manager 

reports are due to timing and pricing 

sources used, and therefore no 

amendments have been made for 

these differences.

I found the following 

discrepancies between the 

values disclosed in the accounts 

and the fund manager: 

" Alliance Bernstein: Sales 

£294k, Purchases £489k

" Schroders: Purchases 

£275k

Various differences between the 

custodian and the fund manager 

reports are due to timing and pricing 

sources used, and therefore no 

amendments have been made for 

these differences.

Related party transactions 

I confirm that I have disclosed the identity of the London Borough of 

Lewisham Pension Fund related parties and all the related party relationships 

and transactions of which I am aware.  I have appropriately accounted for 

and disclosed such relationships and transactions in accordance with the 

requirement of the framework. 

Subsequent events

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements, which would 

require additional adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements, have 

been adjusted or disclosed. 

Signed on behalf of the London Borough of Lewisham. 

I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed by the Council on 

the xx of September 2011. 

Page 258



Signed: 

Name:

Position:

Date:

Page 259



1 

AUDIT PANEL 

Report Title Internal Audit update report 

Key Decision No  Item No.   4 

Ward ALL 

Contributors Executive Director for Resources 

Class Part 1 Date:     20 September 2011 

 

 

1. Purpose of the Report 

1.1. This report presents members of the Audit Panel with a summary of: 

• Internal Audit progress update since the last Audit Panel report 

• Performance of the Internal Audit contractor, and 

• Implementation of internal audit recommendations. 

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. It is recommended that the Audit Panel note the content of this report.  

 

3. Background 

3.1. The client side of Internal Audit comprises an Interim Head of Audit and Risk and an Internal 

Audit Contract Manager.  

3.2. They contract and supervise the Council’s internal audit service which has been provided by 

RSM Tenon since September 2008.   

3.3. The contractor is responsible for completing all the internal audit reviews for the Council (non-

schools and schools) and any consultancy or grant certification work as directed. 

 

4. Internal Audit progress update 

2010-11 

4.1. The audit plan for 2010/11 is completed to final report stage with the exception of one report : 

• Procurement and Purchasing of Goods and Services – where, based on the draft report, 

we have requested further testing to be completed. 

 

2011/12 Audit Plan  

4.2. The table below summarises the number of audits by Directorate for the audit plan for 2011/12 

up to the 31/08/11  

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 260



2 

Lead 

Dir. 

Original 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Work 

Added 

Audits 

Pulled 

Current 

Audit 

Plan 

Final 

Reports 

Issued 

Report 

at Draft 

Stage 

Work  in 

Progress 

Work 

Not 

Yet 

Due 

RES 24 2 (1) 25  1  24 

CUS 12 2 (1) 13 3  2 8 

COM 5 2 (1) 6  1 2 3 

REG 4 2  6  1 1 4 

CYP 6   6 2  1 3 

SCH 32   32 3 4 1 24 

TOTAL 83 8 (3) 88 8 7 7 66 

 

4.3. This shows : 

• 25% of the plan is now in progress 

• 17% of the plan has been completed to draft report stage and 

• 9% of the plan has been completed to final report stage. 

 

4.4. Since the Audit Panel approved the 2011/12 audit plan, there have been two additional audits 

requested and two audits that has been pulled from the plan.  These are listed below: 

Additional 

Dir.  Audit Title Comments 

RES Consultancy Planning 
Framework  

Part of the Contract and Procurement Review 

CUS Greenspace Part of the Contract and Procurement  Review 

Pulled  

Dir. Audit Title Comments 

RES Control of Expenditure Scope to be covered in main accounting 

system audit.  

COM Increased Shared Role with 
NHS over Public Health. 

Cancelled as reforms / legislation is not yet 

complete.  To be reviewed again in 2012/13 

 

4.5. Since the last Audit Panel report, there have been seven reports issued.  

Dir. Audits title Final Issued  Assurance 

Level 

CUS Trading Standards 27/06/11 Substantial 

CUS Complaints, Compliments & Suggestions 01/07/11 Substantial 

CYP  Play Capital Determination Grant 22/06/11  N/A – Grant  

CYP  Provision of School Places  22/06/11 Substantial 

SCH Brockley Primary School 27/05/11 Substantial 

SCH Chelswood Nursery  21/07/11  Substantial 

SCH St William of York 01/07/11 Substantial 

Page 261



3 

4.6. For a more detailed look at the audits planned for Quarters 1&2, please refer to Appendix 1. 

All key audits are due to take place in Quarters 3&4.  

 

Limited and No Assurance Reports 

4.7. Since the last Audit Panel report there has been one Limited report and one No Assurance 

report issued:  

• Use of BACS (Bankers Automated Clearance Service) - Limited 

• Review of financial management of public funds held by Lewisham Park Housing 

Association (LPHA) – No Assurance. 

4.8. For further details of these reports  please see Appendix 2. 

 

5. Performance of the contractor 

5.1. One of the ways that the performance of the contractor is measured is by Performance 

Indicators (PIs).  These PIs and their associated targets were agreed with the contractor at 

the start of the year.  They will be reviewed again once the new contract has been awarded 

(October 2011) to ensure that they are still relevant.  

5.2. The 2011/12 results for the PIs up to 31/08/11 - are shown below.     

No.   Performance Indicator Target 

YTD  

Actual 

YTD to  

Variance 

(+/-) 

1 Percentage of all draft reports issued against 

audit plan 
16% 18% +2% 

2 

 

Percentage of draft audit reports issued within 

15 working days of the exit meeting 
90% 63% (27)% 

3 Percentage of final reports issued within 10 

working days of agreed draft report    
90% 100% +10% 

4 The average level of client satisfaction to be 

achieved  (out of a score of 5) 
4 4.1 +0.1 

5 Percentage of High & Medium recommendations 

made agreed by management.  
95% 85% (10)% 

 

5.3. Three of the five PIs targets have been met or exceeded, with two not met.   

• PI 1 – has exceeded the target by 2%.  This is based on 16 draft reports issued against a 

target of 14 to this point in the year. 

• PI 2 – has not met the target by 27%.  This is based on 16 draft reports issued.  Out of 

these, three school and three non school draft reports were issued late.  Steps to improve 

performance against this target are being discussed with the contractor.    

• PI 3 -  has exceeded its target by 10% - all audits have been finalised within the target 

time frame.  

• PI 4 – the client survey result is based on two returned surveys for 2011/12 and has 

exceeded the target by 0.1% 

• PI5 – has not met the target by 10% - however it should be noted that only seven medium 

recommendations have been made to date, and the reasons for the one which was not 

accepted are understood and the control requirements being clarified. 

 

Page 262



4 

6. Implementation of internal audit recommendations 

6.1. All High and Medium recommendations are followed up by internal audit as part of the audit 

process.  Follow-up reviews are normally undertaken within six months of the final report 

being issued by the contractor.   

6.2. The table below shows a summary the total number of recommendations followed-up by the 

contractor since the last audit panel report up to 18/08/11.  It shows that 94% of 

recommendations that were followed up were either in progress or implemented with only 6% 

either not due or not implemented.  Details of the individual follow-up reviews issued since the 

last audit panel meeting can be found at Appendix 3. 

   Implemented In progress Superseded 
Not 

Implemented 

Not 

Due 
Total 

TOTAL 41 21 2 3 1 68 

6.3. We have developed an in-house solution for tracking internal audit recommendations.  Going 

forward, where applicable, management will be able to upload evidence such as procedure 

notes, minutes of meetings etc.. to the SharePoint intranet site for tracking recommendations.  

This will be monitored and reminders sent by the internal audit team.  Doing it this way will 

maintain the level of control while minimising the level of committed audit resource and 

demand on managers time to complete follow-ups.   

6.4. Where it is not possible to evidence a recommendation this way we will continue to ensure a 

follow-up of the recommendation is conducted six months after the final report was issued and 

report on this to the Audit Panel.  

6.5. The table below shows the status of all recommendations made up to the 18/08/11.  

Lead 

Dir 

Previous 

No. of 

O/Due 

Recs.  

Current 

No. of 

O/due 

Recs 

Current 

No. of 

Recs 

with 2+ 

changes  

No of 

Recs 

Re-

opened 

since 

20/04/11 

Previous 

No. of 

Open at 

20/04/11 

No. of 

New 

Recs 

From 

20/04/11 

to 

18/08/11 

Closed 

Recs 

from 

20/04/11 

to 

18/08/11 

Current 

Open 

Recs at 

18/08/11 

RES 4 11 3 2 60 5 25 40 

CUS 6* - - - 28 10 25 13 

COM 5 5 2  20 5 7 18 

REG 7 6 1 2 17 12 8 21 

CYP 6 - 3 3 23 6 17 12 

SCH 13 13 2 2 34 5 19 20 

Total  41 35 11 9 182 43 101 124 

 

* Five recommendations transferred to Customer from Resources one day prior to  

distribution of last ICB report. 

6.6. A summary table in Appendix 4, shows those audits with either overdue recommendations or 

have two or more changes of implementation date.  As at 18 August there were 35 overdue 

(five High and 30 Medium) recommendations.  Out of those that are overdue, four have been 

overdue since the last audit meeting with no progress update provided as at 18/08/11. 

6.7. At the Audit Panel’s request, we invite officers to attend the meeting to explain the current 

position of recommendations overdue or with multiple date changes.  

 

 

Page 263



5 

7. Update on Key Risks  

7.1. The annual risk management maturity review undertaken by internal audit for 2010/11 

concluded that the Authority continues to be ‘Risk Managed’.  This is the fourth point on a five 

point scale and is the level Internal Control Board expects to be maintained.  

7.2. At the last Audit Panel when reviewing the Risk Management Strategy the Panel requested to 

be updated on the key corporate risks, changes and actions being taken to mitigate them. 

7.3. The current red (most significant) risks in the corporate risk register are: 

Corporate Risk Register – Extract 

Corporate priority Risk title Current risk 

status (RAG) 

Inspiring efficiency 

effectiveness and equity 

Failure of central ICT infrastructure Red 

Inspiring efficiency 

effectiveness and equity 

Litigation risks Red 

Inspiring efficiency 

effectiveness and equity 

Preparations and preparedness for the 

2012 Olympics and Paralympics 

Red 

Inspiring efficiency 

effectiveness and equity 

Non-compliance with H&S regulations Red 

Protection of Children; Caring 

for Adults and Older People 

Avoidable death or serious injury to 

client or employee 

Red 

Inspiring efficiency 

effectiveness and equity 

Employee relations Red 

 

7.4. The ICT infrastructure risk reflects the cost and service disruption risks.  Work to complete the 

archiving of storage combined with change support for moves to SharePoint 2010 to alleviate 

demands on server resources continues.  The Council also continues to monitor the resolution 

of issues with regard to the resilience of the telephony system.  

7.5. The Litigation risk reflects the cost and reputation risk arising from historical events and the 

risk of legal challenge to savings proposals.  The position is constantly monitored.   

7.6. Preparations for the 2012 Games are well underway and now impacting on plans Lewisham  

have to have in place for the Council and it’s residents to manage during this period, both in 

terms of business as usual and contingency planning.  Governance arrangements have been 

put in place to address this and detailed planning is now underway. 

7.7. Following recent incidents involving partners and our continued responsibilities for staff and 

the public, especially pupils in our schools, non-compliance with H&S remains an area of risk 

for the Council and is being vigilantly monitored.  We have refocused internal arrangements 

and are working closely with out partners delivering services on behalf of the Council.  

7.8. The risk of avoidable death or serious injury to a client or employee will continually be rated 

red due to the potential severity should an event occur.  Regular and ongoing management 

action and review continues in respect of safeguarding. 

7.9. The employee relations risk has been escalated from Amber to Red due to the staffing 

implications of the savings proposals.  The situation is subject to regular and ongoing review, 

staff consultation processes and engagement with the unions.   

7.10. In respect of the Audit Service the current risk being managed is the smooth transition, without 

loss of momentum in delivery of the audit plan, to the new contract to start in September.  This 

will follow the decision of Mayor & Cabinet (Contracts) on the 14 September.  Given the timing 

for distribution of this report a verbal update will be provided at the meeting. 

Page 264



6 

 

8. Legal Implications 

8.1. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 

 

9. Financial Implications 

9.1. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

10. Equalities Implications 

10.1. There are no equality implications arising directly from this report. 

 

11. Crime and Disorder Implications 

11.1. There are no crime and disorder implications arising directly from this report. 

 

12. Environmental Implications 

12.1. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 

 

13. Background Papers  

13.1. There are no background papers. 

 

If there are any queries on this report, please contact David Austin, Interim Head of Audit and 

Risk, on 020 8314 9114 or email him at david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk 

 

Page 265



Appendix 1 – Progress of the Audit Plan for 2011/12  
 

1 

Resources Audits – Sorted by final reports issued, draft reports issued and work started - Key Audits in Bold 
Lead 
Dir. 

Audits title Due 
F/W 
Started 

Draft 
Issued  

Final 
Issued  

Assurance 
Level 

Comment 

RES Public Sector Transparency Board  Q1  08/04/11 31/08/11    

RES 
Consultants Planning Framework 
Monitoring 

Q2      

RES Implementation of Fixed Asset System Q2     Post external audit 

RES 
Implementation of Payroll system 
(ResourceLink) 

Q2      

RES Implementation of HR System - PHRIS Q2     Pending follow-up 

RES HR - Thematic Review Q2     Scoping initiated 

RES 
Project Management Monitoring 
Capacity 

Q2      

RES Performance Indicators for LA’s Q2      

RES Cyber Threats Q2      

RES Mutual Organisations Q2      

 
Customer Services Audits – Sorted by final reports issued, draft reports  issued and work started - Key Audits in Bold) 
Lead 
Dir. 

Audits title Due 
F/W 
Started 

Draft 
Issued  

Final 
Issued  

Assurance 
Level 

Comment 

CUS Pest Control  Q1 24/04/11  14/04/11 06/05/11 Substantial  

CUS Trading Standards  Q1 24/03/11  21/06/11 27/06/11 Substantial  

CUS 
Complaints, Compliments and 
Suggestions.   

Q1  13/04/11  21/06/11 27/06/11 Substantial  

CUS Street cleaning Q1 05/04/11     

CUS Brockley PFI (Major Suppliers) Q1  11/07/11        

CUS Greenspace Contract Monitoring Q2          

 

P
age 266



Appendix 1 – Progress of the Audit Plan for 2011/12  
 

2 

Community Services Audits – Sorted by final reports issued, draft reports issued and work started - Key Audits in Bold 

Lead 
Dir. 

Audits title Due 
F/W 
Started 

Draft 
Issued  

Final 
Issued  

Assurance 
Level 

Comment 

COM 
Lewisham Park Housing Association 
(Day Care Provider) 

Q1  18/05/11 06/07/11   
(Additional Audit 
Requested) 

COM Personal Budgets Q1 05/04/11     

COM Learning Disabilities Contract  Q1 07/07/11     

COM Supporting People Service Plan Q2      

 
 
Regeneration Audits – Sorted by final reports issued, draft reports issued and work started - Key Audits in Bold 
Lead 
Dir. 

Audits title Due 
F/W 
Started   

Draft 
Issued  

Final 
Issued  

Assurance 
Level 

Comment 

REG Security of Town Hall / Laurence House Q1 23/03/11 29/07/11    

REG  Building Security  Q1 02/08/11     

REG Highways Contract Q2      

 

 

CYP Audits – Sorted by final reports issued, draft reports issued and work started - Key Audits in Bold 
Lead 
Dir. 

Audits title Due F/W 
Started 

Draft 
Issued  

Final 
Issued  

Assurance 
Level 

Comment 

CYP Provision of School Places Q1 18/03/11 30/06/11 28/07/11 Substantial  

CYP Play Capital Determination Grant Q1  20/06/11 N/A 27/06/11 Grant  

CYP CONTROC system - joint review Q2 25/07/11     

CYP Children Social Care Q2      

 

 

P
age 267



Appendix 1 – Progress of the Audit Plan for 2011/12  
 

3 

School Audits – Sorted by final reports issued, draft reports issued and work started 
Lead 
Dir. 

Audits title Due F/W 
Started 

Draft 
Issued  

Final 
Issued  

Assurance 
Level 

Comment 

SCH  Brockley Primary Q1 16/05/11 06/06/11 27/06/11 Substantial  

SCH  St William of York Primary Q1 23/05/11 06/06/11 01/07/11 Substantial  

SCH  Chelwood Nursery Q1 08/06/11 20/07/11 21/07/11 Substantial  

SCH  Elfrida Primary Q1 23/06/11 01/08/11    

SCH  Perrymount Primary Q1 28/06/11 26/07/11    

SCH  Gordonbrock Primary Q2 04/07/11 02/08/11    

SCH  Holy Trinity Primary Q2 11/07/11 02/08/11    

SCH  St Bartholomews Primary Q2 18/07/11     

SCH  Baring Primary Q2     Start in Sept (after hols) 

SCH  Childeric Primary Q2     Start in Sept (after hols) 

SCH  Downderry Primary Q2     Start in Sept (after hols) 

SCH  St John Baptist Primary Q2     Start in Sept (after hols) 

P
age 268



Appendix 2 -  Limited and No Assurance Audit Reports  

1 

 

Audit Name, Date of Issue 

and Opinion 

No of Recs. 

Made 

Scope of the Review  

Use of  the BACS service  High 0 The areas that were covered in this review :  

� Security over BACS direct debit (collection) and BACS direct credit (payment) files from 
creation to submission.  

� Automated Direct Debit Instruction Service (AUDDIS) files used to set up and maintain 
Direct Debit mandates.  

� Controls over file processing and transmission.  

� Monitoring of processes and activity through output reports.  

� Logical security controls for the ALBACSip system.  

� Segregation of duties over input, processing and monitoring of payments.  

� Arrangements to allow BACS instructions to be processed in the event of a disaster or other 

business interruption.  

Medium 4 

  Key Findings  

 The key findings in the report were:  

� no comprehensive procedures for managing the ALBACSip system  

� currently all BACS users have the same profile with full system rights and Authoriser and 
signer privileges.   

� no formal service continuity arrangements have been established. There is no proven 
alternative method for sending BACS files apart from the two PCS in the Civic Centre and  

� no formal change management procedure is defined for the BACS PCs including system 
settings, standing data, the hardware and database.  

 

Managers Comments  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 269



Appendix 2 -  Limited and No Assurance Audit Reports  

2 

 

Audit Name, Date of Issue 

and Opinion 

No of Recs. 

Made 

Scope of the Review  

Review of financial 

management of public funds 

held by Lewisham Park 

Housing Association (LPHA). 

 

LPHA provides day care 

services and sheltered 

housing support for minority 

ethnic elders including 

African, Caribbean, Asian, 

Turkish and Tamil elders.  

The day care services, which 

were the focus of this review, 

are provided across two 

centres – Calabash and St 

Mauritius House day centres.  

The total number of active 

users assessed for services 

by Social Services is 55.  

Other users may also use 

these services.   

The total contract amount for 

the day care service in 

2010/11 was £536,175. 

 

High 10 The areas that were covered in this review :  

The objective of the review was to assess the controls in place to ensure the finances relating 

to public funds are fully accounted for and accurately recorded.  Key financial information 

should be submitted in accordance with the terms of the contract.  Information is subject to 

stringent review and monitoring by the Council. 

Medium 1 

  Key Findings  

 The key findings in the report were:  

• The current monitoring framework used by the Contracts and Brokerage team for the 

Voluntary Sector monitoring review process does not have indicators to help identify poor 

financial controls in an organisation 

• No evidence of quarterly financial information being followed up by the Contracts and 

Brokerage team when it is not submitted by the service provider 

• The Services Manager of Joint Commissioning, Contract and Brokerage in December 

2007 requested the Council’s previous Internal Audit Service to review the service 

provider’s financial statements for 2006/07, which identified serious financial concerns.  

These concerns do not appear to have been addressed, and 

• There was no assurance over the cost effectiveness of the day care service being 

provider by the service provider. 

Through review of the financial management processes and procedures in place to account for 

public funds it was not possible to demonstrate proper stewardship of the Council’s funding to 

provide day care services in accordance with the terms of the contract.    

Managers Comments  

 

P
age 270



Appendix 3 - Follow Up Reviews Conducted Since the Last Audit Panel   

1 

 
 

Dir.  Audit Name  Audit 
Opinion 

Final 
Report 
date 

Rec 

Cat.  

Implemented  In Progress Superseded  Not 
Implemented 

Not Due Yet Total 
Recs  

RES 
Corporate Procurement 
Contracts 

Satisfactory 13/10/10 
H      

3 
M 2 1    

RES 
Information management 
Framework 

Limited 27/10/10 
H      

5 
M 2 2  1  

RES Agency Employees  Satisfactory 04/11/10 
H      

3 
M 2 1    

RES 
Risk Management – 
Operational Risk 
Registers  

Satisfactory 04/11/10 
H      

5 
M  4   1 

COM  
Client Financial Affairs – 
Council Public & Private 
Funerals 

Satisfactory 09/11/10 
H      

1 
M 1     

COM 
Client Contributions – 
Res & Dom Care  

Satisfactory 16/10/10 
H      

4 
M 3 1    

REG Highways  Substantial 26/11/10 
H      

2 
M  2    

REG 
Transport Programme- 
TFL Funding 

Satisfactory 26/11/10 
H      

5 
M 5     

REG Parking Client Substantial 23/12/10 
H      

2 
M 1 1    

CYP 
Children’s Centre SLA / 
Contracts  

Satisfactory 05/10/10 
H      

3 
M 2  1   

CYP 
Integrated Children’s 
System Application 
Security Control 

Limited 16/07/11 
H  1    

3 
M  2    

CYP CYP Finance Substantial 07/12/10 
H      

2 
M 1 1    

P
age 271



Appendix 3 - Follow Up Reviews Conducted Since the Last Audit Panel   

2 

Dir.  Audit Name  Audit 
Opinion 

Final 
Report 
date 

Rec 

Cat.  

Implemented  In Progress Superseded  Not 
Implemented 

Not Due Yet Total 
Recs  

CYP Youth Service Satisfactory 16/10/10 
H      

3 
M 2  1   

SCH Forest Hill Secondary Sch FMSiS Met 25/10/10 
H      

1 
M 1     

SCH Lewisham Bridge School Substantial 06/10/10 
H      

2 
M 1   1  

SCH 
Good Shepherd Roman 
Catholic School 

Substantial 23/09/10 
H      

1 
M 1     

SCH St Mary’s Primary School Satisfactory 29/11/10 
H      

3 
M 3     

SCH Torridon Infants School Substantial 01/12/10 
H      

1 
M 1     

SCH Lucas Vale Primary Substantial 01/12/10 
H      

2 
M 1 1    

SCH Fairlawn Junior School Substantial 02/12/10 
H      

2 
M 2      

SCH 
St Augustine’s Primary 
School 

Limited 03/12/10 
H      

7 
M 4 2  1  

SCH 
Rushey Green Primary 
School 

Satisfactory 08/12/10 
H      

3 
M 1 2    

SCH Rathern Primary School Satisfactory 09/12/10 
H      

3 
M 3     

SCH 
Marvels Lane Primary 
School 

Substantial 09/12/10 
H      

2 
M 2     

     Total No.  41 21 2 3 1 68 

   Percentage  60% 31% 3% 5% 1%  

P
age 272



Appendix 4 – Overdue Recommendations and  Recommendations Two or More Changes of Date 

1 

Dir Name of Audit  Final 
Report 
Date 

High 
O/Due 

Medium 

O/Due 

No. Recs 
2+ 
Changes 

Comment 

RES Benefits Realisation for the Early Change Project 16/02/11  1  Overdue since the last Audit Panel 

RES Health & Safety 01/11/10  3   

RES Information Security Management 10/11 24/03/11  6   

RES Operational Risk Registers 01/11/10  1   

RES DPA / FOIA 09/10/09   1 Date changed 4 times 

RES SharePoint 25/01/10   2 Date changed 2 times 

COM Community Mental Health (SLAM) Pre 2009  1 1 Date changed 5 times 

COM Client Contributions for Res & Dom Care  (pre 2009) 29/05/10  1 1 Date changed 3 times 

COM Direct Payments 10/11 29/03/11  1 1* Overdue since last Audit Panel 

* This rec is not overdue 

COM Events 11/01/11  2   

CYP Family Support and Intervention 04/12/09   2 Date changed 4 times 

CYP ICS Application Security Controls 16/07/10   1 Date changed 2 times 

REG Capital Programme – Lessons Learnt 18/05/11 4 1   

REG Property Services – Mail Room 15/04/11 1    

REG Highway Maintenance 03/05/08   1 Date changed 9 times 

SCH Horniman Primary School 24/06/10  1  Overdue since last Audit Panel 

SCH Lee Manor School 22/02/11  3   

SCH Myatt Garden School 25/06/10  3   

SCH Rangefield School 21/03/11  1   

SCH Torridon Junior School 08/07/10  1  Overdue since last Audit Panel 

SCH Chelswood Nursery 21/07/11  2   

SCH Turnham Infant School 08/02/11  2   

SCH Rushey Green School 08/12/10   2 Date changed 2 times 

   5 30 12  

 

P
age 273



 1

 

1. Purpose of the Report 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to present the Audit Panel with a review of the work of 

the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Team (A-FACT) in the last quarter.   

1.2. The report is structured to cover the three main areas of activity – special, benefits 

and housing investigations – and than an overview of progress with our more general 

activities – training, publicity etc.. 

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. It is recommended that the Audit Panel note this report for information. 

 

3. Special Investigations 

3.1. During the period April to July 2011 the Special Investigations section received 76 

new allegations or enquiries relating to fraud and/or irregularity.  This is similar to the 

same period in 2010/11 (78 cases).   

3.2. During this period the section completed 111 cases/enquiries compared to 57 cases 

last year.  This means we now have 99 cases in progress.  These figures include 

Lewisham Homes cases but exclude pre-employment checks undertaken. 

3.3. Two Council cases that have recently been bought to a conclusion are: 

• A Business Support Officer was listed on the Audit Commissions National Fraud 

Initiative report which matches Lewisham employees to expired visas.  

Investigations established that the employee had not provided evidence of an 

extension of her initial visa. When challenged the employee stated that she was 

waiting for her visa to remain in the UK to be processed. She subsequently 

provided further unsatisfactory explanations and then tendered her resignation 

which was accepted. 

• An agency worker was employed between April and November 2009 in the 

Systems Control Team of Customer Services.  During this period he manipulated 

the 'back end' of the Housing Benefit system. Following a Special Investigation 

he was arrested in August 2010 and admitted the fraud.  On the 29th July 2011 he 

was sentenced to 9 months in custody suspended for 2 years and a 280 hours 

Community Order.  Costs of £5,000 were also awarded 

 

3.4. Reports are now being issued quarterly to each Executive Director with a summary of 

all cases being dealt with by Special Investigations in their Directorate.  This ensures 

that the risk of fraud is considered in the context of the demands of the service, 

priorities are agreed and progress on investigations communicated. 

AUDIT PANEL 

Report Title ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION TEAM (A-FACT) UPDATE  

Key Decision NO  Item No. 5 

Ward ALL 

Contributors 
Interim Head of Audit & Risk 

A-FACT Group Manager 

Class Part 1 Date: 20 September 2011 

Agenda Item 5

Page 274



 2

 

Pre-employment Checks 

3.5. A-FACT support Human Resources by undertaking a part of the recruitment checks.  

Each potential employee of the Council is required to complete a pre-employment 

check form which focuses on any issues relating to benefits, council tax, rent and 

personal business interests which may cast doubt on the individuals integrity.  In the 

period April to July 73 checks were undertaken including 8 for Lewisham Homes.  

3.6. These checks found six cases where the applicant had other business interests or 

company directorships.  All these applicants went on to be recruited once the 

Council’s requirement for whole time service had been confirmed. 

 

4  Benefit Investigations 

4.1  During the period April to July the Benefit Investigation section has secured 20 

sanctions, including 3 prosecutions against an annual stretch target of 90.  The target 

has been reduced this year to reflect the reduction in team size from 6 benefit 

investigators plus 1 Intelligence Office to 3 benefit investigators. The total value of 

fraudulent benefit overpayments identified in this period was £90,876.  On recovery 

this represents a saving to the public purse. 

4.2 In the period April to July 2011 the Benefit Investigations Section received 74 

referrals of benefit fraud, they completed and closed 129 cases.  We now have 326 

investigations in progress. 

4.3 The team working on Housing Benefit Investigations is directly impacted by the 

Government’s plans to create a single national investigation force to be led by the 

Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).  The DWP have stated that they will be 

announcing their plans for the future of tackling benefit fraud in October 2011. 

 

5 Housing Investigations 

5.1 The team’s Housing Investigation Practitioner investigates allegations of Housing and 

Homelessness Application Fraud and Cash Incentive Scheme payments against the 

London Borough of Lewisham. The investigation of tenancy fraud has been the 

responsibility of Lewisham Homes since October 2008. 

During  the period April to July, 32 cases were passed for investigation, compared to 

a total of 60 cases for the whole of last year.  The officer dealing with these cases 

completed 14 cases compared to 35 cases last year.  There are currently 90 cases 

under investigation.  

5.2 Of the 14 cases concluded three have resulted in successful outcomes.  In summary 

they are: 

• A decant case where it was established that the tenant had not been resident 

for five years and had actually moved in with her grandson.  She had also 

continued to claim housing benefit for the property.  Evidence indicated that 

the property had been sublet and when challenged the tenant returned the 

keys immediately. 

• A false Homelessness case, where applicant provided a forged passport. 

• A decant application where it was proved that not all the stated occupants 

were resident.  This resulted in the assessed Housing need being reduced to 

a two bed premise rather than a three bed one. 

 

Page 275



 3

DCLG Housing Bid funding 

5.3 The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has, as part of the 

Government’s commitment to tackling social housing fraud, allocated Lewisham 

Council £100,000 in both 2011/12 and 2012/13 for tackling social housing fraud.  

Work is being directed by Strategic Housing (Customer Services) and delivered by A-

FACT working in Lewisham with the South East London Housing Partnership 

(SELHP).  The DCLG have indicated that future funding may also be available for 

this work in 2013/14 and 2014/15. 

5.4 Following discussions between Strategic Housing, SELHP and A-FACT, Lewisham 

has committed the first years funding of £100k to support two housing providers 

Pinnacle/Regenter and London & Quadrant in tackling housing fraud in the region. 

5.5 Focusing on Social Housing Fraud is consistent with the March and June Audit Panel 

discussions on the fraud risks in Lewisham.  The first year’s grant will be used to fund 

a housing investigator on a one year fixed contract (£50k), data matching (£25k), 

providing training & legacy systems (£15k), and advice and contingencies (£10k). 

5.6 Subject to Recruitment Approval Panel approval we intend to recruit a Housing 

Investigator on a one year fixed term contract as soon as possible.  In the meantime 

we are arranging to allocate internal resource within AFACT to get this project up and 

running successfully. 

 

6 Requests for information under the Data Protection Act (Section 29.3) 

6.1 Since the deletion of the Intelligence Officer post all requests for information from the 

Police, Department for Work and Pension, other local authorities and Central 

Government departs are being referred to the Information Governance Team. 

 

7 Publicity 

7.1 A-FACT has continued to publicise successful cases in the local press and the BBC 

programme Saints and Scroungers featuring Lewisham A-FACT has also been re-

run on daytime television.  Feedback from all coverage has been positive.  

7.2 The team has continued to advertise the “Report Fraud Hotline 08000 850 119 on the 

electronic messaging board outside the Town Hall. 

 

8 Fraud Awareness Training 

8.1 In the period April to July A-FACT has provided fraud awareness training for Housing 

Options Centre and Strategic Rehousing.   

8.2 Phoenix Community Housing have commissioned Lewisham A-FACT to provide a 

programme of Fraud Awareness training.  

8.3 Over the summer we have revised the Counter Fraud policy to include reference to 

the new Anti-Bribery & Corruption Act.  This supports the Council’s new Anti-Bribery 

& Corruption policy and accompanying briefing and training materials and events for 

members and officers. 

 

9. Metropolitan Police Secondee 

9.1. Detective Constable Norris who is on secondment from the Metropolitan Police 

continues to effectively contribute and enhance the work of the A-FACT by providing 

Page 276



 4

advice, assistance and applying Police powers where appropriate.  His access to 

Police systems and intelligence has proved invaluable.      

9.2. DC Norris is an Accredited Financial Investigator and has used his powers under the 

Police and Criminal Evidence Act to obtain Production Orders for information from 

Financial Investigations for ongoing investigations. 

9.3. He is currently working on a number of complex cases (which cannot be reported 

yet) and was key to four of the prosecutions undertaken this year.  His involvement in 

the recent Special Investigation case (involving manipulation of the benefit system) 

reported above was key to the success in the case.   

9.4. With his agreement, we propose to renew his secondment for a further year. 

 

10. Legal Implications 

10.1. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.  

 

11. Financial Implications 

11.1. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.  

 

12. Equalities Implication 

12.1. There are no specific equalities implications arising directly from this report.  
 

13. Crime and Disorder Implications 

13.1. There are no crime or disorder implications arising directly from this report 

 

14. Environmental Implications 

14.1. There are no specific environmental implications arising directly from this report.  

 

15. Background Papers 

15.1. There are no background papers reported. 

 

If there are any queries on this report, please contact 

David Austin at david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk or on 020 8314 9114, or 

Carol Owen at carol.owen@lewisham.gov.uk  or on 020 8314 7909  

  

 

 

Page 277


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the last meeting
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 External Auditor's Report on the 2010/11 Accounts
	iTEM 3 Appendix 1 Statement of Accounts - AC Technical Review
	Item 3 Appendix 1B Annual Governance Statement 2010-11 (Council Sept 11) (4)
	Item 3 Appendix 2 (i) LBL LG Annual Governance Report communications plan  Audit Panelpdf
	Item 3 Appendix 2 (ii) Copy of 2010-2011 - Annual governance report - Lewisham Pension Fund v0 2 doc9 9 (2)
	Item 3 Appendix 2(iii) - Draft Audit Opinion
	Item 3 Appendix 2(iv) Draft Letter of Representation

	4 Internal Audit Update Report
	5 Anti Fraud and Corruption Team Update

